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Or
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Or
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EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934
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SPECIAL NOTE REGARDING FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

This annual report contains forward-looking stateta¢hat reflect our current expectations and viefsfsiture events. These forward
looking statements are made under the “safe-hagronisions of the U.S. Private Securities LitigatiReform Act of 1995. Some of these

forward looking statements can be identified byneand phrases such as “anticipate”, “should” glik, “foresee”, “believe”, “estimate”,

T (LT "o« LU ” o ”ow ",

“expect”, “intend”, “continue”, “could”, “may”, “pan”, “project”, “predict”, “will", and similar expessions. These forward-looking statements
include statements relating to:

. our goals and strategie

. our ability to grow our payment volume

. our ability to maintain the size of our distributioetwork;

. our ability to maintain our relationships with aaerchants and agen

. the expected growth of Visa Qiwi Wallet and alteéiveamethods of paymer

. our ability to continue to develop new and attraefproducts and service

. our future business development, results of opmratand financial conditiol

. our ability to continue to develop new technologiesl upgrade our existing technolog

. our ability to grow our advertising revenue andesthalue added service

. competition in our industry

. projected revenue, profits, earnings and othemedéd financial information; ar

. developments in, or changes, to the laws, regulatial governmental policies governing our busiaessindustry

The preceding list is not intended to be an exinaiist of all of our forward-looking statemenihese forward-looking statements are
based on our beliefs, assumptions and expectatifdiusure performance, taking into account the infation currently available to us. These
statements are only predictions based upon oueruexpectations and projections about future evdrtere are important factors that could
cause our actual results, level of activity, parfance or achievements to differ materially from ridssults, level of activity, performance or

achievements expressed or implied by the forwao#titay statements. In particular, you should corsilde numerous risks provided under
Item 3.D “Risk Factors” in this annual report.

These forward-looking statements speak only aketiaite of this annual report. Except as requiyeldiy, we undertake no obligation to
publicly update or revise any forward-looking staénts, whether as a result of new information,rievents or otherwise.

1
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PART |
ITEM 1. Identity of Directors, Senior Management ard Advisers.

Not applicable.

ITEM 2. Offer Statistics and Expected Timetable.
Not applicable.

ITEM 3. Key Information.
A. Selected financial data

The following tables set forth our selected corttfd financial and other data. You should readdahewing selected consolidated
financial and other data together with the inforioratn Item 5 “Operating and Financial Review anddpects” and Item 3.D “Risk Factors”
and our consolidated financial statements andetaead notes included elsewhere in this annualrtePair financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with the International FifediReporting Standards as published by the Iateynal Accounting Standards Board, or
IFRS.

The following tables also contain translationsiudile amounts into U.S. dollars for amounts pregefdethe year ended December 31,
2013. These translations are solely for convenierhtiee reader and were calculated at the ratels B2.7292 per U.S. $1.00, which equals tc
the official exchange rate quoted by the CentralkBaf the Russian Federation, or CBR, on DecembgP313.

Year ended December 31
2009 2010 2011 2012 2013
RUB RUB RUB RUB RUB U.S.$
(in millions, except per share dat

Consolidated Income Statement De:

Revenue 591( 6,15¢ 8,15¢ 8,911 11,66¢ 35€
Cost of revenu (4,067) (3,750 (5,579 (5,459 (6,39€¢) (19%)
Selling, general and administrative exper (1,079 (1,420 (1,549 (1,83 (2,608 (80
Depreciation and amortizatic @z (A7) @141y (129 (113 (©)]
Impairment of intangible assets and good — — — 4 (5) 0)
Profit from operations 591 81¢ 901 1,48¢ 2,54« 78
Gain on bargain purcha — — 15 — — —

Gain (loss) from disposal of subsidiar 8 7 7 (D) — —

Change in fair value of derivative financial as — 9 — — — —

Other income 12 21 10 17 21 1
Other expense (27 (39 (73 (29 (20) (2)
Foreign exchange (loss) gain, | (14) — (12 (22) 8 0]
Share of loss of associal — — (23 a3 (79 2
Impairment of investment in associa — — — — (22 (0]
Interest incom 13 5 6 26 22 1
Interest expens 2 (©)] 4) 9 (29 D
Profit before tax from continuing operations 581 821 827 1,45€¢ 2,44t 75
Income tax expens (142) (204 (241 (409 (6100 (19
Net profit from continuing operations 43¢ 617 58€  1,04¢ 1,83t 56
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Gain (loss) from discontinued operatic

Net profit
Attributable to:
Equity holders of the pare
Non-controlling interest:
Weighted average number of shs
Basic
Diluted
Earnings per shal
Basic
Diluted
Dividends declared per she
RUB
Uu.s.$

Consolidated Balance Sheet Data
Cash and cash equivalel

Total current asse

Total asset

Total equity

Total debi

Total liabilities

Total equity and liabilitie:

Other Financial and Operating Data

Segment net reven-Qiwi Distribution (1)
Segment net reven-Visa Qiwi Wallet(1)

Other(W)®@
Adjusted net revenu®

Adjusted EBITDA®

Adjusted net profi(®)

Qiwi Distribution

Active kiosks and terminals (unit

Payment volume (in billions
Average net revenue yie®)

Visa Qiwi Wallet

Active Visa Qiwi Wallet accounts (at period endniillions) )

Payment volume (in billions

Average volume per Visa Qiwi Wallet account (in RUBS.$, as

indicated)(”)
Average net revenue yie®)

Year ended December 31

2009 2010 2011 2012 2013
RUB RUB RUB RUB RUB U.S.§
(in millions, except per share dat
5 138 (156 (2400 — @ —
444 75E 43C 80¢ 1,83t 56
44¢ 693 52C 91C 1,87: 57
(5) 62 (900 (1029 (39 (D)
52 52 52 52 52 52
52 52 52 52 52 52
8.6¢ 13.3: 10.0C 17.5(C 36.0C 1.1C
8.64 13.17 10.0C 17.5C 35.7C 1.0¢
6.2t 7.1¢ 8.01 16.67 35.8¢ n/e
0.21 0.24 0.2t 0.5t 1.1C n/e
As of December 31
2009 2010 2011 2012 2013
RUB RUB RUB RUB RUB U.S9
(in millions)
2,11: 6,89z 8,81( 9,94: 11,637 35¢€
8,894 10,41( 12,11: 15,607 16,34: 49¢
10,88. 13,51¢ 15,30¢ 18,70¢ 20,66 631
2,00 2,34¢ 2,35¢ 2,49¢ 2,704 83
41 67 19C 65 11C 3
8,871 11,16¢ 12,95 16,21( 17,96. 54¢
10,88 13,51¢ 15,30¢ 18,70¢ 20,66t 631
Year ended December 31
2009 2010 2011 2012 2013
RUB RUB RUB RUB RUB U.sS.g
(in millions, except as otherwise indicate
1,95¢ 2,47¢ 2,49¢ 2,84t 3,182 97
157 29¢ 69C 1,241 2,88¢ 88
20 27 70 83 10z 3
2,13¢ 2,79¢ 3,25¢ 4,16¢ 6,16¢ 18¢€
752 1,067 1,18 1,851 2,97¢ 91
53¢ 76€ 721 1,30¢ 2,17: 66
152,35¢ 158,86° 170,38 169,10: 168,23t n/e
330.¢ 360.7 408.: 464.¢ 520.( 15.¢
0.5% 0.6% 0.61% 0.61% 0.61% 0.61%
5.¢ 6.0 8.1 11.4 15.4 n/e
11.¢ 26.7 65.4 151.5 255.1 7.8
1,98¢ 4,46( 8,02¢ 13,26( 16,56¢ 50€
1.32% 1.11% 1.05% 0.82% 1.1% 1.13%

3
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(1) See note 9 of our annual consolidated financid¢stants

(2) Other includes our corporate and other segmemtdaimpany eliminations, and timing of expense raiamn.

(3) See “—Business Overview Financial Measufes’how we define and calculate adjusted net regeadjusted EBITDA, and adjusted
profit as non-IFRS financial measures and recaat@ilins of these measures to revenue, in the caadjudted net revenue, and net profit,
in the case of adjusted EBITDA and adjusted nédfitp!

(4) We measure the numbers of our kiosks and tedsiion a daily basis, with only those kiosks amthieals being taken into calculation
through which at least one payment has been predekging the day, which we refer to as active kscand terminals. The period end
numbers of our kiosks and terminals are calculatedn average of the amount of active kiosks amndirials for the last 30 days of the
respective reporting perio

(5) Average net revenue yield is defined as segmenerenue divided by total payment volume per segn

(6) Number of active Visa Qiwi Wallet accounts is definas the number of wallets through which at leastpayment has been made or
have been loaded or reloaded in the 12 months giregéhe end of the relevant reporting peri

(7) Average volume per Visa Qiwi Wallet accountléfined as total payment volumes in our Visa QivélMt segment divided by the
number of active wallets at the end of the relevapbrting period

Non-IFRS Financial Measures

We present adjusted net revenue, adjusted EBITRagjusted net profit, each of which are non-IFR&rfcial measures. You should
not consider these non-IFRS financial measuresiastitutes for or superior to revenue, in the adsadjusted net revenue, or net profit, in the
case of adjusted EBITDA and adjusted net profithgarepared in accordance with IFRS. Furthermaeabse these non-IFRS financial
measures are not determined in accordance with,IfR$ are susceptible to varying calculations mag not be comparable to other similarly
titted measures presented by other companies. \Gmuesge investors and others to review our findmefarmation in its entirety and not rely
on a single financial measure.

Adjusted net revent

Adjusted net revenue is calculated by subtractosy of revenue from revenue and adding back pagralirelated taxes. Adjusted net
revenue is a key measure used by management tovelse operational profitability since it refleaar portion of the revenue net of fees that
we pass through, primarily to our agents. In additunder IFRS, consumer fees are recorded agvatue whereas merchant fees are rec
as gross revenue. Therefore, in order to analyzénmusources of payment processing fees on a catipa basis, management reviews
adjusted net revenue in addition to gross reveWeadd back payroll and related taxes becauseugththey are an essential part of our
distribution network, these expenses are not dyréioked to payment volume. Nevertheless, payaolll related taxes represents an important
portion of our operating costs and affect liquidityd financial performance.

The following table reconciles adjusted net revetouevenue.

Year ended December 31

2009 2010 2011 2012 2013
RUB RUB RUB RUB RUB U.S.$
(in millions)
Revenue 591(C 6,15¢ 8,15¢ 8,911 11,66¢ 35€
Minus: Cost of revenue (exclusive of depreciation and &izaiion) (4,067 (3,751 (5,57Y) (5,459 (6,39¢) (195
Plus: Payroll and related tax 29: 392 66¢ 712 89¢ 27
Adjusted net revenue 2,13¢  2,79¢ 3,25¢ 4,16¢ 6,16¢ 18¢

Adjusted EBITD/

Adjusted EBITDA is defined as net profit beforednee tax expense, interest expense, interest inamehelepreciation and amortization,
as further adjusted for (loss) gain from discongithwperations, share of loss of an associate gioeichange (loss) gain, net, change in fair
value of derivative financial assets, other expsnsther income, gain from disposal of subsidiaigesporate costs allocated to discontinued
operations, gain from bargain purchase, offeringe@ses, share-based payment expenses and gooapéllient charges. We present
adjusted EBITDA as a supplemental performance medscause we believe that it facilitates opergtieijormance comparisons from period
to period and company to company by backing outm@il differences caused by variations in cagitalctures (affecting interest expenses,
net), changes in foreign exchange rates that impact
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financial asset and liabilities denominated in ennies other than our functional currency (afferfioreign exchange (loss) gain, net), tax
positions (such as the impact on periods or congsanii changes in effective tax rates), reversahphirments (affecting other income and
impairment of investment in associates), the agebaok depreciation of fixed assets (affectingtreéadepreciation expense), non-cash
charges (affecting share-based payments expeasekiertain one-time expenses (affecting offerixmgeases). Adjusted EBITDA also
excludes other expenses, share in losses of asaiad impairment of investment in associatesusecave believe it is helpful to view the
performance of our business excluding the impaendties that we do not control, and because laresof the net income (loss) of the
associate and other expenses includes items thatdther been excluded from adjusted EBITDA (sucfireance expenses, net, tax on income
and depreciation and amortization). In additionjusittd EBITDA excludes the narash impact of changes in the fair value of deefatancia
assets and of discontinued operations that we tibeli@ve reflect the underlying performance of business. Because adjusted EBITDA
facilitates internal comparisons of operating perfance on a more consistent basis, we also usstadjEBITDA in measuring our
performance relative to that of our competitors.

Some limitations of adjusted EBITDA are:
. adjusted EBITDA does not reflect income tax payra¢hnat may represent a reduction in cash avaitabls;
. adjusted EBITDA does not include other income, othepense and foreign exchange gains and lo

. adjusted EBITDA excludes depreciation and arpatibn and although these are non-cash chargessthets being depreciated and
amortized may have to be replaced in the fut

. adjusted EBITDA does not include gains and lossms fliscontinued operations; a

. adjusted EBITDA does not include sh-based payment

Year ended December 31

2008 2010 2011 2012 2013
RUB _RUB RUB RUB RUB_ U.S{
(in millions)
Net Profit 444 75¢ 43C 80¢ 1,83t 56
plus:
Depreciation and amortizatic 172 171 141 12¢ 112 3
Gain on bargain purcha — — as — —  —
Impairment of investment in associa — — — — 22 1
Gains on disposa (8) @) (7 1 —  —
Other income (12 (22) (10 ()] 2y @
Other expense 27 34 73 29 20 1
Change in fair value of derivative financial instrents — 9 — — - —
Foreign exchange loss (gain), | 14 — 12 21 (8) 0
Share of loss of associal — — 23 13 79 2
Interest incomi (13 (5) (6) (26) 22 (@
Interest expense 2 3 4 9 29 1
Income tax expenst 14z 204 241 40¢ 61C 19
Corporate costs allocated to discontinued opers — 8C 141 61 - —
Offering expense — — — 10¢ 85 3
Share-based payments expen: — — — 66 231 7
(Gain)/ loss from discontinued operatic (5) (138 15€ 24C —  —
Goodwill impairmen — — — — 5 0]
Adjusted EBITDA 764 1,067 1,18: 1,851 297¢ 91
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Adjusted net profi

Adjusted net profit is defined as net profit exéhglloss on discontinued operations (net of tagjporate costs allocated to discontinued
operations, amortization of fair value adjustmegtsn on bargain purchase, gains on disposalsediemed payment expenses, offering
expenses, and the effects of taxation on thoseiéedlitems. Adjusted net profit is a key measussl sy management to observe the
operational profitability of the company. We bekeadjusted net profit is useful to an investonialeating our operating performance because
it is widely used by investors, securities analgstd other interested parties to measure a compapgrating performance without the effec
non-recurring items or items that are not coreuoaperations. For example, loss on discontinuedaifons, corporate costs allocated to
discontinued operations, gain on bargain purctgaias on disposals, the effects of deferred tarativexcluded items and offering expenses
do not represent the core operations of the busijresl amortization of fair value adjustments dratesbased payments expenses do not hi
substantial cash effect. Nevertheless, such gaiti$osses can affect our financial performance.

The following table reconciles adjusted net prtafihet profit.

Year ended December 31

200¢ 2010 2011 201z 2013
RUB RUB RUB RUB RUB  US{
(in millions)

Net profit 444 755 43C 80¢ 1,83t 56
(Gain)/loss from discontinued operatic (5) (13 15€ 24C — —
Goodwill impairmen — — — — 5 0
Corporate costs allocated to discontinued opers — 8C 141 61 — —
Amortization of fair value adjustmer 134 11¢ 51 42 22 1
Gain on bargain purcha — — (15) — — —
Gains on disposa 8 @) @) 1 — —
Offering expense — — — 10¢ 8t 3
Shar-based compensation expen — — — 66 231 7
Effect of taxation of the above iter (27) 40 (39 (21) 4) 0)

Adjusted net profit 53¢ 76€ 721 1,30¢ 2,17: 66

Exchange Rate Information

The following tables show, for the periods indichteertain information regarding the exchange raggween the Russian ruble and the
U.S. dollar, based on the official exchange rateteg by the CBR.

Period Period End Period average® High Low

Year ended December 31, 2009 30.2¢ 31.7 36.4: 28.61
Year ended December 31, 2C 30.4¢ 30.3¢ 31.7¢ 28.9:¢
Year ended December 31, 2C 32.2( 29.3¢ 32.6¢ 27.2¢
Year ended December 31, 2C 30.37 31.07 34.0¢ 28.9¢
Year ended December 31, 2C 32.7¢ 31.8¢ 33.47 29.9:¢
September 201 32.3¢ 32.6( 33.47 31.5¢
October 201: 32.0¢ 32.1(C 32.4¢ 31.6¢
November 201: 33.1¢ 32.6¢ 33.1¢ 32.0¢
December 201 32.7¢ 32.8¢ 33.2¢ 32.6:
January 201 35.2¢ 33.7¢ 35.2¢ 32.6¢
February 201: 36.0¢ 35.2¢ 36.0¢ 34.6(
March 2014 (through March ¢ 36.2¢ 36.2: 36.3¢ 36.0¢

(1) The period average in respect of a year isutatled as the average of the exchange rates dasthieusiness day of each month in the
relevant period. The period average in respectrobath is calculated as the average of the exchaatgs for each business day in the
relevant month
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B. Capitalization and Indebtedness

Not applicable.

C. Reasons for the Offer and Use of Proceeds.
Not applicable.

D. Risk Factors

In conducting our business, we face many risksrtat interfere with our business objectives. Sohtkese risks relate to our
operational processes, while others relate to ausibess environment. It is important to understdr@nature of these risks. If any of the
following risks actually occurs, it may materialiarm our business, results of operations or finahcondition.

Risks Related to Our Business and Industry

The payment services industry is highly competitiaad we have a number of competitors that are krgnd have greater financial
resources.

The payment services industry is highly competjtased our continued growth depends on our abititgadmpete effectively. In the
countries in which we operate, we face competitiom a variety of financial and non-financial busiis groups. These competitors include
retail banks, nonraditional payment service providers (such asleztaand mobile network operators, or MNOSs), triadial kiosk and termin:
operators and electronic payment system operasmsgell as other companies which provide various$oof payment services, including
electronic payment and payment processing senu@sipetitors in our industry seek to differentititemselves by features and functionalities
such as speed, convenience, network size, acdégshours of operation, reliability and price.significant number of our competitors have
greater financial, technological and marketing veses than we have, operate robust networks andiginl/ regarded by consumers.

In Russia, we face significant competition from anagtail banks for our services, including thosevided by both our Qiwi Distribution
and Visa Qiwi Wallet businesses. Our primary contpes include Sberbank, Russia’s largest retaikitaat is majority-owned by the Russian
state, and Alfa-Bank, one of the leading privatmlyned Russian retail banks, both of which havetelaic banking systems and large retail
networks. Some retail banks are currently devetpgieir own networks of kiosks and terminals andous electronic payment products.
Sherbank, for example, has stated that its statggals include the promotion of alternative bagkthannels, such as kiosks, internet banking
and mobile banking, and has recently acquired anitgjstake in Yandex.Money, a major electronicipayt system operator in Russia, to
further develop its online payment services caji@dsl Sberbank has access to significant finamesburces and an extensive nationwide
network of branches that can serve as a platforrthiBbexpansion of its kiosk business. Sberbatikeidargest processor of utility bill
payments, which constitute a very significant portof overall consumer spending in our industryeSenfactors may give Sberbank a
substantial competitive advantage over us if ispas its strategy of establishing a broad kioskwou, internet banking and mobile banking
businesses.

Our competitors also include the Russian FedeedbSdnitary Enterprise Postal Service, or Russizst,Rvhich offers certain payment
services. Russian Post’'s geographical penetratiomie dispersed than our Qiwi Distribution netwdkk a state-sponsored institution, we
believe that it is able to provide payment servigesignificantly lower prices than we are ablenatch profitably. If any of our competitors
with a broad network of branches, including Sbekb#ifa-Bank or Russian Post, were to establishaiively pursue a kiosk and terminal
business, we would lose many of our consumerstaadiargins in our Qiwi Distribution business cob&lharmed. We also face competition
from non-traditional payment service providers thate substantial financial resources, such asrmelgcommunication and media devices
retailers, including Euroset and Svyaznoy, as a&IMNOs, in particular the Russian “Big Thré&¢NOs, MegaFon, VimpelCom and MTS. \
also compete against some directly comparable bssas, such as traditional kiosk and terminal epesaincluding OJSC Cyberplat, and
0JSC Elecsnet, and electronic payment system apsrgrimarily Yandex.Money and WebMoney). Sherban&cent acquisition of a
majority interest in Yandex.Money may provide sabsial benefits for both parties and increase tb@inbined market share. New competitors
may penetrate the Russian electronic payment maskeell,



Table of Contents

including established international players sucRPagPal, Western Union and Moneygram. In May 2@M8as reported that PayPal obtained &
Non-Banking Credit Institution license from the CBRdrder to conduct business in Russia, and in Sd@e®013, it was reported that PayPa
has enabled its customers to effect transactioRaigsian rubles. In November 2013, Russia’s preani#ne bank Tinkoff Credit Systems
announced the launch of its own electronic walystesm, called Tinkoff Mobile Wallet. Additionallgome of our competitors are currently our
major merchants (the Big Three MNOSs) or our agéiotsexample, Svyaznoy), and are responsible frlsstantial amount of our business. If
we are unable to compete successfully for consuyragents and merchants, our business, financialittom and results of operations could be
materially adversely affected.

We have experienced a decline in our average ngerrie yield and our continued growth will depend baing able to continue to increase
our payment volume and to introduce new fees antleaadded services.

One of the key measures we use to assess our ifihpecformance is our average net revenue yieldchivwe calculate by dividing
segment net revenue by the total size, or paymauoie, of the transactions we process on a per aeigbasis. Our average net revenue yield
excluding inactivity fees declined in our Visa QiWallet operating segment and in our Qiwi Distribatoperating segment over the thyear
period ended December 31, 2013. The decline iravarage net revenue yields was driven by a detlingerchant fees from our larger retail
merchants, in particular the Big Three MNOs, wheehbeen seeking to reduce costs. In response tiettime in merchant fees, we introdur
consumer fees that are collected by our agentst Mosntly, in November 2013 — January 2014, ipaase to a significant decrease in
merchant fees by one of the Big Three MNOs, waiuced consumer fees for mobile and broadbandiettéop-ups through Visa Qiwi
Wallet to certain operators. The shift from merdhaaid processing fees to consumer-paid procedsagy however, presents us with a numbe
of challenges. Since consumers, and not merchaoteasingly bear additional cost of using our reekywe must continue to ensure that our
payment processing system provides a more convesighattractive option than alternative systeras hay not require payment by the
consumer of a processing fee. Retail banks andwspayment service providers are constantly deirggdow to zero-commission payment
channels for their consumers. To attract consumerslso offer certain services on a commissioa-frasis, such as peer-to-peer transfers
within Visa Qiwi Wallet. Despite our efforts, comsars may still choose to use other payment systeves) if those systems do not offer the
convenience that we do, because they charge l@gsr fn addition, because agents are able to shétivheen different payment processing
systems, we may face additional pressure to rethéctees we receive from consumers due to increas@petition from other payment sen
providers. We may not be able to continue to offisetdecline in merchant fees or maintain currewmtls of profitability by introducing new
consumer fees or increasing existing fees. Asutres order to continue to stabilize our average revenue yield and drive our profitability,
we must increase our payment volume at a raterfésia the decline in average net payment proog$sas. Our ability to maintain and grow
our profitability also depends in part on the depehent and enhancement of our services offerirgutiir the addition of new value added
services, which we view as another means to dffieetiecline in merchant fees. In particular, aificamt portion of our revenue from value
added services is derived from advertising, andaolwertising revenue has almost doubled betweef 26d 2013. Continued growth in
advertising revenue may not occur at the same @&dehas in prior years or may decline. Startmflovember 2013, certain mobile network
operators introduced measures to limit the numb&MS delivered to their customers. These measumssubstantially increase the fees for
delivering SMS to our customers as well as limi& #@mount of such SMS delivered. As a consequenaeagement expects that SMS
advertising revenue may be materially negativelgcéd starting from the year ended December 313 20ing forward. We cannot assure
that we will be able to increase our payment volsimethat any value added services we introdudebeiprofitable. Continued decline in our
average net revenue yield as a result of thesther €actors would cause our financial conditiod agsults of operations to deteriorate.

We derive a substantial portion of our revenuesifia few large merchants, in particular the Big TheeMINOs.

The Big Three MNOs, MegaFon, VimpelCom and MTSyespnt a significant portion of our merchant bésgether accounting for 9%
of our revenue for the year ended December 31, a6diFor 19% of our revenue for the year ended Bdves 31, 2012, and historically
accounting for a higher percentage. Our operatisglts will continue to depend on the Big Three MiNEntinued use of our services for the
foreseeable future. While we believe that we haargegally enjoyed good commercial relations withheaicthese companies, there can be no
assurance that the Big Three MNOs will renew theitracts with us on terms as favorable as thosewvrently have. In addition, the Big
Three MNOs may seek to reduce costs by decreasémgdependence on us as a payment

8



Table of Contents

acceptance channel and to drive their consumesthtey channels that may offer more competitiveipgi¢erms or increased convenience. In
particular, the Big Three MNOs promote post-paymariff plans and payments through automatic witlaeltl of funds from a consumer’s
bank account when the mobile phone account nedas teloaded. They are also actively developing then alternative payment methods,
such as mobile banking and acceptance of paymmamtsgh their retail networks. As a result of inaea bargaining power due to these fac!
the Big Three MNOs have been able to negotiategtiection, and in some cases virtual eliminatidrihe merchant fees that they pay us,
which has resulted in us moving to a consumer fiegkvalue added services driven revenue model. fAlk@se factors could contribute to a
deterioration in, or termination of, our relatioshwith one or all of the Big Three MNOs. If westbany of our key merchants, including the
Big Three MNOs, and are unable to replace thisrass, or if our current terms of doing business &ity of these merchants become
significantly less favorable, our business, finahcbndition and results of operations may be nltgradversely affected.

We do not control the rates of the fees levied by agents on consumers.

Our agents pay us an agreed fee using a portitredees levied by them on consumers. The feetpaid by the agent is based on a
percentage of the value of each transaction thairaeess. However, in most cases the amount ofiéeexl by an agent on a consumer for
each particular transaction is determined by sgemtat its own discretion. We usually do not degpamount of such fees or otherwise contro
it. We believe that the fees set by our agentsramket-driven, and that our interests and our &jémerests are aligned with a view to
maintaining fees at a level that would simultanéptesult in our agents’ profitability and custonsatisfaction. However, we can provide no
assurance that our agents will not raise feedewa that will adversely affect the popularityair products among consumers. At the same
time, if we are forced to cap customer fees togmtothe strength of our brand or otherwise, we hosg a significant number of agents, which
would reduce the penetration of our Qiwi Distriloutinetwork. In limited instances, we have introdlsach caps at the request of our
merchants. No assurance can be made that thiswidinibt increase. Material increases in custofees by our agents or the imposition of
caps on the rates of such fees by us could haee\arse effect on the business, financial conddiath results of operations.

Our independent public registered accounting firmantified a material weakness in our internal cootrover financial reporting during oul
2011 audit, and we can provide no assurance thatitidnal material weaknesses will not be identifiguthe future.

Our internal controls relating to preparation of inancial statements have not kept pace withctienges in and increasing scope and
volume of our business. Our financial reportingdiion and system of internal controls is less dgetl in certain respects than those of
payment service providers that operate in moreldpee markets and may not provide our managemehtagi much or as accurate or timely
information. The Public Company Accounting OversiBbard, or PCAOB, has defined a material weakass® significant deficiency, or
combination of significant deficiencies, that resuh more than a remote likelihood that a materimlstatement of the annual or interim
statements will not be prevented or detected.’oimection with their audit of our consolidated fin&l statements for the year ended
December 31, 2011, our independent registeredgpabtiounting firm identified a material weaknessiim internal controls with respect to our
financial statement closing process. The mater@lkmess related primarily to the number of dedicH&S-qualified personnel and controls
over accounting for non-routine transactions andplex estimates. This material weakness was comside determining the nature, timing
and extent of the procedures performed by our iedéent registered public accounting firm in theidiaof our annual consolidated financial
statements, and did not affect the report of odependent registered public accounting firm onasunual consolidated financial statements
included herein.

To address the material weakness that our indepénegistered accountants identified, we develapetlimplemented a plan that
included implementing greater controls over comroatidn, approval and accounting for non-routineseations and complex estimates, as
well as additional management review controls. W§e hired an external consultant to advise us tmdicing changes to our internal control
over financial reporting and to participate in mgeaent review of the financial statements andedlatipporting financial information. In the
future, we plan to recruit additional qualified gennel or an external consultant with relevant egpee in IFRS accounting, reporting and
auditing.
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As a result of our efforts we remediated the relataterial weakness as of December 31, 2012. Hawigveonnection with the audit of
our consolidated financial statements for the yeaded December 31, 2012 and 2013, our indepenelgistered public accounting firm
identified a significant deficiency in each caséwespect to our financial statement closing psscé significant deficiency is a deficiency, or
a combination of deficiencies, in internal contwekr financial reporting that is less severe thamaterial weakness, yet important enough to
merit attention by those responsible for oversaftaur financial reporting. We can give no assueathat additional material weaknesses or
significant deficiencies in our internal controlemfinancial reporting will not be identified ingHuture. Our failure to implement and maintain
effective internal control over financial reportinguld result in errors in our financial statemethts could result in a restatement of our
financial statements, cause us to fail to meetreporting obligations and cause investors to lasdidence in our reported financial
information, which may result in a decline in thanket price of our ADSs.

We have not yet assessed the effectiveness ofrterrial control over financial reporting as requikby Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley
Act of 2002.

We will be required to comply with the internal ¢am, evaluation and certification requirementsSefction 404(a) of the Sarbanes-Oxley
Act of 2002 in our Annual Report on Form 20-F foe tyear ending December 31, 2014. In additionjrudependent registered public
accounting firm will be required to report on tHéeetiveness of our internal control over finanaigborting pursuant to Section 404(b) of the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 beginning with our amneport on Form 20-F following the date on which weease to qualify as an “emerging
growth company,” which may be up to five full fisg@ars following the date of our initial publicfefing. We have not yet commenced the
process of assessing the effectiveness of ouniateontrol over financial reporting. This procesh require the investment of substantial time
and resources, including by our chief financialagff and other members of our senior managemerd. r&sult, this process may divert inter
resources and take a significant amount of timeedfodt to complete. In addition, we cannot prediet outcome of this determination and
whether we will need to implement remedial actionerder to implement effective control over fina@laeporting. In connection with the a.
of our consolidated financial statements for theryended December 31, 2011, our independent prdgistered accounting firm identified a
material weakness in our internal controls withpees to our financial statements closing processvfich we have developed and
implemented a remedial plan. Although no materi@aknesses were identified by our independent mrgidtpublic accounting firm in
connection with their audit of our consolidatedaficial statements for the years ended Decemb@03?, and 2013, any failure of our internal
controls could result in us not being able to @gbat our internal control over financial repogiis effective. If in subsequent years we are
unable to assert that our internal control oveariitial reporting is effective, or if our auditorgpeess an opinion that our internal control over
financial reporting is ineffective, we could loseéstor confidence in the accuracy and completenfessr financial reports, which could have
a material adverse effect on the market price ofAdSs.

If consumer confidence in our business deterioratesir business, financial condition and results operations could be adversely affectt

Our business is built on consumers’ confidenceuinbwands, as well as our ability to provide fasliable payment services, including
electronic payment and payment processing sendcea.consumer business, the strength of our teaddeputation are of paramount
importance to us. A number of factors could advgratfect consumer confidence in our brand, manwbich are beyond our control, and
could have an adverse impact on our results ofatioeis. These factors include:

. any regulatory action or investigation against
. any significant interruption to our systems andrafiens; anc

. any breach of our security system or any comprasm$éeonsumer dat

In addition, we are largely dependent on our agantsfranchisees to which we license our productsdintain the reputation of our
brand. Despite the measures that we put in plaecegare their compliance with our performance stetg] our lack of control over their
operations may result in the low quality of servi¢e particular agent or franchisee being attedub our brand, negatively affecting our
overall reputation. Furthermore, negative publisityrounding any assertion that our agents andéocimants are implicated in fraudulent
transactions, irrespective of the accuracy of gudilicity or its connection with our current opéoas or business, could harm our reputation.
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Any event that hurts our brand and reputation anmommgumers as a reliable payment services proemdd have a material adverse
effect on our business, financial condition andiltsof operations.

A decline in the use of cash as a means of paymmeay result in a decline in the use of our kiosksdterminals and Visa Qiwi Walle

Substantially all of our business is in emerginghats, including Russia and Kazakhstan, where atanbal part of the population relies
on cash payments, rather than credit and debitpayhents or electronic banking. We believe thasomers making cash payments are mor
likely to use our kiosks and terminals as well @&a\Qiwi Wallet, which is most commonly reloaded iosks and terminals, than where
alternative payment methods are available. As @trage believe that our profitability depends b tise of cash as a means of payment. 1
can be no assurance that over time, the prevatgfieash payments will not decline as a greatergrgage of the population in emerging
markets adopts credit and debit card payments lactt@nic banking. The shift from cash paymentsremit and debit card payments and
electronic banking could reduce our market shadepmyment volumes and may have a material advéfiese en our business, financial
condition and results of operations.

We may not be able to expand into new geographinalkets, or develop our existing international oggions successfully, which could
limit our ability to grow and increase our profitality.

Our long-term strategy includes entering into n@egraphical markets and developing our existingatms outside of Russia. Our
expansion into new geographical markets and fudbgelopment of our international operations depamdur ability to apply our existing
technology or to develop new applications to meetgarticular needs of each local market or couitfy may not have adequate financial,
technological or personnel and management resotoaksselop effective and secure services or Bistion channels that will satisfy the
demands of these markets. We may not be ableabliss$t partnerships with merchants or to attraenégto invest in new geographical
markets to strengthen our international operatitinge fail to enter new markets or countries amdurther develop our international
operations, we may not be able to continue to gramrevenues and earnings. Furthermore, we mayneXipgo new geographical markets in
which we may not have any previous operating eepeg. We operate in an industry that is often sltgesignificant regulation, and our lack
of familiarity with the regulatory landscape in nevarkets may result in our running into unantiogglproblems or delays in obtaining the
requisite regulatory approvals and licenses. We nuye able to successfully expand in such markegsto our lack of experience. Moreo\
we may not be able to execute our strategy in gistirg international operations successfully, vbhicay result in additional losses or limit |
growth prospects. In addition, expanding interrralty subjects us to a number of risks, including:

. greater difficulty in managing foreign operatio

. expenses associated with localizing our produstduding offering consumers the ability to transaatnajor currencies

. higher labor costs and problems integrating empsyhat we hire in different countries into ourséixig corporate culture
. laws and business practices that favor local coiapgt

. multiple and changing laws, tax regimes and govemtmegulations

. foreign currency restrictions and exchange ratetdilations;

. changes in a specific coun’s or regior's political or economic conditions; a

. differing intellectual property law:
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In addition, our global operations expose us to enaus and sometimes conflicting legal and regwatequirements, and violations or
unfavorable interpretation by authorities of thesgulations could harm our business. In particular are exposed to the risk of being deemec
to have permanent establishment in a specific cpamd transfer pricing risks which could resultigiditional tax liability.

If we are not able to manage these and multipleraibks associated with global operations sucaégsbur business, financial condition
and results of operations could be materially askigraffected.

We are subject to extensive government regulation.

Our business is impacted by laws and regulatioasafiect our industry, the number of which hagéased significantly in recent years.
We are subject to a variety of regulations aimegraventing money laundering and financing crimietivity and terrorism, financial services
regulations, payment services regulations, consymection laws, currency control regulations, extiging laws and privacy and data
protection laws and therefore experience periauiestigations by various regulatory authoritiesamnection with the same, which may
sometimes result in monetary or other sanctionsgonposed on us. Further, these laws and regokatiary significantly from country to
country. Many of these laws and regulations arestzonly evolving, and are often unclear and inctesit with other applicable laws and
regulations, including across various jurisdictiomsiking compliance challenging and increasingrelated operating costs and legal risks. In
particular, there has been increased public atterstind heightened legislation and regulations diggmoney laundering and terrorist
financing. We sometimes have to make significadgjuent calls in applying anti-money laundering $éaion and risk being found in non-
compliance with it. For example, Russian anti-molaeymdering legislation prescribes mandatory ideation of a client for any transaction
that exceeds RUB 15,000. We sometimes process pagmade by our consumers from their Visa Qiwi \&tadiccounts for an aggregate total
amount in excess of that threshold. Such paymeatpracessed by our software as several simultanteansfers, which allows us to affect
them without formal identification of the payer adcordingly, be in technical compliance with apgdble laws. There can be no assurance,
however, that such practices will not be exprepsbhibited in the future. In January 2013, the hefithe Russian drug enforcement agency
requested that the Central Bank of Russia and théstvly of Finance introduce legislation that woplascribe mandatory identification of a
client for any transaction, including those thatnad exceed RUB 15,000. Although this regulatioa hat yet been introduced or implemented
if it does eventually go into effect, it could affeour ability to process such payments in an igfficmanner or increase our costs related to
payments. In addition, there can be no assuramteth subsidiary in Kazakhstan will not be deemgliect to regulation under Kazakh
banking laws and law on payments and money traqsied, as a result, required to hold a specialibgricense and perform required finan
monitoring of all the effected transactions. Ifabauthorities in Russia, Kazakhstan or other aiesithoose to enforce specific interpretations
of the applicable legislation that differ from ouwge may be found to be in violation and subjeqgteaalties or other liabilities. This could also
limit our ability in effecting such payments goifigward and may increase our cost of doing business

In some jurisdictions where we operate, there isectly little or virtually no legislation addresgj electronic payments, and no assuranc
can be made that if such legislation is adoptedlitoe beneficial to our business. For instan€e, statutory cap is imposed on the fees that ca
be charged to the consumers using our kiosks andrals, it could significantly reduce the marginour Qiwi Distribution business. In
November 2012, a proposal was submitted to thei®u&tate Duma to cap the amount of such fees gbl gayments not exceeding RL
1,000. It has not yet been officially considerediwy legislature. On January 15, 2014, anothesliiye proposal was submitted to the Rus
State Duma, providing for a broad package of messaimed at combatting terrorist and extremisvaiets, including changes to the Russian
legislation that would effectively outlaw anonymalectronic payments to foreign merchants and Sggmitly lower the caps on such
payments within Russia to not more than RUB 15880month (as opposed to RUB 40,000 under curegiglation) and not more than
RUB 1,000 per day. These amendments were approvibe ffirst reading by the lower chamber of thedtars Parliament in late February
2014. It has been reported that the legislatured@sested that significant changes to the draftda made before it is submitted for a second
reading, including reworking of some of its morstrigtive provisions in relation to electronic pagmts, but if any of these proposals
eventually becomes law, we could experience amedah revenue. In addition, there is significantemainty regarding future legislation on
taxation of electronic payments in most of the ¢daa in which we operate, including in respecth# place of taxation. Subsequent legisla
and regulation and interpretations thereof, liiigatcourt rulings, or other events could exposéuncreased costs, liability and reputational
damage that could have a material adverse effectipbusiness, financial condition and resultsp#rations.
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We are subject to the economic risk and businessdey of our merchants and agents and the overalldeof consumer spending.

The payment services industry depends heavily emterall level of consumer spending. We are exgpésgeneral economic conditio
that affect consumer confidence, consumer spendorggumer discretionary income or changes in comspurchasing habits. A reduction in
the amount of consumer spending could result iaaehse in our revenue and profits. If our mercharatke fewer sales of their products and
services using our services or consumers spendnessy per transaction, we will have fewer tranisastto process at lower amounts,
resulting in lower revenue. A further weakeninghie economy could have a negative impact on ouclaeits, as well as consumers who
purchase products and services using our paymeoégsing systems, which could, in turn, negatiimlyact our business, financial condition
and results of operations, particularly if the s=tenary environment disproportionately affects sahthe market segments that represent a
larger portion of our payment processing volumeaddition, a further weakening in the economy cdatde some of our merchants and/or
agents to close or go bankrupt, or could causagents to reduce the number of their locationsoor$of operation, resulting in future
transaction declines. We also have a certain anfufited costs, including salaries and rent, whiclild limit our ability to adjust costs and
respond quickly to changes in our business aneéd¢baomy. Changes in economic conditions could adeimpact our future revenues and
profits and cause a material adverse effect orbasiness, financial condition and results of openat

We have grown rapidly in recent years and needrtpiement enhanced compliance processes, procedamescontrols with respect to the
rules and regulations that apply to our business.

Our business has grown rapidly in recent yearsrndeed to realign our compliance function with ¢fee of our business. In light of t
fact that we are a highly regulated business tfatgsses large volumes of payments, we need t@imgit enhanced processes, procedure
controls in order to provide reasonable assurdmatene are operating in compliance with applicabtpulatory requirements. In particular, the
Russian anti-money laundering laws to which we @iwli Bank are subject contain nhumerous requiremeiitts respect to identification of
clients, and documentation and reporting of trati@as subject to mandatory control and other sispgctransactions to the relevant
authorities.

We are subject to the U.S. Foreign Corrupt Prastiet, or the FCPA, which prohibits U.S. compardesd their intermediaries from
bribing foreign officials for the purpose of obtaig or keeping business or otherwise obtaining fable treatment, and other laws concerning
our international operations. Similar legislationother jurisdictions contains similar prohibitiométhough varying in both scope and
jurisdiction. We do not have a fully developed FC&npliance program and will need to implement saigihhogram, including measures t
require our agents to comply with the FCPA.

We have neither an established operating historypraven management experience in establishingraidtaining, over the long term,
the required compliance processes, proceduresarrbts. Our success requires significant publiafickence in our ability to handle large and
growing payment volumes and amounts of consumetsiuas well as comply with applicable regulatoguieements. Any failure to manage
consumer funds or to comply with applicable reqa\arequirements could result in the impositiorfioés, harm our reputation and
significantly diminish use of our products.

If we cannot keep pace with rapid developments @hdnge in our industry and provide new servicesolar clients, the use of our servict
could decline, reducing our revenues.

The payment services industry in which we opemtharacterized by rapid technological change, p@auct and service introductions,
evolving industry standards, changing customer si@ad the entrance of more established marketglageking to expand into these
businesses. In order to remain competitive, weigoally seek to expand the services we offer ardeteelop new projects, including, for
example, the development of remote banking andtyppaograms. These projects carry risks, suchedayd in delivery, performance problems
and lack of customer acceptance. In our indudtesé risks are acute. Any delay in the delivenyeat services or the failure to differentiate
our services or to accurately predict and addreskeh demand could render our services less

13



Table of Contents

desirable, or even obsolete, to consumers. Iniaddif alternative payment mechanisms become widehilable, substituting our current
products and services, and we do not develop ded sifnilar alternative payment mechanisms suca#gsind on a timely basis, our business
and prospects could be adversely affected. Furtwermve may be unable to recover the costs we inauered in developing new services.
Our development efforts could result in increasests£and we could also experience a loss in busthes could reduce our earnings or could
cause a loss of revenue if promised new servieegaartimely delivered to our clients, are not @bleompete effectively with our competitors’
or do not perform as anticipated. In order to rentaimpetitive in an innovative industry such asspure have to make investments in start-up
companies or undertake large research and devetdpniigatives. In January 2013, we launched Qiwinture, an internal department of our
company responsible for identifying start-ups whidter innovative solutions complementary to ousibess and making investments into
them, with the threshold for such investmentsaitiitiset at U.S.$1 million per project and no oWareaximum for total investments. If our
investments in start-up companies or research andladbment initiatives do not yield the expectesluies, we may lose money, time and effort
invested. If we are unable to develop, adapt tacoess technological changes or evolving indusanydards on a timely and cost effective
basis, our business, financial condition and resafloperations could be materially adversely aféc

Our systems and our third party providers’ systemay fail due to factors beyond our control, whiclowld interrupt our service, cause us to
lose business and increase our costs.

We depend on the efficient and uninterrupted opmraif numerous systems, including our computetesys, software and
telecommunications networks, as well as the datéece that we lease from third parties. Our systanusoperations, or those of our third party
providers, could be exposed to damage or intewngtom, among other things, fire, flood, naturesladter, power loss, telecommunications
failure, vendor failure, unauthorized entry, impeopperation and computer viruses. In additionabee both of our data centers used for
processing payments are located in the city of Mas@ catastrophic event affecting the city of Mmganay result in the loss of both data
centers. Substantial property and equipment logbd&sruption in operations as well as any defectar systems or those of third parties or
other difficulties could expose us to liability anhterially adversely impact our business, findnmadition and results of operations. In
addition, any outage or disruptive efforts coulgdexdely impact our reputation, brand and futurespeats.

Unauthorized disclosure of data, whether throughb®rsecurity breaches, computer viruses or otherwismuld expose us to liability,
protracted and costly litigation and damage our rgption.

We store and/or transmit sensitive data, sucheitasr debit card numbers and mobile phone numb@id we have ultimate liability to
our consumers for our failure to protect this dlf@ have experienced breaches of our security biydna in the past, and breaches could occt
in the future. In such circumstances, our encryptibdata and other protective measures have eoepted unauthorized access and may not
be sufficient to prevent future unauthorized accees example, in January 2014 we discovered unaizttd activity in 687 of our accounts
which were inappropriately credited, and the imprbpcredited funds were subsequently withdrawmfiaur kiosks. We incurred a loss of
RUB 88 million. Although we do not believe that atgnfidential customer account data was compromaseal result of the activity, any future
breach of our system, including through employaeadr may subject us to material losses or liahilitgluding fines and claims for
unauthorized purchases with misappropriated crediebit card information, identity theft, impersdion or other similar fraud claims. A
misuse of such data or a cybersecurity breach dwarch our reputation and deter clients from usiegteonic payments as well as kiosks and
terminals generally and our services specificétlgrease our operating expenses in order to catiedireaches or failures, expose us to
uninsured liability, increase our risk of regulatecrutiny, subject us to lawsuits, result in thgposition of material penalties and fines by state
authorities and otherwise materially adverselya@fér business, financial condition and resultspdrations.

If we fail to comply with the applicable requireménof our agreements with Visa Inc., Visa could kee fine us, suspend us or termina
our registrations.

Under our agreements with Visa, we are requirezbtoply with both the terms of those agreementsth@derms of Visa’s International
Operating Regulations. If we do not comply with #ggeements or these regulations, Visa could sedkd us, suspend us or terminate the
registrations that allow us to process transactiomis network. In addition, under our agreemevith Visa, Visa is entitled to terminate the
agreements in case of a material breach by usitodétermines the agreements are contrary tofieseésts. If we are in breach of the
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agreements or Visa otherwise terminates its agretsmédth us, we may be unable to issue Visa-bramdegaid cards or continue to operate
under the “Visa Qiwi Wallet” brand, which could leas material adverse effect on our Visa Qiwi Wallesiness and our business as a whole.
The termination of our registration, or any chanigethe payment network rules that would impair megistration, could prevent us from
issuing Visa-branded prepaid cards or operatingutite “Visa Qiwi Wallet” brand, thereby reducirgtnumber of transactions made though
Visa Qiwi Wallet. Any of these factors could havmaterial adverse effect on our reputation, as a&tn our business, financial condition
results of operations.

The cost to us of consumers reloading their Visa@Wallet accounts may increase.

We make available to our consumers a large vaoietyethods to reload the Visa Qiwi Wallet accouirisluding, among others, bank
cards, kiosks and terminals, ATMs and mobile paymeFrhe reload methods have different cost imgbeetfor us. For example, on payments
made through the kiosks and terminals owned byagants, we usually pay lower fees for reloadinguisa Qiwi Wallet than on payments
made from bank cards. We currently do not attemplirect consumer preferences towards particulaademethods. If their preferences shift
towards reload methods that come at a higher oast,tthe margins of our Visa Qiwi Wallet segmemild be adversely affected, which could
have a material adverse effect on our businesaial condition and results of operations.

Qiwi Bank and other Russian banks operate in a highiegulated environment, and increased regulatarstiny could have an adverse
effect on our business, financial condition and nal$s of operations.

In September 2010, we acquired Qiwi Bank from d@ereé our shareholders. Qiwi Bank provides issuimeguiring and deposit settlem
functions within our group. All banks operatingRuissia are subject to extensive regulation andrgigien. Requirements imposed by
regulators, including capital adequacy, liquidigégerves, prudential ratios, loss provisions andratgulatory requirements are designed to
ensure the integrity of the financial markets angrbtect consumers and other third parties witbiwla bank deals. These regulations may
limit our activities, and may increase our costsl@ihg business, or require us to seek additiomgital in order to comply with applicable
capital adequacy or liquidity requirements. Exigtiaws and regulations could be amended, the manmegmnich laws and regulations are
enforced or interpreted could change and new lawsgulations could be adopted.

In July 2013, the CBR completed an inspection afi@ank and discovered a number of deficienciassicompliance with certain
banking regulations in relation to, among othendisi the mechanics of its settlements with CISCIQ@’\& payment agent (see “Regulation —
Regulation of Payment Services — Qiwi Distributipm&porting requirements, credit risk assessnprntjential ratio calculation and reserve
requirements and governance. The CBR also notedilas Bank’s internal controls did not reflect thature and scope of the basikictivities
We have rectified these deficiencies but had togfige of RUB 150,000.

There can be no assurance that similar inspediiotie future or increased scrutiny by the CBR wit result in discovery of more
significant violations of various banking regulaits or what sanctions the CBR would choose to eymdminst us if this were to happen. Any
breach of applicable regulations could expose ymtential liability, including in extreme instarscthe revocation of our banking license.
Revocation of any of our banking licenses woulchBigantly hinder our ability to process paymerasd would result in a decrease of our
profitability, damage our reputation and could eather regulators to increase their scrutiny ofamiivities. Furthermore, under our
individual agreement with Visa and under its regatss, Qiwi Bank represents, among other thingst ithis in good standing and has been
granted all necessary authorizations from appleegblvernmental and regulatory authorities to opesid¥isa card program. If any of Qiwi
Bank’s licenses are revoked or it loses its auiadion to operate a Visa card program, Visa cceichinate its agreement with us. For these
reasons, any breach of laws and regulations by Bamk or the revocation of its banking licenses dwave a material adverse effect on our
business, financial condition and results of openat

In recent months, the CBR has considerably incobtisintensity of its supervision and regulatiénhe@ Russian banking sector.
Historically, the revocation of banking licensesthg CBR has been a relatively rare event mosttyiwing to local banks with little assets and
little or no significance for the banking sectoraashole. Starting October 2013, however, the CBRIaunched a campaign aimed at clear
the Russian banking industry, revoking the liceris@® an unusually high number of banks (includéignificant banks such as
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Master-Bank and Investbank) on allegations of mdaewdering, financial statements manipulation atier illegal activities, as well as
inability of certain banks to discharge their fioa obligations. These measures resulted in turmahe banking industry, instigated a banl
panic and bank runs on a number of Russian crestitutions, and severely undermined the trusttf@Russian population had with private
banks. In addition to putting increasing regulatprgssure on Qiwi Bank, this change in policy by @BR has also impacted, and we expect
may continue to impact, our business in a numbetloér ways, including reduced spending by the bamkadvertising and a decrease in
consumer lending, resulting in less loan repaymémtsigh our network and therefore reduced feesa Aesult of a general decrease in ban
activity, Russia may experience less robust consspending, which could also result in the reductid our payment processing fees. In
addition, these factors could further tighten ldjtyi on the Russian market and add pressure oetaithie. All of these factors could materially
and adversely affect our business, financial camdiand results of operations.

Customer complaints or negative publicity about czrstomer service could affect attractiveness of ptoduct adversely and, as a result,
could have an adverse effect on our business, fioiahcondition and results of operations.

Customer complaints or negative publicity about@customer service could diminish consumer confiddéncand the attractiveness of,
our services. Breaches of our consumers’ privaciyam security systems could have the same efféetsometimes take measures to combat
risks of fraud and breaches of privacy and secusifgh as freezing consumer funds, which could demelations with our consumers. These
measures heighten the need for prompt and attecitistomer service to resolve irregularities angutiss. In addition we have previously
received negative media coverage regarding custdisputes. Effective customer service requiresiiggmt personnel expense, and this
expense, if not managed properly, could impactpoafitability significantly. Any inability by us tananage or train our customer service
representatives properly could compromise ourtghi handle customer complaints effectively. If d@not handle customer complaints
effectively, our reputation may suffer and we magel our customers’ confidence, which could haveaterial adverse effect on our business,
financial condition and results of operations.

Our agreements with our agents and our merchantsrdat include exclusivity clauses and may be terntied unilaterally at any time or at
short notice.

We normally do not include exclusivity clauses ur agreements with agents or merchants. Accordjmgly merchants and agents do
have any restrictions on dealings with other prexsdand can switch from our payment processingsysb another without significant
investment. Additionally, due to mandatory provis®mf Russian civil law, our agreements with agemy be unilaterally terminated by the
agents at any time, and our agreements with metginaay be unilaterally terminated by the merchapten one month’s prior notice. The
termination of our contracts with existing agentsnerchants or a significant decline in the amadriusiness we do with them as a result of
our contracts not having exclusivity clauses cddde a material adverse effect on our businesandial condition and results of operations.

Our payment system might be used for frauduleniiggjal or improper purposes, which could expose astditional liability and harm our
business.

Despite measures we have taken and continue tpdak@ayment system remains susceptible to patgntilegal or improper uses.
These may include use of our payment servicesnnection with fraudulent sales of goods or serviitksit sales of prescription medications
or controlled substances, software and other adelhl property piracy, money laundering, bankdrand prohibited sales of restricted
products. In the past there have been news articlé®w organized crime groups have used our palysggwvices to transfer money in the
course of illegal transactions. In particular, gbFuary 2013 it was reported by the media thaMbecow Arbitration Court upheld a RUB
289 million tax claim against LLC Rusal Folga, &sidiary of the major Russian aluminum producerdRusnfirming that in 2008-2009 LLC
Rusal Folga used shell firms for tax evasion. Sofrtbese shell firms acted as our agents and casltetioney via Qiwi kiosks. Criminals are
using increasingly sophisticated methods to engadiegal activities such as counterfeiting andud. It is possible that incidents of fraud
could increase in the future. Our risk managemelitips and procedures may not be fully effectwédentify, monitor and manage these ri
We are not able to monitor in each case the sotdiocerir counterpartiesunds or the ways in which they use them. Increasehargebacks
other liability could have a material adverse dffat our business, financial condition and resoitsperations. Furthermore, an increase in
fraudulent transactions or publicity regarding gfedrack disputes could harm our reputation and e=dansumer confidence in the use of our
kiosks and terminals and virtual wallets.
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Our business is exposed to counterparty and cregits.

We seek to sell services on a prepayment basseandure that our counterparties have low creshtprofiles, such as large merchants
and agents. Nevertheless, we are exposed to thefrion-payment or other default under our congradgth our agents and merchants. If we
provide trade credit or loans to an agent and wauaable to collect loans or proceeds paid to ¢gemtaby its consumers due to the agent’s
insolvency, fraud or otherwise, we must nonethetessplete the payment to the merchant on behalfieo€onsumer. As a result, our losses
would not be limited to a loss of revenue in therf@f fees due to us from the agent, but could arhtmuthe entire amount of consumer
payments accepted by such agent for a certaincgefitbme.

We also have significant receivables due from sofreur merchants, and may not recover these relsleisan the event of such
merchants’ bankruptcy or otherwise. As of Decen#ier2013, we had credit exposure to our agentdt8 B36 million and to our merchants
of RUB 2,089 million. While our receivables from rakants are generally unsecured and non-interesingg our receivables and loans from
agents are generally interest-bearing and secyredltateral. Although we monitor the creditwortbgs of our counterparties on an ongoing
basis, there can be no assurance that the modekpanoaches we use to assess and monitor thditveoethiness will be sufficiently
predictive, and we may be unable to detect andstdEs to timely mitigate an increased credit riskie experience material defaults by our
agents and/or merchants, our business, financiaiton and results of operations could be matgredversely affected.

We are subject to fluctuations in currency exchangses.

We are exposed to currency risks. Our financidaestants are expressed in Russian rubles. Accosgiagt results of operations and
assets and liabilities are exposed to fluctuatiorexchange rates between the ruble and such atinemncies. In addition, changes in currency
exchange rates also affect the carrying value s¥taon our consolidated balance sheet, which démgon the balance sheet classification of
the relevant asset, can result in losses on owgotiolated balance sheets.

Fluctuations of the Kazakh tenge against the Ragsible are the most significant currency exchamage fluctuations that we are expo
to because of the growth of our operations in Khgtdn, which represented approximately 6% of ouemae in 2013. In February 2014, the
National Bank of Kazakhstan devalued the Kazakbeédyy approximately 19%. Further devaluations efklazakh tenge could significan
affect our revenue and profitability.

Regulatory authorities in Russia and Kazakhstan ¢daetermine that we hold a dominant position in omarkets, and could impos
limitations on our operational flexibility which mg adversely affect our business, financial conditiand results of operations.

The Russian anti-monopoly authorities impose vari@quirements on companies that occupy a dompwaition in their markets. We
believe that to date the anti-monopoly authoritiage neither assessed the Russian payment seindesstry as a whole nor, more specifically,
the kiosk and terminal market or the electronicrpagt market. If they do so, they may conclude Wehold a dominant position in one or
more of the markets in which we operate. If theyeme do so, this could result in limitations o fwture acquisitions and a requirement that
we pre-clear with the authorities any changes tostandard agreements with merchants and ageniglbas any specially negotiated
agreements with business partners. In additiomeifvere to decline to conclude a contract withial tharty this could, in certain
circumstances, be regarded as abuse of a domiraketiposition. Russian anti-monopoly authoritiagéhalso been known to determine that :
market player has been in violation of anti-tr@st$ solely on the basis of circumstantial evidgumiating to its anti-competitive behavior
without any written or oral evidence to supporstiny abuse of a dominant market position couddl [® administrative penalties and the
imposition of a fine of up to 15% of our annualeaue for the previous year. In addition, in Apfll2 the Competition Protection Agency of
the Republic of Kazakhstan, or the Competition &tivbn Agency, included our subsidiary in Kazakhstathe state register of market
participants with dominant or monopoly positiorKiazakhstan. Entities included in this register@@hibited from performing actions that
may have a detrimental effect on competition, retsticcess to the market or infringe the rightsaisumers, including predatory or
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discriminatory pricing, unjustified resale restiocts, imposing unreasonable terms, or refusingipply or halting supplies for unjustified
reasons. Status as a dominant market participsatpaits an entity under much more stringent sordtiom the Competition Protection
Agency, therefore increasing the probability ofrfgeinvestigated and penalized if a violation occisa result, the Competition Protection
Agency may impose restrictions on our operationsaloe other measures that may be inconsistentawittstrategy. The maximum liability to
which we can be exposed is a penalty equal to 10¢teaevenue earned as a result of market ablisecpnfiscation of the full amount of
such revenue. The maximum liability is determinedeference to not more than one year of such tmsrRecently, our subsidiary in
Kazakhstan became subject to an investigation aiadby the Competition Protection Agency conceagratleged abuse of its dominant
position in Kazakhstan’s electronic payments marKetfine has been levied as a result of the ingasbn, but the Competition Protection
Agency ordered us to rectify certain violationgtwg anti-trust legislation. We have complied whke brders and have taken actions to remedy
these violations. However, we expect similar inigggtons by the Competition Protection Agency tourein the future, and we cannot reliably
estimate the amounts of claims that can be broagginst us in connection with these investigatidigse limitations may reduce our
operational and commercial flexibility and respeesiess, which may adversely affect our businesanial condition and results of
operations.

We may not be able to successfully protect our lietetual property and may be subject to infringenteriaims.

We rely on a combination of contractual rights, yoight, trademark and trade secret laws to establigl protect our proprietary
technology. We also maintain patents for certainwftechnologies. We customarily require our empgés and independent contractors to
execute confidentiality agreements or otherwisagi@e to keep our proprietary information confidwhen their relationship with us begins.
Typically, our employment contracts also includeusles requiring our employees to assign to ud #ileoinventions and intellectual property
rights they develop in the course of their emplogihend to agree not to disclose our confidentifrimation. Nevertheless, others, including
our competitors, may independently develop sim#ahnology, duplicate our services or design araurdntellectual property. Further,
contractual arrangements may not prevent unautmbdisclosure of our confidential information osere an adequate remedy in the event of
any unauthorized disclosure of our confidentiabiniation. Because of the limited protection andesgment of intellectual property rights in
certain jurisdictions in which we operate, suclRassia and Kazakhstan, as well as in certain jigtisds in which we have started expanding
our operations, such as Moldova, Romania and Belaur intellectual property rights may not be astqrted as they may be in more
developed markets such as the United States. Wehmagyto litigate to enforce or determine the saapenforceability of our intellectual
property rights (including trade secrets and kn@w}; which could be expensive, could cause a diversf resources and may not prove
successful. The loss of intellectual property petitan could harm our business and ability to coragetd could result in costly redesign efforts
discontinuance of certain service offerings or ottempetitive harm. Additionally, we do not holdygmatents for our business model or our
business processes, in part because our abildgtion them in Russia is subject to legislativestrints, and we do not currently intend to
obtain any such patents in Russia, the U.S. onbisee.

We may also be subject to costly litigation in évent our services or technology are claimed tanigé, misappropriate or otherwise
violate a third party’s intellectual property oioprietary rights. Such claims could include patafringement, copyright infringement,
trademark infringement, trade secret misapproriatir breach of licenses. In addition, while weks®eobtain copyright registration
certificates for the critical software we developr rights to software obtained as works for hiighhbe potentially challenged by the
employees and former employees or developers ¢f software. We may not be able to successfullyrakégainst such claims, which may
result in a limitation on our ability to use thealectual property subject to these claims and alight require us to redesign affected services
enter into costly settlement or license agreemeatg costly damage awards, or face a temporargiwngnent injunction prohibiting us from
marketing or selling certain of our services. lalsgircumstances, if we cannot or do not licenseirtfringed technology on reasonable terms
or substitute similar technology from another seymur revenue and earnings could be adverselyaregaAdditionally, in recent years, non-
practicing entities have been acquiring patentgkimgaclaims of patent infringement and attemptiogxtract settlements from companies in
our industry. Even if we believe that such claimes\&ithout merit and successfully defend thesentdaidefending against such claims is time
consuming and expensive and could result in therdion of the time and attention of our manageraadtemployees.

18



Table of Contents

We may use open source software in a manner thatlddoe harmful to our business.

We use open source software in connection withteexhrnology and services. The original developetb@fopen source code provide no
warranties on such code. Moreover, some open sgoft@are licenses require users who distributenmeirce software as part of their
software to publicly disclose all or part of theuste code to such software and/or make availabjelarivative works of the open source code
on unfavorable terms or at no cost. The use of speim source code may ultimately require us teaptertain code used in our products, pa
a royalty to use some open source code or disagntirrtain products. Any of the above requiremeatsd be harmful to our business,
financial condition and operations.

We do not have and may be unable to obtain suffitisnsurance to protect ourselves from busineskss

The insurance industry in Russia is not yet fubyeloped, and many forms of insurance protectianmon in more developed countries
are not yet fully available or are not availablecomparable or commercially acceptable terms. Adiogty, while we hold certain mandatory
types of insurance policies in Russia, we do nateriily maintain insurance coverage for businetiiaption, property damage or loss of key
management personnel as we have been unable to ti#ae on commercially acceptable terms. We ddwoldl insurance policies to cover -
any losses resulting from counterparty and crésksror fraudulent transactions. We also do noegaly maintain separate funds or otherwise
set aside reserves for most types of businesedetaks. Accordingly, our lack of insurance coggrar reserves with respect to business-
related risks may expose us to substantial logggish could materially adversely affect our bussdmancial condition and results of
operations.

In a dynamic industry like ours, the ability to atct, recruit, retain and develop qualified persoehis critical to our success and growt

Our business functions at the intersection of dgpilanging technological, social, economic andifgiry developments that require a
wide ranging set of expertise and intellectual dpin order for us to compete and grow succelsfule must attract, recruit, retain and
develop the necessary personnel who can providedbéed expertise across the entire spectrum ohtmllectual capital needs. This is
particularly true with respect to qualified and eKkpnced software engineers and IT staff, who &yelyrsought after and are not in sufficient
supply in Russia and in most other markets in whieloperate. The market for such personnel is higbinpetitive, and we may not succeed
in recruiting additional personnel or may fail &ptace effectively current personnel who depart witalified or effective successors. It may
also be difficult for us to obtain necessary quedifpersonnel with local experience to supportiotgrnational growth, which may jeopardize
our ongoing and planned expansion into new geogeap®ur efforts to retain and develop personnsl meault in significant additional
expenses, which could adversely affect our prafitgbhWe cannot assure you that we will be ablatwact and retain qualified personnel in
future. Failure to retain or attract key persorgsmlld have a material adverse effect on our busjrig®ncial condition and results of
operations.

Risks Relating to Corporate Governance Matters andrganizational Structure

As a result of our dual share capital structure, mdvined with the concentration of voting power, odlass A shareholders, including ot
founding shareholders as well as Palmway Holdingsriited, Mail.ru Group Limited and Mitsui & Co., Ltd are able to exert control ove
us, which may limit our ADS holders’ ability to itdience corporate matters.

Each class B share underlying our ADSs is entitbeohe vote per share at shareholders’ meetinge wach class A share is entitled to
10 votes per share at shareholders’ meetings. &lash A share is convertible into one class B shtaemy time by the holder of the class A
share, while class B shares are not convertibtedlass A shares under any circumstances. Upotransgfer of class A shares by a holder to
any person or entity that is not a wholly-ownedédi or indirect) affiliate of such holder, suchss A shares will be automatically and
immediately converted into equal number of clashBres unless such transfer is in respect of 108tooe of the total number of class A
shares in issue, has been approved by holderdedsit75% of class A shares in issue, or meetainather conditions. Our class A
shareholders, including our founding shareholdargana International Corporation, Saldivar Investisd.imited, Dargle International
Limited, E1 Limited and Bralvo Limited) as well Balmway, Mail.ru and Mitsui and entities they cohtogether beneficially own and control
all of the class A shares, representing in aggeegpproximately 93% of the voting power of our extghare capital. Any transfer of class A
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shares that results in a conversion to class Beshaill have, among other things, the effect oftfar concentrating voting power in us in the
hands of non-transferring holders of class A shakes result, holders of our class A shares wafitlue to control the outcome of any
shareholders’ meeting for the foreseeable futma@uding having the power to determine the compwsiof our board of directors and control
the outcome of the voting on any significant cogtertransactions or other matters submitted tesbareholders for approval. The voting
power of the holders of class A shares will be tarisally greater than their economic interestsnand the ability of holders of our ADSs to
influence corporate matters will be limited. Théeiests of our class A shareholders, includingfounding shareholders as well as Palmway,
Mail.ru and Mitsui, may not be aligned with or Imethe best interests of holders of our ADSs. Thiscentration of voting power could also
have the effect of delaying, deterring or prevemtinchange of control or other business combindatiahmight otherwise be beneficial to the
holders of our ADSs.

Our ADS holders have limited rights in relation tthe appointment of our directors, including our irgbendent directors.

Other than in certain limited cases provided fooum articles of association, our directors aretelg by shareholder weighted voting,
sometimes referred to as cumulative voting, undackveach shareholder has the right to cast as mateg as the voting rights attached to its
shares multiplied by a number equal to the numbbpard seats to be filled by shareholders. Assalteour class A shareholders, including
our founding shareholders as well as Palmway, Miadnd Mitsui, will have the ability to appointrttugh the weighted voting set forth in our
articles of association, at least a majority ofthleard of directors for the foreseeable future. ifiterests of our directors may therefore not be
aligned with or be in the best interests of thalad of our ADSs.

The rights of our shareholders are governed by Qyptaw and our articles of association, and diffar some important respects from the
typical rights of shareholders under U.S. state kaw

Our corporate affairs are governed by our artiofesssociation and by the laws governing companiasrporated in Cyprus. The rights
of our shareholders and the responsibilities of tmens of our board of directors under Cyprus law @amdarticles of association are different
than under the laws of some U.S. state laws. Fameie, by law existing holders of shares in a Qytiuiblic company are entitled to pre-
emptive rights on the issue of new shares in thatpany (provided such shares are paid in cashtenpre-emption rights have not been
disapplied). In addition, our articles of assodatinclude other provisions, which differ from pigiens typically included in the governing
documents of most companies organized in the U.S.:

. our board of directors can only take certain aciby means of a supermajority vote of 75% of itsniers, including approving o
annual budget and business plan, disposing ofrberest in a subsidiary if such disposal resul ainange of control over such
subsidiary, issuing shares for consideration cotftien cash and other actiol

. our shareholders are able to convene an extraoydgemeral meeting; ar

. if our board of directors exercises its rightappoint a director to fill a vacancy on the boareated during the term of a director’'s
appointment, shareholders holding 10.01% of thengaights of the company may terminate the apmoanit of all of the directors
and initiate reelection of the entire board of dices.

As a result of the differences described above shareholders may have rights different to thosegaly available to shareholders of
companies organized under U.S. state laws andaardiof directors may find it more difficult to ajpwe certain actions.

Some of our corporate actions require either a silmpajority or a 75% shareholder vote, and one oir dounding shareholders, Saldiva
Investments Limited, alone controls in excess of2%f the voting power of our company and togethdthnother founding shareholder:
controls in excess of 50% of the voting power of @@mpany.

Our articles of association require the approvalmfess than 75% of present and voting sharehofdeicertain matters, including,
among other matters, amendments to the constiltiacuments of our company, dissolution or ligtimaof our company, reducing the sh
capital, buying back shares and approving the total
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number of shares and classes of shares to be edslnissuance under any employee stock optiom @lany other equity-based incentive
compensation program of our group. One of our faumdhareholders, Saldivar, which is controlledMry Sergey Solonin, our chief executi
officer, controls more than 25% of the voting powépur company and accordingly has the abilityeto any resolution requiring a 75%
shareholder vote. In addition, our founding shalddrs together control in excess of 50% of thengpower of our company, which allows
them together to control the outcome of voting atters requiring a simple majority shareholder yoteluding, among other matters,
increasing our authorized capital, removing a diedinal dividend declaration, approving the aahaudited accounts and appointing audit

Our class A shareholders may have interests andipmss that could present potential conflicts withur interests.

Mail.ru and Mitsui make investments in companieg aray, from time to time, acquire and hold inteséstbusinesses that compete
directly or indirectly with us. They may also puestior their own accounts, acquisition opportusitieat may be complementary to our
business, and as a result, those acquisition aptes may not be available to us. In particuMajl.ru operates an electronic payment
business, Money@Mail.ru, a direct competitor ofa/@iwi Wallet, which may result in them being pred with business opportunities
instead of us. Accordingly, the interests of thels@reholders and our directors associated with thesnconflict with our interests, and they
may compete with us, pursue opportunities instéacs,0or focus more on other businesses ratherdhasurs for which we have no recourse.
Such actions on their part could have a materia¢es® effect on our business, financial conditind eesults of operations.

Acquisitions of credit institutions in Russia araibject to pre-closing approval by multiple government authorisievhich exercise significant
discretion as to whether a consent should be grahte not, and are regulated by a significant bodflaw which is often ambiguous and
open to varying interpretations.

Due to our ownership of Qiwi Bank, any transactiogsulting in the acquisition of more than 50% of woting power or the right to
otherwise direct our business activities would meesubject to preliminary approval by the CBR. didition, any acquisition of more than
50% of our voting power may also be subject todiminary approval by the Russian Federal AntimaigjService, or the FAS. Furthermore,
Qiwi Bank holds encryption licenses which are neagsto conduct its operations, and by virtue & thay be deemed to be a “strategic
enterprise” for the purposes of the Federal LathefRussian Federation No. 57-FZ “On the ProcefhrrEoreign Investments in Enterprises
which are Strategically Important for the State ésfe and National Securitydated April 29, 2008, as amended. In this casepaqguisition o
control over our company would require an apprafa specialized government commission, whichrislatively lengthy process that
typically takes between three and six months ictza. See “Regulation—Regulation of Strategic Btueents.” These regulatory approval
requirements may have the effect of making a ta&eofzour company more difficult or less attractimad may prevent or delay a change of
control, which could have a negative impact onlidpadity of, and investor interest in, our ADSs.

Additionally, under Russian law, the depositary rbaytreated as the owner of the class B shareslyimgethe ADSs, and therefore,
could be deemed a beneficial shareholder of QiwikBa&his is different from the way other jurisdatis treat ADSs. As a result, the depositan
may be subject to the approval requirements o&BR, the FAS and the government commission destabeve in the event an amount of
our shares representing over 50% of our voting pasvdeposited in the ADS program. Accordingly, &S program may be subject to an
effective limit of 50% of our voting power, unletbee depositary obtains FAS, CBR and potentiallyitamtthl government commission
approvals to increase its ownership in excess @ 60our voting power. This could limit our ability raise capital in the future and the ability
of our existing shareholders to sell their ADSshi@ public markets, which in turn may impact tlggiidity of share capital.

If the Russian government exercises its right togose a quota on foreign ownership of Russian bankgakeover of our company may |
impossible.

Under current Russian law, the Russian governnsemttitled, upon consultation with the CBR, to mreg legislation imposing a quota
on foreign ownership in the Russian banking indystovering both Russian branches of internatibaalks and foreign participation in the
charter capital of Russian banks, such as Qiwi B8nkh legislation would need to be approved byRhssian Parliament in order to become
law; however, in practice, due
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to a lack of separation of powers between the Rad8arliament and the Russian government, anptoifosed by the government is likely to
be enacted. In the past, Russian law containedaggctota on foreign ownership of Russian banksh $uotas were repealed in 2002, and to
our knowledge, there currently is no intentiongmstate such quotas. However, if the Russian gowent exercises its right to impose limits
on foreign ownership of Russian banks, a takeoeuncompany by a foreign purchaser may becomessiple, which could limit, prevent
delay a change of control of our company and in tgould negatively impact the liquidity of our ADSs

As a foreign private issuer whose ADSs are listedMasdag, we have elected to follow certain homarttoy corporate governance practict
instead of certain Nasdaq requirements.

As a foreign private issuer whose ADSs are listedNasdag, we are permitted in certain cases todanfbllow Cyprus corporate
governance practices instead of the corresponéiggirements of Nasdag. A foreign private issuer ¢lects to follow a home country practice
instead of Nasdaq requirements must submit to Mpsdadvance a written statement from an indepent@msel in such issuer’'s home
country certifying that the issuer’s practices o prohibited by the home country’s laws. In aitdit a foreign private issuer must disclose in
its annual reports filed with the Securities anadlange Commission any significant requirementithddes not follow and describe the home
country practice followed instead of any such rezmient. We follow Cyprus corporate governance prestwith regard to the composition of
our board of directors which, unlike the applicalksdaq rule for U.S. corporations, do not reqthied a majority of our directors be
independent. As a result, we cannot assure yowthatill have a board with a majority of indepentéinectors. In addition, we follow Cyprus
corporate governance practices with regard to tloeugn requirements applicable to meetings of slwddelns, rather than the corresponding
domestic U.S. corporate governance practices. Aligly, our shareholders may not be afforded tmeesprotection as provided under Nas
corporate governance rules.

Our ADS holders may not have the same voting righssthe holders of our class A shares and clas$hBres and may not receive voting
materials in time to be able to exercise their riglo vote. Our ADS holders’ right to receive cemadistributions may be limited in certain
respects by the deposit agreement.

Except as set forth in the deposit agreement, helofeour ADSs are not able to exercise votingtagtitaching to the class B shares
represented by our ADSs on an individual basisdel@ of our ADSs have to appoint the depositaiiysatominee as their representative to
exercise the voting rights attaching to the clash&es represented by the ADSs. Upon receipttofgzmstructions from an ADS holder, the
depositary will vote the underlying class B shareaccordance with these instructions. Pursuantitaarticles of association, we may convene
an annual shareholders’ meeting or a shareholdersting called for approval of matters requiringb& shareholder vote upon at least 45
days’ notice and upon at least 30 days’ noticafoother shareholders’ meetings. If we give timebice to the depositary under the terms of
the deposit agreement, the depositary will notify wf the upcoming vote and arrange to delivenmting materials to you. We cannot assure
our ADS holders that they will receive the votingterials in time to instruct the depositary to viite class B shares underlying their ADSs,
and it is possible that our ADS holders, or persshe hold their ADSs through brokers, dealers beothird parties, will not have the
opportunity to exercise a right to vote. In additithe depositary and its agents are not resp@&ibfailing to carry out voting instructions or
for the manner of carrying out voting instructiomis means that our ADS holders may not be abéxéucise their right to vote and there n
be nothing such holders can do if the class B shamderlying your ADSs are not voted as requesteaddition, although our ADS holders
may directly exercise their right to vote by withding the class B shares underlying their ADSsy thay not receive sufficient advance no
of an upcoming shareholders’ meeting to withdragvdlass B shares underlying their ADSs to allowrthie vote with respect to any specific
matter. Furthermore, under the deposit agreententjeépositary has the right to restrict distribagido holders of the ADSs in the event that it
is unlawful or impractical to make such distribuiso We have no obligation to take any action taredistributions to holders of our ADSs.
As a result, holders of ADSs may not receive disttions made by us.

Our shareholders and ADS holders do not benefitftaeertain anti-takeover protections.

As we are incorporated in Cyprus, we are subje€hyoriot law. As of the date of this annual rep@ypriot law does not contain any
requirement for a mandatory offer to be made bgragn acquiring shares or depositary receipts@f@iot company even if such an
acquisition confers on such person control ovef nsither such compang’shares nor depositary receipts are listed ogwdated market in tt
European Economic Area. Neither our shares noA@#8s are listed on a regulated market. Consequemttyospective bidder acquiring AC
may
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gain control over us in circumstances in whichehemo requirement to conduct a mandatory offeleuan applicable takeover protection
regime. As a result, holders of ADSs may not begithe opportunity to receive treatment equal tatwhay be received, in the event of an
offer made by a potential bidder with a view torgiag control over us or by certain other holder&\bfSs or, as the case may be, shares at th
relevant time. As a result, a bid for, or creepaeguisition of control over, us is currently noguéated by Cyprus law.

Risks Related To The Russian Federation and Other Bfkets in Which We Operate

Emerging markets, such as Russia and Kazakhstarg subject to greater risks than more developed netskincluding significant legal
economic and political risks.

Investors in emerging markets, such as Russia azdkhstan, should be aware that these marketsilajexsto greater risk than more
developed markets, including in some cases sigmifitegal, economic and political risks. Investsisuld also note that emerging economies
are subject to rapid change and that the informestéi out herein may become outdated relativelgidyi Accordingly, investors should
exercise particular care in evaluating the risk®@lived and must decide for themselves whetheight bf those risks, their investment is
appropriate. Generally, investment in emerging rtrks only suitable for sophisticated investor®illly appreciate the significance of the
risks involved, and investors are urged to consitht their own legal and financial advisors befaraking an investment in our ordinary shares
or ADSs.

Political and governmental instability could adverly affect the value of investments in Russ

Political conditions in the Russian Federation waghly volatile in the 1990s, as evidenced byfteguent conflicts amongst executive,
legislative and judicial authorities, which negativimpacted the business and investment climatiedrRussian Federation. Over the past two
decades the course of political and other reforassilh some respects been uneven and the compaditiba Russian Government has at time:s
been unstable. The Russian political system coasino be vulnerable to popular dissatisfactiorlutiog dissatisfaction with the results of the
privatizations of the 1990s, as well as to demdadautonomy from certain religious, ethnic andioegl groups.

Mr. Vladimir Putin who was President of the Russtaueration from 2000 until 2008 re-occupied thustpn April 2012 following the
Presidential election in March 2012. In 2008, twodtdown as President and Mr. Dmitry Medvedev Wasted as the new President of the
Russian Federation. In May 2008, Mr. Dmitry Medwedgpointed Mr. Vladimir Putin to the position afiffe Minister of the Russian
Federation. In 2011, Mr. Vladimir Putin indicateid intention to stand for re-election as Presidiettihe elections for the President of the
Russian Federation which took place in March 20i24ay 2012, Mr. Vladimir Putin appointed Mr. DmjtMedvedev to the position of Prir
Minister of the Russian Federation. During Mr. Rigtiand Mr. Medvedev’s tenure as President, thesRagolitical system and the
relationship between the President, the Russiarefdavent and the Russian Parliament were genetaliyes There have been, however, pL
protests in Moscow and other urban areas followliegrecent elections for the State Duma in Decerb#t alleging that the elections were
subject to substantial electoral fraud, as webh@sosing a public “transfer” of power authorizatiomnMr. Dmitry Medvedev in favor of
Mr. Vladimir Putin which occurred at the United Risparty congress on September 24, 2011 wher®Mitry Medvedev proposed that the
congress support the candidacy of Prime Minister\Wedimir Putin for President. The Prime Ministdrthat time, Mr. Vladimir Putin has
rejected calls by opposition leaders that the mlestfor the State Duma be annulled and re-runhbstinstituted limited political reforms.
Similar protests took place following the presidainélections in March 2012 which resulted in reetion of Mr. Vladimir Putin.

Additionally, the potential for political instaltiji resulting from the global financial and economiisis and any associated worsening of
the economic situation in Russia and deteriorattagdards of living should not be underestimatad; #uch instability could negatively affect
the economic and political environment in Russatipularly in the short term. Shifts in governmedngolicy and regulation in the Russian
Federation are less predictable than in many Westemocracies and could disrupt or reverse pdijtezmnomic and regulatory reforms. Any
significant change in the Russian Government'’s fawgof reform in Russia could lead to the detetioraof Russia’s investment climate that
might limit our ability to obtain financing in thaternational capital markets or otherwise haveatemial adverse effect on our business,
financial condition and results of operations.
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The reversal of reform policies or the implementati of government policies in Russia targeted ataifie individuals or companies could
harm our business as well as investments in Rusa@re generally.

In recent years, the political and economic sitiratn Russia has generally become more stable @mdlicive to investment. However,
major policy shifts, government reshuffles andck laf consensus among key political groups coutdidi or reverse political, economic and
regulatory reforms. Reform may also suffer if kewgrnment officials engage in private business evimiloffice, particularly when these
business interests are in the industry that sufitialé regulate. Any such deterioration of Russiavestment climate might constrain our
ability to obtain financing, limit our sales in Rii@ and otherwise materially and adversely affectousiness, financial condition and results of
operations.

In addition, the use of governmental power agagasticular companies or persons, for example, tindhe tax, environmental or
prosecutorial authorities, could adversely affeet Russian economic climate and, if directed agaisisour senior management or our major
shareholders, could materially adversely affectluginess, financial condition and results of ofi@na. Russian authorities have recently
challenged some Russian companies and prosecaie@xiecutive officers and shareholders on thempiewof tax evasion and related charges
In some cases, the results of such prosecutionstallénges have been significant claims againsipemies for unpaid taxes and the
imposition of prison sentences on individuals. Bhieas been speculation that in certain cases thedlenges and prosecutions were intended
to punish, and deter, opposition to the governmettie pursuit of disfavored political or econoragendas. There has also been speculation
that certain environmental challenges brought riégdry Russian authorities in the oil and gas al agmining sectors have been targeted at
specific Russian businesses under non-Russianotontth a view to bringing them under state cohtkdore generally, some observers have
noted that takeovers in recent years of major prigactor companies in the oil and gas, metalsvaamifacturing sectors by state-controlled
companies following tax, environmental and othaliemges may reflect a shift in official policy favor of state control at the expense of
individual or private ownership, at least whergéaand important enterprises are concerned.

Political and other conflicts create an uncertairperating environment that hinders our lor-term planning ability and could adversely
affect the value of our investments in Russia.

Russia is a federation of 83 sub-federal politigats, consisting of republics, territories, regipaities of federal importance and
autonomous regions and districts. The delineatfauthority and jurisdiction among the membershef federation and the federal governmen
is, in many instances, unclear and remains comtekek of consensus between the federal governamhtocal or regional authorities often
results in the enactment of conflicting legislatairvarious levels and may lead to further politinatability. In particular, in the past,
conflicting laws have been enacted in the aregsivétization, securities, corporate legislaticggulation of land use and licensing. Some of
these laws and governmental and administrativesets implementing them, as well as certain traiwas consummated pursuant to them,
have in the past been challenged in the courtsugsid and such challenges may occur in the future.

Ethnic, religious, historical and other divisiores/e on occasion given rise to tensions and, irmicecases, military conflict and terrorist
attacks in certain regions of Russia. For exanglajlitary conflict in August 2008 between Russia &eorgia involving South Ossetia and
Abkhazia, as well as the more recent conflict betwRussia and Ukraine in February-March 2014, reduh significant overall price declines
in the Russian stock exchanges and capital ouffilom Russia. Such tensions, military conflict areeist activities (such as the bombing of
Domodedovo airport in Moscow in January 2011 amrdiibmbing of the Moscow metro in 2010, and, mosemdy, two suicide bombings in
Volgograd in December 2013 that resulted in 34litega) could have significant political consequescincluding the imposition of a state of
emergency in some or all of Russia or heightenedrég measures, which could cause disruption toelstic commerce and exports from
Russia, disrupt normal economic activity in Russid materially adversely affect our business, fircondition and results of operations.

Deterioration of Russi’s relations with other countries could negativedffect the Russian economy and those of the neamdyions.

Over the past several years, Russia has been ad/aivconflicts, both economic and military, inviolg other members of the CIS. On
several occasions, this has resulted in the detdidon of Russia’s relations with other memberghefinternational community, including the
United States and various countries in Europe. Many
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these jurisdictions are home to financial instdng and corporations that are significant investoRRussia and whose investment strategies
decisions may be affected by such conflicts and/bssening relations between Russia and its immediaighbors.

For example, relations between Ukraine and Ruasiavell as Georgia and Russia, have recently dezined over a variety of issues.
Significant tensions are currently ongoing betwRessia and Ukraine, where a powerful civil unrest heen growing momentum since
November 2013 and eventually resulted in a cCetat and the ousting of the reigning Ukrainiandftent in February 2014. In response, on
March 1, 2014 the Russian President requestedpiper chamber of the Russian Parliament to grambigsion for Russia to use military force
in Ukraine with the stated goal of protecting thierests of the sizeable Russian populace of U&raind in particular that of Crimea, Ukraige’
militarily sensitive and ethnically Russian southprovince, where the rise to power of the forgasasing the former Ukrainian government
has instigated significant public discussion aahether Crimea should accede to Russia. AlthougMarch 4, 2014, the Russian President
stated in a public address that a military invasi@s not intended by Russia barring extraordinagumstances, Russia’s actions have cause
significant tensions with the United States andEheopean Union, including public statements madbdih United States and Russian
officials that both countries may impose sanctiagainst each other. As of now, there is still digant uncertainty regarding the eventual
outcome of the Ukrainian crisis.

The emergence of new or escalated tensions betRessia and other CIS countries or other countinet)ding any escalation of the
conflict or renewed fighting between Russia andr@iecor Russia and Ukraine, or the imposition ¢éinational sanctions in response to thes
tensions, could negatively affect economies inréfggon, including the Russian economy. This, imtunay result in a general lack of
confidence among international investors in théar®g economic and political stability and in Russinvestments generally. Such lack of
confidence may result in reduced liquidity, tradirajatility and significant declines in the pricélisted securities of companies with signific
operations in Russia, including our ADSs, and ininability to raise debt or equity capital in tiidernational capital markets, which may
affect our ability to achieve the level of growthwhich we aspire. Additionally, the relationshigtiveen the U.S. and Russia is subject to
fluctuation and periodic tension. Changes in pmaiticonditions in Russia and changes in the sfaRussian-U.S. relations are difficult to
predict and could adversely affect our operationthé U.S. or cause our company to become lesctitie for U.S. investors.

Crime and corruption could create a difficult busass climate in Russia.

The political and economic changes in Russia dineearly 1990s have led, amongst other thinggdaced policing of society and
increased lawlessness. In September 2006, the Y &atirman of the CBR was assassinated in whataegedly a contract killing tied to his
enforcement actions against corrupt Russian bartigagnizations. Organized crime, particularly pmyperimes in large metropolitan centers,
has reportedly increased significantly since ttesalution of the Soviet Union. In addition, the Rias and international media have reported
high levels of corruption in Russia. Press repaige also described instances in which governnféintats have engaged in selective
investigations and prosecutions to further ther@deof the government and individual officialsbaisiness groups. Although we adhere to a
business ethics policy and internal compliance gaaces to counteract the effects of crime and ption, instances of illegal activities,
demands of corrupt officials, allegations that w@ar management have been involved in corruptiafiemal activities or biased articles and
negative publicity could materially and adversdfget our business, financial condition and resafteperations.

Economic instability in Russia could have an adversffect on our busines:

The Russian economy has been adversely affectdtelngcent global financial and economic crisi€oftinuation of the economic cri
could have a negative effect on the scale andtphility of our business. Any of the following riskwhich the Russian economy has
experienced at various points in the past, may bavave already had a significant adverse effa¢dhe economic climate in Russia and may
burden or have already burdened our operations:

. significant declines in gross domestic produciGaP;

. high levels of inflation
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. sudden price declines in the natural resource ¢

. high state debt/GDP rati

. instability in the local currency marke

. lack of reform in the banking sector and a weakkbansystem providing limited liquidity to Russianterprises

. pervasive capital flight

. corruption and the penetration of organized crinie the economy

. significant increases in unemployment and undereympént;

. the impoverishment of a large portion of the Rusgiapulation:

. large number of unprofitable enterprises which it to operate due to deficiency in the existingkruptcy procedure
. prevalent practice of tax evasion; &

. growth of the blac-market economy

The Russian economy has been subject to abrupttdavenin the past. For example, on August 17, 1888e face of a rapidly
deteriorating economic situation, the Russian Gawent defaulted on its ruble-denominated securitiessCBR stopped its support of the
ruble and a temporary moratorium was imposed otaicenard currency payments. These actions resuitad immediate and severe
devaluation of the ruble and a sharp increasedandte of inflation, a dramatic decline in the ps®f Russian debt and equity securities and tt
inability of Russian issuers to raise funds inititernational capital markets. These problems vaggravated by the near collapse of the
Russian banking sector in connection with the saweats. This further impaired the ability of thenkimg sector to act as a reliable source of
liquidity to Russian companies and resulted inwiidespread loss of bank deposits. In responseetgltbal economic crisis in 2008 and 2009,
the Russian government implemented a range ofcaists measures, however, there can be no assuttaaidé another crisis were to occur, the
Russian government could do so again, or that esyonse would adequately ameliorate the situatidmaevent a decline in the Russian
economy. A decline in the Russian economy woulcehawmaterial adverse effect on our business, finhoondition and results of operations.

Since the beginning of 2014, the ruble has sigaifity depreciated, from RUB 32.73/U.S.$1 as of yarad 2013 to RUB 36.26/U.S.$1 as
of March 8, 2014. The declines had become so pteathat in early March, the CBR raised its katgiest rate by 1.5 percentage points to
7% in order to defend the currency. However, tliarebe no assurance that this or any other measiltedtimately prove successful. A
sustained or continued depreciation of the rublg cuab consumer spending and result in a geneddingeof the Russian economy.

Furthermore, the global financial and economicigtied to high volatility in debt and equity marketeductions in foreign investment i
sharp decreases in GDP around the world. Any dsesear fluctuations in world commodity prices,mgre generally, any deterioration of
general economic conditions in Russia could adieisuence the economic stability and demandvarious products and services, including
those sold by us, and therefore could have a nahtetverse effect on our business, financial caordiénd results of operations.

The banking system in Russia remains underdevelaped

The banking and other financial systems in Rus@anat well-developed or regulated, and Russiaislétipn relating to banks and bank
accounts is subject to varying interpretation arwbnsistent application. The 1998 financial chissulted in the bankruptcy and liquidation of
many Russian banks and almost entirely elimindtedieveloping market for commercial bank loansat time. From April to July 2004, the
Russian banking sector
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experienced further serious turmoil. As a resultarious market rumors and certain regulatory &naddity problems, several privately owned
Russian banks experienced liquidity problems ancwaable to attract funds on the inter-bank maokdtom their client base.
Simultaneously, they faced large withdrawals ofatgs by both retail and corporate customers. S¢wéthese privately owned Russian be
collapsed or ceased or severely limited their amra. Russian banks owned or controlled by theegawent and foreign owned banks
generally were not adversely affected by the tuknmiOctober 2013 March 2014 a number of Russian banks, includingpmalpyers such
Master-Bank and Investbank, had their banking Besrrevoked, which resulted in turmoil in the irntdysnstigated a banking panic and bank
runs on a number of Russian credit institutions, se&verely undermined the trust that the Russianlption had with private banks.

Many Russian banks also do not meet internatiomaking standards, and the transparency of the &ussinking sector in some respe
still lags behind internationally accepted normankng supervision is also often inadequate, &saltrof which many banks do not follow
existing CBR regulations with respect to lendinigecia, credit quality, loan loss reserves, divigzation of exposure or other requirements.
imposition of more stringent regulations or intefations could lead to weakened capital adequagyhaninsolvency of some banks. Prior to
the onset of the current global economic crisistéthad been a rapid increase in lending by Ruésiaks, which many believe had been
accompanied by a deterioration in the credit qualftthe loan portfolio of those banks. In additiarrobust domestic corporate debt market
leading Russian banks to hold increasingly largeumts of Russian corporate ruble bonds in theitfplaos, which further deteriorated the risk
profile of the assets of Russian banks. The cuglital financial crisis has led to the collapsdaitout of some Russian banks and to
significant liquidity constraints for others. Prafbility levels of most Russian banks have beereesily affected. Indeed, the global crisis has
prompted the government to inject substantial funttsthe banking system amid reports of difficedtiamong Russian banks and other
financial institutions. We periodically hold funi@sa number of Russian banks, including VTB Ban#l Russian Agricultural Bank. The
bankruptcy or insolvency of one or more of theseklsacould adversely affect our business. The caation or worsening of the banking cri
or the bankruptcy or insolvency of any of the bawkich hold our funds, could prevent us from acicessur funds for several days, result in
the loss of our income or affect our ability to quate banking transactions in Russia, which coaldeha material adverse effect on our
business, financial condition and results of openat

Russia has experienced high levels of inflationtime past.

As a substantial portion of our expenses (includipgrating costs and capital expenditures) arerdevated in rubles, the relative
movement of inflation and exchange rates signitigeaifects our results of operations. The effaftgflation could cause some of our costs tc
rise. Russia has experienced high levels of imifatince the early 1990s. For example, inflatiaméased dramatically after the 1998 financial
crisis, reaching a rate of 84.4% in that year. Adtw to the Russian federal state statistics serwr Rosstat, inflation in the Russian
Federation was 6.1% in 2011, 6.6% in 2012 and 6rb2013. Certain of our costs, such as salariegami] are affected by inflation in Russia.
To the extent the inflation causes these costsa@ase, such inflation may materially adverselgafour business, financial condition and
results of operations.

The immaturity of legal systems, processes and pecas in the Russian Federation may adversely affear business, financial condition
and results of operations.

Risks associated with the legal systems of the iRu$sderation include, to varying degrees, ingiaacies between and among laws,
presidential decrees, edicts and governmental anidterial orders and resolutions; conflicting Ibaagional, and federal rules and regulati
the lack of judicial or administrative guidanceasdjng the interpretation of the applicable rutég; untested nature of the independence of th
judiciary and its immunity from political, sociahd commercial influences; the relative inexperieotgirists, judges and courts in interpret
recently enacted legislation and complex commesi@ngements; a high degree of unchecked disoretiadhe part of governmental
authorities; alleged corruption within the judigiaand governmental authorities; substantial gapkeénegulatory structure due to delays in or
absence of implementing regulations; bankruptcg@dares that are not well-developed and are sutgjediuse; and a lack of binding judicial
precedent. All of these weaknesses affect ourtaldiprotect and enforce our legal rights, inchgldiights under contracts, and to defend
against claims by others. In addition, the RusBigesident has recently initiated a merger of ther&ue Arbitration Court of the Russian
Federation, which oversees business disputestliat8upreme Court, which handles criminal casexasildawsuits. The reform will require
amendments to the Russian Constitution. The Rug&saimment has already voted in favour of theviah amendments and they are now
being reviewed by
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competent regional authorities. The Russian jubt@@anmunity has not fully supported the proposezteiof legislation on the reform, as there
are certain gaps therein, in particular, it is eaclwhat will happen to the system of the loweiteation courts.

The relatively recent enactment of many laws, #o bf consensus about the scope, content andopaoditical and economic reform
and the rapid evolution of legal systems in ways thay not always coincide with market developméatge resulted in legal ambiguities,
inconsistencies and anomalies and, in certain c#segnactment of laws without a clear constindior legislative basis. Legal and
bureaucratic obstacles and corruption exist toiagrgegrees in each of the regions in which we atgeiand these factors are likely to hinder
our further development. These characteristics gsgeto investment risks that do not exist in does with more developed legal systems.
developing nature of the legal systems in Russiddomaterially adversely affect our business, firiahcondition and results of operations.

Unlawful, selective or arbitrary government actianay have an adverse effect on our business.

Governmental authorities have a high degree ofelign in Russia and at times appear to act sedgtor arbitrarily, without hearing or
prior notice, and in a manner that is contraryaie br influenced by political or commercial consatéons. Moreover, the Russian Governmen
also has the power in certain circumstances, bylatign or government act, to interfere with thefpenance of, nullify or terminate contracts.
Unlawful, selective or arbitrary governmental andiave reportedly included denial or withdrawdiagnses, sudden and unexpected tax
audits, criminal prosecutions and civil actionsdé&l and local government entities also appehat® used common defects in matters
surrounding share issuances and registration ésxpsdor court claims and other demands to ineddidhe issuances or registrations or to voi
transactions, seemingly for political purposes. &wer, selective, public criticism by Russian Goweent officials of Russian companies has
in the past caused the price of publicly tradedigges in such Russian companies to sharply dechind there is no assurance that any such
public criticism by Russian Government officialstire future will not have the same negative afftandard & Poors has expressed concern:
that “Russian companies and their investors casubgected to government pressure through seleichipkementation of regulations and
legislation that is either politically motivated wiggered by competing business groups”. In thig®nment, our competitors could receive
preferential treatment from the government, po&digtgiving them a competitive advantage. Unlawfdlective or arbitrary governmental
action, if directed at our operations in Russiajldanaterially and adversely affect our businessricial condition and results of operations.

Russian companies can be forced into liquidation the basis of formal no-compliance with certain requirements of Russiania

Certain provisions of Russian law may allow a coorrder the liquidation of a Russian legal enditythe basis of its formal non-
compliance with certain requirements during forim@tireorganization or during its operation. Thesgenbeen cases in the past in which fol
deficiencies in the establishment process of aiRadsgal entity or non-compliance with provisiamfsRussian law have been used by Russial
courts as a basis for the liquidation of a legaitygrnWeaknesses in the Russian legal system cegatacertain legal environment, which ma
the decisions of a Russian court or a governmextilority difficult, if not impossible, to predidf.any of our operating subsidiaries
incorporated in Russia were subject to involuntapyidation, such liquidation could lead to signént negative consequences for our busines
financial condition and results of operations.

For example, under Russian corporate law, negagvassets calculated on the basis of the Russtuating standards as of the end of
the year following the second or any subsequentgea company’s existence can serve as a basdditors to accelerate their claims and tc
demand payment of damages, as well as for a amorgder the liquidation of the company upon a claygovernmental authorities. Many
Russian companies have negative net assets deeyttow historical value of property, plant and gumpent reflected on their Russian
accounting standards balance sheets. However sthlegncy (defined as their ability to pay debtsheey come due) is not otherwise adversely
affected by such negative net assets. There aes @dten courts have ordered mandatory liquidati@ammpany based on its negative net
assets, though such company had continued td ftdfibbligations and had net assets in excesseofeéquired minimum at the time of
liquidation.
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Shareholder liability under Russian corporate lavwould cause us to become liable for the obligatiarfoour subsidiaries

Russian law generally provides that shareholdessRuissian joint-stock company or participants liméed liability company are not
liable for that company’s obligations and risk othe loss of their investment. This may not bedage, however, when one legal entity is
capable of determining decisions made by anothtitiyeifhe legal entity capable of determining suletisions is called the effective parent
entity (osnovnoye obshchestwoRussian ). The legal entity whose decisionscapable of being so determined is called the éffect
subsidiary entity locherneye obshchestiwoRussian). The effective parent bears joint el liability for transactions concluded by the
effective subsidiary in carrying out business deais if:

. the effective parent gives binding directions te #ifective subsidiary; ar

. the right of the effective parent to give bindimgtructions is set out in the charter of the effecsubsidiary or in a contract betw:
such entities

In addition, under Russian law, an effective parestecondarily liable for an effective subsidiargebts if an effective subsidiary
becomes insolvent or bankrupt as a result of thieraof an effective parent. In these instances atfner shareholders of the effective subsic
may claim compensation for the effective subsidiatgsses from the effective parent that causesfthetive subsidiary to take action or fail
take action knowing that such action or failuréaie action would result in losses. We could benébto be the effective parent of our
subsidiaries, in which case we would become lifdn¢heir debts, which could have a material ade@ffect on our business, financial
condition and results of operations.

Risks Relating to Taxation

Weaknesses and changes in the Russian tax systarndgeoaterially and adversely affect our businesscdatie value of investments in
Russia.

We are subject to a broad range of taxes and otimapulsory payments imposed at federal, regionéllacal levels, including, but not
limited to, profits tax, VAT, corporate propertytand social contributions. Tax laws, such as thesin Tax Code, have been in force for a
short period relative to tax laws in more developetket economies, and the implementation of tkeséaws is often unclear or inconsistent.
Historically, the system of tax collection has beelatively ineffective, resulting in continual aiges to the interpretation of existing laws.
Although the quality of Russian tax legislation lgamerally improved with the introduction of thesfiand second parts of the Russian Tax
Code, the possibility exists that Russia may im@obérary or onerous taxes and penalties in thaé)which could adversely affect our
business, financial condition and results of openst A large number of changes have been madarious chapters of the Russian Tax Code
since their introduction. Since Russian federajioeal and local tax laws and regulations are suligechanges and some of the sections of th
Russian Tax Code relating to the aforementioneestaxe comparatively new, interpretation of theggilations is often unclear or non-
existent. Also, different interpretations of taguéations exist both among and within governmenlié® at the federal, regional and local le
which creates uncertainties and inconsistent eafoent. The current practice is that private cleaiiions to specific taxpayers’ queries with
respect to particular situations issued by the Rundglinistry of Finance are not binding on the Rasgax authorities and there can be no
assurance that the Russian tax authorities wiltala positions contrary to those set out in suatifications. During the past several years the
Russian tax authorities have shown a tendencykertwre assertive positions in their interpretatibthe tax legislation which has led to an
increased number of material tax assessments issuttm as a result of tax audits. In practice,Rlussian tax authorities generally interpret
the tax laws in ways that do not favor taxpayetsy wften have to resort to court proceedings ag#iesRussian tax authorities to defend thei
position. In some instances Russian tax authotiide® applied new interpretations of tax laws @attively. There is no established precedent
or consistent court practice in respect of theseeis. Furthermore, in the absence of binding peetedourt rulings on tax or other related
matters by different courts relating to the samsiimilar circumstances may also be inconsistegbatradictory. Taxpayers often have to re
to court proceedings to defend their position agjaime tax authorities.

The Russian tax authorities are increasingly takifigubstance over form” approach. While certatfurdions in the rates, such as for
profits tax, have been effected, it is expected Ressian tax legislation will become more
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sophisticated. The possibility exists that the Goreent may introduce additional revenue-raising suess. Although it is unclear how such
measures would operate, the introduction of ani saeasures may affect the Group’s overall tax iefficy and may result in significant
additional taxes becoming payable. There can bessorance that the Russian Tax Code will not beggthin the future in a manner adverse
to the stability and predictability of the tax sst These factors, together with the potentiakfate budget deficits, raise the risk of the
imposition of additional taxes on us. The introdctof new taxes or amendments to current taxatites may have a substantial impact on
overall amount of our tax liabilities. There is @assurance that we would not be required to makstauatially larger tax payments in the future,
which may adversely affect our business, finanmigdition and results of operations.

Our business may be deemed to receive unjustifeedidenefits.

In its decision dated July 26, 2001, the Constindl Court of the Russian Federation, or the Ctuigthal Court, introduced the concept
of “a taxpayer acting in a bad faith” without cllyestipulating the criteria for it. Similarly, thisoncept is not defined in Russian tax law.
Nonetheless, this concept has been used by thauthgrities to deny, for instance, the taxp’s right to rely on the provisions of the tax law.
The tax authorities and courts often exercise Saanit discretion in interpreting this concept imanner that is unfavorable to taxpayers. On
October 12, 2006, the Plenum of the Higher Arbhr@ourt of the Russian Federation, or the Highdithazh Court, issued Ruling No. 53,
formulating the concept of an “unjustified tax btievhich is defined in the ruling mainly by refemce to specific examples of such tax
benefits (e.g., tax benefits obtained as a re$udttansaction that has no reasonable busineg®gel)ywhich may lead to disallowance of their
application. There is growing practice of the iptetation of this concept by the tax authoritiesher courts and it is apparent that the tax
authorities actively seek to apply this concept mvbleallenging tax positions taken by taxpayershédigh the intention of Ruling No. 53 was
combat the abuse of tax law, based on cases brougburts to date relating to Ruling No. 53, the authorities have started applying the
“unjustified tax benefit” concept in a broader setisan may have been intended by the Higher Adit@ourt. In particular, we are aware of
cases when this concept has been applied by thauthrrities in order to disallow benefits granigddouble tax treaties. To date, in the
majority of cases where this concept has beenegphe courts have ruled in favor of taxpayers,thia not possible to determine whether the
courts will follow these precedents in the futureaddition to the usual tax burden imposed on Rassx payers, these conditions complicate
tax planning and related business decisions. Tiismainty could possibly expose our group to $igaunt fines and penalties and to
enforcement measures, despite our best effortsnapléance, and could result in a greater than exegetax burden.

Our Russian subsidiaries are subject to tax audigs Russian tax authorities which may result in atidnal tax liabilities.

Tax declarations together with related documentadi@ subject to review and investigation by a nemadb authorities, which are enabled
by Russian law to impose substantial fines andéstecharges. Generally, taxpayers are subjeeitaudits for a period of three calendar year
immediately preceding the year in which the decig@mconduct the audit is taken. Nevertheless inesoases the fact that a tax period has
reviewed by the tax authorities does not preverthéu review of that tax period, or any tax dediaraapplicable to that tax period. In additi
on July 14, 2005, the Constitutional Court issuekteision that allows the statute of limitations tiax penalties to be extended beyond the
three-year term set forth in the Tax Code if a tdetermines that a taxpayer has obstructed oehiuada field tax audit. Moreover,
amendments introduced to the first part of the Rms§ax Code which came into effect on Januan00,/2orovide for the extension of the
three year statute of limitations for tax liabéiiif the actions of the taxpayer create insurmatiatobstacles for the tax audit. Because none «
the relevant terms is defined in Russian law, #fxeauthorities may have broad discretion to arpaéd taxpayer has “obstructed” or
“hindered” or “created insurmountable obstaclestagpect of an audit, effectively linking any diffity experienced in the course of their tax
audit with obstruction by the taxpayer and use #isad basis to seek tax adjustments and penadtyemt the three-year term. Therefore, the
statute of limitations is not entirely effectiveaxtaudits may result in additional costs to oungrd the relevant tax authorities conclude that
our Russian entities did not satisfy their tax gations in any given year. Such audits may alsmsemdditional burdens on our group by
diverting the attention of management resources.adlticome of these audits could have a materiaradweffect on our business, financial
condition and results of operations.
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Our companies established outside of Russia magkmosed to taxation in Russia.

Due to our international structure, we are subjegermanent establishment and transfer pricirig liis various jurisdictions in which we
operate. We manage the related risks by lookimgaatagement functions and risks in various coungmeslevel of profits allocated to each
subsidiary. If additional taxes are assessed \egpect to these matters, they may be material.

The Russian Tax Code contains the concept of agreant establishment in Russia as means for tawimggh legal entities which carry
on regular entrepreneurial activities in Russiadnelypreparatory and auxiliary activities. The Rasslouble tax treaties with other countries
also contain a similar concept. If a foreign compesrireated as having a permanent establishmeRtigsia, it would be subject to Russian
taxation in a manner broadly similar to the taxatid a Russian legal entity, but only to the ext#rithe amount of the foreign company’s
income that is attributable to the permanent essfailent in Russia. However, the practical applicatf the concept of a permanent
establishment under Russian domestic law is ndtdesteloped and so foreign companies having eveitdd operations in Russia, which
would not normally satisfy the conditions for ciegta permanent establishment under internatiooahs, may be at risk of being treated as
having a permanent establishment in Russia ancehsgiog exposed to Russian taxation. FurthermbbeeRtssian Tax Code contains
attribution rules which are not sufficiently devedal and there is a risk that the tax authoritieghtnseek to assess Russian tax on the global
income of a foreign company. Having a permanerdishment in Russia may also lead to other advwessanplications, including
challenging a reduced withholding tax rate on divids under an applicable double tax treaty, pategtiect on VAT and property tax
obligations. There is also a risk that penaltiasdd®e imposed by the tax authorities for faillsedgister a permanent establishment with the
Russian tax authorities. Recent events in Rusgjgesi that the tax authorities may more activelgdxking to investigate and assert whether
foreign entities of our group, operate through ar@ment establishment in Russia. Any such tax@eoalties could have a material adverse
effect on our business, financial condition andiltsof operations.

Russian tax legislation in effect as of the datéthef annual report does not contain a concepbrdarate tax residency. Russian
companies are taxed on their worldwide income wiaiteign entities are taxed in Russia on incomebattable to a permanent establishment
and on Russian source income. The Russian govetimigs Main Directions of Russian Tax Policy #2013 and the planned period of 2014-
2015 has proposed the introduction of the concefboresidency for legal entities to the dometdiclaw. The latest Main Directions of
Russian Tax Policy for 2014 and the planned pesfd2d152016 contain a similar proposal. According to theppsals, a legal entity would
deemed a Russian tax resident based on a fewi@titat would be in line with international taxaties of the Russian Federation. Moreover,
on December 12, 2013 the Russian President incluidieid annual address to the Russian Federal Adgearmessage aiming at introducing
rules that could allow taxation of unallocated piro6f the controlled foreign companies in Rus$iae new rules may be developed by July 1,
2014. No assurance can be currently given as tth@hand when these amendments will be enacteid etkeect nature, their potential
interpretation by the tax authorities and the galesmpact on us. We cannot rule out the possitiifiat, as a result of the introduction of
changes to Russian tax legislation, certain ofcompanies established outside Russia might be dbtni®e Russian tax residents, subject to
all applicable Russian taxes.

We may encounter difficulties in obtaining lower t@s of Russian withholding income tax envisagedtbg Russia-Cyprus double tax treaty
for dividends distributed from Russii

Dividends paid by a Russian legal entity to a fomdiegal entity are generally subject to Russiahhdglding income tax at a rate of 15%,
although this tax rate may be reduced under aricaié double tax treaty. We intend to rely onfhessia-Cyprus double tax treaty. The tax
treaty allows reduction of withholding income tax @ividends paid by a Russian company to a Cygoaipany to 10% provided that the
following conditions are met: (i) the Cypriot conmyais a tax resident of Cyprus within the meanihthe tax treaty; (ii) the Cypriot company
is the beneficial owner of the dividends; (iii) thividends are not attributable to a permanentéistanent of the Cypriot company in Russia;
and (iv) the treaty clearance procedures are deffippned. This rate may be further reduced to 5#dfdirect investment of the Cypriot
company in a Russian subsidiary paying the divideadt least €100,000. Although we will seek @irltreaty protection, there is a risk that
the applicability of the reduced rate of 5% or 104y be challenged by Russian tax authorities. Aesalt, there can be no assurance that we
would be able to avail ourselves of the reducetilvaltding income tax rate in practice. Specificatlyr Cypriot holding company may incur a
15% withholding income tax at source on dividengrpants from Russian subsidiaries if the treatyreleee procedures are not duly perfort
at the date when the dividend payment is madéhisncise we may seek to claim as a refund therélifte between the 15% tax withheld and
the reduced rate of 10% or 5% as appropriate. Hewelrere can be no assurance that such taxes weuwkfunded in practice.
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Russian withholding tax may also be applied whewmdénds are received from Russian subsidiariehi&ybdmpany’s non-Russian
subsidiaries. Although we intend to rely on an aygile double tax treaty between Russia and thatcpwhere the relevant non-Russian
subsidiary is resident, no assurance can be ghadrilie reduced withholding tax rate would appiythis respect it should be noted that in May
2009 the President of the Russian Federation iedu his Budget Message regarding the Budget yfic2010-2012 a proposal to introduce
an anti-avoidance mechanism with respect to daablé¢reaty benefits in cases where the ultimatefigaries of income do not reside in the
relevant tax treaty jurisdiction. Currently, suchhachanism has not been introduced. FurthermogeRtissian Ministry of Finance has issued :
number of clarifications with respect to the teeatly concept of “beneficial ownership”. Althougle ttiarifications up to the date of this annual
report have been of limited use, they demonstmatgttempt by the Russian tax authorities to addtesguestion of beneficial ownership of
income in international financial transactions &etting structures. Due to the fact that some efammpanies are located outside Russia, the
future development and application of the “beneafioiwnership” concept to those companies may havatarial adverse effect on our
business, financial condition and results of openst In August 2011 the Russian government praposés Main Directions of Russian Tax
Policy for 2012 and the planned period of 2013-2@t4he Directions, legislative changes concerringnti-avoidance mechanism with
respect to double tax treaty benefits in cases evhkimate beneficiaries of income do not residtharelevant double tax treaty country.
Moreover, in the Directions the Russian governniast stated publicly that it plans to amend the RusBax Code and establish the rules on
controlled foreign companies. The latest Main Diiwts of Russian Tax Policy for 2014 and the plahperiod of 2015-2016 contain similar
proposals and measures. Based on the Presiderésriber 2013 address to the Federal Assembly, sietimay be developed by July 1,
2014. It is not clear whether and when these amentsimay be introduced or how they may be inteedrand applied by the tax authorities
and/ or courts in practice and what effect it mayénon taxpayers. If and when enacted, such amemdmmay result in the inability of the
foreign companies within our group to claim bersefinder a double taxation treaty through structut@sh historically have benefited from
double taxation treaty protection in Russia. Thpasition of additional tax liabilities as a resoitthe application of this rule to transactions
carried out by us may have a material adversetadfeour business, financial condition and resofitsperations.

Russian transfer pricing legislation may require iping adjustments and impose additional tax lialiéis with respect to all controlle
transactions.

Russian transfer pricing legislation became eféecin the Russian Federation on January 1, 1998.|&gislation allowed the tax
authorities to make transfer-pricing adjustment iampose additional tax liabilities in respect eftain types of transactions (“controlled”
transactions). Special transfer pricing provisiomese established for operations with securitiesdegrivatives. However, Russian transfer
pricing rules were vaguely drafted, generally legwvide scope for interpretation by Russian taxauities and courts. There was little
guidance (although some court decisions are avajlals to how these rules should be applied. Faliguhe adoption of Federal Law No. 227-
FZ “On amendments to certain legislative acts efRussian Federation in connection with the impmoset of pricing principles” dated
July 18, 2011, the new transfer pricing rules bezaififective from January 1, 2012. Compared to tegipus Russian transfer pricing rules,
new rules are more technically elaborate and,dertain extent, better aligned with the internagidransfer pricing principles developed by
OECD. The list of the “controlled” transactions endhe new transfer pricing legislation includemtactions with related parties and certain
types of cross border transactions. The amendnhents toughened considerably the previous transfeing rules, by, among other things,
effectively shifting the burden of proving markeiges from the tax authorities to the taxpayer abliljing the taxpayer to keep specific
documentation. The new rules also permit taxpatgeesniter into advance pricing agreements with dxeatthorities; however, it is unclear h
such agreements will operate in practice. Speakfter pricing rules continue to apply to tranenst with securities and derivatives. It is
currently difficult to evaluate what effect thesmanprovisions may have on us. Accordingly, duéhtouncertainties in the interpretation of
transfer pricing legislation, no assurance canibengthat the tax authorities will not challenge tavel of prices applied by us and make
adjustments, which could affect our tax positionld$s such tax adjustments are successfully cedt@sicourt, the resulting increase in tax
due could have a material adverse effect on ounésis, financial condition and results of operaiorhe above factors increase the risk of the
imposition of additional taxes on us. The introdlrectof new taxes or amendments to current taxatites may have a substantial impact on
overall amount of our tax liabilities, representeagsh outflows and a decrease in the amount dhoeme earned by us.
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Russian ant-offshore policy may have adverse impact on our iness, financial condition and results of operatien

The Russian Federation, like a number of other t@mmin the world, is actively involved in discimms of measures against tax evasion
through the use of low tax jurisdictions, includi@gprus, as well as aggressive tax planning strestunitiatives such as the incorporation intc
Russian law of the concept of beneficial ownerstap,residency of legal entities, definition ofgifbre companies, “controlled foreign
companies” rules, conclusion of multilateral agreais for exchange of information between tax aitilesrof different countries have already
been raised by the Government in the Main DirestiohRussian Tax Policy for 2013 and the planna@gdef 2014-2015 as well as in the
Main Directions of Russian Tax Policy for 2014 ahd planned period of 2015-2016. The Russian Rea&laddress to the Federal Assembly
of the Russian Federation on December 12, 2013 $saliextensively on proposed de-offshorisatioh®Russian economy. As a response to
this address, the Budget and Financial Markets Cittexerof the upper chamber of the Russian parliarmeaposed twelve measures to addres
de-offshorisation of the Russian economy. The RwsBlinister of Finance also addressed the propaddle President of the Russian
Federation and noted to the press that the Rub&iastry of Finance intended to submit the followithree legislative initiatives to the Russ
State Duma in the first half of 2014:

. the introduction of thcontrolled foreign compani” rule into Russian tax legislatio

The proposed legislation is aimed at taxing in Ruge profits of the entire group, including thefiis of certain types of foreign
companies controlled by the Russian entity provitdhed such foreign companies do not distributeifgdd the Russian entity.

. the introduction into Russian tax legislatidrtiee concept of tax residency for legal entitiasdx on the place where they carry out
their business activitie:

. the requirement to identify ultimate owners in arttereceive government support or have the rigtapply for state contraci

The Deputy of the Russian Minister of Finance hedated that in the near future the Governmentsuiimit to the Russian State Duma
a draft law on ratification of the multilateral G@antion on Mutual Administrative Assistance in Tdatters developed by the Council of
Europe and the OECD, which the Russian Federaitipred in 2011. Ratification of this Convention wethable the Russian Federation to
receive tax information from all participating cdries which include, among others, a number oftaffe jurisdictions.

No assurance can currently be given as to whetittnden the above legislative initiatives and psaie will be enacted (if at all), their
exact nature, their potential interpretation by fhessian tax authorities and the possible impaatsoand our subsidiaries registered in offshor:
jurisdictions. In addition to the legislative imitives outlined above, other-offshorization measures may be expected to begsexpand
enacted by the Russian government and legislafimese developments could have a material advefiset eh our business, financial condi
and results of operations.

ADS holders outside of Russia may be subject to$Rars tax for income earned upon a sale, exchanged@posal of our ADSs

In the event that the proceeds from a sale, ex@handisposal of ADSs are deemed to be received &source within Russia, a non-
resident holder that is an individual may be sutiedussian tax in respect of such proceeds atieaof 30% of the gain (such gain being
computed as the sales price less any availablengeried cost deduction, including the acquisitidngpof the ADSs and other documented
expenses, such as depositary expenses and brides}’ subject to any available double tax trealief, provided that the necessary
requirements to qualify for the treaty relief ahd fppropriate administrative requirements undeRihissian tax legislation have been met. Fo
example, holders of ADSs that are eligible for bleaefits of the United States-Russia double taatyrshould generally not be subject to tax in
Russia on any gain arising from the disposal of AO®ovided that the gain is not attributable freamanent establishment or a fixed base the
is or was located in
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Russia and/or provided that less than 50% of cedfiassets consist of immovable property situatdrissia (as defined in the treaty). Bec:
the determination of whether 50% or more of ouedixassets consist of immovable property situatdlssia is inherently factual and is made
on an on-going basis, and because the relevantdRusgislation and regulations are not entirebac] there can be no assurance that
immovable property situated in Russia does notecttly, or will not, constitute 50% or more of owsats. If 50% or more of our assets were t
consist of immovable property situated in Russia,lienefits of the United States-Russia doubléréaty may not be available to an ADS
holder.

Changes in the double tax treaty between Russia @ygrus may significantly increase our tax burden.

A company that is tax resident in Cyprus is subjec@ypriot taxation and qualifies for benefits #afale under the Cypriot tax treaty
network, including the Russia-Cyprus double taatyeWe can provide no assurance that the doubledaty will not be renegotiated or
revoked. Adverse changes in, or the cancellatipthefRussiaGyprus double tax treaty may significantly increasetax burden and advers:
affect our business, financial condition and ressaftoperations.

We may be deemed to be a tax resident outside pfisy

According to the provisions of the Cyprus Incom& Taw, a company is considered to be a reside@ypfus for tax purposes if its
management and control are exercised in Cypruscdheept of “management and control” is not defimethe Cypriot tax legislation,
however, it is generally considered that a compamganaged and controlled in Cyprus through thés@etmaking power of its board of
directors being exercised in Cyprus. Where, as withcompany, the majority of the board of direstisrcomprised of tax residents of Russia,
there may be increased risk that the company isnastaged and controlled in Cyprus and, therefareanax resident in Cyprus. If we are
deemed not to be a tax resident in Cyprus, we mapa subject to the Cypriot tax regime other timarespect of Cyprus sourced income and
we may be subject to the tax regime of the countiyhich we are deemed to be a tax resident. Fyribeewould not be eligible for benefits
under the tax treaties entered into between Cygmdsother countries. If applicable Russian lawnieaded so that a company that is a tax
resident in Cyprus can also be considered a técenatsof Russia, the tax treaty in force betweepr@y and Russia provides that such a
company shall be deemed to be a tax resident aftétte in which the place of effective managemétii®company is situated. A protocol to
this treaty was signed in October 2010 and ratifigcCyprus in September 2011 and the Russian DarRabruary 2012. This protocol
provides that the process of determining the dffeahanagement in this case will be achieved thindhg two states endeavoring to determine
the place of effective management by mutual agree¢imeving regard to all relevant factors. Whererttegority of our board of directors
comprises tax residents or citizens of Russia, i@y pose a risk that we, even if we are managddantrolled in Cyprus and therefore a tax
resident in Cyprus, may be deemed to have a pemhastablishment in Russia or elsewhere. Suchragregnt establishment could be subject
to taxation of the jurisdiction of the permanertabishment on the profits allocable to the pernmaestablishment. If we are tax resident in a
jurisdiction outside of Cyprus or are deemed toehapermanent establishment in Russia or elsewbergéax burden may increa
significantly, which, in turn, may materially adgety affect our business, financial condition agsuits of operations.

We may be subject to defense tax in Cyprus.

Cypriot companies must pay a Special Contributanrtlie Defense Fund of the Republic of Cyprusherdefense tax, at a rate of 20%
deemed dividend distributions to the extent thairthltimate beneficial owners are Cypriot tax desits. A Cypriot company that does not
distribute at least 70% of its after tax profitghim two years from the end of the year in which gnofits arose, is deemed to have distributed
this amount as a dividend two years after that gedr The amount of this deemed dividend distrdsytsubject to the defense tax, is reduced
by any actual dividend paid out of the profitstoé relevant year at any time up to the date ofitfemed distribution and the resulting balance
of profits will be subject to the defense tax te #xtent of the appropriation of shares held incttrapany at that time by Cyprus tax residents.
The profits to be taken into account in determirtingg deemed dividend do not include fair value staljients to any movable or immovable
property.

The defense tax payable as a result of a deematkdiv distribution is paid in the first instancethg company which may recover such
payment from its Cypriot shareholders by deductirgamount from an actual dividend paid to suchiedi@ders from the relevant profits. To
the extent that we are unable to recover this amoun
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due to a change in shareholders or no actual didideever paid out of the relevant profits, we wiiffer the cost of this defense tax.
Imposition of this tax could have a material adeezffect on our results of operations and finanmisidition if we are unable to recover the tax
from shareholders as described above.

In September 2011, the Commissioner of the InlaedeRue Department of Cyprus issued Circular 201 1bich exempted from the
defense tax any profits of a company that is taident in Cyprus imputed indirectly to shareholdbet are themselves tax resident in Cyprus
to the extent that these profits are indirectly@ppned to shareholders who are ultimately notr@gpax residents.

Depending upon the value and the nature of our assand the amount and nature of our income over &nwe could be classified as
passive foreign investment company or PFIC for Uf8deral income tax purpose

We will be classified as a PFIC in any taxable yieaither: (a) 50% or more of the fair market valof our gross assets (determined on
the basis of a quarterly average) for the taxabr produce passive income or are held for theyatazh of passive income, or (b) 75% or
more of our gross income for the taxable year ssjpy@ income. As a publicly traded foreign corpioratve intend for this purpose to treat the
aggregate fair market value of our gross assdigiag equal to the aggregate value of our outstanstiock (“market capitalization”) plus the
total amount of our liabilities and to treat theeess of the fair market value of our assets owar ook value as a nonpassive asset to the
extent attributable to our nonpassive income. Bseave currently hold, and expect to continue ta halsubstantial amount of cash and cash
equivalents and other passive assets used in gurdss, and because the value of our gross assisly to be determined in large part by
reference to our market capitalization securities would likely become a PFIC for a given taxaldaryif the market price of our ADSs were
to decrease significantly. The application of ti@®rules is subject to uncertainty in several eetp, and we must make a separate
determination after the close of each taxable gsdo whether we were a PFIC for such year. If reeaaPFIC for any taxable year during
which a U.S. investor held our ADSs, the U.S. iteemight be subject to increased U.S. federalimedax liability and to additional reportit
obligations. We do not intend to provide the infation necessary for the U.S. investor to make #ifepdaelecting fund election with respect
our ADSs. See “Taxation — United States Federalire Tax Considerations — Passive Foreign Invest@entpanies.”

Our interest expenses may not be deductible.

In May 2012, the House of Representatives of Cypnated laws, effective as of January 1, 2012¢hvpiovide that if a Cyprus parent
company incurs an interest expense on the acaquisifishares of a company that is a wholly-owndssiliary (whether directly or indirectly
and irrespective of whether the subsidiary is arGypr foreign company), the interest expensemaill be deductible for tax purposes by the
parent company. This deduction will only be avdéatirovided the subsidiary owns assets that aré insiés business and the amount of
interest deducted is limited and proportionatehevamount and value of assets used in the busih@gsare unable to deduct our interest
expenses for tax purposes, our results of operatiod financial conditions may be materially adebraffected.

Adverse financial measures may be adopted in Cyprusonnection with its bailout

In June 2012, the government of Cyprus appliedifiancial assistance from the European Central BmkEU and the IMF, together
referred to as the Troika. On April 12, 2013, tlheweynment of Cyprus and the Troika reached an awggatregarding the provision of a EUR
10 billion loan and related finance package to @gpsuch loan and finance package being conditiong@yprus implementing a
comprehensive economic adjustment program, or $peuS Economic Adjustment Program. The Cyprus Eogod\djustment Program
included a scheme for the reorganization of theri@ypanking system whereby Bank of Cyprus plcBo€C, Cyprus’ largest bank and Cyprus
Popular Bank Public Co Ltd, or Cyprus Popular BaByprus’ second largest bank were placed in reisolygursuant to applicable legislation,
referred to herein as the Resolution Process. iesut of the Resolution Process, Cyprus PopulakBeas absorbed by BoC and deposit
holders with credit balances of in excess of EUR,QQ0, referred to herein as the Uninsured Depdsitsl with Cyprus Popular Bank and B
suffering significant losses. Additionally, restions on bank transfers and withdrawals from bagkstitutions in Cyprus are in effect as at
the date hereof in order to enable Cyprus to implenthe Cyprus Economic Adjustment Program. On 3012013, the Ministry of Finance
and the Central Bank of Cyprus announced that t1@ Bas been fully recapitalised by the overall @aion of 47.5% of Uninsured Deposits
with the BoC into shares in BoC
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thus bringing an end to the BoC’s Resolution Prec&he measures implemented to date have not hddra not expected to have, a material
impact on holding companies, such as us, that tlbanee significant deposits in Cyprus banks or apens in Cyprus. However, further
disruption to the Cyprus banking system, or addélachanges to implement the Cyprus Economic Adjast Program, are possible and we
cannot be certain that such disruptions or changlesot adversely affect our financial condition aur shareholders who are not residents of
Cyprus.

Risks Relating to our ADSs
The class B shares underlying the ADSs are notdisind may be illiquid.

The class B shares underlying the ADSs are néligted nor traded on any stock exchange, and weotiintend to apply for the listing
admission to trading of the class B shares on togks®xchange. As a result, a withdrawal of clash8res by a holder of ADSs, whether by
election or due to certain other events will reguthat holder obtaining securities that are gigantly less liquid than the ADSs and the price
of those class B shares may be discounted as lh @ésuch withdrawal.

Our ADSs trade on more than one market and this magult in increased volatility and price variati@nbetween such markets.

Our ADSs trade on both Nasdag and MOEX. TradingunADSs on these markets occurs in different cunies (U.S. dollars on Nasdaq
and Russian rubles on MOEX) and at different tiffuee to different time zones, trading days and ipdimlidays in the United States and
Russia). The trading prices of our ADSs on thesenwarkets may differ due to these and other facidre liquidity of trading in our ADSs on
MOEX is limited. This may impair your ability to kgour ADSs on MOEX at the time you wish to sélem or at a price that you consider
reasonable. In addition, trading of a small numdfekDSs on that market could adversely impact theepof our ADSs significantly and could,
in turn, impact the price in the United States. ARfBe completely fungible between both markets. degrease in the trading price of our
ADSs on one of these markets could cause a dedretisetrading price of our ordinary ADSs on tltkey market. Additionally, as there is no
direct trading or settlement between the two stoekkets, the time required to move the ADSs from wrarket to another may vary and there
is no certainty of when ADSs that are moved willdvailable for trading or settlement.

Future sales of ADSs or ordinary shares by signéitt shareholders could cause the price of our ADBglecline.

If any of our significant shareholders sell, origade an intent to sell, substantial amounts ofADSs or ordinary shares, including both
class A shares and class B shares, in the mahieet;ading price of our ADSs could decline sigrifidy. We cannot predict the effect, if any,
that future sales of these ADSs or ordinary sharélse availability of these ADSs or ordinary slsaf@r sale will have on the market price of
our ADSs. As of the date of this annual report,haee outstanding 52,118,794 ordinary shares, inmduithose represented by ADSs. Of these
23,020,148 ordinary shares are immediately frealgable, without restriction, in the public market.

In addition, we have granted registration rightS&divar Investments Limited, Sergey A. Solonialnvay Holdings Limited, Antana
International Corporation, Andrey N. Romanenko, @ainternational Limited, Igor N. Mikhaylov, Bradv.imited, E1 Limited, Mail.ru Grou
Limited and Mitsui & Co., Ltd., who collectively aw100% of our class A shares and approximately 88#e voting power of our issued
share capital as of the date of this annual reporthe extent these shares are sold into the maheemarket price of our ADSs could decline.

Investors in our ADSs may have limited recourse ags us, our directors and executive officers besauve conduct our operations outsi
the United States and all of our current directoamd executive officers reside outside the Unitedt8s.

Our presence outside the United States may limédtors’ legal recourse against us. We are incatpdrunder the laws of the Republic
of Cyprus. All of our current directors and serofficers reside outside the United States, prinipga the Russian Federation. Substantially
of our assets and the assets of our current diseatwl executive officers are located outside thiged States, principally in the Russian
Federation. As a result, investors may not be &béffect service of process within the United &aipon our company or its directors and
executive
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officers or to enforce U.S. court judgments obtdiagainst our company or its directors and exeeudfficers in Russia, Cyprus or other
jurisdictions outside the United States, includirmions under the civil liability provisions of U.Securities laws. In addition, it may be diffic
for investors to enforce, in original actions brbtgn courts in jurisdictions outside the Unite@tss, liabilities predicated upon US securities
laws. There is no treaty between the United Statelsthe Russian Federation providing for reciproeabgnition and enforcement of foreign
court judgments in civil and commercial matterse3é limitations may deprive investors of effectegal recourse for claims related to their
investment in our ADSs.

Our ADS holders may not be able to exercise thaiegmptive rights in relation to future issuance$ dass B shares.

In order to raise funding in the future, we mayessadditional class B shares, including in the fofPADSs. Generally, existing holders
of shares in Cypriot public companies are entiigdaw to pre-emptive rights on the issue of nearsh in that company (provided that such
shares are paid in cash and the pre-emption righis not been disapplied). Our ADS holders maybeatible to exercise peptive rights fo
class B shares represented by ADSs unless ap@isablrities law requirements are adhered to examption from such requirements is
available. In the United States, we may be requudde a registration statement under the Selesrif\ct to implement pre-emptive rights. We
can give no assurance that an exemption from tistration requirements of the Securities Act wamtdavailable to enable U.S. holders of
ADSs to exercise such pre-emptive rights and,dhsxemption is available, we may not take thesstegzessary to enable U.S. holders of
ADSs to rely on it. Accordingly, our ADS holders ynaot be able to exercise their pre-emptive riginiguture issuances of shares, and, as a
result, their percentage ownership interest in aglevbe reduced. In April 2013, our shareholdetb@nized the disapplication of pre-emptive
rights for a period of five years from May 8, 2018 date of the closing of our initial public affeg, in connection with the issue of up to an
additional 52,000,000 class B shares, includindpénform of ADSs. Any issuances of class B shasesdish exceeding this amount during this
five-year period would require disapplication oégmptive rights by the class B shareholders dt sawe. The enforceability of the
disapplication of pre-emptive rights in this manri@wever, is not clear as a matter of Cyprus lafor any reason the disapplication of these
rights proves to be ineffective or class B sharééid do not approve any further disapplicationrefgmptive rights that may be required, our
ADS holders’ ability to participate in future issw@es of class B shares, including in the form ofS&Dmay be limited to the extent that class E
shareholders at the time of such issuances elestei@ise their pre-emptive rights. Furthermomghts offerings are difficult to implement
effectively under the current U.S. securities land our ability to raise capital in the future nieycompromised if we need to do so via a ri
offering in the United States.

ADS holders have no legal interest in the underlgiclass B shares

ADS holders acquire the beneficial, and not thallegterest in the underlying class B shares, wilie depositary holds on trust for
them, under the terms of the deposit agreementintaeded effect of the trust is to ring-fence thass B shares in the hands of the depositary
by conferring a property interest on ADS holderdaseficiaries. The interest of the ADS holderbeseficiaries in trust assets, which are the
class B shares, is indirect, in the sense thatédmbrmal course they do not have any direct resgotar the class B shares nor do they have any
direct right of action against us.

ADS holders may be subject to limitations on traesbf their ADSs.

ADSs are transferable on the books of the depgsittswever, the depositary may close its transtekis at any time or from time to
time when it deems expedient in connection withggormance of its duties. In addition, the defaogimay refuse to deliver, transfer or
register transfers of ADSs generally when our bawkihie books of the depositary are closed, ongtiane if we or the depositary deems it
advisable to do so because of any requirementobtaof any government or governmental body, oreurahy provision of the deposit
agreement, or for any other reason in accordanttethe terms of the deposit agreement.
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ITEM 4. Information on the Company
A. History and Development of the Company

We were incorporated in Cyprus under the name ofr@Estments Limited on February 26, 2007 as almaiding company for CJISC
Unified Instant Payments System, or OSMP (subsetjuemamed as CJSC QIWI), which was establishe2Div. In 2007, we acquired,
among other entities, CJSC e-port and LLC Qiwi \&talhow QIWI International Processing Services (®IPLC) in exchange for newly
issued shares, which represented 35% of our odiisgashare capital following the acquisitions. Iprih2008, we launched the Qiwi brand,
which gradually became the marketing name for ausirtesses. We changed our name to Qiwi Limitedepte®nber 13, 2010, and
subsequently to Qiwi plc upon converting to a pubinhited company on February 25, 2013.

Our principal executive offices are located at $swe Chertanovo Microdistrict, 1A, building 1, Mase, 117648, the Russian
Federation. Our telephone number at this address {(895) 783 59 59. Our registered office in Cygpidulocated at 12-14 Kennedy Ave.,
Kennedy Business Centre, 2nd Floor, Office 203,7108cosia, Cyprus. Our telephone number at thifess is +357-22-653390.

Our primary subsidiaries are CJSC Qiwi Bank, or iBank, QIPS LLC, CJSC QIWI and LLC QIWI Payment8ees Provider. We
acquired Qiwi Bank in September 2010 from a groupuv shareholders. QIPS LLC was incorporated isguin December 2006, and CJSC
QIWI was incorporated in Russia in January 2004vi@ank and QIPS LLC are the primary operating #libsies for our Visa Qiwi Wallet
business. CJSC QIWI is the primary operating sudsidor our Qiwi Distribution business.

For a description of our principal capital expeadits and divestitures for the three years ende@mbker 31, 2013 and for those currel
in progress, see Item 5 “Operating and Financiaié¥eand Prospects.”

B. Business Overview

We are a leading provider of next generation payrseervices in Russia and the CIS. We have an iatedmproprietary network that
enables payment services across physical, onliderenbile channels. We have deployed over 15 miliotual wallets, over 168,000 kiosks
and terminals, and enabled merchants to acceptRiyBr49 billion cash and electronic payments mgnftdm over 70 million consumers
using our network at least once a month. Our coessitan use cash, stored value and other elecpaginent methods to order and pay for
goods and services across physical or online emviemts interchangeably. We believe the complemgetambination of our physical and
virtual payment services provides differentiatedvamnience to our consumers and creates a strongrietffect that drives payment volume
across our business. Our extensive network ofantiae Qiwi kiosks also enables us to provide dilsiag services, and the billions of
transactions we process annually allow us to codad analyze valuable data, which we monetizerbyiging value added services. We
believe that our leading market position, proprgtaetwork and complementary services provide Uk wompetitive advantages that have
enabled us to generate strong growth and profitabil

We operate in and target markets and consumer segithat are largely caglased and lack convenient alternatives for conssitogay
for goods and services in physical, online and teddivironments. We help consumers and merchantgeco more efficiently in these
markets by providing an integrated network of koakd terminals, virtual wallets and payment ses/that enable consumers to deposit casl
convert it into a digital form and remit the furtdsa virtual wallet, a variety of Visa-branded papcards or any merchant in our network
quickly and securely — for example, to pay billdd aninutes to their mobile phones, purchase tramesfon and tickets, shop online or at a
retail store, buy digital services or send moneg faend or relative.

Our platform provides simple and intuitive useeifiaces, convenient access and best-in-class esrw@nbined with the reputation and
trust associated with the Qiwi brand. The paymprisessed on our network are typically very sméha limit of RUB 15,000 per
transaction and, since they are primarily fundetth wash, consumers do not have to undergo a lemgtfistration process to execute most
transactions. Alternatively, consumers can createrdine account, or virtual wallet, with Qiwi wieethey can store money, deposited from
cash or funded from a variety of other sourcesh sisca bank account, credit card, direct payrgbdé or money transfer, that can be used to
make payments and purchases at any time. Our ssraiso allow merchants in Russia and other mariketsiding leading MNOs, online
retailers, financial institutions and utilities, aocept payments via our network, enabling theatttact more consumers, generate more sales
and get paid faster and more easily.
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We have deployed our network of kiosks and termsinging a proprietary agent model. Under this maulel kiosks are assembled by
third party manufacturers using our proprietarycfEations and are then purchased by over 8,0@ditzgvho are responsible for placing,
operating and servicing the kiosks in high-traftionvenient retail locations and setting the féespaid by consumers. In addition, an agent-
owned point of sale terminal, computer, laptop obile phone can serve as a Qiwi terminal once ocapnetary software is installed on it,
which allows the agent to process consumer payntemgerchants through our system. In Russia andikestan, our brand is very well-
known and our kiosks and terminals provide uniggsgcal access for approximately 160 million constsnThey can be found next to
convenience stores, in train stations, post officetsil stores or airport terminals in all of tm@jor urban centers, as well as many small and
rural towns that lack large bank branches and stfsature. In addition, we distribute our paymesvges through our virtual Visa Qiwi Wal
product, which enables consumers to access and pagkeents through their computers or mobile devices

We run our network and process our transactiongusiproprietary, advanced technology platform linatrages the latest virtualization,
analytics and security technologies to create ta figghly reliable, secure and redundant systemb@lieve that the breadth and reach of our
network, along with the proprietary nature of aegttnology platform, differentiates us from our catifors and allows us to effectively
manage and update our services and realize signifaperating leverage with growth in volumes.

Our Payment Network

Consumers access our payment network through tintapy channels, Visa Qiwi Wallet and Qiwi Distriaii. These two channels are
highly synergistic, creating a self-reinforcingwetk that we believe has been key for the contiginccess of our business.

Qiwi Distribution
Overview

Qiwi Distribution comprises approximately 127,0006dks and 42,000 terminals that are assembleda@ddy third party manufacturers.
These kiosks and terminals run our proprietarysafe, which provides the user customized interfécasdisplay our broad range of payment
services and provide the connectivity to our pretesplatform. These capabilities help connect norers and merchants and enable them to
conduct commercial transactions, such as bill paysand purchases, at thousands of convenientdasatvithout the need to interact direc

In 2011, 2012 and 2013 Qiwi Distribution procesB&dB 408 billion, RUB 465 billion and RUB 520 billoin payments and had
approximately 120,000, 120,000 and 127,000 kiosks5i,000, 49,000 and 42,000 terminals in its netvas of year-end, respectively.

Our Kiosks and Terminals

A kiosk is a stand-alone computer terminal witlvach screen and specialized hardware and softwaichwenables consumers to make
cash payments to merchants. Each kiosk is connéxtaal network using a dedicated SIM card, argipgally equipped with a cash- and
coin-acceptor, a printing device, and a transaagéaording device and may include a card readeicairdchanger. Our kiosks are assembled
by third party manufacturers using our propriespgcifications. Kiosks are relatively easy and pensive to install and operate and are
equipped with specialized software that monitoesdbndition of the kiosk and its components, theamb of cash stored, and the sufficienc
expendable materials such as thermal paper. A kioalso relatively simple to assemble, and we galyehave not encountered any issues in
relation to underproduction or shortage of kiod{zere are 21 base models of kiosk available irRihgesian market.

In addition to kiosks, our network includes appmately 42,000 terminals at various retail locatjansluding a number of major Russ
retail chains such as Svyaznoy and Euroset. Wdgedhiese businesses with access to our netwaskghrour proprietary software and
process the payments made by their customers.
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Our kiosks and terminals are typically owned by agents, except in limited circumstances when viererew markets. We believe this
ownership structure has allowed us to build a langgvork in a relatively short period of time. Tagents purchase, install, operate and servic
the kiosks and terminals themselves; we providmtiwith our platform and technical solutions, héiprh comply with reporting requirements
and provide them with various forms of support ammntives. While we generally do not sell any kibsurselves, we assist our agents in
negotiating favorable pricing with vendors. In edémtcircumstances, we also lease kiosk locatiomutih contracts with large retail networks
and sublease those locations to our agents.

How Our Kiosks and Terminals Wc

To make a payment through a kiosk, a consumertsdlee hyperlink icon of a particular merchant be kiosk screen and enters the datz
necessary for the merchant to identify the consufneen among its accounts. For instance, this mathbeconsumer’s mobile phone number ol
details on the consumer’s utility bill. The consurmserts money into a cash and coin acceptor, waitomatically recognizes the value of the
banknotes and/or coins. Once the necessary ambordreey has been inserted, the consumer pressagsoa o confirm that he or she wishes
to complete the transaction, and the software liestan the kiosk sends an instruction to our pssogg system to transmit a corresponding
amount to the merchant and to withdraw it fromakents account. The kiosk then prints a receipt configithat payment has been made.
interface of a kiosk is highly intuitive to faciite a convenient user experience with the entirestiction process normally taking no more thar
a few minutes. A transaction is mostly automatedi asually performed in three or four easy stepshabthe user is only required to input a
minimum of information. When making a payment thgbwa terminal, a consumer gives the same informgtieerchant name, amount of
transaction and account identifying data) to a iemsit a cash desk, who processes it on a compugemobile phone using specialized
software.

Our Agents

Our agent base includes approximately 8,000 ageimdsown kiosks and terminals and are responsibleléxing, operating and servici
them in high-traffic, convenient retail locatioMdost of our agents are small to mid-sized busiresdgch we believe provides them with
insight into local market dynamics. For many of agents, the business of kiosk and terminal owmeisha full-time occupation, while some
view it as an ancillary service that increases oores traffic in their outlets or provides additibeanvenience to consumers. We do not
consider ourselves to be materially dependent grofinur agents.

Our contracts with the agents are usually for aefimite term and may be unilaterally terminatedhoy agents. Our agent contracts do
not have exclusivity clauses. Our agents deterthiagotal fee that a consumer pays on each traoeatVe usually do not cap these fees,
except at the merchant’s request. When the feelyimppg the consumers is capped, we normally awseggents with an increased fraction of
the merchant fees.

Our International Kiosks and Terminals

Almost all of Qiwi Distribution’s business operat®are currently in Russia and Kazakhstan. Welase a limited number of kiosks in
Moldova, Romania, Belarus, Jordan and the UniteteSt We also believe that Brazil has significantgh potential in the future. We
currently conduct our operations in Brazil throwghequity associate which holds a license to us¢ectinology, but we may increase our
stake in it to a controlling one if the operati@me successful. In the coming years, we also ptegrowing in certain countries by franchising
our operations, including Argentina, Chile and Peru

Visa Qiwi Wallet
Overview

Visa Qiwi Wallet is an online and mobile paymemg®ssing and money transfer system that we offRussia that allows
accountholders to pay for the products and senag€eserchants, and to perform peer-to-peer moraysters using a virtual wallet, which
effectively replaces a physical wallet in an onlarel mobile environment. A virtual wallet enablisshiolder to make online purchases through
a convenient, secure and intuitive online or moiniterface with multiple payment methods. Visa QW¢allet accounts can be linked to virtual
or physical Visa prepaid cards that can be usedaie purchases at any merchants that accept Viddwide. We believe Visa Qiwi Wallet is
one of the leading virtual wallet providers in Rass

40



Table of Contents

Prior to November 2012, Visa Qiwi Wallet was brath@ds Qiwi Wallet. Qiwi Wallet became a co-brandeadpict pursuant to our
Framework Agreement with Visa entered into on Nobeni9, 2012.

In 2011, 2012 and 2013 we processed RUB 65 bilkdgB 152 billion and RUB 255 billion in transact®through Visa Qiwi Wallet ar
had 8.1 million, 11.4 million and 15.4 million aedi virtual wallets registered with our system agedr-end, respectively.

Our Virtual Wallet

With Visa Qiwi Wallet, consumers can create anrantccount, referred to as a virtual wallet, inchhthey can store money, deposited
from cash or funded from a variety of other sousigsh as a bank account, credit or debit card¢tayroll deposit or money transfer, that
be used to make payments, purchases and peer+tirgesfers. To register a virtual wallet, a consunly needs to have a mobile phone
number to which the account is linked. The accdmeding process is simple and intuitive regardtésbe interface that the consumer uses to
access Visa Qiwi Wallet, whether it is our own wihghe screen of a kiosk, the virtual banking/eer of the consumer’s bank or a mobile
app. Normally, a consumer just needs to enter tingue identification number of his or her virtuahlet and indicate the amount and source o
money he or she wishes to load to the accountwigies while the process of making a payment throvigh Qiwi Wallet may vary slightly
depending on the interface, it is always intuitive.

We believe that a key part of our service offeiimmgonsumer convenience and ease of use. Visa\@allet is available through a varie
of interfaces, including mobile apps, its own wédsiouch-screens of our kiosks, merchant webstesal network applications, and
SMS/USSD (whereby a payment is made by sendingvisi I8essage to a specified phone number). An incrg@&rcentage of consumers are
accessing Visa Qiwi Wallet directly through molalgps and our own website rather than through askki (which were the most popular C
Wallet interface initially), demonstrating a shiftconsumer perception of Qiwi Wallet from an exgien of the kiosk functionality to a self-
sufficient product.

We offer downloadable Visa Qiwi Wallet applicatidies the most popular mobile and digital platforara devices, including Apple
iPhone and iPad, Android, Java, Microsoft Windowshile and Windows Phone, RIM Blackberry and Blagkp®laybook, Samsung Bada
and Samsung Smart TV. We also support major maipdgating systems: iOS, Android and RIM. We belithat these efforts are a vital part
of our overall marketing strategy and serve toease our consumer base.

How Our Virtual Wallet Work

Payments made through Visa Qiwi Wallet can be categd into push payments and pull payments. A magiment is a payment
initiated by the consumer from a Visa Qiwi Walletdarface. After entering Visa Qiwi Wallet througheoof its secure interfaces, a consumer i
required to select the name of the merchant fralrop-down list or using a search function and fmetin the payment amount. Consumers are
not subject to a fee when making most paymentatird/isa Qiwi Wallet. Additionally, consumers at@eato link their bank cards to their
Visa Qiwi Wallet accounts to make online paymenithout divulging their bank card details on merdhagbsites, eliminating the perceived
risk of fraud associated with online payments. A payment is a payment initiated by the consumemfa merchant interface, typically a
merchant website through which the consumer makesahase. During the check-out process at a metetebsite, the consumer chooses
Visa Qiwi Wallet as a payment method and is reat@e to a Visa Qiwi Wallet web page. Next, if tttmsumer is already registered with Visa
Qiwi Wallet, he or she is prompted to enter hisi@r mobile phone number to which his or her Visai@Vallet account is linked and his or |
Visa Qiwi Wallet password. If the consumer is net segistered with Visa Qiwi Wallet, our systemamatically generates a virtual wallet for
him or her once the mobile phone number is entgedgistered Visa Qiwi Wallet user is then reqdite select a source of funds to be used,
including the prepaid balance of the Visa Qiwi WaHlccount, a bank card previously linked to theaM@iwi Wallet account, or his or her
mobile phone account. The consumer may also szléeterred payment option, whereby our system géeean electronic invoice from the
merchant to the consumer which is stored in theswarer’'s virtual wallet and can be paid at a lat@ge. After a payment option is chosen, the
consumer is required to confirm the transactioligfang
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which funds are withdrawn from the source the comsuis using and transmitted to the merchant. T @ption available to consumers who
did not have a Visa Qiwi Wallet account previouslyhe deferred payment option. Once the consuoaels his or her newly registered virtual
wallet or links a bank card to it, the invoice danconfirmed and paid, after which the transadsatompleted.

Our Reload Channels

Visa Qiwi Wallet accounts can be reloaded throuigtually any payment method available on the marketuding making a cash
deposit at a kiosk or terminal, bank cards and @&t online banking, ATMs, direct payroll deposétail and traditional money transfers. v
Qiwi Walllet benefits in particular from access ta own network of kiosks and terminals, which is thArgest free cash reload network in
Russia. We believe that by offering the conveniarfaeloading at our kiosks and terminals, we iaseethe likelihood of consumers using
other services that we offer.

Qiwi branded kiosks and terminals are the primaeans by which consumers reload their Visa Qiwi Btalccounts. However, the
percentage of reloads made through bank cardsiesatlg from bank accounts has been consistentiyigrg over the last few years.
Consumers also use third-party networks for calslads.

Our International Virtual Wallets

As of December 31, 2013, the vast majority of actfisa Qiwi Wallet accounts were based in Russia.e&pect the international
expansion of Visa Qiwi Wallet to be focused on nesskwith high volumes of money transfers to andiflRussia and a low penetration of
banking services. These are primarily the CIS atesmfrom which there is a significant labor migpatinflow into Russia. Migration patterns
drive demand for money remittance services andsdvorder payments, which we intend to make our céfiexing in these markets. We beli¢
that our services could also be in demand with ewerne businesses which seek to increase theirmastoase in Russia.

We expect that our alliance with Visa will substalty increase Visa Qiwi Wallet's international g since the alliance gives Visa Qiwi
Wallet global access to all Visa accepting merchagitminating the necessity to build a merchamtvoek each time Visa Qiwi Wallet is
launched in a new country.

Qiwi Bank

In September 2010, we acquired Qiwi Bank (whiclicsnsed as a bank in the Russian Federation)te s a platform for our Visa
Qiwi Wallet business. Up until mid-2013, Qiwi Bapkocessed all Visa Qiwi Wallet transactions, altijioas a part of our future international
expansion strategy, we opened Qiwi platform for Kagakh bank which we see as a milestone for cstegy to be opened to other Visa
member banks in Russia and the CIS. When a consdepessits cash on his or her Visa Qiwi Wallet actpQiwi Bank issues a virtual
prepaid card to a consumer. Qiwi Bank also issleestip cards to Visa Qiwi Wallet customers. Funelseived by Qiwi Bank resulting from
customers loading and reloading their Visa Qiwi Mtahccounts are held on Qiwi Bank’s account. (@ank does not pay interest on Visa
Qiwi Wallet accounts. Qiwi Bank also maintains aaimumber of accounts for our employees, offi@ard directors, agents and certain rel:
parties. See also “—Regulation” for a brief destawip of the regulatory regime applicable to the {Bank.

Qiwi Prepaid Cards

At the end of 2009, we launched a prepaid cardraragn partnership with Visa Inc. Qiwi Visa prepa@rdholders enjoy all the benefits
of a Visa card without having to open a bank actoumredit line, eliminating the perceived risktire markets we serve of fraud associated
with traditional credit and debit cards. Our Visapmaid cards can be purchased through a Visa Qiaiet\or a Qiwi kiosk and currently cons
of the following card products:

. Qiwi Visa Virtual Card- are virtual cards that are delivered to a consisnmeobile phone by SMS within seconds of purchease
can be used to make purchases online from any iaefrtihat accepts Visa-branded cards. Qiwi Visaudirtards have a prepaid
balance and are valid for three moni
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. Qiwi Visa Card- are virtual cards that are delivered to a consisnngobile phone by SMS within seconds of purchesg can be
used to make purchases online from any merchanaticepts Visa-branded cards. Qiwi Visa Cardsiaked to the balance of a
consumer’s Visa Qiwi Wallet and are valid for 12nttes. Although it is envisaged that all new VisavQiVallet accounts will be
linked to Visa prepaid virtual cards by defaultw®Visa Card continues as a standalone productedis

. Qiwi Visa Plastic Cards- are plastic cards that are delivered to a consuiaanail or courier services after purchase aan lwe
used to make purchases online or in a physical egtaironment through a POS terminal from any rhart that accepts Visa
branded cards. Qiwi Visa Plastic Cards can alsasee to withdraw cash from a participating ATM, binked to the balance of a
consume’s Visa Qiwi Wallet and are valid for 12 mont

Qiwi Visa co-branded cards are issued by Qiwi Banfsuant to an agreement with Visa Internationalie Association. Under the
agreement, Qiwi Bank is authorized to issue Vismbed prepaid cards within Russia, and to offerpartbrm Visa Money Transfer
transactions in and between Russia, Ukraine, KatakhUzbekistan, Georgia and Tajikistan, usin@giglectronic payments processing
network to deliver transferred funds. The agreenweaffective through February 3, 2017 and is autieally renewable for subsequent one-
year terms unless terminated by either party bicadb the other given at least 90 days beforestiteof the the-applicable term. Visa may
terminate the agreement at its sole discretion U@hdays’ prior written notice or without noticedase of, among other things (1) Qiwi
Bank’s material breach of the agreement; (2) Vis&®rmination that the continuation of the agregmeay cause damage to Visa or the Visa
brand; or (3) Visa reasonable belief that Qiwi Bank has undergonejlbundergo, a merger, acquisition, or otherrmfp@ of corporate form «
control.

Value Added Services

Our network of merchants and consumers and flexdalkenology platform enable us to introduce inniveatvalue added, high-margin
products and services that can generate more reymruwconsumer. In November 2006, we started ubminterfaces of our kiosks as an
advertising medium, leveraging the strength ofreetwork and the data that we receive from our coress. We advertise mostly in the forrr
pop-up ad banners in the kiosk interface that ahovensumer to enter a microsite with a detailedlpect description. Each kiosk has 12
advertising spaces on its screen. Additionallyhatend of a transaction where a payment is made MNO we may send an SMS message t
the consumer to confirm the specific transactidnis BMS message may also contain an advertiserharpiroduct or service, provided the
consumer has not opted out from receiving suchréideeents. We also allow advertisers to creataaded page in a subsection of the kiosk
menu.

We have recently introduced a “remote banking” merthat allows our consumers to use the electroaiking services of the banks at
which they maintain their accounts through our kéoConsumers can access their accounts onlineghra hyperlink icon on the kiosk scre
The scope of the electronic banking services abiglto a consumer depends on the terms of our mgmrewith the respective partner bank.

Merchants

As of December 31, 2013, we had more than 75,008haats registered in our system. Our merchantgardors, including mobile
network operators, utilities, banks and onlineiteta. Consumers can access our larger merchanoisgth hyperlink icons placed directly on
kiosk screens. Other merchants can be easily at¢isough Visa Qiwi Wallet and, since any of oiorsks can be used as an interface to
register a Visa Qiwi Wallet account or to accessxnting one, the merchant offering is effectividilg same for both kiosks and Visa Qiwi
Wallet accounts. In addition, Visa Qiwi Wallet aoots can be linked to virtual or physical Visa @ielcards that can be used to make
purchases at any merchants that accept Visa wattdwVe regularly add new merchants to our alreatsnsive merchant list with the aim of
creating a “one-stop shopping” experience for ammstimers.

The terms and conditions of our agreements withch@erts vary significantly and are usually tailote@ach merchant’s needs. Due to
regulatory concerns, we enter into separate agnesmdth merchants for Qiwi Distribution and Visax@Wallet. As a result, those merchants
that can be accessed both directly through hypeidions on kiosk screens and through Visa Qiwi talormally have two agreements with
us, one with CJSC QIWI and the other with Qiwi Baolr principal operating subsidiaries for the extjwve segments. The merchants that cal
only be accessed through Visa Qiwi Wallet normeliyer into agreements with Qiwi Bank only. The
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agreements CJSC QIWI enters into with merchantsi@mn@ally agency agreements. The term of thesesaggrts is usually unlimited or
automatically renewable upon expiration of the @ffee period; however, under Russian law, agencgergents with an unlimited term may
terminated unilaterally by any party without prigstice. Qiwi Bank’s agreements with merchants amenally structured as prepaid card
acquiring agreements, since, as described in netesl ¢h the section headed “Regulation,” we tteatelectronic money of Visa Qiwi Wallet
accountholders as virtual prepaid cards.

Our merchants fall into three broad categories. Mbst significant category includes various serypigariders, such as MNOs, internet
services providers, pay television channels andigublities. MNOs, in particular the three largegperators in Russia, have historically
represented the largest portion of our mercharg bad are expected to continue to do so for thessémable future. For the years ended
December 31, 2011, 2012 and 2013, the Big Three Makgounted for 60%, 47% and 38% of our paymenirwelfor our Qiwi Distribution
segment in Russia, respectively. However, theiresiraour transaction volume has been falling dkierlast three years due to the expansion «
our merchant base and the increased use of ourgrdysystems by the consumers for purposes othemtiobile phone account reloading.

The second category of merchants is those in tlaéial services industry, and includes banks rarste companies and money transfer
services providers. As of December 31, 2013, weptet payments on behalf of over 215 banks, inetudiost Russian retail banking
industry leaders such as Sberbank, Bank of Mosvaug, 24, Alfa-Bank, UniCredit Bank, Rosbank, Promagipank, Raiffeisen Bank and
others. Based on information available from pubbtiarces, we believe our kiosk and terminal netvimtrger than the ATM network of any
major bank, and, as a result, we are able to pedvahks with the ability to reach a larger audighceugh our network by enabling their
customers to make deposits and repay loans. Wenaldowith major Russian and international moneys$fer businesses such as Contact,
Unistream and PrivatMoney, and insurance companiel as Allianz. From August 2010, we offer oursuaners Visa Personal Payments an
MasterCard Money Send services, which allow a \Zigai Wallet accountholder to reload the accouna &fisa or MasterCard bank card with
a few clicks on our website, a mobile app, or akimuchscreen, and with the only information required beime number of the recipient ce

Our third major category of merchants comprisesrnmsses that sell their products and services enilitluding social networks such as
Facebook, Vkontakte and Odnoklassniki, online stetech as Ozon.ru, Groupon and online game dewslop& also accept payments on
behalf of software producers, coupon websites,ramderous other merchants. Our kiosk and termintalaré provides these businesses with
an attractive offline interface to their online efihg.

While we already have considerable penetration veitlhurring payments merchants (such as MNOs aediet services providers),
financial services providers and ecommerce busésesiere are numerous markets in which we seéiségrt opportunity to add merchants.
For example, we view payments for fee-based ses\mefederal, state and municipal authorities pstantial growth sector as these
authorities increasingly automate payments. We ladready entered into direct agreements with trdeFa Tax Service, the State Traffic
Safety Authority, the Independent Security Servidageau of the Interior Ministry’s Moscow Departnetiie Federal Bailiff Service and the
Federal Service for State Registration, CadastleGartography.

Relationship with the major MNC

The three major Russian MNOs, MegaFon, VimpelCothM'S, which are sometimes collectively referreds$ahe Big Three, were ¢
first, and have historically been our largest, rhants. Each of our agreements with the Big Thredther for an indefinite term or
automatically renewable upon expiration of the @ffee period. In each case, either party may teateithe agreement at any time by giving
prior written notice to the other party. Variousp#ies, including fines and accelerated termimgtaye provided for in case we do not transmi
the consumers’ payments within a specified deadlihe merchant fee payable to us depends on whetb@nsumer fee is levied and on the
payment method (cash, bank cards, virtual walled)ia expressed as a percentage of the volumeyoigrats we process for the respective
MNO. Over time MNOs have used their significant ogating power to lower or eliminate merchant fggempting our transition to consun
fees and value added services.
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Our Technology Platform

Visa Qiwi Wallet and Qiwi Distribution are based our advanced, proprietary technology platform.@lbur key technology has been
developed in-house. Our platform consists of theeelements: an Oracle database, a Java-basesspirng system and various consumer,
merchant and agent interfaces. The interfacesameected to the processing system through a secot@col.

Our physical platform consists of two leased dataters (primary and reserve), one of which is ledan our office premises while the
other is at a thirgbarty location. One of the data centers has besifieg as compliant with PCI DSS, an industry stard for security and da
protection. We are able to switch our processingifthe primary to the reserve data center withtedn minutes in case of any accident or
disaster.

Our kiosks and terminals are not connected to e#wdr, reducing the risk of a virus spreading tigttaut our entire network. The
principal software under which the kiosks operateur proprietary application Maratl, which enaldeseptance of payments on kiosks thrc
our processing system. The software products usedioterminals are also proprietary applications.

Visa Qiwi Wallet has a robust fraud control filgrstem that is designed to trace suspicious trénsacand block associated accounts. Ir
the vast majority of cases, fraud through Visa QMdllet is attributable to scams rather than teausty system failure. We employ a 3-D
secure system similar to those adopted by othesmpayment networks. 3-D secure adds a further lafysecurity to online payments by
requiring the consumer to perform an additionahantication step, usually through entering a camdition code sent by SMS to the
consumer’s mobile phone. Our system requires aurnaesto enter both a permanent code linked to tiseoparticular account, and a diirae
pad code which is unique to each transaction.

Our Framework Agreement with Visa dated November2D4.2 imposes stringent security requirementssoto yprotect the data of our
consumers. Under the terms of this agreement, everadter an obligation to be compliant with Visa+awed security standards and to underg
periodic audits to confirm such compliance.

Sales and Marketing

We have a dedicated team of over 200 sales ancetiragkpersonnel who seek to expand our networlgehts and merchants, attract anc
maintain consumers and promote our products. Ouketiag program includes advertising campaigns el & other promotional activities,
such as joint loyalty programs with our merchants.

Brand Awarenes:
We believe our brand is a household name in Ruasizording to Radar Research, “Qiwi” is the mosiognized Russian brand among
kiosk operators and electronic payment servicegigeos with a prompted brand awareness of 84%.

In addition, we believe that in our sector maintagna social media presence is important to susigibrand awareness. As a result, we
have a dedicated team of people who regularly epoat Facebook, Twitter, Vkontakte and LiveJouawlounts. We also use social networks
to seek feedback from our consumers to improvebasiness.

As part of maintaining our brand image, we havelegges available to respond to agent and merclmantecns and to handle consumer
issues.

Advertising and Promotional Activitie
Because we maintain a kiosk network as widespraddigible as ours, third-party advertising is astimportant to maintain brand
awareness. We maintain a relatively low advertigirgfile, mostly employing Internet advertisinggmmote Qiwi Wallet.

In addition, we engage in promotional campaigngtiogr with our merchants, in which merchants afiscounts to their customers who
make payments through our network.
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Competition

The most significant competitive factors in ouribess are speed, convenience, network size, abiigshours of operation, loyalty
programs, reliability and price. Our competitorslire retail banks, non-traditional payment sewvigeoviders (such as retailers and MNOs),
traditional kiosk and terminal operators and etattr payment system operators as well as other anrap which provide various forms of
payment services, including electronic payment@aygnent processing services.

We face significant competition from major retadlrtks for our services, including both our Qiwi Bistition and Visa Qiwi Wallet
businesses. Our competitors include, among otBéexbank, Russia’s largest retail bank that is ntgjowned by the Russian state, and Alfa-
Bank, one of the leading privately owned Russiaailrbanks, both of which have robust electronigrpant products and large retail networks.
Some retail banks are currently developing thein &wosk networks and are active in the area ofteda@ payment products.

We also face competition from major telecommunaaand media devices retailers, including Eurosdt@vyaznoy, which offer some
financial and payment services of third-party pdevs, such as instant money transfers, loan repatgmtilities payment and other services,
and sell thirdparty insurance and consumer banking productsgingilon the strength of their retail networks. Véenpete to an extent with t
MNOs, which allow their subscribers to make insfasyments using their mobile phone balances.

We also potentially face competition from the RasdPost, due to its vast network of offices thramghRussia which accept payments
for certain third-party services, including utiiti and banking services.

Finally, we also compete against some directly camalple businesses, such as traditional kiosk andrtel operators (primarily
CyberPlat and Elecsnet) and electronic paymenesysiperators (primarily Yandex.Money (a majoritgkst in which was recently acquired by
Sberbank), WebMoney and, to a lesser extent, PagBealso Russian market newcomers such as Tihkoffile Wallet).

Intellectual Property

Our intellectual property rights are important to business. We rely primarily on a combinatiorcoifitract provisions, copyrights,
trademarks, patents and trade secrets to protegroprietary technology and other intellectualpeuy.

Our in-house know-how is an important element afintellectual property. Almost all of our key sefire has been developed in-house
by our employees. Accordingly, we seek to entar aunfidentiality and copyright assignment agreets@ith our employees and consultants
and confidentiality agreements with other thirdtiggr, and we rigorously control access to our pedgry technology.

QIWI and QIWI-“KIVI" are registered trademarks iruBsia, and we have filed applications for regigiradf our brand name in over 15
countries. We also hold registrations for the braache QIWI-“KIVI” as a trademark in the CIS anddther countries as well as under the
Madrid Agreement and Protocol. We also hold sevaséilvare copyright registrations, including fofte@re applications, such as “Maratl”,
“Observer”, “Application for POS-terminal Ingenicd’Application for POS-terminal NURIT”, “Univers&®ayment Gateway Server”, and
“Universal Processing System.” We have obtained/ggpt registrations for some of our software insBia and in the United States.

Employees
The following table sets out the average numbemabloyees for the years ended December 31, 2012, &@d 2013 by function.

For the year ended
31 December,

2011 2012 2013
Qiwi Distribution 68C 662 661
Front Office 274 26¢ 273
Back Office 25C 23¢ 232

IT Personne 15€ 15€ 15&
Qiwi Wallet 227 241 26¢
Front Office 11€ 112 11&
Back Office 67 78 90

IT Personne 3¢ 52 64
Other 11€ 11C 10E
Total 1,01¢ 1,01: 1,03t
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We intend to conduct an internal reorganizationhtange our organizational structure from a businegsorganizational structure where
Qiwi Distribution and Visa Qiwi Wallet are largefyanaged as separate entities to a functional emeigthere management will be focused on
centralized core operational tasks such as salkeating and finance. The reorganization is intenideaccount for the growing overlap of our
businesses, with Qiwi Distribution becoming a dfigaint distribution channel for Qiwi Wallet. Managent expects to complete this
reorganization in 2014. As a result of this reoigation, certain personnel and positions, in patéicwith respect to our officers, may change
substantially.

We place a high value on technological innovatiod eompete aggressively for talent. We strive te thie best software engineers, as
well as talented sales, marketing and financialadministrative staff. We seek to create a dynafulfilling work environment, encouraging
participation, creativity, the exchange of idead ssamwork. We believe that our relations with employees are good.

Regulation

We are subject to a number of laws and regulafiofssia and other jurisdictions that regulatenpayt services antiioney laundering
data protection and information security and adsiei services. Qiwi Bank is also subject to nurosriaws and regulations governing banl
activities in Russia.

Regulation of Payment Service
Visa Qiwi Wallet

The regulation of the payment services industriRiissia is relatively nascent. Laws and regulatgpeifically governing the industry
have recently been enacted but remain virtuallgstetd. A legislative framework is not yet fully @éésped, and, moreover, is not universal,
various business models that payment servicesgeoysuch as ourselves pursue are regulated diffigre

Our Visa Qiwi Wallet business conducts its operadiprimarily in the form of cashless transfers wiita use of bank cards. For regula
purposes, when a Visa Qiwi Wallet account is redmhdhe accountholder is issued one or severalaligrepaid cards, depending on the
amount of the reload. While the accountholder agteg¢he issuance of the cards through acceptmgbc offer, he or she is not explicitly
provided with details of each card. From a consisnmrspective, the amount of the reload is sin@psferred to an account of a digital
wallet, whereas legally it becomes stored valua wftual prepaid card.

A prepaid card is an electronic means of paymdatvidg its holder to carry out transfers of eleaitomoney within the limits of the
funds previously deposited with the issuing crawititution. Amendments to the CBR Regulation N&6-2 “On the Issuance of Bank Cards
and Payment Cards Operations” conferring the staftetectronic means of payment on prepaid carde wpproved by the CBR Directive
No. 286:-U, dated August 10, 2012, and came into effeciudyp 1, 2013. From that date, the legal regiméeffrepaid cards is that
established for electronic money by the recentlcéed Federal Law of the Russian Federation No-FI610n the National Payment System
dated June 27, 2011, as amended, or the PaymernSkaw.

Electronic money is defined under the Payment Systaw as prepaid monetary value contributed by'phevider” to the “obligor” of
which a record is kept by the obligor without theening of a bank account, which can be used fosdiiblement of the provider's monetary
obligations towards third parties, and in respéettuch the provider may only issue instructiona glectronic means of payment. Electronic
money is also treated as a
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liability of the obligor towards the provider. Eteanic means of payment are defined as any methodsnstruments which allow drawing up,
certifying and transmitting instructions for elewtic money transfers and which employ informatiod selecommunication technologies,
electronic data carriers and other technical devitbe Payment System Law classifies electronicxmeépayment into personalized and non:
personalized, depending on whether they allowdeniification of the payer for the purposes ofieeleral Law of the Russian Federation

No. 115-FZ “On Combating the Legalization (Launderio§Criminally Obtained Income and Funding of Teisor’, dated August 7, 2001, as
amended, or the AntMoney Laundering Law. Any electronic money transfere subject to thresholds on remaining electnminey balance
which amount to RUB 100,000 for personalized medmsayment and RUB 15,000 for non-personalized medupayment. The total monthly
turnover for each non-personalized means of paycamniot exceed RUB 40,000. From August 2014, thrairging electronic money balance
threshold for personalized means of payment wilnoeeased to RUB 600,000.

Under the Payment System Law, any electronic paysmaay only be made through so-called “electronimay operators”, which shall
necessarily be credit institutions. Qiwi Bank ised@ctronic money operator for payments made throtiga Qiwi Wallet. All electronic mone
operators are required to adopt their own reguiatan electronic money transfers and report t&CfAR once they commence electronic mc
transfer operations.

The Payment System Law also establishes a legakfsark for mobile payments, which allow to relohd payer’s electronic money
balance out of funds deposited as an advance paymitbra mobile operator.

The CBR is the agency commissioned with superviesfazompliance with the provisions of the Paymeyat8m Law. As such, it is
entitled to suspend the activities of market pgoéints regulated by the Payment System Law in che®lations and impose administrative
liability on the offenders.

Qiwi Distribution

In connection with our Qiwi Distribution busine€s]SC QIWI is deemed to be a payment agent in aanoedwith the Federal Law of 1
Russian Federation No. 103-FZ “On Collection ofiRapts from Individuals by the Payment Agents”, datene 3, 2009, as amended, or the
Payment Agents Law. The Payment Agents Law is iliegigle to electronic payments and thus does rptlage our Visa Qiwi Wallet
business. The Payment Agents Law defines paymemta@s intermediaries that collect payments dara fndividuals to merchants.

The Payment Agents Law only applies to servicesigass such as CIJSC QIWI that process cash paymathisut having the status of a
credit institution (under Russian law, credit ihgibns include banks and n@anking credit institutions which are entitled sy out a limitet
number of banking operations) and thus are notladea by banking legislation. Merchants on whodealfgpayment agents may accept
payments include legal entities and individual epteneurs, as well as state and municipal autbsrdtnd budget-funded entities that provide
fee-based services in furtherance of their funestidie Russian Ministry of Finance has issued mdbclarification stating that personal taxes,
duties and related fines may not be paid througimgat agents. To ensure compliance with these memeints, payments to tax authorities
we accept through our kiosks and terminals arega®ed by Qiwi Bank rather than CJSC QIWI, makirggéhoperations subject to banking
legislation and thus excluded from the scope oRRagment Agents Law. The Payment System Law eXgrpesmits credit institutions to use
kiosks and terminals for the purposes of accepgmgnents from individuals.

The Payment Agents Law requires payment agentsrply with the Anti-Money Laundering Law. A paymeagent may only act as
such once it registers with the government authoeisponsible for compliance with the Anti-Moneyuaering Law (currently, the Federal
Service for Financial Monitoring, or Rosfinmonitogj).

A payment agent acts on the basis of an agenceiagm with the merchant. Such agency agreementpaegned by the Russian Civil
Code, certain provisions of which are describechare detail below. A payment agent may also engabeagents (referred to as “payment
sub-agents” under the Payment Agents Law) if thenag agreement so provides. Our agents act as papue-agents for the purposes of the
Payment Agents Law. Payment sub-agents may nopapagments that require identification of the ousér pursuant to the Anti-Money
Laundering Law. Under the Ankitoney Laundering Law, such customer identificai®nequired for all transactions exceeding RUB 08,0n
compliance with these requirements, the softwastalled on our kiosks and terminals does not alleeepting sums in excess of this amount
per single payment.
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The payment agent’s obligation to transmit the utalthe merchant is required to be either insorexbcured by means of a pledge,
guarantee, or otherwise. The amount of such inseransecurity is not statutorily fixed, and thare no other guidelines regarding this
requirement.

Acceptance of payments on behalf of certain typeseychants, including credit institutions and fgreentities, is carved out from the
scope of the Payment Agents Law. This does notyirtifat a company which has the status of a payagent is prohibited from accepting
payments on behalf of such merchants. Howevenities in this regard are not regulated by the Payr\gents Law, but rather by the
universally applicable provisions of the RussiaxilGTode pertaining to agency agreements. In paleig the Civil Code contains some basic
requirements for agency agreements, including tteiditions and their termination and sets outsplertaining to certain rights of the agent
and the principal and allocation of various resjiulises between them. Agency services may noptwvided free of charge. The Civil Code
permits agency agreements to include exclusiviayses. Agency agreements may be entered intoxét &r indefinite periods of time.
However, if an agency agreement is entered intamondefinite period of time, it may be terminatedlaterally at the discretion of either
counterparty.

The Payment Agents Law provides that payment agaatentitled to levy fees from the merchants’ aonsrs for each transaction
processed by them. These fees are not statutaplyed.

Since 1 April 2010, payment agents have been requa use cash registering facilities with a bimlfiscal memory and a reference tape
(an electronic devise which allows long-term sterafjrecords of transactions performed throughoalji in order to monitor payments
received. They are also required to issue recé@ptsach transaction.

The Payment Agents Law requires both the paymesritaand the merchant serviced by it to maintaimesgted bank accounts for the
purpose of depositing funds received from the custs and from the payment agent, respectivelyfuhltls received by a payment agent neec
to be deposited into such specialized accounts.

The activities of the payment agents are monitbsethe CBR, though its authority in this respedirsted to collection, systematization
and analysis of industry data.

Banking Regulation

Our Qiwi Bank is a “credit institution” and is aadingly subject to the following financial servieeslated laws and regulations:

The Banking Law

Federal Law of the Russian Federation No. 395-1 Banks and Banking Activity'dated December 2, 1990, as amended, or the Ba
Law, is the main law regulating the Russian banlsegtor. Among other things, it defines credititnibns, sets forth the list of banking
operations and other transactions that credittin&ins may engage in, and establishes the franiefgothe registration and licensing of credit
institutions and the regulation of banking actiitythe CBR.

The Banking Law provides for a list of the so-cdltbanking operations” that cannot be conductediouit an appropriate license from
the CBR, including, among others, accepting deposfiening and maintaining bank accounts, perfggmioney transfers from and to bank
accounts of the clients, and performing money (diclg electronic money) transfers without openidzpak account (other than postal
transfers), etc. The latter type of banking operwiis the only one that our Qiwi Bank pursues amm line of business, although its licenses
also permit it to accept deposits from individuatsl legal entities, invest the funds received enfdrm of deposits, maintain accounts for
individuals and legal entities and perform settlataehrough their bank accounts, perform teller eash collection services, sell and purchase
currency and issue bank guarantees.
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Role of the CB}

The CBR operates under the Federal Law of the Rad3tderation No. 86-FZ “On the Central Bank ofRussian Federation”, dated
July 10, 2002, as amended, or the CBR Law. The GBRegal entity and is operationally independesh the Russian government. The C
has a head office in Moscow and regional branahméise constituent entities of the Russian Federatie well as local branches.

Pursuant to the CBR Law, the Banking Law and thaeFa Law of the Russian Federation No. 173-FZ @mrency and Currency
Regulation”,dated December 10, 2003, as amended, or the Cyrkemng the CBR has the authority to issue and imglist binding regulatior
governing banking and currency operations. The GBRain functions include determination and impletaton of the monetary policy of the
Russian Federation in cooperation with the Rusgtrernment, regulation and oversight of the bankcfor in a quasi-state agency capacity
certain limited banking operations and transactigsssiance of currency and regulation of its catioh, regulation of foreign currency
operations in the Russian Federation and foreigrenay operations conducted by Russian residemtsdband domestic government debt
service and federal budget administration. The GBI carries out supervision and monitoring ofrthBonal payment system. On
September 1, 2013, the CBR was designated asdhtater for the financial and securities marketRirssia.

Capital Requirements

The key measure underlying Russian capital requrgsnis the amount of the capital base (own funtia)credit organization, which is
defined as the sum of the “main capital” and “addial capital” of the credit organization minusteén obligations as determined by the CBR.
According to the CBR Regulation No. 215-P, datedrkary 10, 2003, as amended, the main capitalfmnddditional capital of a credit
organization is defined by way of an exhaustivedfdifferent types of debt and equity that quafir treatment as main and additional cap
as applicable.

The Banking Law establishes minimum charter capital capital base for banks. Under the Banking lthesminimum charter capital
for newly-established banks is equivalent to RUB &tlllion. The capital base of a credit institutionust not be less than RUB 300 million,
subject to certain exemptions. If a bank’s capitse becomes less than its charter capital, it mastase its capital base (or, if impossible,
reduce its charter capital) accordingly. The CBReBlive No. 1260-U, dated March 24, 2003, as am@&neftablishes the procedures for such
adjustment.

As of December 31, 2013, Qiwi Bank had a chartpitabof RUB 295 million and a capital base of appmately RUB 796 million and
was in compliance with applicable banking legisiati

Reserve Requiremer

Under the CBR Law, the CBR’s board of directors maagablish reserve requirements for banks. Reseqrérements must not exceed
20% of the bank’s liabilities and may vary for @ifént types of banks. Banks are currently requivgzbst mandatory reserves with the CBR tc
be held in non-interest bearing accounts. Staftimg March 1, 2013, such reserves constitute 4.2%%ll types of liabilities.

Russian banks are required to calculate the exastiat of their mandatory reserves in accordancie @2@R Regulation No. 342-P dated
August 7, 2009, as amended, or the Reserves Regul@he Reserves Regulation also requires bankegpimrt the calculation of reserves to
CBR and its regional branches promptly after theé @each calendar month, as well as to post aufditireserves if necessary.

The Reserves Regulation allows the CBR to finerk hat fails to comply with reserve requirementd debit the insufficient reserve
from its correspondent account with the CBR. Thewamt of the fine is calculated on the basis ofdbeial shortage of the reserves. The CBR
and its regional branches may also conduct aunls$ess a bank’s compliance with the reserverssgants.

As of December 31, 2013, Qiwi Bank’s reserves anemito 4.25% of its liabilities owed to legal efetit that are non-residents and
4.25% of liabilities towards individuals and othiabilities and it was in compliance with applicatidanking legislation. Qiwi Bank has never
been fined for non-compliance with reserve requarts and none of the audits conducted by the CBRBsjpect of it has uncovered any
material violations. The reserve requirements ef@BR negatively impact Qiwi Bank’s ability to disute its profit to us in the form of
dividends.
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As of the date of this annual report, Qiwi Bank a#ms in compliance with applicable reserves requénets.

Loss Provision:

The CBR regulates the creation of provisions farkbl@an and other losses. CBR Regulation No. 25@+Pthe Procedure for
Making Provisions for Possible Losses on LoansSindlar Indebtedness by Credit Organizations”, dafarch 26, 2004, as amended,
requires banks to adopt procedures for calculaimyposting provisions for loan losses and for ipts$osses other than loan losses, which
may include losses from investments in securifiesls held in correspondent accounts of other hasdegingent liabilities and other
transactions. CBR Instruction No. 283-P, dated M&@, 2006, as amended, requires banks to clemsity activities into five risk categories
and to make provisions in the corresponding amautiteir discretion. Banks must report to the CB&amount of new non-loan provisions
within seven days after the end of each reportiogtin The CBR and its regional branches monitokbatompliance with these rules.

Although Qiwi Bank does not engage in retail ompmoate lending as a line of business, it maintpiosisions for certain other
possible losses, including losses from defaultdiynterparties, impairment of assets and liabiligréases, and is in compliance with applic
banking legislation.

Prudential Ratios

CBR Instruction No. 139-1 “On Banks’ Mandatory Pemtial Ratios”, dated December 3, 2012, as ameratablishes mandatory
prudential ratios for banks. Key mandatory economaiims that banks must observe on a daily basiganodically report to the CBR include
capital adequacy ratio, instant liquidity ratiorrant liquidity ratio, longterm liquidity ratio, maximum exposure to a singterower or a grou
of affiliated borrowers, maximum exposure to majadit risks, maximum amount of loans, bank guaesiaind sureties extended by the ban
to its participants (shareholders), aggregate amafuexposure to the bank’s insiders, ratio fordise of the bank’s capital base to acquire
shares (participation interests) in other legaitieist Failure to comply with the prudential ratiosy lead to negative consequences for the
bank, including revocation of the banking license.

As of December 31, 2013, Qiwi Bamskprudential ratios were well in excess of the mimnin thresholds imposed by the CBR and it wz
compliance with applicable banking legislation.

Reporting Requiremen

Under the Banking Law and the CBR Regulation N&@228, dated November 12, 2009, as amended, a stilas@mount of routine
reporting is performed by credit institutions oregular and non-regular basis, including disclogirfnancial statements, various operational
indicators, affiliates and persons who exercisee@ly or indirectly) influence over the decisidagen by the management bodies of the bank
According to the CBR Law, the CBR may at any timaduct full or selective audits of any bank’s fij;nand may inspect all of its books and
records.

Under the Banking Law and the CBR Regulation N&®BU, dated October 25, 2013, as amended, bankiluinigs such as ourselves
(i.e., groups of legal entities in which a legaligrthat is not a credit institution, directly ovdirectly, controls decisions of the management
bodies of a credit institution within such groupsch as Qiwi Bank) must regularly disclose themsmidated financial statements and provide
to CBR certain additional information regarding thesiness operations and financial condition ofgtwip in order for the CBR to assess theil
risks.

Regulation of Mergers and Acquisitions of Credgtitutions in Russii

In addition to the general merger control requiretagacquisitions of shares or participation irtesén credit institutions are also subject
to certain industry-specific regulations. Under Banking Law and the CBR Law, the purchase or pami trust of over 1% of the shares or
participation interests in a credit institution &yerson (or its group) must be reported to the @BR-closing, while a pre-closing approval of
the CBR is required whenever a person (or grougliiaes, directly or indirectly, more than 10%, 2986% or 75% of the voting shares in a
credit
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institution incorporated as a joint stock compamyrfiore than 1/10, 1/3, 1/2 or 2/3 of participatioterests in a limited liability company). The
requirements for obtaining pre-closing approvalthefCBR are set out in detail in the CBR InstructiOn the Procedure for Obtaining the
CBR’s Approval for the Purchase of the Shares {Epation Interests) in a Credit Institution” No4@-1, dated October 25, 2013, or the 146-I
Instruction.

This requirement is also applicable to acquisitiohsontrol over intermediary holding companieshagtvnership interests in credit
institutions. Accordingly, any acquisition of comitover our company would need to be ppproved by the CBR due to our ownership of C
Bank.

The review period is 30 days from the date of {hgliaation. The CBR may refuse to grant its condfetiie applicant has an
unsatisfactory business reputation, is in unsatiefg financial condition, or has failed to obtaipproval of the Federal Antimonopoly Service,
or the FAS, or of the governmental commission dfuieed by the Federal Law of the Russian Federation57-FZ “On the Procedure for
Foreign Investments in Enterprises which are Sgieddly Important for the State Defense and Nati@ecurity”, dated April 29, 2008, as
amended, or the Strategic Enterprise Law, beftirggfivith the CBR.

Additionally, the Banking Law provides that the Riam government, upon consultation with the CBRy pr@pose a legislative bill
imposing a quota on foreign ownership in the Rusbanking industry, covering both Russian branaiésternational banks and foreign
participation in the charter capital of Russianksarsuch quota, if instituted, could prevent foreigvestors from obtaining control over our
company. However, such quota has not been in existeince 2002 and, to our knowledge, there isatiyr no intention to reinstate it.

The Anti-Money Laundering Law

The Anti-Money Laundering Law was adopted to compith the requirements of the Financial Action T&skce, or the FATF, an inter-
governmental body developing and promoting politiesombat money laundering and terrorist financlhgovers a broad scope of compa
which can be designated as financial services gersj including credit institutions and paymentrageThe Anti-Money Laundering Law
contains a number of requirements that these coepaave to comply with, including, among othentfs, the development of appropriate
internal standards and procedures, client ideatifie, control over client operations and reportfiguspicious activities.

Under the Anti-Money Laundering Law, one of the mabligations of a financial services providerhie tcontrol function”, which
involves identification of the clients, gatherimdarmation on client operations and reporting ataie operations to Rosfinmonitoring. The
Anti-Money Laundering Law requires the performan€egerification procedures in the event of any gpiens in the amount of RUB 600,000
or more (or its equivalent in foreign currenciesjere such operations involve:

. cash transaction

. certain transactions where one of the countégsais resident in a country that does not piie in international efforts to combat
money-laundering, or employs a bank account maintainesigih country

. certain operations in relation to bank accountdeposits where the beneficiary is not identifi

. deposits to or debiting the money from the actof legal entities, where such legal entity baen in existence for less than three
months or where no operations have been perfornitbdswech bank account from the date of its openamg}

. certain other transactions with moveable prgpi@volving, among other things, money transfeyscbmpanies which are not credit
institutions.

In addition, financial services providers must gaut these procedures in the event of any operatieolving an individual or
organization that is known to participate in extigror terrorist activities. If the officers of méncial services provider suspect that an
operation is conducted in order to legalize anydfureceived from illegal activities or to finaneerorist activities, such operations must be
reported to Rosfinmonitoring whether or not thewlify as controlled operations. Financial servipesviders must not inform their clients that
transactions are being reported to Rosfinmonitoring
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Financial services providers are generally requioeidentify their clients. However, certain traoans are exempt from the
identification requirements under the Anti-Moneyuhdering Law, in particular, money transfers byivitlals not exceeding RUB 15,000,
unless officers of a financial service providerpcg that such operation is carried out to legdlingls received from illegal activities or to
finance terrorism. Additionally, the requirementst®e Anti-Money Laundering Law only pertain to imdiual transactions and not series of
transactions.

Intellectual Property Regulatior

The Civil Code of Russia (Part V) is the basic lavRussia that governs intellectual property rgliicluding their protection and
enforcement. According to it, the software and methgies that we develop internally generally donegjuire registration and enjoy legal
protection simply by virtue of being created anthesi publicly disclosed or existent in a certairtenial form. In addition, we obtain propriet:
rights to materials that are subject to copyrigiotection and that are created for us on the lmdsigreements with the authors of such
materials. Also, subject to compliance with theuisgments of the Civil Code, we are deemed to laegiired any copyrights created by our
employees during the course of their employmert wit and within the scope of their job functions] Aave the exclusive rights to their
further use and disposal.

Under Russian law, the registration of copyrighteaterials is not required. Software may be regstdry a copyright holder, at its
discretion, with the Russian Federal Service feellactual Property, Patents and Trademarks, op&est, but such registration is not
customary. We normally register software that weettgp with Rospatent. We also hold copyright regtsbns for some of our software in the
United States.

Only trademarks and patents for inventions, utilitydels and industrial designs require mandatayistation with the Rospatent.
Trademarks registered abroad under the Madrid Ageee Concerning the International Registration @demarks, dated April 14, 1891
and/or the Protocol to the Agreement, dated Jun@289, have equal legal protection in Russia eallpregistered trademarks. Our main
brands are registered as trademarks in Russigl8iand several other countries where we operate.

Advertising Regulatior

The principal Russian law governing advertisingjuding advertising on the kiosks and terminalg$hésFederal Law of the Russian
Federation No. 38-FZ “On Advertising,”, dated Marfc® 2006, as amended, or the Advertising Law. Atheertising Law provides for a wide
array of restrictions, prohibitions and limitatiopertaining to contents and methods of advertising.

Set forth below is a non-exhaustive list of typad aethods of advertising that are prohibited reéigas of the advertised product and the
advertising medium:

. advertising that may induce criminal, violent ou@rbehavior

. advertising that judges or otherwise humiliatestheho do not use the advertised prod

. use of pornographic or indecent materials in adsiag;

. use of foreign words that may lead to the advegisieing misleading

. statements that the advertised product has beenwaapby state and municipal authorities or offii
. depiction of smoking and alcohol consumpti

. advertising of healing properties of a product thatot a registered medicine or medical servioe,;

. omission of material facts that leads to advenigiring misleading
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The law also prohibits advertisements for certauiated products and services without appropcitgfication, licensing or approval.
Advertisements for products such as alcohol, tobgglarmaceuticals, baby food, financial instrureemtsecurities and financial services, as
well as incentive sweepstakes and advertisememisdaat minors, must comply with specific rules amgkt in certain cases contain specified
disclosure.

Russian advertising laws define and prohibit, amatingr things, “unfair”, “untrue” and “hidden” adising (i.e. advertising that
influences consumers without their knowledge). Atlgang based on improper comparisons of the athezttproducts with products sold by
other sellers is deemed unfair. It is also probkibio advertise goods which may not be producediatdbuted under Russian law.

In addition, the distribution of advertisementsngsielecommunications devices, such as advertissnoger short messaging, requires
consent of the recipient of the ad, which we ree¢hrough having the customer agree to a publer dféfore making a transaction through ont
of our kiosks. The Advertising Law does not spesaifiy regulate advertising through kiosks.

In some cases, violation of the Advertising Law t=ad to civil actions or administrative penaltibat can be imposed by the FAS.

Privacy and Personal Data Protection Regulati

We are subject to laws and regulations regardingpy and protection of the user data, including Flederal Law of the Russian
Federation No. 152-FZ “On Personal Data”, dateg 2| 2006, as amended, or the Personal Data Lhe/PErsonal Data Law, among other
things, requires that an individual must conserthéoprocessing (i.e. any action or combinationaifons performed on personal data, inclu
the collection, recording, systematization, accuwtioh, storage, use, transfer (distributing, proxgdor authorizing access to), blocking,
deleting and destroying) of his/her personal dathraust provide this consent before such datadisgssed. Generally, the Personal Data Law
does not require the consent to be in writing kguires it to be in any form that, from an evidanpierspective, sufficiently attests to the fact
that it has been obtained.

However, the consent must be in writing in certases, including: (i) where the processing relatespecial categories of personal data
(regarding the subjed’race, nationality, political views, religion, fsophical beliefs, health conditions or intimatéirmation); (ii) where th
processing of personal data relates to any phygizdband biological characteristics of the subjebich can help to establish the identity of
subject (such as, for example, biometric persoatd)d (i) crossborder transfers to a state that does not provddeate protection of rights
subjects; and (iv) the reporting or transferringanfemployees’ personal data to a third party, te.written consent of subjects must meet a
number of formal requirements and must be signeldbggraphic or electronic signature. In other saffee consent may be in any form that,
from an evidential perspective, attests to the ttaat it has been obtained.

We obtain consents from our users by asking thedtidk an icon indicating their consent to us pssiag their personal data. Failure to
comply with legislation on personal data may leadivil, criminal, disciplinary and administratiViability, and an obligation to terminate or
procure the termination of any wrongful processihgersonal data.

Antimonopoly Regulatior

Federal Law of the Russian Federation No. 135-F& P@otection of Competition” dated July 26, 2006amended, or the Competition
Law, grants to the FAS as the antimonopoly regulaide powers and authorities to ensure competitidhe market, including approval or
monitoring of mergers and acquisitions, establishinoé rules of conduct for market players that ggcdominant positions, prosecution any
wrongful abuse of a dominant position, and the enéion of cartels and other anti-competitive agreeis or practices. The regulator may
impose significant administrative fines on markiatyprs that abuse their dominant position or otlswestrict competition, and is entitled to
challenge contracts, agreements or transactiohatbgerformed in violation of the antimonopolguation. We have a substantial market
share in the kiosks and terminals and electronyorats markets, but are not recognized by the atgruds occupying a dominant position
since these markets are relatively new. Howevenmgerstand that the regulator could in the fufaceis on the markets that we are active in,
and could identify dominant players and impose cahdmitations and other requirements on them.
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The Competition Law expressly provides for its atérritorial application to transactions which arade outside of Russia but lead, or
may lead, to the restriction of competition in Rasand which relate to assets located on the deyriaf Russia, to the shares (or participation
interests) in Russian companies or rights in retatdo such companies, shares in or rights in miat foreign target companies which had s
to Russia of at least RUB 1 billion for the yeaggading the year in which the transaction is comsatad.

The Competition Law provides for mandatory pre-appt by the FAS of mergers, acquisitions, compamynktions and certain other
transactions involving companies which meet ceffia@ncial thresholds. Certain specific rules am@sholds are provided by the Competition
Law in relation to pre-approval by the FAS of aaifions of financial services providers, which, anthe Competition Law, include credit
institutions, but do not include payment agentsfdbent thresholds apply to transactions with ofirencial entities as targets.

The Competition Law stipulates certain carve-otsifthis rule providing for post-transactional fiottion to the FAS instead of FAS
pre-approval. Additionally, it imposes financiatesholds for transactions that, while not subje@ pre-approval, are subject to mandatory
post-transactional notification. Intgroup transfers are generally notifiable; howettegre are certain exceptions to the Competition Lrathkis
respect.

Under the Competition Law, if an acquirer has adatedolation of the merger control rules and, ésample, acquired shares without
obtaining the prior approval of the FAS, the trarigen may be invalidated by a court order initiabydthe FAS, provided that such transaction
has led or may lead to the restriction of compmiitfor example, by means of strengthening of aidami position in the relevant market.

More generally, Russian legislation provides fatlcadministrative and criminal liability for theiolation of antimonopoly legislation.

Regulation of Strategic Investmen

The Strategic Enterprise Law provides that an aifijom by a foreign investor (or a group of persoruding a foreign investor) of
direct or indirect control over a company holdimgiyption license requires prior approval of a sglered governmental commission. The
approval process usually takes between three andaiths. Qiwi Bank holds encryption licenses, whéce necessary to conduct its
operations, and by virtue of this may be deemdakta “strategic enterprise”.

Under the Strategic Enterprise Law, a person isngeleto have control over a strategic enterprisgnifong other things, such person
controls, directly or indirectly, more than 50%tbé total number of votes attributable to the wpshares comprising the share capital of suct
strategic enterprise. Where the purchaser is agfostate, foreign governmental organization, imional organization or entity controlled by
a foreign government, or international organizatibe threshold for obtaining a preliminary appidsanore than 25% of the voting power. In
addition, investors that are controlled by a fonestate or a foreign government or internationghaization are prohibited from owning more
than 50% of the voting power of a strategic enisepiFailure to obtain the required governmentalayal prior to an acquisition would render
the acquisition null and void.

The Strategic Enterprise Law is not clear on homterpret “indirect” control over a strategic emgse and in what circumstances an
acquisition of shares in the holding company afratsegic enterprise would represent an “indirectjusition of shares in the latter and,
consequently, require approval of the specializmcegnmental commission. Although a view can benakat an “indirect” acquisition takes
place if a foreign investor acquires over 50% @f shares in the holding company of a strategiaerise or otherwise obtains control over the
holding company, there is no assurance that Rustiéa authorities would not interpret it diffedgrand apply a lower threshold to the
acquisition of such holding company.

C. Organizational Structure

QIWI plc is a holding company that operates throitgisubsidiaries. Our major operating subsidiagesh of which is a wholly-owned
(direct or indirect) subsidiary, are CISC Qiwi Ba@kPS LLC, CIJSC QIWI. and LLC QIWI Payment Sergi¢&ovider.

See Exhibit 8.1 for a list of our subsidiaries.
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D. Property, Plants and Equipment.

We currently lease a total of over 8,000 squareersén three locations in Moscow, one of which ssras our headquarters. In
Kazakhstan, we lease offices in Astana and sewénal major cities.

ITEM 4A. Unresolved Staff Comments
Not Applicable.

ITEM 5. Operating and Financial Review and Prospea

You should read the following operating and finahceview together with our consolidated finan@thtements and related notes
included elsewhere in this annual report. Certamtesments in this section are “forward-looking stiatents” and are subject to risks and
uncertainties, which may cause actual results ttedmaterially from those expressed or impliedsbgh forward-looking statements. Please
see “Special Note Regarding Forward-Looking Statetsieand “Risk Factors” for more information.

A. Operating Results
Overview

We are a leading provider of next generation payreervices in Russia and the CIS. We have an iatedmproprietary network that
enables payment services across physical, onliderenbile channels. We operate in and target madaedscustomer segments that are largely
cash-based and lack convenient alternatives fasuwroers to pay for goods and services in physicdih@and mobile environments.

We have built a physical network of over 168,006sks and terminals using a proprietary agent madteder this model, our kiosks and
terminals are built with our proprietary specifioats and technology by third party manufactureid #aen purchased and managed by
approximately 8,000 agents responsible for placdpgrating and servicing the kiosks in high-traftionvenient retail locations. We also
distribute our payment services online throughwrtual Visa Qiwi Wallet product, which enables somers to access and make payments
through their computers or mobile devices. The pays processed through our network are typically genall with a limit of RUB
15,000 per transaction, and since they are prignmded with cash, consumers do not have to goutiir a lengthy registration process to
execute most transactions.

We have historically had two principal operatingrsents: Qiwi Distribution, which primarily generateevenue from our payment
services offered through our kiosks and termireaisl, Visa Qiwi Wallet, which generates revenue frmlayments processed through online
electronic user accounts and bank prepaid prodmcisiding our prepaid card business. On JanuaP@14, we combined these two segments
and began operating our business as a single seégbarprimary source of revenue is fees we rec&iv@rocessing payments made by
consumers to merchants, which we refer to as palyprenessing fees, typically based on a percenthtiee size of the transactions that we
process, which we refer to as payment volume. i te payment processing fees that are paid toyuserchants for collecting payments on
their behalf as merchant fees and to payment psowpéees that are paid by our consumers and tiittiesihto us by our agents (in case of Qiwi
Distribution) or paid by our consumers directlyu®(in case of Visa Qiwi Wallet) as consumer f&is.typically pass on a portion of the
merchants fees to our agents.

In September 2010, we acquired Qiwi Bank, whichvigles the issuing, acquiring and deposit settlerfiendtions of our group. In
addition, at the end of the second quarter of 26l2board of directors approved a plan to dispdsertain non-core subsidiaries and
associates in order to focus on our core paymestésys business, which occurred by the end of ihe duarter. The assets disposed of includ
primarily non-CIS international early-stage bussess a business that manufactured certain paotsrdfiosks, and our lottery business. The
results of operations of these entities are preseas discontinued operations in our statemertsraprehensive income.
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Segments

For management purposes, until January 1, 2014yeve organized into three operating segments. diitiad to our two principal
operating segments — Qiwi Distribution and Visa QiMallet — we had a segment related to our cormgoaativities. Our segments were:

. Qiwi Distribution, which includes revenue angenses derived from payment and value added ssroifered through our kiosks
and terminals in Russia and internationg

. Visa Qiwi Wallet, which includes revenue angberses derived from payments processed througheoeliectronic user accounts
and bank prepayment products, including our prepaid business, and revenue and expenses derdradJiwi Bank; anc

. Corporate and other, which includes expendageto corporate back-office operations, and meeeassociated with licensing of
software and trademarks and the sales of lottérresigh kiosks and terminals. We disposed of ottiety sales business in August
2012.

We intend to conduct an internal reorganizationhtange our organizational structure from a businegsorganizational structure where
Qiwi Distribution and Visa Qiwi Wallet are largetganaged as separate entities to a functional ereiethere management will be focused on
centralized core operational tasks such as sakeketing and finance. The reorganization is intenieaccount for the growing overlap of our
businesses, with Qiwi Distribution becoming a diigaint distribution channel for Visa Qiwi Wallet.anagement expects to complete this
reorganization in 2014. As a result of this reoigation, certain personnel and positions, in patéicwith respect to our officers, may change
substantially. In addition, in light of the reorgaation, beginning in 2014, we combined our opaegtegments and no longer report Qiwi
Distribution and Visa Qiwi Wallet separately. Aéiferences herein to our Qiwi Distribution segmertt aur Visa Qiwi Wallet segment desci
each of those segments until January 1, 2014, wiednegan operating through a single segment.

Key Measures of Financial and Operational Performane

Our management monitors our financial and operatiparformance on the basis of the following measur

Financial Measures
The following table presents our key financial meas for the year ended December 31, 2011, 2012@h8l

Year ended December 31

2011 2012 2013
(in RUB millions)

Segment net reven—Qiwi Distribution @) 2,49/ 2,84¢ 3,18:
Segment net reven-Visa Qiwi Wallet() 69C 1,241 2,88¢
Other)®@ 7C 83 10z
Adjusted net revenu® 3,25¢ 4,16¢ 6,16¢
Adjusted EBITDA® 1,18: 1,851 2,97¢
Adjusted net profi® 721 1,30¢ 2,17:

(1) See note 9 of our annual consolidated financiaéstants

(2) Other includes our corporate and other segmemt;daimpany eliminations, and timing of expense raiam.

(3) See “Selected Consolidated Financial and Qitaéa — Non-IFRS Financial Measures” for how we dlefand calculate adjusted net
revenue, adjusted EBITDA, and adjusted net prafih@ntFRS financial measures and reconciliations oféhagasures to revenue, in
case of adjusted net revenue, and net profit,arctfse of adjusted EBITDA and adjusted net pt

Adjusted net revenue and segment net reveAd@usted net revenue is a non-IFRS measure eakuniby subtracting cost of revenue
from revenue and adding back payroll and relatedsaAdjusted net revenue is a key measure usethbpgement to observe our operational
profitability since it reflects our portion of tllevenue net of fees that we pass through, primaribur agents. In addition, under IFRS,
consumer fees are recorded as net revenue wheszalant fees are recorded as gross revenue. Theref@rder to analyze our two sources
of
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payment processing fees on a comparative basisagearent reviews net revenue in addition to grossmee. We add back payroll and relatec
taxes because, although they are an essentiadfpauit distribution network, these expenses aradivettly linked to payment volume.
Management reviews adjusted net revenue both @n sggment and consolidated basis.

Adjusted EBITDA Adjusted EBITDA is defined as profit from opemats before loss from discontinued operations, qatpacosts
allocated to discontinued operations, income tgease, interest expense, interest income, shdosobf associates, impairment of investn
in associates, foreign exchange (loss) gain, hetge in fair value of derivative financial assetber expenses, other income, gain from
disposal of subsidiaries, gain from bargain puretesd depreciation and amortization offering expsnshare-based payment expenses and
goodwill impairment charges. We present adjustetTBB\. as a supplemental performance measure beceeidelieve that it facilitates
investors in comparing our financial performancéwather payment service providers.

Adjusted net profit Adjusted net profit is a non-IFRS measure defiagdet profit excluding loss on discontinued opi@na (net of tax),
corporate costs allocated to discontinued operstiamortization of fair value adjustments, gairbangain purchase, gains on disposals, share
based payment expenses, offering expenses anffehts @f taxation on those excluded items. Adjdstet profit is a key measure used by
management to observe the profitability of the tanbg operations of the company.

For a reconciliation of these non-IFRS financiakisures, please see “Selected Consolidated FinamdaDther Data—Non-IFRS
Financial Measures.”

Operating Measures

The following table presents our key operative measin both our Qiwi Distribution and Visa Qiwi W segments for the year ended
December 31, 2011, 2012 and 2013.

Year ended December 31
2011 2012 2013
(in RUB millions, unless otherwise indicate

Qiwi Distribution

Active kiosks and terminals (unit® 170,38: 169,10: 168,23t
Payment volum 408,25 464,80t 519,98
Average net revenue yie® 0.61% 0.61% 0.61%
Visa Qiwi Wallet
Active Visa Qiwi Wallet accounts (at period endpiillions) (3 8.1 11.¢ 15.¢
Payment volum 65,40¢ 151,50¢ 255,12
Average volume per Visa Qiwi Wallet account (in las) 4 8,02¢ 13,26( 16,56
Average net revenue yie(@ 1.05% 0.82% 1.13%

(1) We measure the numbers of our kiosks and tedsiion a daily basis, with only those kiosks amthieals being taken into calculation
through which at least one payment has been predekging the day, which we refer to as active ksaand terminals. The period end
numbers of our kiosks and terminals are calculatedn average of the amount of active kiosks amndirials for the last 30 days of the
respective reporting perio

(2) Average net revenue yield is defined as segmenerenue divided by total payment volume per segn

(3) Number of active Visa Qiwi Wallet accounts is definas the number of wallets through which at leastpayment has been made or
have been loaded or reloaded in the 12 months giregéhe end of the relevant reporting peri

(4) Average volume per Visa Qiwi Wallet accounti&fined as total payment volumes in our Visa QivalMt segment divided by the
number of active wallets at the end of the relevapbrting period

Number of active kiosks and terminals in Qiwi Disition. We measure the numbers of our kiosks and tersyorak daily basis, with
only those kiosks and terminals being taken intowtation through which at least one payment hanh@ocessed during the day, which we
refer to as active kiosks and terminals. The pegiodl numbers of our kiosks and terminals are cafledlas an average of the amount of active
kiosks and terminals for the last 30 days of ttepeetive reporting period. From December 31, 201dcember 31, 2013, we have grown oul
number of kiosks from 120,000 to 127,000 and degr@déhe number of terminals from 51,000 to 42,08&wis reflected in our payment
volume growth with kiosks being a higher volume gating channel. Our kiosks and
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terminals can be found next to convenience stamesain stations, retail stores and airport teragrin all major urban cities as well as many
small and rural towns. While we project modest gtoim our kiosk and terminal network, we believattbur total payment volume growth in
our Qiwi Distribution business will be primarilyiden by increased user adoption, the addition @f payment services, the implementation of
higher yielding value added services, and higheraye payment amounts.

Number of active Visa Qiwi Wallet accounts and agerpayments per Visa Qiwi Wallet accolNumber of active wallets represents the
number of wallets through which at least one paytrhas been made or which has been loaded or relaadbe 12 months preceding the end
of the relevant reporting period. Number of activadlets is a measure of our success in penetritimgnarket and expanding our Visa Qiwi
Wallet business. We define average payments pexr Qiwi Wallet account as total payment volumesad#di by the number of active wallets
the end of the relevant reporting period. Betweendnber 31, 2011 and December 31, 2013, averagegpayolume per wallet and the
number of active wallet accounts has doubled. Véda@rused on growing our Visa Qiwi Wallet business] we believe we are able to
leverage our large, active base of over 70 milionsumers who use our kiosks and terminals at tewst a month and our brand recognition
and presence on social media platforms to driveattoption and use of the Visa Qiwi Wallet.

Qiwi Wallet was launched as a product in 2007. B§2, Qiwi Wallet became a separate operating uitht avdistinct management team,
operating infrastructure and strategy. As a resudinagement believes financial and operating infbion for Qiwi Wallet on a stand-alone
basis are most relevant from 2011 onwards. In Ndera012 our Qiwi Wallet business was rebrandedise Qiwi Wallet.

Payment volumeTotal volume provides a measure of the overa# sind growth of our business, and increasing aymgnt volumes is
essential to growing our profitability. Paymentwuoles have consistently increased since 2011. Patahent volumes in our Qiwi Distributic
segment have grown at a CAGR of 12.9% from 201duidin 2013, with total payment volumes of RUB 520dwi for the year ended 2013.
Total payment volumes in our Visa Qiwi Wallet segineave grown at a CAGR of 97.5% from 2011 thro@@h3, with total payment volum
of RUB 255 bhillion for the year ended DecemberZ&113. The following factors may have a significempact on the growth of payment
volume:

. Macroeconomic factor

¢ Russian econorr. We carry out our operations primarily in Russitacroeconomic conditions in Russia significantly
impact the volume of payments made by our consurdening periods of economic growth, overall consum
spending tends to increase along with rises intlveahd during economic downturns, consumer spgrtginds to
correspondingly decline. These fluctuations caretesgignificant impact on the volume of paymentgwezess; an

. Factors concerning methods of paym

* Use of cash as a means of paymedhanges in the aggregate use of cash as a miaagnoent is an important
variable affecting our revenues. Cash paymentsharerincipal form of payment in Russia, and, assalt, a majority
of our payment volumes are cash-based. Accordipaipdicly available information, cash payments expected to
continue to be the principal means of payment issRuand will sustain demand for use of our kigeks terminals. A
cash payments in Russia grow in absolute termgxpect payment volumes from our kiosks and termital
correspondingly increase. If the use of cash agsansof payment declines in Russia, it would neghtimpact our
financial results

e Increase in the volume of online transactions drause of alternative payment meth. The volume of online
transactions has grown considerably and contimugsaw. Similarly, we expect the use of alternapagment
methods in Russia, such as smartphones to grovidewably as prices per smartphone decline. We \eelieat growth
in online transactions and alternative payment odgiwill be an important driver in increasing thember of potential
merchants for which we can offer payment servicesia increasing the potential number of usersigb\Qiwi Wallet
We expect payment volumes from online transactanbalternative payment methods to increase sagmifiy in the
coming years
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. Factors concerning our busine

» Consumer adoptionWe have actively sought new merchants to offeisamers more payment choices when usin
products. We believe that merchant growth will lémdhore consumers using our payment systems megadntly.

< Addition of new payment servic. We have added new payment services as a paur groducts. For example,
consumers with accounts at certain banks may nofenpe online banking services at our kiosks andhiaals.

« Implementation of value added servi. We have increased the advertising services vex,défveraging our extensive
distribution network for our advertising clients evidelieve that value added services will resuthore consumers
using our payment systen

< Higher average payment amoul. In addition to adding more merchants, we haveedddgher value products
available for purchase through our network, suchidisie tickets. With more choice and high valueducts, we
believe that consumers will increase their paynaembunt per transactio

Average net revenue yielle calculate average net revenue yield by dividgiegment net revenue by total payment volume penseg
Average net revenue yield provides a measure oébility to generate net revenue per unit of volumgeprocess. The average net revenue
yield in our Qiwi Distribution segment exhibitedjanerally stable trend from 2011 through 2013. \8&i Wallet experienced a decline
average net revenue yield of 23 bps 2011 to 2012013, average net revenue yield in Qiwi Walletéased by 31 bps in comparison to 2012
primarily as a result of changes to fees to Visai@Vallet accounts on the balance of unused acsaafier a certain period of inactivity and an
increase in payment volumes associated with highemue generating transactions such as ecomnWecwiill seek to increase the average
net revenue yield in Qiwi Wallet by leveraging @tirong market position with merchants.

. Negative trends impacting average net revenue

« Between 2011 and 2013, we have experiencedlaeén merchant fees from our larger retail mardis, in particular
the Big Three MNOs, and, in Visa Qiwi Wallet, a lilee in consumer fees as a percentage of payméuntneo

. Positive trends impacting average net revenue \

* In our Qiwi Distribution segment, the volumewaflue added services we provide has increasedhwiais had a
positive impact on our net revenue yield. For exiampe have successfully used our distribution oekwo help our
partners launch advertising campaigns and salesgiions. In addition, we have also introduced addél fees for
cash and settlements services to our agents. Wavbe¢hat these services will continue to have sitppe impact on ot
profitability in the future

« Inour Visa Qiwi Wallet segment, the merchahtst we serve are typically smaller retailers viébs bargaining power.
As a result, we are able to charge these merchigtisr payment processing fees than the merchauatsriQiwi
Distribution segment. Moreover, our business miQiwi Wallet has been gradually shifting towardgher yielding
categories of goods and services such as ecommaedcenline games further accelerating averageewenue yield
growth. We expect that, as our merchant base ia Risvi Wallet continues to grow and diversify, theserchants wi
have a larger effect on payment volume and, coresgtyy on average net revenue yield. Moreover, beeaur Visa
Qiwi Wallet segment does not have an agent-basectste like our Qiwi Distribution segment, we hasignificantly
more control over the balance between merchantansumer fee:
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Sources of Revenue

Our primary source of revenue is payment procedsieg. In addition, we derive revenue from advigisinterest revenue from agent'’s
overdrafts, interest income and other revenue.

Payment processing feeBPayment processing fees constitute the substamjarity of our revenue and comprise fees chafged
processing payments typically based on a percemiile total volume of each payment. A majorityoof payment processing fees are paid t
us by merchants for collecting payments on theliralfewhich we refer to as merchant fees, and ¢les paid by consumers and transmitted to
us by agents, which we refer to as consumer feestyyically pass on a portion of the merchants feasir agents (in case of Qiwi
Distribution). In certain situations, we may noteaze any merchant fees, for example, where a fipacérchant is added to our base at the
request of an agent who believes that inclusiosuch merchant would attract consumers in a paaticegion or neighborhood. We generally
recognize payment processing fees gross at thé whem merchants accept payments from the consum@iwi Distribution, we recognize
revenues from consumer fees net of transactiors castwe receive such fees through our agentsyamtb not control the ultimate consumer
fees set by our agents.

Advertising revenueWe generate advertising revenue through Qiwiribigtion primarily by displaying advertising on okiosks and
through short message service, or SMS, messagiagal¢ulate advertising revenue on the basis oftiéracts with our advertising custorn
and advertising agencies, which vary, and recogmizenue once the advertising is displayed or trgttesd. Starting from November 2013
certain mobile network operators introduced meastodimit the number of SMS messages deliveretiéo customers. These measures may
substantially increase fees for delivering SMSuo @bnsumers, as well as limit the number of sud$$S delivered. As a consequence, we
expect that SMS advertising revenues may be miyeniegatively affected going forward.

Ancillary revenue In addition to payment processing fees and aidwegtrevenue, we generate revenue from variousraburces
including interest revenue on agent’s overdrapr@senting revenue from our Qiwi Distribution segirfor interest earned on amounts of
credit that we provide to our agents for them t@bke to operate within our network), interest rawe (representing revenue from our Visa
Qiwi Walllet segment for interest earned on caslodigp with financial institutions, and short- add-term investments performed as a part o
our treasury operations and bank loans provide@ily Bank), revenue from rent of space for termin@epresenting revenue from our Qiwi
Distribution segment for rent obtained for sublaggietail space for terminals to our agents) ahémotevenue (representing revenue primarily
generated from such operations as cash and setilesices of Qiwi Distribution and Qiwi Bank, pnotional campaign fees generated from
software licensing for our processing system imtes where we operate through our franchisedsichwwe refer to in this annual report as
ancillary revenue.

Operating Expenses
Costs of revenue (exclusive of depreciation and atization)

Transaction costsWhen payments are made through our network, wér imansaction costs to our agents, which repteeeramount of
fees we pass through to agents for use of theakkiand terminals. Additionally, we incur transaetcosts when Visa Qiwi Wallet consumers
reload their wallets.

Payroll and related taxesPayroll and related taxes represents salariebanefits paid to employees, primarily IT and ofiagaservices
employees, and related taxes, where such paymlielated taxes are associated with payment primceard other revenue-generating
activities.

Ancillary expensesWe incur other expenses in addition to transaatmsts and payroll and related taxes, includinggtsing
commission (primarily representing commission wg, plarough Qiwi Distribution, to SMS operators anat agents for displaying the
advertising), cost of rent of space for termina¢pfesenting the rental payments we make, through Qstribution, to retail shop owners to
allow agents to install kiosks on their premisedariease arrangements) and other expenses (ingladll center expenses), which we refer tc
in this annual report as ancillary expenses.
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Selling, general and administrative expens

Selling, general and administrative expenses ctngignarily of payroll and related taxes for oen®r executives, finance, legal and
other administrative staff, advertising and relatggdenses, bank services, rent of premises anedaldlity expenses, office maintenance
expenses, telecommunication and internet expehadsjebt expense, traveling expenses, offeringresqse taxes other than income taxes ant
professional fees.

Depreciation and amortizatiol

Depreciation is calculated on property and equigmera straight-line basis from the time the asastsavailable for use, over their
estimated useful lives. Intangible assets are aneokbn a straight-line basis over their usefulneenic lives, unless the useful life is indefinite.
We do not amortize intangible assets with indefiniseful lives, but we test these assets for impait annually, either individually or at the
cash-generating unit level.

Other Income and Expense Items
Gain on bargain purchase

A gain on bargain purchase is recognized in a legsitombination or acquisition of associates iretlent the total fair value of the
identifiable net assets acquired on the date ddfiaitipn exceeds the fair value of the consideratransferred. We recognized a gain on bar
purchase upon our purchase of Instant Paymentdn.PB11. No gain on bargain purchase was recogrniz2012 and 2013.

Impairment of investment in associati

Impairment of investment in associates is recoghizbere we determine that the investment made emsaaciate is not fully recoverak
For the year ended December 31, 2013, we recogaizéupairment of investment in associates in Demigie Ltd. due to a significant
deterioration in its operating performance.

Gain/(loss) from disposal of subsidiaries

We recognize a gain/(loss) from disposal of subsiés in the event that the consideration we reckivthe sale or disposal of a
subsidiary exceeds the total carrying value ofsthitesidiary sold. The gain recognized in 2011 wastduwisposal of our subsidiaries in
Tajikistan and Uzbekistan, and the loss recognizet®12 was due to disposal of Instant Payments (Ka&Zzakhstan), OOO Management
Company QIWI (Russia), Master Loto Ltd and its sdiasies. No gain or loss from disposal of subsigswas recognized in 2013.

Change in fair value of derivative financial assets

We classify certain of our derivative assets atvalue through profit or loss, in accordance WS 39. This classification applies
primarily to certain options over shares of sulzigis and associates we hold. We state our fineassts at fair value through profit or loss.

Other income

Other income in 2011 and 2012 included gain orrésteon loans issued to agents at a higher-thakeniterest rate, income from
penalties charged to agents for violation of oympant system terms and conditions, and other iteshslirectly related to operations.

Other expenses

Other expenses in 2011 principally included losssslting from the discount on a low-interest légsued to Blestgroup Enterprises Ltd
(Cyprus) to facilitate our rent of terminal spaogerations, and share of profit for the periodiattable to non-controlling interest and
accounted for as a liability, which relates to phefit and loss of subsidiaries in which we holdiaterest. In 2012 the main item of other
expenses was the share attributable to non-cdngafiterest accounted for as liability. By 201Bthé subsidiaries having such noontrolling
interest had been disposed of and the major iteothafr expenses is tax penalties.
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Foreign exchange gain/(loss), net

Foreign exchange gain/(loss) is comprised of nailte from the re-measurement of monetary asset$iailities denominated in a
foreign currency using the exchange rates valti@teporting period end or upon the realizationetdted assets and liabilities. As of
December 31, 2011, 2012 and 2013, our net monatagts denominated in foreign currencies wereigoifisant.

Share of loss of associatt

We account for our interest in associates undeedgjuity method. An associate is generally an entityer which we have significant
influence. We carry our investment in associateoat less any impairment and recognize any changas share of the net assets of the
associate through profit or loss, except for changequity that do not result from operations.

Interest income

Interest income represents primarily interest om-banking loans issued to related parties.

Interest expens:

Interest expense primarily represents interestresgpaccrued by our international subsidiaries andaeceived from their non-
controlling shareholders. In 2013 the Group alspgaized interest expenses on bank guarantees.

Income tax expens

Income tax expense represents current and def@cethe taxes with respect to our earning in coaati which we operate. Deferred
tax also includes taxes on earnings of our forsigsidiaries that have not been remitted to ukdexktent applicable and will be taxed in
Cyprus once remitted.

Critical accounting policies and significant estimées

We prepare our consolidated financial statemenée@ordance with IFRS, which require us to makgioents, estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts eftgd&abilities, net sales and expenses, andegkdisclosure of contingent assets and
liabilities. The most significant estimates relaighe recognition of revenue, assessment of teiiléfe of property and equipment,
assessment of the useful life of intangible assietigrmination of the fair values of assets antullitaes acquired in business combinations,
impairment of goodwill and intangible assets withefinite lives, allowance for deferred tax assatsl impairment of loans and receivables.
We have based our estimates on historical experiand on various other assumptions that we belebe reasonable under the
circumstances, the results of which form the bfsisnaking judgments about the carrying valuesssiss and liabilities that are not readily
apparent from other sources. Actual results mégrdifom these estimates under different assumgtimrconditions.

An accounting policy is considered to be critidat requires an accounting estimate to be madedas assumptions about matters that
are highly uncertain at the time the estimate idenand if different estimates that reasonablyatalve been used, or changes in the
accounting estimates that are reasonably likebctaur periodically, could materially impact the solidated financial statements. We believe
that the following critical accounting policies ahee most sensitive and require more significatilmeges and assumptions used in the
preparation of our consolidated financial statemeYibu should read the following descriptions dfical accounting policies, judgments and
estimates in conjunction with our consolidated fiicial statements and other disclosures includedisnannual report.

Revenue recognitiol

We exercise significant judgment in reaching a aesion about our accounting policy for gross vensesreporting of payment
processing fees and related transaction costs.

63



Table of Contents

A merchant fee, when it is charged, is recordedgad related costs, because we (i) are the primialigor as we undertake to transfer
customer payment to the merchant using our payprecessing system; (ii) we negotiate and ultimaselythe commission rate receivable
from a merchant; and (iii) we bear credit risk inshof the cases, unless the payment is made frdepasit made with our group.

A consumer fee, when it is charged on payments rhgd®nsumers through kiosks and terminals, isntedaet of any fees payable tc
retained by agents. This is because, although s¢harprimary obligor, we do not have any discretiger the ultimate commission set by the
agent as a kiosk or terminal owner to the customergjo not have readily available information akihetgross commission, and we are only
exposed to the net amount of commission payahls toy the agent.

A consumer fee collected through mobile operatocsather payment methods is reported gross ofelméinsaction costs. Such
payments are made by consumers through our wedrsite application using a unique user login andywasd, and are called electronic
payments. In contrast with the consumer fee catbthrough kiosks and terminals, we, being a pynadtigor in electronic payment
transactions, also set the consumer fee, althorggtiteisk for these transactions is limited. Thws, have concluded that our ability to control
the consumer fee for electronic payments is a kiégrdntiator from the customer fees on paymentkected through our kiosks and terminals.

Starting from August 2012, the Group charges ddeeanaging special guarantee deposit accountg tmadgents to cover consumer
payments they accept. Related revenues in the asmofiRUB 109,000 and RUB 462,000 for the yearsedridecember 31, 2012 and 2013 ar
reported gross of transaction costs paid to theesagants for collection of consumer payments, tmxthese revenues relate to a separate
service having distinct value to agents and praVigietheir discretion.

Useful life of property and equipment

We assess the remaining useful lives of items apgrty and equipment at least at each financiat-gad. If expectations differ from
previous estimates, the changes are accounted fochange in an accounting estimate in accordaiticdAS 8 “Accounting Policies,
Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors”. Tlestienates may have a material impact on the anafuithe carrying values of property and
equipment and on depreciation recognized in poofibss.

Useful life of intangible assets

Software and other intangible assets acquired atgpiare measured on initial recognition at cdbe cost of other intangible assets
acquired in a business combination is the fair@als of the date of acquisition. Following initiatognition, intangible assets are carried at
less any accumulated amortization and assessédfairment whenever there is an indication thatiti@ngible asset may be impaired. We
assess the remaining useful lives of intangibletasst each reporting date, unless the usefublifedefinite. If expectations differ from
previous estimates, the changes are accounted fochange in an accounting estimate in accordaiticdAS 8 “Accounting Policies,
Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors”. Tlessienates may have a material impact on the anafuithe carrying values of intangible
assets and on the amount of amortization expeesegmized in profit or loss.

Fair values of assets and liabilities acquired im&iness combinations

We recognize separately, at the acquisition dageidentifiable assets, liabilities and contingétiilities acquired or assumed in the
business combination at their fair values, whiclolaes estimates. Such estimates are based orntiealt@chniques, which require
considerable judgment in forecasting future castvéland developing other assumptions. When the ataati fair values are significant, we
hire third party appraisers to assist in deterngrihre related fair values.

Impairment of goodwill and indefinit-lived intangible assets

In order to determine whether the goodwill and firdie-lived intangible assets are impaired, it is neagstsaestimate the value in use
the cash-generating units to which the goodwill emifinite-lived intangible assets are
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allocated. Estimating the value in use requiretousake an estimate of the expected future cas¥sffoom the cash-generating unit, or CGU,
and to choose a suitable discount rate in ordealtulate the present value of those cash flows hamce such estimates are subject to
uncertainty.

Deferred tax asset

The utilization of deferred tax assets will dependvhether it is possible to generate sufficierabde income against which the
deductible temporary differences can be utilizedridus factors are used to assess the probakiltheduture utilization of deferred tax assets,
including past operating results, operational planpiration of tax losses carried forward, andgknning strategies. The carrying amounts of
deferred tax assets were RUB 183 million as of bdmr 31, 2013, RUB 102 million as of December 3,2 and 98 million as of
December 31, 2011 net of allowances of RUB 19 arillas of December 31, 2013 and RUB 7 million aBefember 31, 2012 and RUB
57 million as of December 31, 2011 to reduce thewrhof deferred tax assets to the recoverable atapu

The allowance relates to deferred tax assets whérk not recorded because we do not expect taeeedirtain of our tax loss carry
forwards in the foreseeable future due to the hjstblosses.

Impairment of loans and receivable

Our management maintains a reserve for impairnmieioos and receivables to account for estimatesie resulting from the inability
customers to make required payments. When evafutittnadequacy of an impairment of loans and rebé#g, our management bases its
estimates on the aging of accounts receivable bataand loans and historical write-off experiemcstomer credit worthiness and changes in
customer payment terms. If the financial condimbrtustomers were to deteriorate, actual write-ofight be higher than expected.

As of December 31, 2013, the impairment of loard r@ceivables was recorded amounting to RUB 61RamjIRUB 385 million as of
December 31, 2012, and RUB 258 million as of Decand4i, 2011.

Share-based payment expense

For the purposes of determining our share-basegensation expense, we estimated the fair valubaresoptions that are expected to
vest using the Black-Scholes-Merton (BSM) optioitipg model and recognize the share-based paymeense ratably over the requisite
service period applicable to each option vestingthe. We used the following assumptions in ouioagtricing model when valuing share-
based awards:

Granted on
December 21 November 15 November 16 December 4
2012 2013 2013 2013
Exercise price (U.S.$) 13.645: 41.238( 41.399( 46.57:
Expected life of the options (yea 5.C-6.5 2.C-3.C 2.C-3.C 2.C-3.C
Expected annual price volatili 28-30% 30-32% 30-32% 29-32%
Risk-free interest rat 0.75-1.0% 0.34-0.62% 0.34-0.62% 0.3(-0.61%
Expected dividend yiel 0% 2.8% 2.8% 2.8%%
Estimated fair value of the underlying share on the
grant date (U.S.4 15.8¢ 43.32 43.3: 45.37
Gran-date fair value of the options (U.S 5.34-5.7¢ 7.0¢-8.32 7.02-8.21 5.8€-7.57

The expected life of the option represents theogeduring which our option awards are expectecttolttstanding. The expected life of
each option tranche was based on the simplifiedhatedutlined in Staff Accounting Bulletin No. 108hare-Based Compensation, because,
prior to our initial public offering, we were a pately held company and our share-based compengata is relatively new. Accordingly, we
do not have sufficient experience or history tabke to determine the expected life over whichaption awards will be held before exercise.
This method is also in line with the requiremerftf=&RS 2Share-Based Payment

With respect to price volatility, because, priomotar initial public offering, we operated as a pter company with no active market for
shares or option awards, and currently we stilhdbhave sufficient history of our share price perfance, it is not possible to use actual price
volatility data. Therefore, we estimated the vditgtof
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our shares based on the historical volatility afipgroup companies over a period which approximatieexpected life of option awards. Us
an expected volatility based on the average hestbviolatility of other entities may result in vability when compared to actual historical
volatility once we have sufficient historical datiout the market price for our shares.

We based the risk-free interest rate that we useiiroptionpricing model on the implied yield currently availa on the US treasury bi
with a remaining term approximating the expectéaldf the option award being valued.

At the time of the grant date of the options on @&maber 21, 2012, we expected that we would not pai dividends after the closing of
the initial public offering. In light of that exptation, we used an expected dividend yield of zemur option pricing model for option awards
granted in the year ended December 31, 2012. Il 2pt3, our board of directors subsequently reimered this determination, and we
currently expect that we will pay dividends frormé to time in the future. Any determination regagdihe amount of future dividends will
depend on a range of factors, including the avéitialof distributable profits, our liquidity andrfancial position, our strategic plans and gro
initiatives, restrictions imposed by our financimgangements, tax considerations, planned acaquisitand other relevant factors.

We determined the amount of share-based compensatiense based on awards that we ultimately expeetst, taking into account
estimated forfeitures. IFRS requires forfeiturebdcestimated at the time of grant and revisenkdessary, in subsequent periods if actual
forfeitures differ from those estimates. To propettribute compensation expense, we are requiredttimate pre-vesting forfeitures at the
time of grant and revise those estimates in sulesgqeriods if actual forfeitures differ from thosgtimates. We have no past history of
forfeitures, but the retention rate amongst our éeployees and management was historically higbaréfbre, our forfeiture rate is expected tc
be insignificant. As a result, we have applied stingated forfeiture rate of zero in 2012 and acyealr-to-date rate of forfeitures in 2013. If the
actual forfeiture rate is materially different fratre estimate, shatgased compensation expense could be differentwhabhas been records

Because, prior to our initial public offering, tlednad been no public market for our shares, wittaksistance of an independent value
firm, we determined the fair value of our sharegtanbasis of valuations of our company arrivedyaémploying the “income approach” and
the “market approach” valuation methodologies. 8iktay 2013, QIWI plc is a public company and the ¥alue of its shares is defined by
reference to closing market price of its tradedaha

Under the income approach, we relied on the diseabicash flows (DCF) method. The DCF method invelapplying appropriate
discount rates to estimated cash flows that aredbas forecasts of revenue and costs. Key assunspdissociated with the income approach
include projected revenue, profit and cash flowscivineflect managemeistbest estimates of our future operations at the;ta terminal valu
which attributes value to cash flows for the ydagond the projection period; and a discount ratech reflects then expected market rates of
interest rates and risks associated with the bssine

Under the market approach, we relied on the guidgiublicly traded company method as well as tiw mansaction method, if such
transactions were available. The guideline publidged company method provides an indication ofvalue by comparing the enterprise
value to earnings and revenue multiples of singlaslicly traded companies in our industry. In ajppdythe prior transaction method, we wo
consider the most recent transaction in our compashares.

To estimate the fair value of our shares for theddeber 2012 grants, the income approach, usin@@temethod, and the market
approach were employed. In the DCF method, a poastliscount rate of 12.5% was used. A discounltafck of marketability of 8.21% was
also applied. DCF was used as the primary methddtenguideline publicly traded company approach used to determine if the DCF
valuation was in the range of reasonable valueBé&member 2012 option awards.

The prior transaction method was not used for teedinber 2012 valuation study because it was deteththat duration of time and
respective changes in market conditions since th&t necent arm’s length transaction with our shirasclosed in December 2010 rendered
this transaction a less reliable indicator of thkue of our company. However, the prior transacti@thod provided an indirect evidence of the
fair value of our shares. In
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particular, the publicly disclosed value of thensaction between our shareholders in December 2@%0J.S.$24.1 million for 3.74% of our
shares, representing approximately U.S.$12.40h@mes The growth of the estimated share price 1tb$1$12.40 per share in December 2010
to U.S.$15.84 on December 2012, as implied by t6& hethod and market approach, or 27%, was linkedrtumber of factors, including
improving performance in 2011 and 2012 and imprdicrddity prospects due to the planned initial pcloffering.

The DCF method used to estimate the fair valueuokbares is highly sensitive to growth rates, whth principal drivers being the level
of internet traffic, our market share, and the sizthe online advertising market generally. Adutitlly, the guideline public company method
is highly sensitive to the choice of guideline camigs and changes in market multiples of thosegljniel companies, as well as our company’
relative performance in comparison with the sekbgteers.

On December 21, 2012, our board of directors apgatakie grant of option awards to purchase an agtgey 2,216,778 shares at an
exercise price of U.S.$13.6452 per share. We rezedrRUB 66 million in share-based payment expeirs2612, based on a fair value on the
grant date ranging from U.S.$5.34 to U.S.$5.73gp¢ion granted.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

Prior to our initial public offering in May 2013,ewvere a private company with limited accountingspanel and other resources focuse
on our internal control over financial reporting.donnection with their audit of our consolidatathhcial statements for the year ended
December 31, 2011 our independent registered pabdounting firm identified a material weaknessim internal controls with respect to our
financial statement closing process. The materegdkmess related to, primarily, the number of dedit#RS-qualified personnel and controls
over accounting for non-routine transactions andmex estimates.

This material weakness was considered in detergithia nature, timing and extent of the procedusgfopmed by our independent
registered public accounting firm in their auditoafr annual consolidated financial statements,daddhot affect the report of our independent
registered public accounting firm on our annualsmidated financial statements included herein.

To address the material weakness that our indepénggistered accountants identified, we develagpatiimplemented a plan that
included implementing greater controls over comroatidon, approval and accounting for non-routineseations and complex estimates, as
well as additional management review controls. e hired an external consultant to advise us tmduicing changes to our internal control
over financial reporting and to participate in mg@@ent review of the financial statements andedlatpporting financial information. In the
future, we plan to recruit additional qualified pennel or an external consultant with relevant eepee in IFRS accounting, reporting and
auditing. As a result of these various measuresxpect the accounting and finance personnel tosterease significantly.

As a result of our efforts we remediated the relataterial weakness as of December 31, 2012. Hawieveonnection with the audit of
our consolidated financial statements for the yealed December 31, 2012 and 2013, our indepenegistered public accounting firm
identified a significant deficiency in each cas¢hwespect to our financial statement closing psscé significant deficiency is a deficiency, or
a combination of deficiencies, in internal contwekr financial reporting that is less severe thamaterial weakness, yet important enough to
merit attention by those responsible for oversaftdaur financial reporting.

Designing and implementing an effective financegarting system is a continuous effort that require to anticipate and react to
changes in our business and the economic and teguknvironments and to devote significant resesito maintain a financial reporting
system that adequately satisfies our reportinggalitns. The remedial measures that we intendk®rteay not fully address the significant
deficiency that we and our independent registecedwanting firm have identified, and other matewalaknesses or significant deficiencies in
our internal control over financial reporting mag identified in the future. See “Risk Factors—Rigdated to our Business and Industry—Ou
independent public registered accounting firm idexat a material weakness in our internal contnadrofinancial reporting during our 2011
audit, and we can provide no assurance that additimaterial weaknesses will not be identifiedhe tuture. ”
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Results of Operations

Set out below are our consolidated statements efadipns data for the years ended December 31, 201P and 2013:

Years ended December 3!

2011 2012 2013
(in RUB millions)
Revenue 8,15¢ 8,911 11,66¢
Cost of revenue (exclusive of depreciation and éiraifon) (5,579 (5,459 (6,396
Selling, general and administrative exper (1,549 (2,839 (2,60¢)
Depreciation and amortizatic (147 (129 (113
Impairment of intangible asse — 4 —
Goodwill impairment — — (5)
Profit from operations 901 1,48¢ 2,544
Gain on bargain purcha 15 — —
Gain (loss) from disposal of subsidiar 7 (@D} —
Other income 10 17 21
Other expense (73 (29 (20)
Foreign exchange loss, r (12 (21) 8
Share of loss of associal (23 13 (79)
Impairment of investment in associa — — (22
Interest incomt 6 26 22
Interest expens (4) (9) (29)
Profit before tax from continuing operations 827 1,45¢€ 2,44k
Income tax expens (247 (409¢) (610
Net profit from continuing operations 58€ 1,04¢ 1,83t
Gain (loss) from discontinued operatic (15€) (240 —
Net profit 43( 80¢ 1,83¢
Attributable to:
Equity holders of the pare 52( 91C 1,872
Non-controlling interest: (90) (102 (398

Set out below are our consolidated statements efabipns data for the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2013 as a percentag
total revenue:

Years ended December 3.

2011 2012 2013
(as a percentage of revent
Revenue 100.( 100.( 100.(
Cost of revenue (exclusive of depreciation and digadion) (68.3) (61.2) (54.9
Selling, general and administrative exper (18.9 (20.7) (22.9)
Depreciation and amortizatic 1.7 (1.9 (1.0
Impairment of intangible asse — — —
Goodwill impairment — — —
Profit from operations 11.1 16.7 21.¢
Gain on bargain purcha 0.2 — —
Gain (loss) from disposal of subsidiar 0.1 (0.2) —
Other income — 0.2 0.2
Other expense (0.9 0.3 (0.2
Foreign exchange (loss) gain, | (0.7 (0.3 0.1
Share of loss of an associa 0.3 0.2 (0.7)
Impairment of investment in associa — — (0.2
Interest incom — & 0.2
Interest expens — (0.2 (0.2
Profit before tax from continuing operations 10.1 16.5 21.C
Income tax expens (2.9 (4.5 (5.2
Net profit from continuing operations 7.2 11.¢ 15.¢
Gain (Loss) from discontinued operatic (1.9 (2.7 —
Net profit .3 9.1 15.¢
Attributable to:
Equity holders of the pare 6.4 10.z 16.1
Non-controlling interest: (1.7 (1.7 0.3
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Year ended December 31, 2013 compared to year ebséember 31, 2012
Revenut

Set out below are our revenues, by source, foy¢lae December 31, 2012 and 2013, and as a pereeoitagtal revenue:

Year ended December 31

2012 2012 2013 2013

(in RUB (% of (in RUB (% of
millions) revenue millions) revenue
Revenue 8,911 100.C 11,66¢ 100.C
Payment processing fe 7,62¢ 85.¢€ 9,93¢ 85.2
Revenue from advertisir 454 5.1 507 4.3
Ancillary revenue 83:< 9.3 1,22t 10.5

Revenue for the year ended December 31, 2013 wasR\666 million, an increase of 31%, or RUB 2,T&illion, compared to the
same period in 2012. This increase was primarily tduan increase in payment processing fees, ticpkar for payments made through Visa
Qiwi Walllet. Payment processing fees for the yealeel December 31, 2013 were RUB 9,934 million,neaneiase of 30%, or RUB
2,310 million, compared to the same period in 20t increase in payment processing fees resuttethply from an increase in payment
volumes in Visa Qiwi Wallet by 68%, from RUB 152linin to RUB 255 billion, and from the reintroduati of fees charged for inactive wall
(as discussed in more details in “—Adjusted neénexe and segment net revenue”).

The number of active Visa Qiwi Wallet consumerg@ased to 15.4 million as of December 31, 2013 ftdmd million as of
December 31, 2012. Average payment volume per @isa Wallet account increased by 25%, to RUB 16,56the year ended December 31,
2013 from RUB 13,260 in 2012. In Qiwi Distributiopayment volume increased by 12%, to RUB 520 hillimthe year ended December 31,
2013, from RUB 465 bhillion in 2012, primarily drimdoy an increase in Visa Qiwi Wallet users relogdimeir wallets through the Qiwi
Distribution network. The size of our Qiwi Distrition network remained largely unchanged, with 188,active kiosks and terminals as of
December 31, 2013 compared to 169,102 as of Deaedih@012.

Advertising revenue for the year ended DecembeRB13 was RUB 507 million, an increase of 12%, biBR3 million, compared to tl
same period in 2012. This increase primarily resuftom a significant increase in volume as a tasfudn increase in the number of customer:
to whom we offered SMS advertising services in 20t 3he fourth quarter of 2013, advertising revedegcreased by approximately 26%
(RUB 38 million) compared to the same period in2@timarily due to the outflow of banks that used advertising platform due to the

structural change in the retail banking segmenaddition, certain mobile carriers substantiallgreased the fees for delivering SMS to our
clients.

Ancillary revenue for the year ended December 8132vas RUB 1,225 million, an increase of 47%, biBR392 million, compared to
the same period in 2012, primarily due to an ingegia interest revenue as a result of a greateuaniovested in debt instruments and
increased cash deposits in interest-bearing ace@snivell as increased revenue from cash andreetiteservices, due to the introduction of
additional fees charged for deposits of our agents.
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Operating expenses

Set out below are the primary components of ouraipey expenses for the year ended December 32, &@d 2013, and as a percentage
of total revenue:

Year ended December 31

2012 2012 2013 2013

(in RUB (% of (in RUB (% of
millions) revenue’ millions) revenue’
Cost of revenue (exclusive of depreciation and &izadion) (5,459 (61.2) (6,39¢) (54.9)
Transaction cosl (4,420 (49.6€) (5,065 (43.9
Payroll and related tax (712) (8.0 (89¢) (7.7)
Ancillary expense (322 (3.6 (439 (3.9
Selling, general and administrative exper (1,839 (20.6) (2,609 (22.9)
Depreciation and amortizatic (129 (1.9 (113 (1.0

Impairment of Intangible Asse 4 — 5) —

Cost of revenue (exclusive of depreciation and diedion)

Cost of revenue (exclusive of depreciation and aéimadion) for the year ended December 31, 2013RUdB 6,396 million, an increase
17%, or RUB 942 million, compared to the same pgknn2012. Transaction costs increased by 15% UB BA5 million, in the year ended
December 31, 2013, compared to the same periodli, Zrom RUB 4,420 million to RUB 5,065 million. &\attribute this increase in
transaction costs primarily to an increase in tpgaiment volume.

Payroll and related taxes for the year ended Deeeib, 2013 were RUB 898 million, an increase ¢fo26r RUB 186 million,
compared to the same period in 2012, primarily thugn increase in salaries and severance paynagntso a lesser extent, bonus and share-
based payment expenses.

Ancillary expenses for the year ended Decembe313 were RUB 433 million, an increase of 35%, tiBRL11 million, compared to
the same period in 2012. An increase mainly restdta a loss on a security breach in December 2@&1@escribed in more detail in “Risk
Factors — Unauthorized disclosure of data, whetftveugh cybersecurity breaches, computer virusegh@rwise, could expose us to liability,
protracted and costly litigation and damage ouutagon”.

Adjusted net revenue and segment net revenue

Adjusted net revenue for the year ended Decemhe2®I13 was RUB 6,168 million, an increase of 48%R0UB 1,999 million, compare
to the same period in 2012. The increase in adjuste revenue was primarily due to an increaseyment volume and growth of net revenue
yield, particularly with respect to Visa Qiwi Wall

Segment net revenue for Qiwi Distribution for threay ended December 31, 2013 was RUB 3,182 miléiarincrease of 12%, or RUB
337 million, compared to the same period in 201 hcrease in segment net revenue was driven bycegase in volume for Qiwi
Distribution. Average net revenue yield for Qiwidliibution was stable at 0.61% for the year endedenber 31, 2013.

Segment net revenue for Visa Qiwi Wallet for tharyended December 31, 2013 was RUB 2,884 millinrinerease of 132%, or RUB
1,643 million, compared to the same period in 201 increase in segment net revenue was drivamlycrease in net revenue yield and in
volume. Average net revenue yield increased byl trom 0.82% for the year ended December 31, 201213% for the year ended
December 31, 2013. The increase in average netuewdeld in Visa Qiwi Wallet resulted primarilyofn changes to fees charged on the
balance of unused accounts after a certain pefiothotivity, which amounted to RUB 549 million asdntributed 0.22% to the Visa QIWI
Wallet net revenue yield for the year ended DecerBhe2013, and an increase in payment volumesided with higher revenue generating
transactions such as ecommerce. Visa QIWI Walletexenue yield excluding revenue from chargesrfactive accounts was 0.92% in the
year ended December 31, 2013, representing aresei@ 17 bps compared to 0.75% in the year endedrbber 31, 2012, primarily a
result of an increase of merchant fees as a pagemf volume due to shifting of revenue mix toveaniyher yielding segments like
ecommerce. We expect that the revenue derived ¢targes for inactive accounts will not affect V@&V Wallet net revenue yield to such a
significant extent going forward, and Visa QIWI \Wlinet revenue yield will likely decline according
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Selling, general and administrative expenses

Selling, general and administrative expenses fetar ended December 31, 2013 were RUB 2,608 mijlén increase of 42%, or RUB
770 million, from the same period in 2012. Thisrgase was primarily due to an increase in payral related taxes by 30%, or RUB
313 million, from RUB 1,030 million in 2012 to RUB343 million in 2013, resulting from share-basegment expenses of RUB 188 million
in 2013, compared to RUB 58 million in 2012; anrgase in bad debt expense from RUB 202 milliondb2to RUB 267 million in 2013,
resulting from additional allowances for certainoof agents; rise in advertising and related ex@efrom RUB 40 million in 2012to RUB
172 million in 2013 due to significant marketingiaities undertaken at the end of 2013; an incréasent of premises and related utility
expenses from RUB 136 million in 2012 to RUB 213liom in 2013, resulting from our move to a newicdf building; an increase of office
maintenance expenses from RUB 118 million in 2@1RWB 186 million in 2013 due to write-off of inviemy and fixed assets connected from
transfer to a new office and an increase in expeNgel from RUB 54 million in 2012 to RUB 117 millioresulting from increased
intercompany transactions for which VAT cannot fffset.

Depreciation and amortization

Depreciation and amortization for the year endeddb@er 31, 2013 was RUB 113 million, a decreask?es, or RUB 16 million,
compared to the same period in 2012. This decreasited primarily from the full depreciation ofrtan fixed assets.

Other non-operating gains and losses
Impairment of investment in associates

Impairment of investment in associates for the yrated December 31, 2013 was RUB 22 million contparenil in the year ended
December 31, 2012, resulting from an impairmendvonholdings in Dengionline, Ltd., whose operatoagformance significantly deteriorated
in 2013. We disposed of our interest in Dengionlictd. for a nominal consideration in 2013.

Other income

Other income for the year ended December 31, 2GE3RIWB 21 million, an increase of 24%, or RUB 4lignil, compared to the same
period in 2012.

Other expenses

Other expenses for the year ended December 31,288RUB 20 million, a decrease of 31%, or RUBIBion, compared to the same
period in 2012. This decrease was primarily duthéoincurrence of expenses in 2012 in share offtosthe period attributable to non-
controlling interests in our subsidiary, Instanyfant LP. No such expenses were incurred in 20b3. decrease was partially offset by an
increase in other expenses of RUB 9 million andniarrence of tax penalties of RUB 7 million in1230

Share of loss of associates

Share of loss of associates for the year endedrbleee31, 2013 was RUB 79 million, an increase oBR86 million compared to the
same period in 2012. This decrease was due tosl@s$zengionline, Ltd., mainly as a result of sfgr@nt bad debts.

Interest income

Interest income for the year ended December 313 2@ RUB 22 million, a decrease of 15%, or RUBIiHian, compared to the same
period in 2012. This decrease was due to a decied@sierest income earned on a loan provided soGiates.
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Interest expense

Interest expense for the year ended December 3B,#@8s RUB 29 million, an increase of 222%, or RMBmillion, compared to the
same period in 2012. This increase was due to@rase in interest payments on loan and bank giegsan

Income tax

Income tax for the year ended December 31, 2013RH3 610 million, an increase of 50%, or RUB 202liom, compared to the same

period in 2012, primarily due to the increase ie-fax income. Our effective tax rate remained nedht constant, decreasing by approximately
2.7 percentage points.

Gain / (loss) from discontinued operations

There was no loss from discontinued operationshferyear ended December 31, 2013, compared te@td3UB 240 million in the san
period in 2012. The loss from discontinued operegim 2012 resulted from certain of our internatiooperations being discontinued during
that period. In addition, in 2012, we recognizeganment charges and loss on revaluation of helddte assets to fair value upon their
disposal in the amount of RUB 167 million in retatito the discontinuation of operations in the lilkeacertain early stage international

businesses and the Diomachin group, which manufedtfearts for our kiosks. This was partially offegtthe actual disposal of discontinued
operations in 2012 resulting in gain of RUB 46 il

Nor-controlling interests

Net loss attributable to non-controlling interefsisthe year ended December 31, 2013 was RUB 3&mjik decrease of 63%, or RUB
64 million, compared to the same period in 201&narily as a result of the discontinuation of cartaf our international operations in the
second half of 2012, resulting in a decrease inaanirolling interests in 2013.

Year ended December 31, 2012 compared to year ebsember 31, 2011
Revenut

Set out below are our revenues, by source, foydlaes ended December 31, 2011 and 2012, and asemfzge of total revenue:

Year ended December 31

2011 2011 2012 2012

(in RUB (% of (in RUB (% of
millions) revenue millions) revenue
Revenue 8,15¢ 100.C 8,911 100.C
Payment processing fe 7,121 87.2 7,62¢ 85.¢€
Revenue from advertisir 262 3.2 454 5.1
Ancillary revenue 77t 9.t 83: 9.3

Revenue for the year ended December 31, 2012 w&83211 million, an increase of 9%, or RUB 753 mil, compared to the same
period in 2011. This increase was primarily duariancrease in payment processing fees, in paatiéal payments made through Visa Qiwi
Wallet. Payment processing fees for the year edmember 31, 2012 were RUB 7,624 million, an inseeaf 7%, or RUB 503 million,

compared to the same period in 2011. The increapayment processing fees resulted from an incriegsayment volumes in Qiwi Wallet by
132%, from RUB 65 billion to RUB 152 billion.

The number of active Visa Qiwi Wallet consumerg@ased from 8.1 million in the year ended Decen3lie2011 to 11.4 million for the
year ended December 31, 2012. Average annual payrakme per Visa Qiwi Wallet account increasedrfrBRUB 8,028 to RUB 13,260. |
Qiwi Distribution, payment volume increased by 1486m RUB 408 billion to RUB 465 billion, primarilgriven by an increase in Visa Qiwi
Wallet users reloading their wallets as well asn@nease in loan repayments through our kioskstamdinals. The size of our Qiwi Distributi

network remained largely unchanged, with 169,1aRad&iosks and terminals as of December 31, 20&&)pared to 170,384 as of
December 31, 2011.
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Advertising revenue for the year ended DecembeRB12 was RUB 454 million, an increase of 73%, 0iBRL92 million, compared to
the same period in 2011. This increase primariyited from a significant increase in the numbecusdtomers to whom we offered SMS
advertising services in 2012.

Ancillary revenue for the year ended December 8122vas RUB 833 million, an increase of 7%, or Re&fBmillion, compared to the
same period in 2011, primarily due to an increaseterest revenue by 71%, or RUB 97 million, assult of a greater amount invested in dek
instruments and increased cash deposits in intbesstng accounts as well as increased revenuedesim and settlement services, due to the
introduction of additional fees charged for depositour agents. These increases were partialbebffy a decline in revenue from rent of sj
for kiosks by 67%, or RUB 180 million, due to thartsfer of a significant portion of this busines®ur associate.

Operating expenses

Set out below are the primary components of ouraip®y expenses for the years ended December 31,&@d 2012, and as a percen
of total revenue:

Year ended December 31

2011 2011 2012 2012

(in RUB (% of (in RUB (% of
millions) revenue’ millions) revenue’
Cost of revenue (exclusive of depreciation and digadion) (5,579 (68.3) (5,459 (61.2)
Transaction cosl (4,447 (54.5) (4,420 (49.6
Payroll and related tax (669) (8.2 (712 (8.0
Ancillary expense (457) (5.6 (322 (3.6
Selling, general and administrative exper (1,549 (18.9) (1,839 (20.6)
Depreciation and amortizatic (147 (1.7 (129 (1.9

Impairment of Intangible Asse — — 4 —

Cost of revenue (exclusive of depreciation and dizedion)

Cost of revenue (exclusive of depreciation and aéimadion) for the year ended December 31, 2012RUdB 5,454 million, a decrease of
2%, or RUB 119 million, compared to the same peio#011. Transaction costs decreased by 1%, or RUBIillion, in the year ended
December 31, 2012, compared to the same periodlifh, srom RUB 4,447 million to RUB 4,420 million. &\attribute this decrease in
transaction costs primarily to a decrease in merctes from MNO, which resulted in lower commissfees payable to agents by Qiwi
Distribution in 2012. The decrease in transactiostEwas partially offset by an increase in togaiment volume.

Payroll and related taxes for the year ended Deeefb, 2012 were RUB 712 million, an increase of 6#RUB 43 million, compared
to the same period in 2011, primarily due to higstatutory tax rates in Russia and an increasalamigs in line with inflation in Russia over
this period.

Ancillary expenses for the year ended Decembe312 were RUB 322 million, a decrease of 30%, oBRI35 million compared to tt
same period in 2011. The decrease in ancillary esgeeprimarily resulted from a decrease in the afont of space for kiosks from RUB
238 million to RUB 95 million, due to the transfara significant portion of this business to ous@date.

Adjusted net revenue and segment net revenue

Adjusted net revenue for the year ended Decemhe2@®R2 was RUB 4,169 million, an increase of 28%R0B 915 million, compared
to the same period in 2011. The increase in adjuste revenue is primarily due to a 19% increasgeirpayment volume, particularly with
respect to Visa Qiwi Wallet.

Segment net revenue for Qiwi Distribution for theay ended December 31, 2012 was RUB 2,845 milimimerease of 14.1%, or RUB
351 million, compared to the same period in 201ie hcrease in segment net revenue
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was driven by an increase in volume for Qiwi Distition, while average net revenue yield for Qiwstbibution remained unchanged at 0.61%
for the year ended December 31, 2012, as the iselieanet revenue from consumer fees as a pereeataglume of 5 bps and net revenue
from value added services as a percentage of voltiiridps was offset by a decline in net revenamfmerchant fees as a percentage of
volume of 11 bps.

Segment net revenue for Visa Qiwi Wallet for tharyended December 31, 2012 was RUB 1,241 milliorinerease of 79.9%, or RUB
551 million, compared to the same period in 201ie hcrease in segment net revenue was driven bycegase in volume, partially offset by
a decrease of 23 bps in average net revenue wieMisa Qiwi Wallet, from 1.05% for the year endedcember 31, 2011 to 0.82% for the yea
ended December 31, 2012. The decrease in averageveaue yield in Visa Qiwi Wallet resulted priritfrom a decline in revenue from
consumer fees as a percentage of payment volurtiallyaoffset by a decline in direct cost assoaiaéth Visa Qiwi Wallet as a percentage of
payment volume. Revenue from consumer fees ascamtage of payment volume decreased by 32 bpse dhict costs as a percentage of
payment volume decreased by 13 bps.

Selling, general and administrative expenses

Selling, general and administrative expenses ®tar ended December 31, 2012 were RUB 1,83%mijléin increase of 19%, or RUB
296 million, from the same period in 2011. Thisreese was primarily due to an increase in bad @giénse from RUB 54 million in 2011 to
RUB 202 million in 2012 resulting from additiondlavances for five of our agents, an increase yrplhand related taxes by 16%, or RUB
141 million, from RUB 889 million in 2011 to RUBA30 million in 2012, resulting from an increasecampensation to management in 2012,
and recognition of expenses relating to our inpiablic offering in the amount of RUB 109 milliowhich were not incurred in 2011. These
increases were partially offset by a decrease wertiding and related expenses of RUB 107 millaue to reduced advertising, a decrease in
rent of premises and related utility expenses oBRA1 million and a decrease in professional feeR@B 20 million. For the year ended
December 31, 2012, selling, general and adminigtraxpenses included RUB 61 million of expenséxcated to discontinued operations
compared to RUB 141 million in the same period @I 2.

Depreciation and amortization

Depreciation and amortization for the year endeddbeber 31, 2012 was RUB 129 million, a decrease8&t, or RUB 28 million
compared to the same period in 2011. This decresséted primarily from the full amortization ofqudred customer relationship intangible
2011.

Impairment of intangible assets

Impairment of intangible assets for the year erldedember 31, 2012 was RUB 4 million, resulting fribra write-off of obsolete
computer software, compared to nil in 2011.

Other non-operating gains and losses
Gain on bargain purchase

Gain on bargain purchase for the year ended DeaeBih@012 was nil compared to a gain of RUB 15iamlin 2011 as no material
acquisitions were made in 2012 other than investimesssociates.

Change in fair value of derivative financial assets

There was a decrease in fair value of derivatinaricial assets for the year ended December 31, 20R2JB 0.3 million compared to r
change in the same period in 2011. This decreasa&umto the disposal in 2012 of certain put atidopsions we held over shares of
subsidiaries and associates.

Other income

Other income for the year ended December 31, 2GE2RIB 17 million, an increase of 70%, or RUB 7linil, compared to the same
period in 2011. This increase was primarily dua gain on the issuance on loans to agents at aigan-market interest rates of RUB 8
million.
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Other expenses

Other expenses for the year ended December 31,282RUB 29 million, a decrease of 60%, or RUBi#lion, compared to the sar
period in 2011. This decrease was primarily duea@ecognition of loss related to a discount omso@sued to related parties in 2012, which
was partially offset by an increase in share adfigsofit) for the period attributable to non-cailing interest and accounted for as a liability of
RUB 24 million in 2012 as compared to RUB 17 mitlim 2011.

Foreign exchange gain/(loss), net

Foreign exchange loss, net for the year ended Dieee81, 2012 was RUB 21 million, an increase of 76#4UB 9 million, compared
to the same period in 2011. The increase is atrefah increased number of transactions in foreigmencies by our subsidiaries in line with
the increase in our operations. Foreign exchange(lpss) as a percentage of profit before tax ieethstable at approximately 1.4% in 2011
and 2012.

Share of loss of associates

Share of loss of associates for the year endedrbleee31, 2012 was RUB 13 million, a decrease of A&RUB 10 million, compared
to the same period in 2011. This decrease wasada@lecrease in the amount of losses of Blestgemtgrprises Ltd (Cyprus) by RUB
13 million compared to the same period in 2011 Whias partially offset by losses incurred by theoagted companies acquired in 2012
totaling RUB 3 million.

Income tax

Income tax for the year ended December 31, 2012RiH3 408 million, an increase of 69%, or RUB 161liom, compared to the same
period in 2011, primarily due to the increase ie-fax income. Our effective tax rate remained n&tht constant, decreasing by approximately
1.1%

Gain / (loss) from discontinued operations

Loss from discontinued operations for the year dridecember 31, 2012 was RUB 240 million, an inceezH54%, or RUB 84 million,
compared to 2011. This increase resulted from iceofaour international operations being discongéidwuring the year ended December 31,
2012, which resulted in a loss from discontinuedrapions. In addition, we recognized impairmentrgha and loss on revaluation of held for
sale assets to fair value upon their disposalémathount of RUB 167 million in relation to the distinuation of operations in the Ukraine,
certain early stage international businesses am@®ibmachin group, which manufactured parts forldosks. This was partially offset by the
actual disposal of discontinued operations in 2@B2lting in gain of RUB 46 million. Our dispositi@f Master Loto was not included in
discontinued operations as its operations werguifstant.

Nor-controlling interests

Net loss attributable to non-controlling interefststhe year ended December 31, 2012 was RUB 10@mian increase of 13%, or RUB
12 million, compared to the same period in 201imarily as a result of an increase in losses a@eof our international early-stage
businesses.

B. Liquidity and capital resources

Our principal sources of liquidity are cash on hadeposits received from agents and consumerseaetiues generated from our
operations.

Our principal needs for liquidity have been, andl likiely continue to be, deposits with merchantsl @ther working capital items, capi
expenditures and acquisitions. Although our curliahbilities generally exceed our current assets palieve that our working capital is
sufficient to meet our current obligations sincedwenot expect our agents to withdraw their degasithe short term.

Our balance of cash and cash equivalents as ofnbleme31, 2013 was RUB 11,637 million compared tdR3,R43 million as of
December 31, 2012 and RUB 8,810 million as of Ddmm31, 2011. Cash and cash equivalents compri$eatdbanks and cash on hand and
short-term deposits with an original maturity ofed months or less.
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An important part of our credit risk management pagment settlement strategy in Qiwi Distributi@ties on deposits we receive from
agents in advance for payments made through tisk&idVhen a payment is made through a kiosk, weetthese deposits against the
payments we make to the merchant. For certain agétti whom we have long and reliable relationships provide limited credit support in
the form of overdrafts and loans for processingmmants.

Similarly, certain of our merchants (primarily tBeg Three MNOSs) request that we make deposits thigm in relation to payments
processed through our kiosks. Whenever a custorakesma payment to a merchant with whom we have maldgposit, that payment gets
offset against the deposit held with the respeatieechant.

As of December 31, 2013, deposits received frormizgend individual customers were RUB 12,352 millioompared to RUB
9,856 million as of December 31, 2012 and RUB 7 38lion as of December 31, 2011. As of December2®l 3, deposits issued to our
merchants were RUB 1,939 million, compared to RUB1 million as of December 31, 2012 and RUB 1 hilion as of December 31, 20!

Capital Expenditures

Our capital expenditures primarily relate to thguasition of IT equipment for our processing systama the acquisition and developm
of software that we use in operations. Capital egfiares were RUB 476 million for the year ende¢®uber 31, 2013, that include:
(i) approximately RUB 137 million of which relateéd leasehold improvements for our new office pre&mjgii) approximately RUB
123 million of which relates to the acquisitiontbé processing servers and engineering equipmeatii@ approximately RUB 159 million of
which relates to the acquisition of computer sofevé\s of December 31, 2013, we had no materigtalagxpenditure commitments.

Cash Flow
The following table summarizes our cash flows far years ended 2011, 2012 and 2013:

December 31

2011 2012 2013
(in RUB millions)
Net cash flow from operating activiti 2,04¢ 3,49¢ 4,72¢
Net cash flow from/(used in) investing activiti 33¢ (1,499 (1,200
Net cash flow used in financing activiti 472) (871) (1,84¢)
Effect of exchange rates on cash and cash equts: 2 3 15
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equis. 1,91¢ 1,13¢ 1,69¢
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning oféhieq 6,89: 8,81( 9,94:
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the p 8,81( 9,94: 11,637

Cash flows from operating activities

Net cash provided by operating activities for tearyended December 31, 2013 was RUB 4,725 mikiompared to RUB 3,499 million
for the same period in 2012. The primary drivertf@ increase in cash from operating activities arafcrease in profit before tax.

Net cash provided by operating activities for tlealyended December 31, 2012 was RUB 3,499 miliompared to RUB 2,049 million
for the same period in 2011. The primary drivertfa increase in cash from operating activities aragcrease in deposits from individuals
and payables to merchants due to growth of volumésa Qiwi Wallet, the growth of deposits from atgedue to the longer New Year holic
season in Russia in 2013, and increased profitgbilhis increase was partially offset by withdrésvaf cash by customers and related parties
from Qiwi Bank, higher deposits placed with merdisan 2012, and an increase in loan financing enégyby Qiwi Bank.
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Cash flows from investing activities

Net cash used in investing activities for the yeaded December 31, 2013 was RUB 1,200 million, ayeghto RUB 1,498 million for
the same period in 2012. The increase in net daghused in investing activities was primarily doe (i) change in net proceeds from
settlement of debt instruments of RUB 609 millior2013 compared to 2012; (ii) investments in asgesiof RUB 93 million in 2012 (no such
investments in 2013) that were netted by (iii) @age in capital expenditures by RUB 297 milliom) flayment for assignment of Payable by
Blestgroup Limited of RUB 91 million, which was mads part of our acquisition of the remaining iesgin it.

Net cash flow used in investing activities for fear ended December 31, 2012 was RUB 1,498 miliompared to net cash flows from
investing activities of RUB 339 million for the sameriod in 2011. The increase in net cash used@sting activities was primarily due to
investments of RUB 1,869 in debt instruments dul2 and increased investments in associates 8f $&million in 2012 as compared to
RUB 4 million in 2011.

Cash flows used in financing activities

Net cash used in financing activities for the yeaded December 31, 2013 was RUB 1,846 million, areghto RUB 871 million for the
same period in 2012. The increase in net cashindathncing activities was primarily due to theypgent of a higher amount of dividends to
our shareholders.

Net cash used in financing activities for the yemded December 31, 2012 was RUB 871 million, corghén RUB 472 million for the
same period in 2011. The increase in net cashindathncing activities was primarily due to theypzent of a higher amount of dividends paic
to our shareholders.

Borrowings

As of December 31, 2013, our outstanding borrowtwssisted of loans to our subsidiaries from nomtmiling shareholders of RUB
100.6 million, other borrowings of RUB 8.8 millioand overdrafts of RUB 0.6 million. Interest rateadl loans lay within 10 and 10.5%.
Borrowings in the amount of RUB 9.6 million wereeéved in EUR, RUB 82.6 million were received in%nd the rest of the amount (Rl
8.3 million) in RUB. All the borrowings (except foverdrafts) were long-term, repayable in 2015-20t&y did not bear any special
restrictions on their use.

CJSC QIWI is also party to two short-term overdfa#ilities agreements of up to RUB 85 million arlto RUB 315 million with a 365-
day term and an interest rate of 10.3%. As of Ddmr31, 2013, no amounts were outstanding undseetfailities.

C. Research and development, patents and licenses,.¢

See Item 4.B, “Business Overview — Non-Property.”

D. Trend information

Other than as disclosed elsewhere in this annpaltenve are not aware of any trends, uncertaindiesrands, commitments or events fol
the year ended December 31, 2013 that are reagdil@y to have a material adverse effect on cetrnevenues, income, profitability,
liquidity or capital resources, or that would catise disclosed financial information to be not reseeily indicative of future operating results
or financial conditions.

E. Off-balance sheet arrangement

We do not have any off-balance sheet financinghgements.
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F.  Tabular disclosure of contractual obligations

The following table sets forth our contractual ghtions as of December 31, 2013:

more

less thar than five
one to three to
Total one yeal three years five years years
(in RUB millions)
Debt obligations 131 10 121 — —
Operating lease obligatiol 751 141 222 223 164
Total contractual obligatior 882 151 344 222 164

G. Safe harbor
See “Special Note Regarding - Forward Looking $tetets” on page 1 of this annual report.

ITEM 6. Directors, Senior Management and Employees
A. Directors and Senior Management.
Directors and Executive Officers

The following table sets forth information regamgliour directors and executive officers as of thie dd this annual report.

Name Age Position
Andrey Romanenko 34 Director, Chairman of the Boa
Sergey Solonil 40 Director, Chief Executive Office
Andrei Muravyev 39 Director

Igor Mikhaylov 43 Director

Matthew Hammont 39 Director

Verdi Israelyar 38 Director

Boris Kim 50 Director

Nilesh Lakhan 54 Independent Directc

Dmitry Pleskono: 49 Independent Directc

Marcus Rhode 52 Independent Directc

Alexey Rasskazo 47 Director

Alexander Agakoy 40 Head, Qiwi Distributior

Anna Stoklitskay: 37 Managing Director, Visa Qiwi Walle
Andrey Popko\ 52 Chief Compliance Office
Alexander Karavae 38 Chief Financial Office

Maria Panferovi 34 General Counst

Biographies

Andrey Romanenkavir. Andrey Romanenko has served as our directmesDecember 2010 and as chairman of our boarttextdrs
since October 2012. He was nominated to our bolditectors by Antana. Mr. Romanenko is an entrepoe and has over 14 years of
experience in the payment services and bankingsiniés. He is one of the co-founders of our preseae OSMP, and from July 2007 until
October 2012 served as our chief executive offiarce March 2011, Mr. Romanenko has been a pasfriero venture funds, AddVenture I
and iTech Capital. Mr. Romanenko has served asmalraeof the board of directors of Qiwi Bank sincad 2009. Mr. Romanenko graduated
from International Independent University of Envirsental and Political Sciences in 2000 with a degn€inancial management.

Sergey SoloninMr. Sergey Solonin has served as our directoresidecember 2010 and as our chief executive offitere October
2012. He was nominated to our board of directorSalgivar. Mr. Solonin is an entrepreneur and hes @4 years of experience in the
payment services and banking industries. He isobtige co-founders of OSMP and from April 2009 Létctober 2012 served as an advisor tc
the president on financial matters at OSMP. Mro8il is currently the chief executive officer ofv@diService JSC, a position he has held <
October 2012. He also serves on the board of directf Qiwi Bank and from March 1999 until SeptemP@09 was the chairman of its board
of directors. Mr. Solonin is also an executive Bibillion LLC as well as one of the two directorsidéch Advisors Ltd. Mr. Solonin graduated
from the Russian Financial Institution in 1996 watldegree in economics.
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Andrei Muravyev Mr. Andrei Muravyev has served as our directocsiMay 2013. He was nominated to our board otttirs by
Palmway. Mr. Muravyev is an entrepreneur and isafrtbe co-founders of Parus Capital Limited, arestment company. He was also one of
the co-founders of OJSC Holding Company Sibirsk&ym@nt, one of the largest cement producers in Rudsi is a director and a chief
executive officer of Parus Capital Limited, a piosithe has held since September 2008. From Aud\ist Antil August 2008 Mr. Muravyev
was a director and a chief executive officer of OJ®lding Company Sibirskiy Cement. Mr. Muravyewaduated from Kemerovo State
Technical University in 1997 with a degree in eaoitcs. He also graduated with a BA from San Framcidniversity in 1998 with a degree in
finance.

Igor Mikhaylov. Mr. Igor Mikhaylov has served as our director silday 2013. He was nominated to our board of dirsdby Dargle
and Bralvo. Mr. Mikhaylov is an entrepreneur witleo 14 years of experience in the payment seniwhsstry. He is one of the co-founders of
OSMP.

Matthew HammondMr. Matthew Hammond has served as our directaresBeptember 2011. He was nominated to our board of
directors by Mail.ru. He is the managing directod dhe chief financial officer of Mail.ru, positiefhe has held since April 2011 and June 2
respectively. He also serves on the board of direaif Mail.ru, a position he has held since Mag@Mr. Hammond is also a hon-executive
director of Nautilus Minerals Inc., Strike Resowg@and Puricore. Previously, Mr. Hammond was a gsitategist for Metalloinvest Holdings
where he managed Metalloinvest’s non-core asséfipfiorand advised its board of directors on invesit strategy, mergers and acquisitions
and foreign exchange transactions. Prior to thatyéis a technology analyst at Credit Suisse fro@7 1til 2009. Mr. Hammond graduated
with a BA from Bristol University in 1997 with a geee in economics and history.

Verdi Israelyan.Mr. Verdi Israelyan has served as our directocesillay 2013. He was nominated to our board of thredy Mail.ru.
He joined an affiliate of Mail.ru in 2009 and waspainted COO (Russia) of Mail.ru in November 20H8.was also the chief financial officer
of Mail.ru, from August 2011 until June 2013. Hevss on the board of directors of several portfotionpanies owned by Mail.ru. In June
2013 Mr. Israelyan was appointed to the board of.Mieand stepped down as COO and CFO. Previobsly|sraelyan was co-head of the
European Special Situations Group (CIS Operatiah§oldman Sachs in Moscow. Prior to that, he vegmuty head of Russia Investment
Banking at Morgan Stanley. He started his caredrtiiur Andersen and subsequently worked at LehBrathers in London. Mr. Israelyan
holds an MBA from the Rotterdam School of ManagetnErasmus University in the Netherlands.

Boris Kim. Mr. Boris Kim has served as our director since M8%3. He was nominated to our board of directgrEb. Mr. Kim is an
entrepreneur with over 18 years of experienceérpidiyment services industry. He is also the healdeopayment networks and banking
instruments committee at the Russian E-Market €lpatints National Association. He is one of the @orfders of e-port and served as its chief
executive officer from November 2004 until Septem2@07 and from September 2007 until February 2048 an advisor to the chief
executive officer of e-port. From October 1999 L@ittober 2004, Mr. Kim was advisor to the chairno@he board of the banking and
financial group Zerich. From September 1993 umtilubry 1999 he was a chairman of the managemerd bb&hastny Bank. Mr. Kim
graduated from Lomonosov Moscow State University985 with a degree in chemistry, Russian Institifittinance and Economics in 1996
with a degree in finance, Moscow State Law Acad@mB000 with a degree in law and Lomonosov MoscaateSUniversity in 2004 with a
degree in psychology and a degree in philosophy.

Nilesh Lakhani.Mr. Nilesh Lakhani has served as our directoresifogust 2013. Mr. Lakhani has over 25 years okerpce working
with international companies. He has held key etteeypositions with growth companies in the teclwggl, media and financial services
industries. From 2010 until 2012, he was the CFOxésk Corporation. Prior to that, from 2007 uR6IL0, he was the CFO of Yandex
(Nasdag: YNDX). He also served as CFO of CTC Méwatien 2004 until 2007, which he led to a success?@ in 2006. Mr. Lakhani also
currently serves as an independent director obdlaeds of Decolar, GetGoing and Netshoes. Mr. Lakgeaduated with a BA from the
University of Manchester with a degree in econonaieg social studies and holds an MBA in financenftbe University of San Francisco.
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Dmitry Pleskonos Mr. Dmitry Pleskonos has served as our diredtaresAugust 2013. Mr. Pleskonos has over 20 yefhirgernational
company executive experience. From 2004 until 28&held various leadership positions at Vimpel-@amications and Vimpel-Com Ltd.,
including executive vice president of mass marlkstetbpment and executive vice president of busideselopment for CIS. Mr. Pleskonos
began his career at Mars, Inc. in 1993, during tvhilme he served as sales operations directordssi® and CIS countries from May 2002
until his departure from Mars, Inc. in 2004. Mre§konos is also served a member of the supeniimard of JSC “INDASTRIAL
ASSOCIATION “KONTI”. Dmitry graduated with honorsdm Kiev Higher Military School of Radio-Engineegimnd Air Defense and from
the Military Diplomatic Academy.

Marcus RhodesMr. Marcus Rhodes has served as our directoeditery 2013. He is also an independent directoraadisthirman of the
audit committee for PhosAgro (since May 2011), ¥stRetroleum (since September 2009), Cherkizovais(since February 2009) and
Rosinter Group (since July 2008). From July 2008 done 2011, Mr. Rhodes was an independent directd a chairman of the audit
committee for Wimm-Bill-Dann Foods, and from Noveenl2009 until June 2011 for Rusagro Group. Mr. Risodas an audit partner for
Ernst & Young from 2002 until 2008. Prior to thlg was an audit partner for Arthur Andersen frorgLantil 2002. He qualified as a
chartered accountant in 1986 and is a member dhitute of Accountants in England & Wales (ICAEWIr. Rhodes graduated with a BA
(Hons) from Loughborough University in 1982 witll@gree in economics & social history.

Alexey Rasskazowr. Alexey Rasskazov has served as our direiboesMay 2013. He was nominated to our board afadars by
Saldivar. From May 2012 until December 2012, he arasdvisor to the chief executive officer of OSNPFor to that, Mr. Rasskazov was a
vice president of international operations at OSkdbn April 2011 until March 2012. From October 200til April 2011, he held numerous
positions with OSMP, including as vice presidenindéérmation technology between January 2010 andl 2011. Before joining OSMP,

Mr. Rasskazov was a project manager and IT direxdtBank Menatep, Norilsk Nickel and ALROSA Investm Group between 1996 and
2006. Mr. Rasskazov graduated from the Moscowtlristiof Physics and Technology in 1989 with a degmesngineering.

Alexander AgakovMr. Alexander Agakov has served as head of owi Qistribution segment since November 2011. Mrakgv has
over 19 years of experience in sales. He is alsalifector general at CISC QIWI, a position heled since November 2011. From January
2010 until November 2011, he was vice presidemooimerce at OSMP. Prior to that, Mr. Agakov wagreatior of CIS business development
at OSMP. From October 1996 until November 2007, Myakov held humerous positions with the salessitivi at Mars LLC. Mr. Agakov
graduated from the International Slavic Institutéaliningrad in 2004 with a degree in finance.

Anna StoklitskayaMs. Anna Stoklitskaya has served as Managingdioreof Visa Qiwi Wallet since July 2013. Ms. Stitdkaya has
over 15 years of strategic and production markegixgerience. Before joining us, Ms. Stoklitskayakeal at Procter & Gamble for a period of
12 years, having served as associate directotriegic planning and market development in Ruasdholding numerous other positions in
market strategy and planning, business developamhtustomer service. Ms. Stoklitskaya graduatau fovosibisrsk State University.

Andrey Popkov Mr. Andrey Popkov has served as our chief compheofficer since August 2013. Between January 20DJuly 2013,
he was head of Qiwi International Payment System.Rdpkov has over 7 years of experience in ITniFipvember 2005 until December
2009 he was an advisor to the chairman on stantafters, including our mobile wallet project (thegecessor of Qiwi Wallet). Before joining
us, Mr. Popkov was a head of the Moscow represeataffice of Star Glass from September 2003 udttober 2005. From October 1983 v
March 1990, he was a chemical scientist at Zeli@siganic Chemistry Institute of USSR Academy ofeBce. Mr. Popkov graduated from
Moscow State University in 1983 with a degree irrafstry. He also holds an MBA degree from CalifarBtate University, Hayward.

Alexander KaravaevMr. Alexander Karavaev has served as our chiefrftial officer since July 2013. Mr. Karavaev hasrdl5 years (
experience in finance and accounting. He is alsexacutive director of Qiwi-Service JSC, a positi@nhas held since August 2012. From
August 2012 to July 2013, Mr. Karavaev served aschief operating officer. Before joining us, fradovember 2008 until September 2011
Mr. Karavaev was a chief financial officer of Mail. He also previously served as a nominee dirdotdvail.ru on our board of directors.
Previously, Mr. Karavaev was a chief financial offi of Akado Group (a subsidiary of Renova Holdibg)ween March 2008 and October
2008 and a deputy chief financial officer at Renbetween May 2007 and October 2008.
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He was also vice a president of development offifed systems at SUAL Holding from December 2008l iiay 2007. Mr. Karavaev started
his career at the audit department of Arthur Aneieiig July 1997 and after moving to Ernst & Youndvay 2001 worked at the audit and
business consulting departments until December.2d@3Karavaev graduated with honors from SibeA@nospace Academy in 1998 with a
degree in economics, majoring in management aategic planning. Concurrently, between Septemb@6 Hhd October 1997, he attendec
University Passau in Germany, studying strategaing.

Maria Panferova Ms. Maria Panferova has served as our generalsebsince April 2003 and chief executive officéawi Bank since
August 2013. Ms. Panferova has over 12 years aérgaqpce in law. She has been with us since ouptimme Ms. Panferova was the director of
legal policy and strategic communications in Q®érvice JSC, a position she held from October 201 August 2013. From November 2(
until September 2012, she was a vice presiderégal policy and strategic communications at OSBIfe also serves on the board of direc
of OJSC United Art Tickets, a position she has Isglide June 2006. Previously, Ms. Panferova waspatgt chairman of the management
board and a general counsel of Russian InvestmebtCISC (subsequently renamed as JSCB First RingeBank (CJSC) and Qiwi Bank),
between April 2003 and November 2010. Ms. Panfegraduated from the Saint Petersburg Institutérfternational Economic Relations,
Economics and Law in 2001 with a degree in law.

B. Compensation.
Compensation of Directors and Executive Officers

Under our articles of association, our shareholdetsrmine the compensation of our directors frione tto time at a general meeting of
our shareholders, our board of directors determtimesompensation of our chief executive officehigh power has been delegated to the
compensation committee), and our chief executifieafdetermines the compensation of our other atkee officers.

For the year ended December 31, 2013, the aggregratmeration paid (comprising salary, discretigrimnuses and other short-term
benefits) to our directors and executive officeesWwRUB 123 million. No amounts in respect of pensjaetirement or similar benefits have
been accrued in any of the periods presentedsratimiual report. Our Russian subsidiaries are redjbly law to make contributions equal to
fixed percentages of each employee’s salary foohker pension insurance, medical insurance amaf gtatutory benefits. None of our non-
executive directors and independent director agpesmhas a service contract with us that providebdnefits upon termination of office.

Employee Stock Option Plan

General.In October 2012, our board of directors adopted@ndshareholders approved an Employee Stock Optimm, or the Plan, an
equity-based incentive compensation plan intenddtelp align the interests of our management aherstwith those of our shareholders. In
January 2013 and then in July 2013, the Plan wanded and restated. Under the Plan, we may graionsgo purchase our class B shares tc
employees and service providers in connection thigir provision of services to us or our subsidisriA maximum of 3,640,000 of our class B
shares, or 7% of our entire issued and outstarshiage capital as of the date immediately precedimgnitial public offering, are reserved for
issuance under the Plan, subject to equitable tmou in the event of certain corporate transastisach as a stock split or recapitalization.
The Plan is scheduled to expire on the tenth anséwve of its adoption, although previously grardegards will remain outstanding after such
date in accordance with their terms.

Administration.Our chief executive officer and our deputy chieéextive offer administer the Plan, including detaing the vesting
schedule, exercise price, term of the award, teansftrictions applicable to shares acquired @unsto an option exercise and other terms an
conditions of option awards under the Plan. Ourdad directors has the authority to make all neagsor appropriate interpretations of Plan
terms. The participants of the plan are also seteby our chief executive officer.

Option Terms GenerallyOptions granted under the Plan permit the holdéh@bption to purchase our class B shares ondesutons
are vested and exercisable, at a purchase pricghpeg determined by our board of
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directors and specified in the option grant. Grafitsptions under the Plan following the initiallpie offering have a purchase price per share
not less than the average closing price of ouisdiashares on the principal exchange on which shahes are then traded for the ten business
days immediately preceding the date of grant. @gtgranted under the Plan cannot be sold, pledgdidposed of in any manner without our
prior written consent.

Net Income Transfer Restrictiorll options granted under the Plan are subjeart@additional transfer restriction applicable hares
acquired by exercising the option. This transfstrietion prohibits the individual from transfergnhese shares unless we have achieved
U.S.$170 million in net income (measured in accoogawith the management reporting practices) duhegrevious 12 month period. We
will determine at the end of each fiscal quarteethler such net income test has been met and, extast that it has not been met, individuals
holding shares acquired through the exercise sktloptions are not permitted to transfer the shah@e they remain employed by us or one
our subsidiaries. This transfer restriction wilase to apply in the event that the option holdengployment or service with us or our
subsidiaries terminates.

Other Information Shares subject to options which are cancellddrégited without being exercised will be returrted¢he Plan and will
be available for subsequent option grants undePtae. Any material amendment to the Plan (sudh@addition of more class B shares to the
pool of shares available under the Plan) or thetiolo of a new equity compensation plan, is sulj@etpproval by our shareholders in
accordance with the Nasdaq Listing Rules.

Outstanding Equity Awards to Certain Executive Officers
The following table sets forth certain informatiaith respect to outstanding equity awards heldhayfollowing executive officers at
March 8, 2014:

Number of Number of
Class B Share Class B Share

Underlying Underlying
Vested Unvested Option
Options (#) Options (#) Exercise Option Expiration
Grant Date Exercisable Unexercisable Price ($) Date

Alexander Agakov December 21, 20: 83,23t 83,23« 13.645: December 31, 20:
Andrey Popko\ December 21, 20: 50,24¢ 50,24¢ 13.645: December 31, 20:
Alexander Karavae December 21, 20: 82,08( 51,30( 13.645: December 31, 20:
Mariya Panferovi December 21, 20: 52,01¢ 52,01¢ 13.645: December 31, 20:
Anna Stoklitskayz November 15, 201 44,00( 88,00( 41.238( December 31, 20:

C. Board Practices.
Board of Directors

Our company has a single-tier board structure, witioard of directors comprised of up to twelvediors nominated and elected by the
shareholders (subject to certain exemptions), dintpup to three directors who shall be independerttors (see also “Description of Share
Capital—Board of Directors”)The primary responsibility of our board of directds to oversee the operations of our companyt@sdpervis:
the policies of senior management and the affdimiocompany. The term for the directors servingpar board of directors at the time of the
annual report will expire at the annual generaltingeof shareholders to be held in 2014. After tinaieting, our directors will be elected at
each subsequent annual general meeting of shaszbold

Under Nasdaq listing standards, a director empldoyeds or that has, or had, certain relationshigls us during the three years prior to
this annual report, cannot be deemed to be an émdlsmt director, and each other director will dyads independent, only if our board of
directors affirmatively determines that he has raderial relationship with us, either directly oraapartner, shareholder or officer of an
organization that has a relationship with us. Owhigr of a significant amount of our shares, byffitstes not constitute a material relations
Accordingly, our board of directors has affirmativdetermined that Mr. Marcus Rhodes, Mr. Nileslkhani and Mr. Dmitry Pleskonos are
each an independent director in accordance witiN#slaq Listing Rules.
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Committees of our Board of Directors
We have established four committees under the bafaditectors: the audit committee, compensatiommittee, strategy committee and
innovation committee. We have adopted a charteedoh of these committees. Each committee’s menametrfunctions are as follows.

Audit committeeOur audit committee consists of Messrs. Rhodes,damko, Lakhani and Pleskonos. Mr. Rhodes is therohan of the
audit committee and our board of directors hasrdeteed that Mr. Rhodes qualifies as an “audit cottamifinancial expert,” as defined under
Nasdaq Listing Rules and the rules and regulatidtise Exchange Act. Messrs. Rhodes, Lakhani aagkBhos are each an indepenc
director in accordance with the Nasdaq Listing Rul&e are relying on the phase-in rules of the Brge Act and Nasdaq with respect to the
independence of our audit committee. These rulewipas to have an audit committee in which a miajaf members are independent ninety
days after the listing date and all members arepaddent within one year of the listing date.

The purpose of the audit committee is to assisboard of directors with its oversight responsilg$ regarding: (a) the integrity of our
financial statements, (b) our compliance with lesyad regulatory requirements, (c) the independaditar’'s qualifications and independence
and (d) the performance of our internal audit fiorcand independent auditor.

Our audit committee’s duties include, but are matted to:

. selecting the independent registered publioacting firm and pre-approving all auditing and rearditing services permitted to be
performed by the independent registered public @aibog firm;

. reviewing with the independent registered publicoamting firm any audit problems or difficultiescamanageme’s response
. reviewing all proposed related party transacti@ssiefined in Item 404 of Regulatio-K under the Securities Ac
. discussing the annual audited financial statem@ittsmanagement and the independent registeredcpaddounting firm

. reviewing major issues as to the adequacy ofrdarnal control and any special audit steps &tbm light of material control
deficiencies; an

. meeting separately and periodically with manageraadtthe independent registered public accouniing

Compensation committe®ur compensation committee consists of Messrs. Ramanenko, Pleskonos and Hammond. Mr. Kim is the
chairman of the compensation committee. Mr. Pleskas an independent director in accordance wig\thsdaq Listing Rules. We follow
Cyprus law which does not require companies to lzavempensation committee made up entirely of inddpnt directors. We believe that the
significant ownership in our ordinary shares by itiembers of our compensation committee who aréndependent directors aligns the
interests of such directors with our shareholdersegally and ensures sufficient oversight of exgeutompensation. None of the members of
our compensation committee is an officer or empgoyEour company.

Our compensation committee’s duties include, betrat limited to:

. approving the compensation package of the chiefigke officer;

. administering our equity incentive ple

. overseeing, and advising the board of directorowarall compensation plans and benefit programd

. authorizing the repurchase of shares from termihateployees
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Strategy committe®ur strategy committee consists of Messrs. Rassk&ummanenko, Pleskonos and Solonin. Mr. Pleskantise
chairman of the strategy committee. Our strateggrodtee has a key role in defining our strategialg@nd objectives, advises our board of
directors on the implementation of our strategialg@nd objectives and oversees their implememtatio

Innovation committeéOur innovation committee consists of Messrs. Romko@nd Mikhaylov. Mr. Romanenko is the chairmarhef
innovation committee.

Our innovation committee’s duties include, but moé limited to:
. monitoring and reviewing emerging science and teldgy issues and trenc
. reviewing the overall strategy in relation to ifeetual property and innovation; a

. evaluating and supervising investments in or addis of star-up companies or large research and developmeiatings.

Code of Ethics and Business Conduct

We have adopted a Code of Ethics and Business Cotitht applies to all of our directors, officerslaeemployees. The Code of Ethics
and Business Conduct is intended to promote ha@mekethical conduct, full and accurate reportimgl e@ompliance with laws as well as other
matters. A copy of the Code of Ethics and Busi&msduct is available on our website: www.qiwi.ru.

Directors’ Duties

Under Cyprus law, our directors owe fiduciary dsitid both common law and under statute, includistatutory duty and common law
duty to act honestly, in good faith and in what director believes are the best interests of oorpamy. When exercising powers or performing
duties as a director, the director is requiredxiereise the care, diligence and skill that a resjisde director would exercise in the same
circumstances taking into account, without limitatithe nature of the company, the nature of tleésben and the position of the director and
the nature of the responsibilities undertaken Ioy.flihe directors are required to exercise theirgrsvior a proper purpose and must not act o
agree to the company acting in a manner that cagries our articles of association or Cyprus law.

Employment Agreements

We have entered into employment agreements with ebour executive officers. Each of these contatasdard terms and conditions in
compliance with Russian labor law. The terms ofthemployment agreements include, among othershihgation, remuneration, the
treatment of confidential information, social inance and employment benefits.

Under the agreements, our executive officers atidlezhto statutory termination benefits in accarda with Russian labor law, which
generally amount to between one and three mondter’ys We may terminate the employment agreemeititsour executive officers in
accordance with the general provisions envisagedussian labor law if, among other things, onewfexecutive officers commits serious
breach of duties, is guilty of any gross miscondnaonnection with the handling of money or valieahor takes an erroneous decision that
leads to improper use of, or causes damage tqroperty. In addition, Russian labor law and emplent agreements of certain of our
executive officers contain certain additional psiens whereby we may terminate their employmergements if such officers are dismissed
from office in accordance with Russian bankruptmislation.

Our executive officers have also agreed not to gagaany activities that compete with us, or t@dily or indirectly solicit the services
of our employees, for a period of one year aftanieation of employment. Each executive officer hgseed to hold in strict confidence any
confidential information or trade secrets of oumpany. Each executive officer also agrees to comly all material applicable laws and
regulations related to his or her responsibiliiesur company as well as all material corporatelarsiness policies and procedures of our
company.
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Limitation on Liability and Indemnification of Dire ctors and Officers

Our memorandum and articles of association protlidg subject to certain limitations, we will indeify our directors and officers
against any losses or liabilities which they mastaim or incur in or about the execution of theitiels including liability incurred in defending
any proceedings whether civil or criminal in whjcldgment is given in their favor or in which theygacquitted.

Insofar as indemnification for liabilities arisimgpder the Securities Act may be permitted to dinesstofficers or persons controlling us
pursuant to the foregoing provisions, we have hiefemmed that in the opinion of the SEC such inddimattion is against public policy as
expressed in the Securities Act and may thereferenenforceable.

Interests of our Directors and our Employees

Certain of our directors and our executive offidease beneficial ownership interests in our shardwld options to purchase shares.
economic interests through these holdings may rideeto a conflict of interest between their dutieged to us and their private interests. For
example, it could cause them to pursue short-teximsgn respect of those private interests instéadtting in our best interest. Other than the
potential conflicts of interest described in thetfmtes to the table in “Principal and Selling ®felders”, we are not aware of any other
potential conflicts of interest between any dutesd by members of our board of directors or owcexve officers to us and their private
interests and/or other duties.

Under our articles of association, a director whimiany way interested in a contract or proposedract with us must declare the nature
of his or her interest at a meeting of our boardirgctors in accordance with Cyprus law. In additia director may not vote in respect of any
contract or arrangement in which he or she is éstexd, and if the director does vote, his or hés waill not be counted and he or she will no
counted for purposes of determining whether quoatithe meeting has been established.

Our directors are generally not prohibited from ovgnor acquiring interests in companies that camddhpete with us in the future for
investments or business, and each of them haga rbusiness relationships outside the contettiaf relationship with us that could
influence their decisions in the future.

D. Employees.
See Item 4.B “Business overview—Employees.”

E. Share Ownership.

See Item 7.A “Major Shareholders” for informatiom the shareholdings of our directors and executffieers.

See Item 6.B “Compensation—Outstanding Equity AwdodCertain Executive Officers” for information options granted to our
executive officers.

See Item 6.B “Compensation—Employee Stock Opti@mPlor a description of our employee stock opfiden.

ITEM 7. Major Shareholders and Related Party Transations

A. Major Shareholders.
The following table sets forth information with pest to the beneficial ownership of our ordinargrels, as of March 11, 2014, by:
. each of our directors and executive officers;

. each person known to us to own beneficially moasath% of our ordinary share

Beneficial ownership is determined in accordandé wie rules and regulations of the SEC. In conmgutine number of shares
beneficially owned by a person and the percentageship of that person, we have included
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shares that the person has the right to acquitéenm@0 days, including through the exercise of apton, warrant or other right or the
conversion of any other security. These sharesekiery are not included in the computation of the@atage ownership of any other person.

The calculations in the table below are based d9B646 class A shares and 23,020,148 class Bsbatstanding as of March 8 2014,
which comprise our entire issued and outstandigesbapital as of that date. Class A ordinary shaawe ten votes per share, and Class B

shares have one vote per share.

Currently, none of our ordinary shares are heltUtg. holders.

Total % Total % Total % of
of Issuec of Issuec Votes
Total at a Genera
Total Class A Class B Class A Class B
Shares Shares Shares Shares Meeting
Directors and Executive Officers:
Andrey Romanenk (1) 2,673,36' — 9.2 — 8.5
Marcus Rhode — — — — —
Sergey Solonii? 12,722,64 — 43.7 — 40.t
Andrei Muravyev® 1,395,40: — 4. — 4.4
Nilesh Lakhan — — — — —
Igor Mikhaylov 4 924,63t — 3.2 — 2.¢
Matthew Hammont — — — — —
Verdi Israelyar — — — — —
Alexey Rasskazo — — — — —
Boris Kim ) 3,322,73. — 11.4 — 10.€
Dmitry Pleskono: — 3,50( — — —
Alexander Agako\®)(15) — 83,23: — 3 i3
Anna Stoklitskay«?(15) — 44,00( — * *
Andrey Popko\®)(15) — 50,24¢ — £ &
Alexander Karavae(®)(15) — 82,08( — * *
Mariya Panferov{10) (15) — 52,01¢ — i3 kJ
All directors and executive officers as a gro 21,038,77¢ 311,581 72.3 * 67.0
Principal Shareholders:
Antana International Corporatic®) 2,673,36! — 9.2 — 8.5
Saldivar Investments Limite(@ 12,722,64 — 43.7 — 40.t
E1 Limited®) 3,322,73. — 11.4 — 10.€
Mail.ru Group Limited®1) 5,419,82! — 18.€ — 17.2
Mitsui & Co., Ltd.(12) 1,715,40: — 5.¢ — 5.k
Janus Capital Management LI1(3) — 2,349,641 — 10.2 kJ
Waddell & Reed Financial, In(14 — 2,743,00! — 11.¢
FMR LLC (16) — 1,447,73 — 6.3

* Represents less than 1

1)

(2)
3)

(4)
()

(6)
(7)
(8)
(9)
(10)
(11)

Each of Andrey Romanenko and Nikolay Romanenkbeasowner of 50% of shares of Antana Internatiorapration and, according!
shares voting and dispositive power over our shiae&bby such entity. The address of such entifyaseva Place, Waterfront Drive, F
Box 3469, Road Town, Tortola, British Virgin Islag

Sergey Solonin is the owner of 86.15% of shafeSaldivar Investments Limited and, accordingiglds voting and dispositive power
over our shares held by such entity. The addresadalf entity is Themistokli Dervi, 6 P.C. 1066, ds@, Cyprus

Andrei Muravyev is the owner of 100% of shavé®almway Holdings Limited and accordingly, holaging and dispositive power over
our shares held by such entity. The address of entty is 3rd floor, Geneva Place, Waterfront Bti¥?.O. Box 3175, Road Town,
Tortola, British Virgin Islands

Igor Mikhaylov is the owner of 100% of sharddargle International Limited and, accordingly ld®voting and dispositive power over
our shares held by such entity. The address of entty is P.O. Box 3321, Drake Chambers, Road T,dvamtola, British Virgin Islands
Boris Kim is the owner of 39.03% and GennadpiBa is the owner of 38.7% of the shares of E1 téahi Accordingly, these individuals
share voting and dispositive power over our shhedd by such entity. The address of such entiBiégoras 4, Kermia Building, 6th
floor, office 60--602, Nicosia, Cyprus, 151

Reflects options to purchase 83,235 class B shhat$fiave already veste

Reflects options to purchase 44,000 class B slihatfave already veste

Reflects options to purchase 50,248 class B slihatfave already veste

Reflects options to purchase 82,080 class B slihatfave already veste

Reflects options to purchase 52,018 class B slihatfave already veste

Mail.ru Group Limited is a public company tijebal depositary receipts of which are listed lo# tondon Stock Exchange. The board o
directors of the company, which consists of 10viutlials, oversees the investment decisions of thhepany and, accordingly, may be
deemed to have voting and dispositive power. Irtaxhd according to public sources, Mr. Alisher Usmov, a beneficial shareholder of



Mail.ru Group, holds 58.1% voting control over MRill Group Limited as of March 2013. The addressuch entity is Trident Trust
Company (B.V.1.) Limited, Trident Chambers, P.OxBigl6, Road Town, Tortola, British Virgin Islanc
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(12) Mitsui & Co., Ltd. is a widely-held public qooration the shares of which are traded on the @pokiagoya, Sapporo, and Fukuoka stock
exchanges. The address of such entity-1, Ohtemachi -chome, Chiyod-ku, Tokyo, Japar

(13) Based solely on the Schedule 13-G/A jointlgdiby Janus Capital Management LLC and Janus @asiisund with the Securities and
Exchange Commission on February 19, 2(

(14) Based solely on the Schedule 13-G/A jointlgdiby vy Investment Management Company, WaddeRe®ed Financial, Inc., Waddell &
Reed Financial Services, Inc., Waddell & Reed, &amd Waddell & Reed Investment Management Compatthytive Securities and
Exchange Commission on February 7, 2014. Benefisialership may be attributed to Waddell & Reed raial, Inc. through 2,743,600
class B shares that are beneficially owned by emaare operend investment companies or other managed accatnith are advised
suk-advised by direct or indirect subsidiaries of Wdt&eReed Financial, Inc

(15) Calculated as percentage of the issued share kcagétaming the exercise of all vested options bglthe optionee

(16) Based solely on the Schedule-G filed by FMR LLC with the Securities and Exchar@emmission on February 14, 20:

B. Related Party Transactions.
Amended and Restated Shareholders Agreement

On March 5, 2013, we entered into an amended astdtesl shareholders’ agreement with the class febblders to provide for certain
matters with respect to our board of directors stmare capital. The amended and restated shareticddeeement terminated on May 2, 2013,
upon the pricing of our initial public offering. ®aurrent board of directors was appointed, in,pantthe basis of the shareholders’ agreemen

Lease Agreements

From June 1, 2008 and December 20, 2007, througb&cand November 2013, respectively, CISC QIVHI@iwi Bank leased office
premises at Petrovskiy Lane 10/2, Moscow, Russia fitLC Lease Arend Com, in which our chief execaitdfficer and shareholder
Mr. Sergey Solonin owns a non-controlling stakedethese agreements, the amount of payments eecbwLLC Lease Arend Com were
RUB 33 million, RUB 33 million and RUB 28 milliorof the years ended December 31, 2011, 2012 and g8s®:ctively. There was no
outstanding amount as of February 28, 2014.

From January 2009 through November 2011, CJSC QGlleased our office premises at Varshavskoe High&a, Building 18A,
Moscow, 117587, the Russian Federation, from LL& Tachnology, in which certain of our shareholdérsluding Messrs. Sergey Solonin,
Andrey Romanenko and Igor Mikhaylov, owned non-oallihg stakes. We incurred expenses (excludingealdded tax) related to rent with
LLC Lux Technology of RUB 15 million in the year@sd December 31, 2011. LLC Lux Technology leaseddtpremises from OJSC
Research and Development Centre for Computer Eagitgg or NICEVT, a non-related party. In NovemBéd 1, LLC Lux Technology’s
lease agreement with NICEVT was assigned to CJSEI @r a total consideration of RUB 7.4 million ¢luding value added tax of RUB 1.1
million) paid to LLC Lux Technology, and the sutdeavas terminated. There was no outstanding anasuoit February 28, 2014.

From November 15,2013, Qiwi Bank leases office psemat Spiridonovka 4/2, Moscow, Russia, from AMrdrey Romanenko for a
monthly fee of RUB 0.8 million. Outstanding amowastof February 28, 2014 was RUB 1.6 million.

Loan Agreements

On March 14, 2011, the management board of QiwkBatopted an employee loan program under which Qamik provides loans to
employees of our company, including our executiffie@rs and directors. In late 2012-early 2013, terninated all loan agreements entered
into with our executive officers and directors aduced amendments to the program to bring it intagiance with the requirements of
Section 402 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act. All loandamsuch agreements have been fully repaid. Rrithrat, we had provided the following
loans to, or accepted the following guaranteegliation to loans to third parties from, our exeesitbfficers and directors, none of which is
currently outstanding:

. On November 30, 2011, Qiwi Bank entered intwedit line facility agreement with Mr. Pavel Iskectko, ex-chairman of the
management board of Qiwi Bank. The credit line feaia total amount of RUB 6,596,000 and bore irdte¢ an annual rate of the
CBR refinancing rate plus 3% from November 30, 20atil November 28, 2014. The interest rate wageiio increase to
36% per annum if the borrow
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ceased to be employed by Qiwi Bank. The agreemastsgcured by a charge over Mr. Ishchenko’s acamparied with Qiwi
Bank. The borrower had the right to early repaynodihe full amount of the loan by giving five dapsior notice to the creditor.
The agreement contained certain customary eversfatilt. The largest amount outstanding undectédit line facility agreemet
during the periods presented in this annual repagt RUB 6,046,00(

. On September 6, 2010, Qiwi Bank entered indaratyship agreement with Mr. Andrey Romanenkoganiver of our board of
directors, securing the performance by Mr. MikAatasenko, a non-executive employee of Qiwi Bafla)laf his obligations
towards Qiwi Bank under a credit facility agreemfemta total amount of RUB 1,800,000 bearing ingéet an annual rate of 14%
from September 6, 2010 until November 1, 2012. inkerest rate was subject to an increase to 36%maum if the borrower
ceased to be employed by Qiwi Bank. Under the taritise suretyship agreement the surety assumeabligation to repay the
total amount of the borrower’s debt towards QiwnBavithin three working days from the receipt oé tielevant request. The
largest amount outstanding under the credit fgclgreement during the periods presented in tmsameport was RUB 1,200,0(

. On December 24, 2010, Qiwi Bank entered intoedlit line facility agreement with Mr. Maxim Popaex-managing director of our
Qiwi Wallet segment. The credit line was for a tetamount of RUB 16,000,000 and bore interest ararual rate of 7% from
December 24, 2010 until December 23, 2014. Thedateate was subject to an increase to 36% pemaiirthe borrower ceased
be employed by Qiwi Bank. The agreement was seauithda charge over the borrower’s account openi¢d @iwi Bank and a
mortgage on the apartment of the borrower andgdsse. The borrower had the right to early repayrogthe full amount of the
loan by giving 5 days’ prior notice to the creditdhe agreement contained certain customary eweé¢mtsfault. The largest amount
outstanding under the credit line facility agreetréuring the periods presented in this annual tepas RUB 16,000,00(

Additionally, outside the scope of the employealleg policy adopted by Qiwi Bank, on July 23, 20€3SC QIWI extended a loan to
Mr. Alexander Agakov, the chief executive officdr@SC QIWI and the head of our Qiwi Distributicggsnent, for a total amount of RUB
14,000,000. The loan bore interest at an annualafa8%. The interest rate was subject to an irseréa 36% per annum if the borrower ceasec
to be employed by CISC QIWI. The borrower had idpiet to early repayment of the full amount of tban. The agreement was unsecured
agreement also contained certain customary evénisfault. The largest amount outstanding undetdha during the periods presented in thic
annual report was RUB 14,000,000.

Agreements with VTB

On September 6, 2012, CJSC QIWI, as borrower, edti@to two credit line facility agreements withrixavVTB, one with a credit limit ¢
RUB 500 million and the other with a credit limitRUB 400 million, bearing an interest at an anmaaé of 10.2% and 10.3%, respectively.
The terms of both agreements were substantialljfasinThe loans under each of these agreementstadre drawn down in tranches at the
request of the borrower and subject to certain itimmd precedent. Under the RUB 500 million agreetnihe availability period expired on
January 5, 2013 and the final maturity date wagasuary 17, 2013. Under the RUB 400 million agregntbe availability period expired on
August 6, 2013 and the final maturity date was ept8mber 6, 2013. Both agreements provide for icectestomary informational, financial
and negative covenants, and the RUB 500 millioragent also provides for a limitation on paymerdieidends by CJSC QIWI. The due
performance of these agreements by CJSC QIWI igsddy a surety from our CEO and founding shadgroMr. Sergey Solonin. Under the
relevant suretyship agreements, Mr. Sergey Solagieed to bear subsidiary liability for the entirmount of CJSC QIWI’s obligations under
both credit facility agreements with Bank VTB. Taés currently no outstanding indebtedness undesetlagreements.

On September 27, 2013 and on December 31, 201%; QI entered into short-term overdraft facilitgraements for up to RUB
85 million and up to RUB 315 million, respectivelyith Bank VTB with a 365-day term and an intemede of 10.3%. The agreements are
secured by a surety from Mr. Sergey Solonin. Culyethere are no outstanding amounts under trestties.
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Lease of Kiosk Locations

In 2010, we entered into a five year lease agreemigin a major retailer in respect of kiosk locaisoto be subsequently subleased to oul
agents. In March 2011, we entered into an agenmeagent with LLC K5 Retail, our equity associatdigh we subsequently bought out
completely in December 2013 through the acquisitibthe remaining 62.5% stake in its parent comBlegtgroup Enterprises Ltd (Cyprus)
that we did not previously own), pursuant to whigdcommissioned it to sign agreements with our eg@rrespect of placement and
maintenance of their kiosks at locations leasenhfitoe retailer. In December 2011, we assignedights and obligations under the lease
agreement with the retailer to LLC K5 Retail. Untleg assignment agreement, the lease deposit paid to the retailer was assigned to LLC
K5 Retail in exchange for a consideration of RUB 4illion, which was converted into a loan under&ation agreement between us and
LLC K5 Retail entered into on January 31, 2012. @hwunt of loan due from LLC K5 Retail as of Decem®1, 2013, was RUB 142 million.
The loan bears an annual interest of 8%, and ityiog amount was adjusted to reflect the markegrast rate of 14%, resulting in a loss of
RUB 31 for the year ended December 31, 2011.

Payment Processing Services Agreements

We enter into payment processing services, adirggtisT services and agency agreements with vardiilgates of our directors,
executive officers and shareholders in the ordiraryrse of our business. We believe that all ofe¢hegreements are entered into on arm’s
length terms, are not material and do not deviatly material aspect from the terms that we wasklin similar contracts with non-related
parties.

Bank Accounts and Deposits

Qiwi Bank maintains accounts and deposits of variafiiliates of our directors, executive officerslashareholders in the ordinary course
of its business amounting to RUB 276 million, whigh do not consider material. Some of these akifiare not considered related parties
under IFRS and therefore are not included undemzals and transactions with related parties irconsolidated financial statements. We
believe that all of the agreements pertaining thsaccounts and deposits are entered into on demgsh terms and do not deviate in any
material aspect from the terms that we would ussmilar contracts with non-related parties.

Agreement with MegaFon

According to public sources, Mr. Alisher Usmanowemeficial shareholder of one of our shareholddesl.ru, held a 58.1% voting
interest in Mail.ru in March 2013. Mr. Usmanov Isathe controlling shareholder of MegaFon. Foesadiption of our contract with MegaF
see “Business — Merchants — Relationship with tlz¢oMMNOSs.” For the years ended December 31, 2022813, total revenue attributable
to our agreement with MegaFon amounted to 6.57%3&hof our total revenue, respectively. As of DebenB1, 2013, total amount due to
MegaFon was RUB 389 million.

Employment Agreements and Share Options
See “Management — Employment Agreements” and “Mamant — Employee Stock Option Plan.”

C. Interests of Experts and Counsel

Not applicable.

ITEM 8. Financial Information
A. Consolidated Financial Statements and Other Finacial Information

See Item 18 “Financial Statements.”
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Legal Proceedings

From time to time, we are involved in various l#igpn matters arising in the ordinary course of lnuginess. We are not currently, and
have not been in the recent past, subject to ayaf,larbitration or government proceedings (inalgdproceedings pending or threatened) that
we believe will have a material impact on our bass) financial condition and results of operations.

Dividend Policy

We intend to distribute all excess cash to ouredihaders in the form of an annual dividend. Exazssh is defined as adjusted net profit
for a year less an amount management deems necémsaear term corporate action or other busimesgis including but not limited to
merger and acquisition activities and capital exiteines. The board of directors reserves the tigldistribute the dividend on a quarterly basis
as it deems necessary. This statement is a gefesiaration of intention and the actual declaratibdividends will require corporate action at
the relevant time on which a decision will be takgrthe board of directors or the general meetinigsshareholders, as the case may be,
depending on the precise circumstances that pravtik time, and shareholders or potential investbould not treat this statement as an
obligation or similar undertaking by us that dividis will be declared as set out herein. Under Cyfaw, we are not allowed to make
distributions if the distribution would reduce @irareholders’ equity below the sum of the issuedesbapital, including any share premium,
and the reserves which we must maintain under Gylaru and our articles of association.

As a holding company, the level of our income andability to pay dividends depend primarily uptwe treceipt of dividends and other
distributions from our subsidiaries. The paymendiefdends by our subsidiaries is contingent ugandufficiency of their earnings, cash flo
regulatory capital requirements, and distributadvtafits.

B. Significant Changes

Except as disclosed elsewhere in this annual repwerhave not experienced any significant chanies she date of our audited
consolidated financial statements included in #misual report.

ITEM 9. The Offer and Listing
A. Offer and Listing Details.
See Item 9.C “—Markets.”

B. Plan of Distribution.
Not applicable.

C. Markets.

Our ADSs have been listed on Nasdaq since May B3 20d have been admitted to trading on MOEX siviag 20, 2013, under the
symbol “QIWI”. Prior to that time, there was no public marketdor ADSs or our ordinary shares. The following ¢abéts forth for the perio
indicated the high and low sales prices per AD&psrted on Nasdaq:

High Low
(in U.S.$)

2013:

Second quarter (from May 17.4¢ 14.51
Third quartel 34.5( 21.8¢
Fourth quarte 59.2¢ 32.0¢
Septembe 34.5( 30.0(
October 45.9( 32.0¢
Novembel 50.6¢ 37.8¢
Decembe 59.2¢ 44.3¢
2014:

January 56.3i 35.5¢
February 49.2¢ 32.7(
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D. Selling Shareholders
Not applicable.

E. Dilution.
Not applicable.

F. Expenses of the Issue
Not applicable.

ITEM 10. Additional Information
A. Share Capital.
Not applicable.

B. Memorandum and Articles of Association.
Our memorandum and articles of association conéairong others, the following provisions:
Objects

Our objects are set forth in full in Regulationf3ar memorandum of association.

Shareholder’ General Meetings
Share Capital

Our share capital is divided into two classes @freh: class A shares, each of which carries tes\attshareholders’ general meetings,
and class B shares, each of which carries one vote.

Convening Shareholders’ Meetings

The shareholders’ general meeting is our suprenaerging body. An annual general meeting must be het more than 15 months after
the prior annual general meeting, with at leastameual general meeting held in each calendar year.

Our board of directors, at its discretion, may cm an extraordinary general meeting. Extraordiganeral meetings must also be
convened by the board of directors at the requesthareholders holding in aggregate at the datkeotieposit of the requisition either (a) not
less than 10% of our outstanding share capitabndt less than 10% of the voting rights attacteedur issued shares, or, in case the board o
directors fails to do so within twenty one daysiirthe date of the deposit of the requisition ngtigesuch requisitioning shareholders, or any
of them representing more than one half of thd tatbdng rights of all of them, but any meeting@mvened by the shareholders themselves
may not be held after the expiration of three msifitbm the date that is twenty-one days from the d&the deposit of the requisition notice.

The annual general meeting and a shareholdersraleneeting called for a matter for which Cypria#irequires a special resolution,
which means a resolution passed by a majority bfess than 75% of the voting rights attached toisgued shares present and voting at a
convened and quorate general meeting, must belaaith no less than 45 days’ written notice or slastger notice as is required by the
Companies Law (not counting the day
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in which it was dispatched and the date in whickids received). Other shareholders’ general meetimgst be called by no less than 30 days’
written notice. A notice convening a shareholdgesieral meeting must be sent to each of the shidexspprovided that the accidental failure
to give notice of a meeting to, or the n@teipt of notice of a meeting by, any person kextito receive notice will invalidate the proceegtira
that meeting to which such notice refers in thenétleat a shareholder holding not less than 5%uobatstanding share capital is not in
attendance at that general meeting as a resuiedadcidental failure to give notice or non-recéigreof. All shareholders are entitled to attenc
the shareholders’ general meeting or be represdaytedoroxy authorized in writing.

The agenda of the shareholders’ general meetidgtesmined by our board of directors or by whoelse is calling the meeting. The
quorum for a shareholders’ general meeting willsistnof shareholders representing 50.01% of themgaights attached to our issued shares
present in person or by proxy.

Voting

Matters determined at shareholders’ general meetieguire an ordinary resolution, which requiresnaple majority of the votes cast at
any particular general meeting duly convened aradate, unless our articles of association and trag@anies Law specify differently. It is
within the powers of the shareholders to have aluésn executed in writing by all shareholders amduch event no meeting needs to take
place or notice to be given.

Reserved Matter

Our articles of association provide for special aniéies for resolutions concerning, among othenglsij the following matters (for so long
as class A shares are in issue and outstandipgnyivariance to the rights attached to any adéshares requires approval of the holders of
75% of the shares of the affected class as weallsgecial resolution of the general meeting; aip@giproval of the total number of shares and
classes of shares to be reserved for issuance angef our or our subsidiaries’ employee stockaypplan or any other equityased incentiv
compensation program requires approval of a mgjofinot less than 75% of the voting rights attatteall issued shares present and votit
a duly convened and quorate general meeting.

Voting Agreement

On May 2, 2013, our class A shareholders entertedaiivoting agreement to provide for certain matteith respect to our board of
directors. Pursuant to such agreement the clasmrfelolders agreed to vote their class A sharéisaspfor so long as the class A shareholder:
own, in the aggregate, class A shares represeatilegst 90% of the voting power in our company:

. to ensure that no director who is a directoowf company as of the effective date of this tegi®mn statement is removed from the
board of directors other than for cause as detathimder our articles of association; i

. to procure, to the extent that they can, thatdhairman of our board of directors as of theaife date of the registration statement
is not removed from office unless the chairmarisaurrently removed from our board of directorsdause as determined under
our articles of associatio

The voting agreement will expire in accordance tgherms upon the first meeting of our sharehadie 2014 at which the board of
directors will be re-elected or upon the class Arsholders ceasing to own, in the aggregate, élasmres representing at least 90% of the
voting power in our company.

Board of Directors
Appointment of Directors

Our articles of association provide that we mayehap to twelve directors, including up to threegpendent directors. We refer to all
directors that are not independent directors agadeadirectors. As a foreign private issuer, weehelected to follow Cyprus corporate
governance practices, which, unlike the applictNdedaq requirements for domestic issuers, do oinethe majority of directors to be
independent.
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Any shareholder or group of shareholders is edtitenominate one or more individuals for electjonre-election) to our board of
directors not less than 30 days prior to any gémeegting at which all the elected directors afgesitiled to be appointed.

Except as set out below, the elected directorappeinted by shareholder weighted voting, undecitvieiach shareholder has the right to
cast among one or more nominees as many voteg astihg rights attached to its shares multipligcalmumber equal to the number of ele:
directors to be appointed. As long as each of tagscA shareholders, including our founding shadgrs as well as Mail.ru, and Mitsui, alol
continues to hold 10.01% of the voting rights atttto our issued shares as of the date of thisahmeport, under the shareholder weighted
voting set out in our articles of association fppaintment of the board it effectively will haveethight to appoint at least one director to serve
on our board of directors. Elected directors aggoayped as follows: (1) initially — until the firsinnual general meeting after December 31,
2013; (2) all the elected directors shall retieniroffice at each annual general meeting in evebgaquent year following December 31, 2013
(3) all retiring elected directors shall be eligilibr re-election; and (4) the vacated position fayilled at the meeting at which the elected
directors retire by electing another individual rioated to the office of elected director by anyrshalder or group of shareholders by serving
a notice at least 30 days prior to such generatintggeand in default the retiring elected directball, if offering himself for re-election, be
deemed to have been re-elected, unless at sucinméeas expressly resolved not to fill such vazhposition or unless a resolution for the re-
election of such elected director shall have bagrigpthe meeting and not adopted. The indeperdiesttors are nominated by the board, a
shareholder or group of shareholders. All indepahd&ectors are appointed by shareholder weightgithg in the same manner as voting for
elected directors. The independent directors weilappointed as follows: (1) initially — until thiest annual general meeting after December 31
2013; (2) all the independent directors shall efiiom office at each annual general meeting imesabsequent year following December 31,
2013; (3) all retiring independent directors shalleligible for re-election; and (4) the vacatedifion may be filled at the meeting at which the
independent directors retire by electing anothdividual nominated by any of the board, a sharedrotdl a group of shareholders, and in
default the retiring independent director shalgffering himself for reelection and if he has been so nominated by thedbba deemed to ha
been re-elected, unless at such meeting it is exfyreesolved not to fill such vacated positioruntess a resolution for the re-election of such
independent director shall have been put to thdingeand not adopted.

In the event that the entire board of directoteiminated by a shareholder or a group of sharehsldpresenting at least 10.01% of the
voting rights attached to our issued shares, thmai@ng directors will remain in office only to samon a general meeting for purposes of
(1) terminating the entire board pursuant to a estjof the requesting members and (2) appointimgeiected directors, and new independent
directors. If, for any reason, the number of divesfalls below the number fixed by the articless$ociation as the necessary quorum for t
meetings and the vacant positions are not fillegdeaghe above procedure within 21 days, the reimginoard may remain in office only to
convene a general meeting, at which all directanstmetire and new directors will be appointed mwidled above.

Our board of directors can elect a chairman bylesolate majority of votes of all the directors pa®d that an affirmative vote of at least
one independent director is received (for so lahglass A shares are in issue and are outstanding).

Removal of Director:

Under Cyprus law, notwithstanding any provisiomur articles of association, a director may be nezddoy an ordinary resolution of t
general shareholders’ meeting, which must be cord/evith at least 28 days’ notice (under our arsidéassociation at least thirty days’ notice
is required). A director may be removed from offeegomatically if, among other things, the diredybecomes bankrupt or makes any
arrangement or composition with his or her credigenerally; or (b) becomes permanently incapatbpeidorming his or her duties due to
mental or physical illness or due to his or hertldeld our board of directors exercises its rightppoint a director to fill in a vacancy on the
board created during the term of a director’s apipmoént as provided in our articles of associatbrareholders holding 10.01% of the voting
rights attached to our issued shares may termthatappointment of the entire board of directoee 8lso “—Appointment of Directors.”
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Powers of the Board of Director

Our board of directors has been granted autharitgdnage our business affairs and has the authoritgcide, among other things, on
following:

(a) approval of strategy, annual budget and businessfpl the group

(b) approval of certain transactions, including enat transactions (as defined in our articlesssogiation), borrowings as well as
transactions involving sale or disposition of anterest in any group company (other than QIW!I plcll or substantially all of the
assets of any group compal

(c) any group company’s exit from or closing ofusimess or business segment, or a down-sizingetiedun force or streamlining of
any operation over certain thresholds as set ootiirarticles of associatio

(d) any merger, consolidation, amalgamation, casiger reorganization, scheme of arrangement, diisal or liquidation involving
any group company (other than ourselv

(e) entry into any agreement or transaction witblated party except for: (1) transactions in ttdir@ary course of business (as defined
in our articles of association) on an arm’s lerfggikis, (2) intra-group transactions, (3) transastiat a price less than U.S.$50,000
(if the price can be determined at the time thesaation is entered intc

(f) issuance and allotment of shares by us for coraider other than cash; a

(g) adoption of any employee stock option planror ather equity-based incentive compensation pragma our group (subject to a
general meeting approving the total number of shanel classes of shares to be reserved for issuadeg any such progran

Our board of directors may exercise all the poveéithe Company to borrow or raise money.

Proceedings of the Board of Directo

Our board of directors meets at such times andéh shnanner as the directors determine to be nagessdesirable. Meetings are held in
Cyprus. For as long as any class A shares aredssukoutstanding, the quorum necessary for a neetiour board of directors to be validly
convened is a simple majority of the total numkigthe elected directors and the then existing iedelent directors.

A resolution at a duly constituted meeting of oaatd of directors is approved by an absolute mgjofivotes of all the directors unles
higher majority and/or affirmative vote of any imaadent directors is required on a particular matiee chairman does not have a second or
casting vote in case of a tie. A resolution consemo in writing will be as valid as if it had bepassed at a meeting of our board of directors
when signed by all the directors. A resolution @nted to in writing must be approved and execusedllthe directors.

Where a director has, directly or indirectly, atenest in a contract or proposed contract, thaictiir must disclose his or her interest to
the board of directors and may not vote on suchrachor arrangement.

Chief Executive Officer

Our board of directors may by an absolute majarityotes of all the directors appoint a directob&our chief executive officer to be in
charge and responsible for all dayetay affairs of our group. Our chief executive dffiés to be appointed for such period and on seihg a:
our board of directors thinks fit, and, subjecthe terms of any agreement entered into in anyqodait case, his appointment may be
terminated by our board of directors at any timge Term of appointment for our chief executiveasfiis until the first meeting of the board
appointed after December 31, 2014. Any subseqeemt 6f appointment shall be for a period from théedf his appointment until the first
meeting of the board on the second year afteralte af his appointment.
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Rights Attaching to Shares

Voting rights. Each class A share has the right to ten votasageting of our shareholders; and each class 8 $laa the right to one
vote at a meeting of our shareholders.

Issue of shares and peenptive rights Subject to the Companies Law and our articlessgbciation, already authorized but not yet issue
shares are at the disposal of our board of directainich may allot or otherwise dispose of any suésl shares as it may decide. All new share
and/or other securities giving right to the purehasour shares or which are convertible into dwares must be offered before their issue tc
shareholders on a pro-rata basis. If the new dézsudre of the same class as existing sharesffégremust first be made on a pro rata basis to
the shareholders of the relevant class and, ifsaichh new securities are not taken up by those Isblgiers, an offer to purchase the excess will
be made to all other shareholders on a pro raia f@®vided that such pre-emption rights havehsan disapplied). Our shareholders have
authorized the disapplication of the right of prepgion set out above for a period of five yearsifritne date of the completion of our initial
public offering in connection with the issue of tapan additional 52,000,000 class B shares, inolydi the form of ADSs.

Conversion At the irrevocable request of any class A shddshoall or part of the class A shares held byhssltareholder will convert
into class B shares, on the basis that each clasgre shall convert into one class B share, andl&ss B shares resulting from such
conversion shall rangari passun all respects with the existing class B shardassoe.

In addition, class A shares will be automaticaliyieerted into class B shares, on a onesie-basis, in the following circumstances: (1
class A shares which are transferred by the hotdeept in circumstances permitted under our agiof association, shall, immediately upon
such transfer, be automatically converted intoxcBishares; (2) all class A shares held by a shitehwill be automatically converted into
class B shares on the occurrence of a change abtéas defined in our articles of associationjted class A shareholder; and (3) all class A
shares will be automatically converted into classhBres in the event that the aggregate numbdass & shares constitute less than 10% c
aggregate number of class A and class B sharesndisg.

Class A shares will not convert into class B sharkere: (1) the transfer is to one or more of thagferor's wholly-owned affiliates;
(2) it is approved in writing by the shareholdeosding in aggregate at least 75% of the total nunalbelass A shares in issue; or (3) the
shareholder (or a group of shareholders) transfgiass A shares has (or have) offered such stmtke other then existing shareholders
holding class A shares, and the respective transfegrmitted; if, in the case of (2) and (3), 16#4nore of the total number of class A share
issue are transferred.

Dividends. Subject to the special voting rights of the classhares, a shareholders’ general meeting mayedividends, but no
dividend will be paid except out of our profits. hoard of directors may set aside out of our psafuch sums as it thinks proper as a reserve
The board of directors may also, without estahtigha reserve, carry forward to the next year aofitsrit may think prudent not to distribute
as a dividend. The class A shares and the clabsi@s have the right to an equal share in any @nddr other distribution we pay. We have
historically paid dividends in the past and curerkpect that we will continue to do so from tineetime in the future. Please see “Dividend
Policy.”

Winding Up. If our company is wound up, the liquidator magon a special resolution and any other procedwescpibed by the
Companies Law, (i) divide all or part of our assatsong the shareholders; and (ii) vest the whobkmgrpart of such assets in trustees for the
benefit of the contributories as the liquidatorlstiank fit, but so that no shareholder is compélto accept any shares or other securities with
any attached liability.

Form and transfer of share¥he instrument of transfer of any share must{aeted by or on behalf of the transferor and taedferee,
and the transferor will be deemed to be the hadfiéne share until the name of the transfereetisred into the register of shareholders. Excer
as set out above and in our articles of associasisareholders are entitled to transfer all or @fitheir shares by instrument of transfer in any
usual or common form or in any other form, incluglglectronic form, which the directors may approve.

There is no limitation under Cypriot law or ourielgs of association on the right of non-Cypridtidents or nationals to own or vote our
shares.
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Relevant Provisions of Cypriot law

The liability of our shareholders is limited. Undbe Companies Law, a shareholder of a compangtipersonally liable for the acts of
the company, except that a shareholder may becenseimally liable by reason of his or her own acts.

As of the date of this annual report, Cypriot laged not contain any requirement for a mandatomraff be made by a person acquiring
shares or depositary receipts of a Cypriot compamy if such an acquisition confers on such pecsaoitrol over us if neither the shares nor
depositary receipts are listed on a regulated nhamikibe EEA. Neither our shares nor depositargipgs are listed on a regulated market in the
EEA.

The Companies Law contains provisions in respestjokeze-out rights. The effect of these provisistisat, where a company makes a
takeover bid for all the shares or for the whole@wy class of shares of another company, and feeisfaccepted by the holders of 90% of the
shares concerned, the offeror can upon the sams tequire the shares of shareholders who havaceepted the offer, unless such persons
can persuade the Cypriot courts not to permit tugiigition. If the offeror company already holdsrethan 10%, in value of the shares
concerned, additional requirements need to be efetdthe minority can be squeezed out. If the @mgpnaking the takeover bid acquires
sufficient shares to aggregate, together with thasieh it already holds, more than 90%, then, witbne month of the date of the transfer
which gives the 90%, it must give notice of thet tacthe remaining shareholders and such sharetsohday, within three months of the notice,
require the bidder to acquire their shares andithger shall be bound to do so upon the same tasnis the offer or as may be agreed betwee
them or upon such terms as the court may order.

C. Material Contracts.

None.

D. Exchange Controls.
Cyprus currently has no exchange control restristio

E. Taxation.

The following summary of the Cypriot tax, Russiar &nd United States federal income tax conseqsefaevnership of the ADSs is
based upon laws, regulations, decrees, rulingeniedax conventions (treaties), administrative ficacand judicial decisions in effect at the
date of this annual report. Legislative, judicialbaliministrative changes or interpretations mawéwer, be forthcoming that could alter or
modify the statements and conclusions set forthiheAny such changes or interpretations may lreaetive and could affect the tax
consequences to holders of the ADSs. This sumneyg dot purport to be a legal opinion or to addadlssx aspects that may be relevant to e
holder of the ADSs. Each prospective holder is drgeconsult its own tax adviser as to the paréictax consequences to such holder of the
ownership and disposition of the ADSs, including #pplicability and effect of any other tax lawsax treaties, of pending or proposed
changes in applicable tax laws as of the dateisfahnual report, and of any actual changes inigadgk tax laws after such date.

Material Cypriot Tax Considerations

The following discussion of material Cypriot taxnsiderations represents the opinion of Antis Taiylides & Sons LLC, our Cypriot
counsel.

Tax residency

A company is considered to be a resident of Cyfoutax purposes if its management and controkaercised in Cyprus. We anticipate
being a company resident in Cyprus for tax purpodéeere, as with our company, the majority of tlarol of directors is comprised of tax
residents of Russia, there may be increased ragkhle company is not managed and controlled imr@yand, therefore, is not a tax resident ir
Cyprus. See also risk factor Item 3.D “Risk FactoRisks Related to Taxation—We may be deemed toth& resident outside of Cyprus.”
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With respect to the holders of our ADSs, such hoitday be considered to be a resident of Cyprutafopurposes in a tax year (which is
the calendar year) if such holder is physicallyspre in Cyprus for a period or periods exceedinggigregate more than 183 days in that
calendar year.

The holding and disposal of the ADSs by a non-&sxdent will not create any tax liability in Cypridon-tax residents are not liable for
any tax on the disposal of shares or other seesiritf a Cyprus company unless the Cyprus compahg iswner of immovable property
situated in Cyprus.

Cyprus Resident Company

A company which is considered to be a residentampurposes in Cyprus is subject to corporaterimetax in Cyprus, or Corporate
Income Tax, on its worldwide income, taking int@aent certain exemptions. The rate of Corporatertre Tax in Cyprus is 12.5%.

Special defense contribution, or Cypriot Defensg, Talevied on certain types of income of tax desits of Cyprus.

Taxation of Dividends and Distributions

Under Cyprus legislation there is no withholding ta dividends paid to non-residents of Cyprus. d@ivedend will be paid free of any
tax to the shareholder who will be taxed accordinthe laws of the country of residence or domiofi¢he shareholder. Holders of ADSs must
consult their own tax advisors on the consequeottwir domicile or residence in relation to treyment of dividends.

Tax residents of Cyprus are subject to the Cyifense Tax on dividends at the rate of 20.0%.t&kés withheld by the company pr
to payment by the company to the shareholder.

Taxation of Capital Gains

Cyprus capital gains tax is imposed at the ra200®% only on gains from the disposal of immovabigperty situated in Cyprus
including gains from the disposal of shares in canigs which own such immovable property. Sharésdisn any recognised stock exchange
are generally excluded from capital gains taxs limclear whether this exception also appliesspatial of the ADSs.

Inheritance Tax

There is no Cyprus inheritance tax.

Deemed Distribution:

The Cypriot Defense Tax, at a rate of 20% woulgagable by the company on deemed dividends toxtemethat its shareholders (both
individuals and companies) are Cyprus tax residéntSypriot company which does not distribute aslte70% of its after tax profits within tv
years of the end of the year in which the profitssa would be deemed to have distributed this atrasia dividend two years after that y
end. The Cypriot Defense Tax on deemed dividentiiloligion would be payable by the company to theeeixsuch profits are attributable to
Cyprus tax resident shareholders (both individaals companies). The Cypriot Defence Tax may alsgayable on deemed dividends in case
of liquidation or capital reduction of the compaije company will debit such Cypriot Defense Taidayainst the profits attributable to st
shareholders. The amount of deemed dividend digtoib (subject to the Cypriot Defense Tax) is restliby any actual dividend paid out of
profits of the relevant year at any time up todlaée of the deemed distribution. The profits tddden into account in determining the deemed
dividend do not include fair value adjustments tvable or immovable property (if any).

Imposition of such a tax on the company could haweaterial adverse effect on the group’s busiressits of operations, financial
condition or prospects and the trading price ofABRSs.

On September 13, 2011, the Commissioner of the Byimand Revenue Department, or the Commissidassred Circular 2011/10, or
the Circular, which now exempts from the remittod Cypriot Defense Tax the profits that are impunelirectly to non-Cyprus tax-resident
shareholders of a Cyprus tax-resident companyfanss such profits are indirectly apportionedhargholders who are ultimately non-Cyprus
residents. The Circular applies to all years wltiakie not yet been filed or examined by the Comimnssi.

97



Table of Contents

Tax Position of Holders of ADSs with Respect to Dilsutions

There is no express provision in the law on thattnent of holders of ADSs with respect to Cypriaféhse Tax on dividends nor is th
any specific guidance issued by the Cypriot takauities on the point. We are of the view that leotdof ADSs will be subject to the same
treatment as holders of shares with respect tbahiity of Cypriot Defense Tax on dividends arniderefore, the provision of sections “—
Taxation of Dividends and Distributions” and “— &wed Distributions” above would apply equally te tiolders of ADSs.

Taxation of income and gains of the company
Gains from the disposal of securities

Any gain from disposal by the company of securiftee definition of securities includes shares lhodds of companies or legal persons
wherever incorporated and options thereon) shadideenpt from Corporate Income Tax irrespectiveheftrading nature of the gain, the
number of shares held or the holding period and sbabe subject to the Cypriot Defense Tax. Sgaims are also outside of the scope of
capital gains tax provided that the company whbsees are disposed of does not own any immovableeply situated in Cyprus or such
shares are listed in any recognised stock exchange.

Dividends to be received by the comp:

Dividend income (whether received from Cyprus restcr non-resident companies) is exempt from Qatgdncome Tax in Cyprus.
Dividend income from Cyprus resident companiescengpt from the Cypriot Defense Tax whereas divid@eedme received from noGypriot
resident companies is exempt from the Cypriot D&fehax provided that either (i) not more than 50di%e paying company’s activities
result, directly or indirectly, in investment incerror (ii) the foreign tax suffered is not sign#idly lower than the tax rate payable in Cyprus
(currently interpreted to mean an effective taxdeur of at least 5.0%). If the exemption for the @yfDefense Tax does not apply, dividends
receivable from non-Cypriot resident companiestaxed at a rate of 20.0%.

Interest income

The tax treatment of interest income of any compahigh is a tax resident of Cyprus will depend dmether such interest income is
treated as “active” or “passive.” Interest incongiah consists of interest which has been derived bgmpany which is a tax resident of
Cyprus in the ordinary course of its businessudiclg interest which is closely connected with dinéinary course of its business will be
subject to Corporate Income Tax at the rate of%2 &fter the deduction of any allowable busineggeages. Any other interest income will be
subject to the Cypriot Defense Tax at the rateGo®% on the gross amount of interest.

Specifically, interest income arising in connectigith the provision of loans to related or assadgbarties should be generally
considered as income arising from activities clpseinnected with the ordinary carrying on of a hass and should, as such, be exempt from
Cypriot Defense Tax and only be subject to Corgohatome Tax.

Tax deductibility of expenses, including interegtense

The general principle of the Cyprus income tax issthat for an expense to be allowed as a deduittronst have been incurred wholly
and exclusively for the production of income.

In accordance with a circular issued by the Cypansauthorities, all direct expenses relating ®iticome from exempt activities should
be deducted from such income (i.e. disallowed forpBrate Income Tax purposes) in arriving at tleeine to be treated as tax exempt. All
general administration expenses should be allodattte activities of the company proportionately.

It is noted that the disposal of fixed assets vestments which generate a gain or loss of a dagitare does not constitute an activity
the purposes of apportionment of the general exgzefaerheads). The holding of investments by dihglcompany is not treated as an
activity and the specific circular should not appifie expenses, however, which directly or indlyectlate to acquisitions/disposals of such
investments should be disallowed/reduce the tamekx@écome arising from the disposal.
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In May 2012, the Cyprus House of Representativasted laws, or the Amendments, which are effecttspectively from January 1,
2012, or the Effective Date. Prior to the Amendraetite Inland Revenue Department did not treatimieyest on loans received for the
acquisition of shares in other companies as a¢dudtible expense. Following the Amendments angestitd the below, if a Cyprus parent
company incurs an interest expense on the acauisifishares of a company that is a 100% owneddiabg (whether directly or indirectly
and irrespective of whether the subsidiary is arGypr foreign company), the interest expensenail be deductible for tax purposes by the
parent company subject to the following:

(a) the deduction will only apply if the subsidiary domot own assets that are not used in the busiaed
(b) if the subsidiary holds such assets, the déuilitt of interest expense will be limited to cespond to the amount of assets used in
the busines:

This change is effective in respect of interestiined on borrowings used for the purchase of shareshased on or after the Effective
Date.

Arm's length principle

There are no specific transfer pricing rules, or mansfer pricing documentation requirementshim €yprus tax laws.

However, the arm’s length principle in the Cypmisdme tax law requires that all transactions betwekated parties are carried out on
an arm’s length basis, being at fair values andarmal commercial terms.

More specifically, under the arm’s length principléhere conditions are made or imposed upon thevaneial or financial relations of
two businesses which differ from those which woéde been made between independent parties, afitg pvhich would have accrued to one
of the party had the two businesses been indepérugrhave not so accrued, may be included irptbéts of that business and taxed
accordingly.

Stamp duty
Cyprus levies stamp duty on an instrument if;
. it relates to any property situated in Cyprus

. it relates to any matter or thing which is perfodhoe done in Cyprus

There are documents which are subject to stampid@yprus at a fixed fee (ranging from €0.03 t&¥Xa8nd documents which are
subject to stamp duty based on the value of thardeat. The above obligation arises irrespectiwetadther the instrument is executed in
Cyprus or abroad.

A liability to stamp duty may arise on acquisitiohshares and such stamp duty would be payableenthershares acquisition documents
are executed in Cyprus or later brought into Cypsithe company’s shares that underlie the shaagdmconsidered to be Cypriot property.

The stamp duty rates are as follows:

. for contracts with a value €1 to€5,000, there is no stamp duty payal

. the stamp duty i€1.50 per thousand for contracts with a value f€5,001 tc€170,000; anc

. the stamp duty i€2 per thousand for contracts with a value excee€170,000, with a cap €20,000.
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Any documents that do not specify values incutamgt duty of EUR35. In cases where the stamp dutynuissioner can estimate the
value of a document, he or she has the authoritypose stamp duty as per the above rates.

Withholding taxes on interest

No withholding taxes shall apply in Cyprus withpest to payments of interest by the company to @gprus tax resident lenders (both
corporations and individuals).

There should be no withholding tax in Cyprus omriiast paid by the company to Cyprus tax residentdes when the interest is
considered as interest accruing from the ordinargyang on of their business, or interest closalgrected with the ordinary carrying on of
their business.

Any payment of interest which is not considereihterest accruing from the ordinary carrying oradfusiness or interest income closely
connected with the ordinary carrying on of a buséney the company to Cypriot tax resident (botipomations and individuals) lenders shal
subject to Cypriot Defense Tax at the rate of 30.@#ereby the company is required to withhold stachfrom the interest.

Capital duty

Capital duty is payable to the Registrar of Comeaii respect of the registered authorised shaitataf a Cypriot company upon its
incorporation and upon subsequent increases thereon

The capital duty rates are as follows:
. 0.6% on the nominal value of the authorized shapital; anc

. €17 flat duty on every issue, whether the sharessated at their (par) nominal value or at a (sSharemium.

United States Federal Income Tax Considerations

The following discussion sets forth the U.S. fetlar@ome tax consequences to U.S. Holders (as eldtielow) of the ownership and
disposition of our ADSs or ordinary shares. Theuwlsion is not a complete analysis or listing bbhthe possible tax consequences and doe:
not address all tax considerations that may beaeleto investors in light of their particular airastances. Special rules that are not discusse
in the general descriptions below may also appiypdrticular, the description of U.S. federal ineotax consequences deals only with U.S.
Holders that own our ADSs or ordinary shares agaagssets. In addition, the description of U&ldral income tax consequences does not
address the tax treatment of special classes ofHlbl8ers, such as banks and other financial utgtits, insurance companies, persons holdin
our ADSs or shares as part of a “straddle,” “hedgmpreciated financial position,” “conversion migaction” or other risk reduction strategy,
U.S. expatriates, persons liable for alternativeimum tax, brokers or dealers in securities orengies, holders whose “functional currency”
not the U.S. dollar, regulated investment compamezd estate investment trusts, partnershipsripeatity treated as a partnership for U.S.
federal income tax purposes) and other pass-threntities, traders in securities who have eledtedhark-tomarket method of accounting 1
their securities, individual retirement account®tirer tax-deferred accounts, holders who acquihedes pursuant to the exercise of an
employee stock option or right or otherwise as cemnsation, tax-exempt entities, and investors who directly, indirectly through certain
non-U.S. entities, or constructively 10% or morehef voting power or value of our aggregate shamstanding. The following discussion
does not address any tax consequences arising thadiamws of any U.S. state or local or foreignsgdiction, or under any U.S. federal laws
other than those pertaining to income tax.

The discussion is based on the laws of the Unitate§, including the Internal Revenue Code of 188@mended, or the Code, its
legislative history, Treasury regulations promuégbthereunder, judicial decisions, and publishdidga and administrative pronouncements o
the U.S. Internal Revenue Service, or the IRSQs@lh effect at the date of this annual report,amdof which may change, possibly with
retroactive effect. Further, there can be no asserthat the IRS will not disagree with or will ridtallenge any of the conclusions reached an
described herein. The discussion is also basemrin on representations by the depositary andassthat each obligation under the deposit
agreement and any related agreement will be peddimaccordance with its terms.
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In General
For purposes of this discussion, a “U.S. Holde®d tseneficial owner of our ADSs or ordinary shahes is:
. a citizen or individual resident of the United $&

. a corporation, or other entity treated as @otion for U.S. federal income tax purposes, ihateated in or organized under the
laws of the United States, any state thereof oDiis&ict of Columbia

. an estate whose income is subject to United Statkesal income tax regardless of its source

. a trust if either (1) a United States courdlide to exercise primary supervision over the adstration of the trust and one or more
U.S. persons have the authority to control all tartgal decisions of the trust or (2) the trust haalid election in effect to be
treated as a U.S. person under applicable Treasgunjations

If an entity treated as a partnership for U.S. fabimcome tax purposes holds our ADSs or ordirstiares, the U.S. federal income tax
treatment of such partnership and each partnegeiierally depend on the status and the activfiéise partnership and the partner.
Partnerships that hold our ADSs or ordinary shaaed,partners in such partnerships, should coti®eilttax advisers regarding the U.S.
federal, state and local and non-U.S. tax consempseapplicable to them of the ownership and disiposof our ADSs or ordinary shares.

For U.S. federal income tax purposes, U.S. HoldésDSs generally will be treated as the ownerthefordinary shares represented by
the ADSs. Accordingly, except as otherwise notked,U.S. federal income tax consequences discussed hpply equally to U.S. Holders of
ADSs or the underlying ordinary shares.

Holders should consult their tax advisers regardinghe particular tax consequences to them of the ovenship and disposition of
our ADSs or ordinary shares under the laws of the bited States (federal, state and local) or any otheelevant taxation jurisdiction.

Taxation of Distributions

Subject to the discussion under “— Passive Forkigastment Companies” below, the gross amountdi$taibution made by us with
respect to the ordinary shares underlying our Alr@duiding the full amount of any Cypriot withhofdj tax thereon, will be a dividend for
U.S. federal income tax purposes includible inghess income of a U.S. Holder to the extent paidobour current or accumulated earnings
and profits (as determined for U.S. federal incaaxepurposes). Such dividends will not be eligilolethe dividends received deduction
allowed to corporations. Because we do not intenaddintain calculations of our earnings and prafiighe basis of United States federal
income tax principles, U.S. Holders should expkat ainy distribution paid will generally be reporte them as a “dividend” for U.S. federal
income tax purposes. Dividends received by indizidand other non-corporate U.S. Holders of our Abfat are traded on Nasdaq will be
eligible for beneficial rates of taxation providee are not a PFIC during the year in which theddind is paid or the prior taxable year and
certain other requirements, including stock holdiegiod requirements, are satisfied by the recipidr5. Holders should consult their tax
advisors regarding the application of the relevalgs to their particular circumstances.

Dividends will be included in a U.S. Holder’s inceran the date of the U.S. Holder’s (or in the a#s&DSs, the Depository’s) receipt of
the dividend. The amount of any dividend incomelpaia foreign currency will be the U.S. dollar ambcalculated by reference to the
exchange rate in effect on the date of receipfndigss of whether the payment is in fact convertedU.S. dollars. If the dividend is
converted into U.S. dollars on the date of recéipg. holders should not be required to recogrozeidin currency gain or loss in respect of
dividend income. A U.S. Holder may have foreignreacy gain or loss if the dividend is converteaibtS. dollars after the date of receipt.
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Sale or Other Disposition of ADSs or Ordinary Share

Subject to the discussion under “— Passive Forkigastment Companies” below, a U.S. Holder gengralll recognize capital gain or
loss for U.S. federal income tax purposes uporieaseother disposition of its ADSs in an amount&do the difference between the amount
realized from such sale or disposition and the bBi@der’s adjusted tax basis in such ADSs, in ezge, as determined in U.S. dollars. Such
capital gain or loss will be long-term capital géiaxable at a reduced rate for non-corporate Hdkders, such as individuals) or loss if, on the
date of sale or disposition, such ADSs were heldumh U.S. Holder for more than one year. The dauility of capital losses is subject to
significant limitations.

If a Russian tax is imposed on the sale or otheyatiition of our ADSs or ordinary shares, a U.9deids amount realized will include
the gross amount of the proceeds before deductitredRussian tax. See “—Russian Tax ConsideratR@levant to the Purchase, Ownership
and Disposition of the ADSs” for a description diem a disposition may be subject to taxation bysRugecause a U.S. Holder's gain from
the sale or other disposition of ADSs or ordindrgres will generally be U.S. source gain, a U.Sdelomay be unable to claim a credit aga
its U.S. federal tax liability for any Russian tax gains. In lieu of claiming a foreign tax creditl).S. Holder may elect to deduct foreign taxe:s
including the Russian tax, in computing taxableome, subject to generally applicable limitationslenU.S. law. U.S. Holders should consult
their tax advisers as to whether any Russian tagaims may be creditable against U.S. federal irectam on foreign source income from other
sources.

The surrender of ADSs in exchange for ordinary ehor vice versa) will not result in the realipatiof gain or loss for U.S. federal
income tax purposes, and U.S. Holders will not gaize any gain or loss upon such a surrender. A HoBler’s tax basis in withdrawn shares
will be the same as such holder’s tax basis irAID&s surrendered, and the holding period of theeshaill include the holdes’ holding perio«
for the ADSs.

Passive Foreign Investment Companies

In general, a non-U.S. corporation will be classifas a passive foreign investment company, or FBt@.S. federal income tax
purposes, if either (i) 75% or more of its grossoime consists of certain types of “passive” incaméi) 50% or more of the fair market value
of its assets (determined on the basis of a qUadegerage) produce or are held for the produatibpassive income. For this purpose, cash is
categorized as a passive asset and our unbooleedjibtes will be taken into account and generafipted as non-passive assets. We will be
treated as owning our proportionate share of tketasand earning our proportionate share of theniecof any other corporation in which we
own, directly or indirectly, 25% or more (by valu=)the shares.

We do not believe that we were a PFIC for the thxgbar ended December 31, 2012. We do not ant&clpsing a PFIC for our current
taxable year or in the foreseeable future, althaugltan make no assurances in this regard. Ouissaata PFIC in any year depends on our
assets and activities in that year. We have nmretsbelieve that our assets or activities withige in a manner that would cause us to be
classified as a PFIC for the current taxable yedowoany future year. Because, however, PFIC statfactual in nature, may depend in part or
fluctuations in the market price of our ADSs, isettenined annually, and generally cannot be detexchimtil the close of the taxable year,
there can be no assurance that we will not be dersil a PFIC for any taxable year. We could bel& FBr example, if our business and
assets evolve in ways that are different from wimaturrently anticipate. Furthermore, it is possithiat the IRS may challenge our valuatio
our goodwill and other unbooked intangibles, whigaly result in our company being classified as a&PFlI

If we are classified as a PFIC for any taxable yeaing which a U.S. Holder holds our ADSs, the .\H8Ider will generally be subject
an increased amount of taxes and an interest cheligeacterization of any gain from the sale othexge of our ADSs as ordinary income,
other disadvantageous tax treatment with respemtité\DSs unless the U.S. Holder may make a maikddket election (as described below).
Further, if we are classified as a PFIC for anyatde year during which a U.S. Holder holds our AR8d any of our non-U.S. subsidiaries is
also a PFIC, such U.S. Holder would be treatednasray a proportionate amount (by value) of the ekaif each such non-U.S. subsidiary
classified as a PFIC (each such subsidiary, a |beePFIC) for purposes of the application of thesles. U.S. Holders should consult their ta
advisors regarding the application of the PFICgtiteany of our subsidiaries.
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As an alternative to the foregoing rules, a U.3d&oof “marketable stock” in a PFIC may make akrarmarket election. A mark-to-
market election may be made with respect to our #[p8ovided they are actively traded, defined lidg purpose as being traded on a
“qualified exchange,” other than in de minimis gtités, on at least 15 days during each calendartgu but may not be made with respect to
our ordinary shares as they are not marketablé&.stde anticipate that our ADSs should qualify ambectively traded, but no assurances
be given in this regard. If a U.S. Holder of our 8®makes this election, the U.S. Holder will getyekd include as income for each taxable
year the excess, if any, of the fair market valieus ADSs held at the end of the taxable year ¢iveradjusted tax basis of such ADSs
(ii) deduct as a loss the excess, if any, of tHasaed tax basis of our ADSs over the fair markadtig of such ADSs held at the end of the
taxable year, but only to the extent of the netamreviously included in income as a result ef tark-to-market election. The U.S. Holder’
adjusted tax basis in our ADSs would be adjustaéflect any income or loss resulting from the mrknarket election. In addition, any gain
such U.S. Holder recognizes upon the sale or atisposition of our ADSs will be treated as ordinaxgome and any loss will be treated as
ordinary loss, but only to the extent of the nebant previously included in income as a resulthef tnark to market election. If a U.S. Holder
makes a mark-to-market election in respect of aam@tion classified as a PFIC and such corporat&ases to be classified as a PFIC, the U.S
Holder will not be required to take into accourd tiain or loss described above during any periatishich corporation is not classified as a
PFIC. In the case of a U.S. Holder who has heldA®s during any taxable year in respect of whiehwere classified as a PFIC and
continues to hold such ADSs (or any portion théraafl has not previously made a mark-to-marketielecand who is considering making a
mark-to-market election, special tax rules may wypelating to purging the PFIC taint of such ADBscause a mark-to-market election canno
be made for any lower tier PFICs that we may owd,& Holder may continue to be subject to the Pfl€s with respect to such U.S.
Holder’s indirect interest in any investments higydus that are treated as an equity interest iRI&€ For U.S. federal income tax purposes.

We do not intend to provide the information necaséar U.S. Holders of our ADSs to make qualifiddating fund elections, which, if
available, would result in tax treatment differéoim the general tax treatment for PFICs descridsul/e.

If a U.S. Holder owns our ADSs during any taxaldewthat we are a PFIC, such U.S. Holder may besuto certain reporting
obligations with respect to our ADSs, includingagng on IRS Form 8621.

Each U.S. Holder should consult its tax adviserceoning the U.S. federal income tax consequencpsmhasing, holding, and dispos
of our ADSs or ordinary shares if we are or becaitassified as a PFIC, including the possibilitynwdiking a mark-to-market.

An individual U.S. Holder and certain entities magy/required to submit to the IRS certain informatigth respect to his or her benefic
ownership of the ADSs, if such ADSs are not heldhisnor her behalf by a financial institution. Thasv also imposes penalties if an individual
U.S. Holder is required to submit such informatiorthe IRS and fails to do so. U.S. Holders shaoaldsult their tax advisors regarding
application of the information reporting rules.

Russian Tax Considerations Relevant to the Purchas®wnership and Disposition of the ADSs

The following is a summary of material Russian¢arsequences relevant to the purchase, ownerstigigposition of the ADSs. The
summary is based on the laws of the Russian Fedleiiateffect on the date of this annual report.dklthe foregoing is subject to change,
possibly on a retroactive basis, after the dath®finnual report. The discussion with respectussian legislation is based on our
understanding of current Russian law and Russkarutas, which are subject to frequent change amgling interpretations.

The summary does not seek to address the appitgadfiland procedures in relation to, taxes levigdhe regions and municipalities of
the Russian Federation. Nor does the summary sesdldress the availability of double tax treatyefelind it should be noted that there ma
practical difficulties involved in claiming reliefnder an applicable double tax treaty. Prospetidlders should consult their own advisers
regarding the tax consequences of investing iAfb8s and no representations with respect to theiRusax consequences of investing,
owning or disposing of the ADSs to any particulalder is made hereby.
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General

Many aspects of Russian tax law, including Rustarrules applicable to ADSs, are subject to sigaift uncertainty and lack
interpretive guidance. Further, the substantiverigions of Russian tax law applicable to finanaistruments may be subject to more rapid
unpredictable change (including with a retroactffect) and inconsistency than in jurisdictionshaitore developed capital markets or more
developed taxation systems. In particular, therprtgtation and application of such provisions willpractice, rest substantially with local tax
inspectorates. In practice, the interpretatioragflaw by different tax inspectorates may be inggiaat or contradictory and may result in the
imposition of conditions, requirements or restao8 not provided for by the existing legislatiomiarly, in the absence of binding precede
court rulings on tax or related matters by différ@nssian courts relating to the same or similaruchstances may be inconsistent or
contradictory.

For the purposes of this summary, a “non-residettdr” means a holder of ADSs who is:

. an individual actually present in the Russiadération for an aggregate period of less thanca&hdar days (including days of
arrival to the Russian Federation and includingsdafydeparture from the Russian Federation) ingariod comprising 12
consecutive months. Presence in Russia for tadersy purposes is not considered interrupted fondinidual’s short term
absences (of less than 6 months) from the Rus&darktion for medical treatment or education. Tierpretation of this definition
by the Ministry of Finance of the Russian Federataggests that for withholding tax purposes aividdal’s tax residence status
should be determined on the date of income pay(hased on the number of Russian days in the 12fmeriod preceding the
date of payment). The individual's final tax liabilin the Russian Federation for the reportingendhlr year should be determined
based on the number of days spent in the Russ@gr&@on in such calendar year;

. a legal entity or organisation, in each caseonganised under Russian law, which purchasedstanid/or disposes of the ADSs
otherwise than through a permanent establishmeheifRussian Federation (as defined by Russialatéx

For the purposes of this summary, a “Russian residelder” is a holder of ADSs who is not qualifiedbe a non-resident holder defined
in the previous paragraph.

Russian tax residency rules may be affected bypaticable double tax treaty. It is anticipated tthet Russian tax residency rules
applicable to legal entities may change in the figare.

Non-resident holders

Generally, a non-resident holder of ADSs shouldh@subject to any Russian taxes in respect aflglisions made by us with respect to
class B shares underlying the ADSs.

Legal entities or organisations

A non+esident holder that is a legal entity or orgamisagenerally should not be subject to any Rustiaas in respect of the purchas
the ADSs, any gain or other income realised orsttie, exchange or other disposal of the ADSs.

Individuals

A non-resident holder who is an individual shoutd generally be subject to Russian taxes in resgfeamy gains realised on the sale,
exchange or other disposal of ADSs, provided thaiproceeds of such sale, exchange or disposabareceived from a source within Russia.

In the event that the proceeds from a sale, ex@handisposal of ADSs are deemed to be received &source within Russia, a non-
resident holder that is an individual may be sutfjedrussian tax in respect of such proceeds atieaof 30 % of the gain (such gain being
computed as the sales price less any availablengeried cost deduction, including the acquisitidngpof the ADSs and other documented
expenses, such as depositary expenses and brfdes}’ subject to any available double tax treeligf;, provided that the necessary
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requirements to qualify for the treaty relief ahd ppropriate administrative requirements undeRihissian tax legislation have been met. Fo
example, holders of ADSs that are eligible for beaefits of the United States—Russia double taatyrshould generally not be subject to tax
in Russia on any gain arising from the disposa\Dfs, provided that the gain is not attributabl@ feermanent establishment or a fixed base
that is or was located in Russia and/or provided lss than 50% of our fixed assets consist ofarrahle property situated in Russia (as
defined in the treaty). Because the determinatfomhether 50% or more of our fixed assets congighmovable property situated in Russia is
inherently factual and is made on an on-going hasid because the relevant Russian legislatiomendations are not entirely clear, there car
be no assurance that immovable property situat®ligsia does not currently, or will not, constitt@% or more of our assets. If 50% or more
of our assets were to consist of immovable propsttiated in Russia, the benefits of the UnitedeSta Russia double tax treaty may not be
available to an ADS holder.

According to Russian tax legislation, income reedifrom a sale, exchange or disposition of the ABI®sild be treated as having been
received from a Russian source if such sale, exgghandisposition occurs in Russia. Russian taxgass no clear indication as to how to
identify the source of income received from a sakghange or disposition of securities exceptiti@me received from the sale of securities
“in Russia” will be treated as having been receifreth a Russian source.

The taxable base is required to be calculatedbtesuand, therefore, may be affected by fluctuatiorthe exchange rates of the
currencies used at the time of the acquisitionthedsale of the ADSs, the currency of sale of tBe&SA and rubles. The tax may be withheld at
source from payment only if the individual acts aigrofessional intermediary (such as trustee edelatoker or other intermediary acting to
benefit of the individual holder), otherwise thenr@sident individual shall be liable to file a taeturn and pay the tax due.

Additionally, acquisition of the ADSs by a non-m@snt holder who is an individual may constituteceable event pursuant to provisions
of the Russian Tax Code relating to the materiakfie(deemed income) received by individuals assallt of acquisition of securities. If the
acquisition price of the ADSs is below the lowerrgia of fair market value calculated under a spegfocedure for the determination of
market prices of securities for tax purposes, ffferénce may be subject to the Russian persocahie tax at a rate of 30% (arguably, this
would be subject to reduction or elimination untiher applicable double tax treaty).

As noted above with respect to the disposal ofb&s, under Russian tax legislation, taxation efitttome of non-resident holders who
are individuals will depend on whether this incommuld be assessed as received from Russian or nssid® sources. Although Russian tax
legislation does not contain any provisions on hioavrelated material benefit should be sourcedtak@uthorities may infer that such income
should be considered as Russian source income AREISs are purchased “in Russia”. In the absenemyfdditional guidance as to what
should be considered as a purchase of securitid’ussia”, the Russian tax authorities may apptiouva criteria in order to determine the
source of the related material benefit, includiogking at the place of conclusion of the acquisiti@nsaction or other similar criteria.

Certain tax deductions may be available for nesident holders who are individuals provided theditions stipulated by the Russian
Code are met.

Non-resident holders who are individuals shouldstidtrtheir own tax advisors with respect to thedarsequences arising as a result of
acquisition or disposition of the ADSs and the gcef proceeds from source within the Russian Fetiten in respect of such disposition.

Double Tax Treaty Procedur:

Where a non-resident holder of ADSs receives inchoma a Russian source, the Russian tax (if applcander Russian domestic tax
law) may be reduced or eliminated in accordanch thié provisions of a double tax treaty. Advaneaty relief should be available for those
eligible, subject to the requirements of the lafvRwossia. In order for a non-resident holder todfi¢firom the applicable double tax treaty,
documentary evidence is required to confirm thdiegbility of the double tax treaty for which beitefare claimed. Currently, a non-resident
holder is required to provide a tax residence cordtion issued by the competent tax authority efrédevant treaty country (duly apostilled or
legalised, and translated into Russian). The tsixlemcy confirmation needs to be renewed on anatiasis, and provided before the first
payment of income in each calendar year. In addito
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non-resident who is an individual must provide appiate documentary proof of tax payments outsideussia on income with respect to
which treaty benefits are claimed. Because of tieertainties regarding the form and proceduregfoviding such documentary proof,
individuals, in practice, may not be able to obtilvance treaty benefits on receipt of proceedn icsource within Russia, and it can be
extremely difficult to obtain a refund.

Non-esident holders should consult their own tax afgisegarding possible tax treaty relief and pracesifor obtaining such relief wi
respect to any Russian taxes imposed on proceeeised from a disposition of the ADSs.

Refund of Tax Withhe

If double tax treaty relief is available but Russtax has nevertheless been withheld at the safigayment, an application for the reft
of the taxes withheld may be made within three y&am the end of the tax period in which the taaswvithheld for non-resident holders.

In order to obtain a refund, the non-resident hoisleequired to file with the Russian tax authHest among other documents, a duly
notarised, apostilled and translated certificatearfresidence issued by the competent tax aughafrthe relevant treaty country at the time the
income was paid, as well as documents confirmingipt of such income and the withholding of Russ&a In addition, a non-resident holder
who is an individual is required to provide appiate documentary proof of tax payments made outsfidRussia with respect to which such
tax refund is claimed. The supporting papers stmlprovided within one year after the year to whiahtreaty benefits relates for non-resident
holders who are individuals.

The Russian tax authorities may, in practice, negaiwide variety of documentation confirming thght to benefits under a double tax
treaty. Such documentation, in practice, may na@icitly required by the Russian Tax Code. Qtitag a refund of Russian tax withheld
may be a time consuming process and can involvsiderable practicable difficulties.

Prospective non-resident holders should consuilt tiven tax advisors should they need to obtainfane of Russian taxes withheld on
any payments received with respect to the ADSs.

Resident holders
A Resident holder will generally be subject toaglplicable Russian taxes in respect of the purcbte ADSs and income received on
the ADSs, including gains from their sale, exchangether disposition.

Resident holders should consult their own tax adsisvith respect to their tax position regarding ADSs.

F. Dividends and Paying Agents
Not applicable.

G. Statements by Experts
Not applicable.

H. Documents on Display

We previously filed with the SEC our registratidgatement on Form F-1 (Registration No. 333-1875&9)mended, including the
prospectus contained therein, to register our @agglinary shares. We have also filed with the $E€lated registration statement on F-6
(Registration No. 333-188006) to register the ADSs.

We are subject to the periodic reporting and ottii@rmational requirements of the Exchange Act. eintthe Exchange Act, we are
required to file reports and other information witte SEC. Specifically, we are required to file aalty a Form 20-F within four months after
the end of each fiscal year, which is DecembeIC3ihies of reports and other information, when Emlfimay be inspected without charge and
may be obtained at prescribed rates at the pulfiecence facilities maintained by the Securitied BrRchange Commission at 100 F Street,
N.E., Room 1580, Washington, D.C. 20549. The publy obtain information regarding the WashingtorG CPublic
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Reference Room by calling the Commission at 1-8BG-8330. The SEC also maintains a website at wwugeg that contains reports, proxy
and information statements, and other informatearding registrants that make electronic filinghwhe SEC using its EDGAR system. A
foreign private issuer, we are exempt from thesuieder the Exchange Act prescribing the furnislaing content of quarterly reports and
proxy statements, and officers, directors and [paishareholders are exempt from the reportingsmdt-swing profit recovery provisions
contained in Section 16 of the Exchange Act.

l. Subsidiary Information.

Not applicable.

ITEM 11. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures Aout Market Risk

The main risks that could adversely affect ourtitial assets, liabilities or future cash flows iaterest rate risk, foreign exchange risk,
liquidity and capital management risks and cradk.rOur management reviews and supports policiemfinaging each of the risks
summarized below.

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk arises from the possibility tbla&nges in interest rates will affect future céss or the fair values of financial
instruments. Our income and operating cash flowssabstantially independent of changes in marketest rates, because we have no
significant interest-bearing assets or liabilitesept for borrowings with a fixed interest ratee \Wsed fixed rate instruments in 2011, 2012 an
2013.

Foreign exchange ris

Foreign exchange risk is the risk that fluctuationexchange rates will adversely affect itemsun statement of comprehensive income,
statement of financial position and/or cash flolareign currency denominated assets and liabilifies rise to foreign exchange exposure.

Out net assets in foreign currencies were not Bigmt. Taking into account the structure of our agsets and the exchange rates
fluctuations in 2011, 2012 and 2013, we evaluatedifin exchange risk as not significant.

Liquidity risk and capital manageme

We use cash from shareholders’ contributions, Isafficient cash and do not have any significanstautding debt other than interbank
debt with short maturities (classified as due fioenks). Deposits received from agents are als@dwkemand, but are usually offset against
future payments processed through agents. We edpeicigents’ deposits will continue to be offspiast future payments and not be called
by the agents. Amounts due to customers and amduet#o banks and trade and other payables arerddemand.

According to the requirements of the CBR, Qiwi Bantapital calculated based on Russian accountargdards may not be less than
10% of assets adjusted by risk. As of DecembeRB13, Qiwi Banks capital as a percentage of assets adjustedkowais 11% as comparec
14% as of December 31, 2012, thereby exceedingethered level in each respective period. Qiwi Bamdnitors the fulfillment of these
requirements on a daily basis and sends a rep@BE on a monthly basis. During 2012 and 2013 @amk met the capital adequacy
requirements of the CBR.

As of December 31, 2013, the capital adequacy berfit adjusted by risk calculated in accordandd wie 1988 Basel Capital Accord
consisted of 31%, as compared with 26% as of Deee®ib, 2012 and 114% as of December 31, 2011, vehicheded the minimum level
established by the agreement of 8%.

We manage our capital structure and make adjussgterit in light of changes in economic conditio@swpital includes share capital,
additional paidin capital, other reserves and translation res@rganaintain or adjust the capital structure, wey medurn capital to sharehold:
or issue new shares. Currently, we require cafutfihance our growth, but we generate sufficieagital from our operations. The table below
summarizes the maturity profile of our financialdilities based on contractual undiscounted paysn@nbf December 31, 2013.
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Within More than
Due:
Total On demanc ayear ayear
(in RUB millions)

Long-term and sho-term borrowings 11C — 1 10¢

Trade and other payabl 16,76¢ 16,76¢ — —

Amounts due to customers and amounts due to t 831 831 — —
Total as of December 31, 2013 17,71( 17,60( 1 10¢€

Credit risk

Financial assets, which potentially subject us @mdsubsidiaries and associates to credit risksisbprincipally of trade receivables,
loans receivable issued, cash and, short-term timesgs. We sell services on a prepayment basissures that our receivables are from
customers with an appropriate credit history —dargerchants and agents with sufficient and appatgodredit history. Our receivables from
merchants and others, except for agents, are dgneoa-interest-bearing and do not require coliateReceivables and loans from agents are
interest-bearing and are primarily secured by telid, which includes pledge of agents’ assetsguadlantees. This collateral does not meet
recognition criteria under IFRS and may be insidfit to cover the receivables, but is taken intmaat when assessing the impairment of
related receivables and loans. We hold cash piiynaiih reputable Russian and international bamksuding Central Bank of Russia, which
management considers to have minimal risk of dgfalthough credit ratings of Russian and Kazakikbare generally lower than those ol
banks in more developed markets. Our short-terrastments include fixed-rate debt instruments irbrethe top Russian banks.

The carrying amount of accounts receivable, natlofvance for impairment of receivables, represtémsmaximum amount exposed to
credit risk for this type of receivables. The tabé&dow demonstrates the largest counterpartieginoals and revenues, as a percentage of
respective totals:

Trade and other receivables Revenue
As of As of As of
December 31 December 31 December 31
Concentration of credit risks by main counterpatrties, % from total amount 2011 2012 2013 2011 201Z 201:
Top 5 41% 60% 33% 45% 24% 16%
Others 5% 40% 67% 55% 76% 84%

Collection of receivables could be influenced bgreamic factors. Management believes that there isignificant risk of loss to us
beyond the allowance already recorded.

ITEM 12. Description of Securities Other Than Equity Securities
A. Debt Securities.
Not applicable.

B. Warrants and Rights.
Not applicable.

C. Other Securities.
Not applicable.

D. American Depositary Shares

Fees and Expenses

Persons depositing or withdrawing class B sharesA@S holders must pay For:

U.S.$5.00 (or less) per 100 ADSs (or portion of AIES) » Issuance of ADSs, including issuances resyftiom a
distribution of class B shares or rights or otheperty
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Persons depositing or withdrawing class B sharesA@S holders must pay For:
» Cancellation of ADSs for the purpose of withalad,
including if the deposit agreement termine
U.S.$0.05 (or less) per AC » Any cash distribution to ADS holde
A fee equivalent to the fee that would be payabsecurities distributed  Distribution of securities distributed to hotdef
to you had been class B shares and the class Bsshad been deposited deposited securities which are distributed by the
for issuance of ADS depositary to ADS holde!
U.S.$0.05 (or less) per ADSs per calendar: » Depositary service
Registration or transfer fees » Transfer and registration of class B shareswrshare
register to or from the name of the depositaryoagent
when you deposit or withdraw class B she
Expenses of the depositary » Cable, telex and facsimile transmissions (wéepressly
provided in the deposit agreement)
» converting foreign currency to U.S. doll:
Taxes and other governmental charges the depositdhe custodian * As necessary

have to pay on any ADS or share underlying an AibSexample, stock
transfer taxes, stamp duty or withholding ta

Any charges incurred by the depositary or its agéat servicing the » As necessary
deposited securitie

The depositary collects its fees for delivery andender of ADSs directly from investors depositatgss B shares or surrendering ADSS
for the purpose of withdrawal or from intermediaréeting for them. The depositary collects feesriaking distributions to investors by
deducting those fees from the amounts distributday/selling a portion of distributable propertygay the fees. The depositary may collect its
annual fee for depositary services by deductiomfoeash distributions or by directly billing investar by charging the book-entry system
accounts of participants acting for them. The di#éansmay generally refuse to provide fee-basedises until its fees for these services are
paid.

From time to time, the depositary may make paymtnts to reimburse and/or class B share revermume tine fees collected from ADS
holders, or waive fees and expenses for serviassded, generally relating to costs and expenssemgrout of establishment and maintenance
of the ADS program. In performing its duties untlex deposit agreement, the depositary may use tsodtealers or other service providers
are affiliates of the depositary and that may earshare fees or commissions.

Payment of Taxes

You will be responsible for any taxes or other goweental charges payable on your ADSs or on thesitgnl securities represented by
any of your ADSs. The depositary may refuse tostegiany transfer of your ADSs or allow you to wlittw the deposited securities
represented by your ADSs until such taxes or atharges are paid. It may apply payments owed tooyaell deposited securities representec
by your ADSs to pay any taxes owed and you willagmiable for any deficiency. If the depositaryiseleposited securities, it will, if
appropriate, reduce the number of ADSs to refleetstale and pay to ADS holders any proceeds, artseADS holders any property,
remaining after it has paid the taxes.
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PART Il

ITEM 13. Defaults, Dividend Arrearages and Delinquacies

None.

ITEM 14. Material Modifications to the Rights of Security Holders and Use of Proceeds
None.

ITEM 15. Controls and Procedures
Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

Our management, with the participation of our cleeécutive officer and chief financial officer, hgerformed an evaluation of the
effectiveness of our disclosure controls and prooesi(as defined in Rule 13a-15(e) under the Exghdct) as of the end of the period
covered by this report, as required by Rule 13d)50der the Exchange Act. Based upon this evalnatiur management, with the
participation of our chief executive officer andeftfinancial officer, has concluded that, as af #nd of the period covered by this annual
report, our disclosure controls and procedures wiegtive in ensuring that the information reqdite be disclosed by us in the reports tha
file or submit under the Exchange Act is recorgedcessed, summarized and reported within the pieniods specified in by the SEC's rules
and forms, and that the information required taliselosed by us in the reports that we file or sitlumder the Exchange Act is accumulated
and communicated to our management, including bigf @xecutive officer and chief financial officexs appropriate, to allow timely decisions
regarding required disclosure.

This annual report does not include a report ofagament’s assessment regarding internal contralfoancial reporting or an
attestation report of the Company’s registeredipwdsicounting firm due to a transition period ebtied by rules of the SEC for newly public
companies.

Changes in Internal Control over Financial Reportirg

During the period covered by this report, we hanszéased and strengthened our IFRS team, whickelievb has improved the quality
of internal control over financial reporting.

ITEM 16. [RESERVED]
ITEM 16A. Audit Committee Financial Expert

Our board of directors has determined that Mr. MafRhodes is an “audit committee financial expasttiefined in Item 16A of Form
20-F under the Exchange Act. Our board of diredti@s also determined that Mr. Rhodes satisfieSitldependence” requirements set forth in
Rule 10A-3 under the Exchange Act.

ITEM 16B. Code of Ethics

We have adopted a Code of Ethics and Business Cotitht applies to all our employees, officers dirdctors, including our chief
executive officer, our chief financial officer andr principal accounting officer. Our Code of Ethand Business Conduct is available on our
website at www.qiwi.ru.
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ITEM 16C. Principal Accountant Fees and Services

The following table sets forth the aggregate feesdiegories specified below in connection withtaierprofessional services renderec
Ernst & Young, our principal external auditors, fbe periods indicated.

For the year ended December 3.

2012 2013
(in RUB millions)
Audit Fees 18 28
Audit Related Fee 52 26
Tax Fees 2 2
All Other Fees 4 3
Total 76 59

Audit Fees

Audit fees in 2012 and 2013 were related to thatadaur consolidated financial statements anaotudit or interim review services
provided in connection with statutory and regulatidiings or engagements.

Audit-Related Fees

Audit-related fees are in 2012 and 2013 were rélaigrofessional services rendered in connectiom aur IPO.

Tax Fees

Tax fees in 2012 and 2013 were related to tax ciamgé and tax planning services.

All Other Fees

All other fees in 2012 and 2013 relate to servinesnnection with corporate compliance matters.

Pre-Approval Policies and Procedures

All audit and non-audit services provided by outapendent auditors must be pre-approved by out eoiimittee.

ITEM 16D. Exemptions from the Listing Standards for Audit Committees

The Company relies on an exemption in in conneatith its initial public offering pursuant to Rul®A-3(b)(1)(iv)(A) of the Securities
Exchange Act in connection with Mr. Andrey Romangskmembership on the audit committee.

The NASDAQ listing rules mandated by Rule 10A-3¢bjhe Exchange Act require, among other thingst éach member of the audit
committee be independent. A company listing in @mtion with its initial public offering may phaseits compliance with the independent
committee requirement pursuant to Rule 10A-3(bINI(A) of the Exchange Act. Accordingly, a compdisting in connection with its initial
public offering is permitted to phase in its corapkte with the independent committee requirementsllasvs: (1) one independent member at
the time of listing; (2) a majority of independenémbers within 90 days of listing; and (3) all ipdadent members within one year of listing.

Immediately after our initial public offering, oaudit committee consisted of Messrs. Verdi Israglyamdrey Romanenko and Marcus
Rhodes, and within 90 days, our audit committeesisded of Messrs. Dmitry Pleskonos, Andrey Romaoearid Marcus Rhodes. Our audit
committee currently consists of Messrs. Nilesh laakhDmitry Pleskonos, Andrey Romanenko and MaRiedes. Mr. Lakhani, Pleskonos
and Rhodes meet the independence standards of N@3giing Rule 5605(a)(2) and satisfied the craddr independence set forth in
Section 10A(m)(3) of the Exchange Act. Within oreayfrom the date of effectiveness of our RegisimaStatement on Form F-1, as required
by Rule 10A-3(b)(1)(iv)(A), we intend for all memiseof our audit committee to qualify as independaatbers of the audit committee.

We do not believe that our reliance on the tempogaemption permitted by Rule 10A-3(b)(1)(iv)(A) tedally adversely affects the
ability of our audit committee to act independerthyto satisfy the requirements of Rule 10A-3 urttierExchange Act.
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ITEM 16E. Purchases of Equity Securities by the Iager and Affiliated Purchasers

None.

ITEM 16F. Change in Registrant’s Certifying Accountant
None.

ITEM 16G. Corporate Governance

Our corporate affairs are governed by our memonanad articles of association and the provisioraspgilicable Cyprus law, including
the Companies Law and common law. The Companiesdifiers from laws applicable to U.S. corporati@ml their shareholders. The
following table provides a comparison between @ergtatutory provisions of the Companies Law (tbgetwith the provisions of our articles
association) and the Delaware General Corporataw telating to shareholders’ rights.

Cyprus Delaware

Shareholder Meeting:
May be held at such time or place as specifietiérélevant notice give  Annual shareholder meetings are typically helduahgime or
in accordance with the Companies Law and articlessociation by the place as designated in the certificate of incorfomsor the bylaws.

board of directors if a general meeting is callgdhe board or by A special meeting of shareholders may be callethbyoard of
shareholders if called by such shareholders inrdece with the directors or by any other person authorized incérgificate of
Companies Law incorporation or bylaws

May be held in or outside Cyprt May be held inside or outside Delawe

Whenever shareholders are required to take angraatia meeting, a Whenever shareholders are required to take angraatia meeting
written notice of the meeting shall be given whittall state the place, if a written notice of the meeting shall be given ahéball state the
any, date and hour of the meeting, and the mearenufte place, if any, date and hour of the meeting, aedhtkeans of remo
communication, if any communication, if any

Shareholder's Voting Rights
Any person authorized to vote at a general meetiag authorize anoth  Any person authorized to vote may authorize angtleeson or
person or persons to act for him by pra persons to act for him by prox

The articles of association shall specify the nunaf¢he shareholders to The certificate of incorporation or bylaws may spethe number
constitute a quorum. Further to the Companies ltasee members to constitute a quorum, but in no event shall argooconsist of
personally present shall be a quorum unless tihdemdf association of less than one third of the shares entitled to abthe meeting. In
the company do not make other provision to thieaffFurther to our the absence of such specification, the majoritthefshares entitled
articles of association the quorum shall be 50.@f%e voting rights to vote, present in person or represented by prsbal] constitute a
attached to our issued shares present and votipgréon or by proxy ai  quorum at a meeting of shareholders.

duly convened general meetir

When the share capital is divided into differemtssles of shares separateGenerally, a certificate of incorporation may beeated by the
voting takes place for each class of shares tlitsrigf which are effecte approval of shareholders holding a majority of tlstanding
by the change. In accordance with the Companies tfenvdecision is shares entitled to vote on the amendment. Sharetsogstnerally
passed by a majority of two thirds of the votegesponding either to tt  have the right to amend the corporation’s bylaws the certificate
represented securities or to the represented ishad capital if less of incorporation may instead confer this right ba tlirectors of th
than half of the issued share capital is represesntel a simple majority  corporation. Except as provided in the certificafténcorporation,
of at least half of the issued share capital is changes in the rights of shareholders as set iiotthe certificate of
incorporation require approval of a majority ofstsareholders
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represented. Under our articles of associationgéuésion is passed by a
resolution of seventy five per cent vote of thedeo$ of the shares of the
relevant class, with the sanction of a speciallugiem of a general
meeting of our shareholde|

The articles of association may provide for cuniuéavoting. Cumulative voting is not permitted unless explicallowed in the
certificate of incorporatior

Directors
Under the Companies Law the board must consist lebat two Board must consist of at least one member.
members

Under the articles of association, the board staikist of up to twelve  Number of board members shall be fixed by the bglamless th

directors. A change in the number of directorsidaldetermined by the certificate of incorporation fixes the number ofetitors, in which

general meeting of the shareholders. case a change in the number shall be made onlynepdment of
the certificate of incorporatiol

Under the Companies Law, directors can be appoimyegither the Unless otherwise specified in the certificate afirporation or
general meeting of shareholders or board of directur articles of bylaws, directors are elected by a plurality of toées of the shart
association provide for a specific procedure oftatg directors entitled to vote on the election of directc

Under the Companies Law, directors can be remoyexhtordinary Barring certain exceptions, any director or thereriioard of

resolution of the general meeting of shareholdaraddition, our article directors may be removed, with or without causethieyholders of
of association provide that if the board of direstexercises its right to  a majority, or in some cases the supermajorityhefshares entitle
appoint a director to fill a vacancy on the boangmbers representing to vote at an election of directors.

10.01% of the voting rights attached to our isssteares may, subject to

following a specific procedure, terminate the approient of the boarc

As a foreign private issuer, we have elected to¥olCyprus corporate  Directors do not have to be independent.
governance practices, which, unlike the applictNdedaq requirements

for domestic issuers, do not require the majoritglicectors to be

independent. Under the Companies Law, directonsaddnave to be

independent. Further to the articles of associatlesmBoard shall conta

up to 3 independent directo

Fiduciary Duties
Directors and officers must act in good faith, viltle care of a prudent  Directors have a duty of care and a duty of loyadtthe

person, and in the best interest of the company. corporation and its shareholders. The duty of cageires that a
director act in good faith, with the care of a prntperson, and in
the best interest of the corporation. The dutyogélty requires the
a director act in a manner he reasonably believbg tin the best
interests of the corporatio

Directors and officers must refrain from self-degliusurping corporate Directors and officers must refrain from self-degliusurping

opportunities and receiving improper personal bienef corporate opportunities and receiving improper @eas benefits,
and ensure that the best interest of the corporatial its
shareholders take precedence over any interestgsess by a
director or
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Under the Companies Law, the directors have toadeche nature of

their interest (either direct or indirect) in tram§ons at a meeting of the
directors of the company. Under our articles obaggion, directors ma
not vote on a matter in which they have an integgen if the director hi

disclosed any interests in the transact

Actions by Written Consent

A unanimous written resolution of all directors Maké as valid as if it he

been passed at a duly convened meeting of the lobalidectors

A unanimous written resolution of all shareholdeii be as valid as if it

had been passed at a duly convened general meeting.

Business Combination

Dissolution of the company, assuming it is solveaquires a resolution
of the board of directors and a special resolutibiine general meeting.

Sale, lease or exchange of assets require a resobitthe board of
directors.

Completion of a merger or consolidation requiressmlution of the
board of directors and a special resolution ofgbeeral meeting

Depending on the form of a relevant combinatiaeduires a board of

directors’ resolution at which the directors rethte interested
shareholders have no right to vote and/or a speesalution of the
general meeting at which the interested shareholdeuld not be
precluded from voting

Shareholder's Derivative Actions

In any derivative suit instituted by a shareholofiea corporation, it shall
be averred in the complaint that the plaintiff véashareholder of the
corporation at the time of the transaction of whiehcomplains or that
such shareholder’s stock thereafter devolved upch shareholder by

operation of law.
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officer and not shared by the shareholders geye@dntracts or
transactions in which one or more of the corporasiairectors has
an interest are allowed assuming (a) the sharetsotitehe board
of directors must approve in good faith any sucdhtiaet or
transaction after full disclosure of the materadts or (b) the
contract or transaction must have been “fair” athéocorporation
at the time it was approve

Directors may vote on a matter in which they havéngéerest so
long as the director has disclosed any interedfsetransaction

A written consent of the directors must be unanistmutake effect

Unless otherwise provided in the certificate ofdrgoration, any
action to be taken at any shareholder meeting reaghen by
written consent of the holders of outstanding stagking not less
than the minimum number of votes that would be ssaey to take
that action at a meeting at which all shareholéetgled to vote
were present and vote

Completion of a merger, consolidation, or the salase or
exchange of substantially all of a corporation’sets or dissolution
requires approval by the board of directors and byajority
(unless the certificate of incorporation requirdsgher percentag:
of outstanding stock of the corporation entitledote.

Business combinations with interested shareholaeysire a
special shareholder vol

A shareholder may bring a derivative action on iatfahe
corporation to enforce the rights of the corporatio any
derivative suit instituted by a shareholder of gooation, it shall
be averred in the complaint that the plaintiff veashareholder of
the corporation at the time of the transaction bfol he complains
or that such shareholder’s stock thereafter dedbbyon such
shareholder by operation of la
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ITEM 16H. Mine Safety Disclosure
Not applicable.
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The complaint shall set forth with particularityetbefforts of the
plaintiff to obtain the action by the board or teasons for not
making such effort.

Such action shall not be dismissed or compromisiéubwt the
approval of the Chancery Court.

If we were a Delaware corporation, a shareholdeysgtshares
were cancelled in connection with our dissolutieould not be
able to bring a derivative action against us afterclass B shares
have been cancelle
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PART IlI

ITEM 17. Financial Statements

We have responded to Item 18 in lieu of respontbntis item.

ITEM 18. Financial Statements

Please refer to the financial statements beginompage F-1.

ITEM 19. Exhibits

Exhibit
Number

11

2.1
2.2

2.3

2.4

3.1

8.1

121
12.2
131

151

Index to Exhibits

Description of Documen

Articles of Association of QIWI plc (incorporated beference to Exhibit 3.1 to QIWI plc’s RegistmatiStatement on Form F-1,
File No. 33:-187579, filed on March 27, 201

Form of Registrars American Depositary Receipt (included in ExhibR)

Specimen Certificate for Class B Shares of the Reggit (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.2t8VI plc’s Registration
Statement on Form-1/A, File No. 33-187579, filed on April 19, 201:

Form of Deposit Agreement among the RegistrantDiygositary and Owners and Beneficial Owners ofAthrerican Deposital
Shares issued thereunder (incorporated by refetterieghibit 4.3 to QIWI plc’s Registration Statemi@m Form F-1/A, File No.
33:-187579, filed on April 19, 201

Form of Amended and Restated Registration Righte@ment among Saldivar Investments Limited, Sefge§olonin,
Palmway Holdings Limited, Antana International Cangtion, Andrey N. Romanenko, Dargle Internatidriatited, Igor N.
Mikhailov, Bralvo Limited, E1 Limited, Mail.ru GrquLimited and Mitsui & Co., Ltd., and QIWI plc. @orporated by reference
to Exhibit 4.5 to QIWI pl’s Registration Statement on For-1, File No. 33-191221, filed on September 30, 20.

Form of Voting Agreement among Saldivar Investméumtsited, Sergey A. Solonin, Palmway Holdings Ligdt Antana
International Corporation, Andrey N. Romanenko,daitnternational Limited, Igor N. Mikhailov, BradvLimited, E1 Limited,
Mail.ru Group Limited and Mitsui & Co., Ltd. (incporated by reference to Exhibit 4.4 to QIWI plc'sd#stration Statement on
Form F-1, File No. 33-187579, filed on March 27, 201

Subsidiaries of the Registrant (incorporated bgneice to Exhibit 21.1 to QIWI plc’s Registratiorat®ment on Form F-1, File
No. 33:-187579, filed on March 27, 201

Rule 13i-14(a)/15+14(a) Certification of Chief Executive Office
Rule 13i-14(a)/15¢14(a) Certification of Chief Financial Office

Certification of Chief Executive Officer and Chiefnancial Officer pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section@,3% adopted pursuant to
Section 906 of the Sarbal-Oxley Act of 2002

Consent of Ernst & Young LLt¢
116
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INDEX TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

QIWI plc and its subsidiaries

Audited Consolidated Financial Stateme

Report of Independent Registered Public Accourfging

Consolidated statement of financial position aBetember 31, 2011, 2012 and 2(

Consolidated statements of comprehensive incomtnéoyears ended December 31, 2011, 2012 and
Consolidated cash flow statements for the yearseisecember 31, 2011, 2012 and 2

Consolidated statements of changes in equity foydars ended December 31, 2011, 2012 and
Notes to the consolidated financial statementsheryears ended December 31, 2011, 2012 and

F-1

F-3
F-4
F-5
F-6
F-9
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Report of independent registered public accourfting
The Board of Directors and members of QIWI plc

We have audited the accompanying consolidatednséatits of financial position of QIW!I plc as of Dedaen 31, 2012 and 2013, and the rel;
consolidated statements of comprehensive inconmsotidlated statements of changes in equity andotidiased cash flow statements for each
of the three years in the period ended Decembe2@l13. These consolidated financial statementthareesponsibility of the Company’s
management. Our responsibility is to express aniopion these consolidated financial statementedasa our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with thedstats of the Public Company Accounting OversighafBioUnited States). Those standard:s
require that we plan and perform the audit to ebtagsonable assurance about whether the finataiaiments are free of material
misstatement. We were not engaged to perform ai afuithe Company’s internal control over finanaiaporting. Our audits included
consideration of internal control over financigbogting as a basis for designing audit procedurasdre appropriate in the circumstances, but
not for the purpose of expressing an opinion oreffectiveness of the Company’s internal contrarofinancial reporting. Accordingly, we
express no such opinion. An audit also includesnixiag, on a test basis, evidence supporting thewents and disclosures in the financial
statements, assessing the accounting principlebars significant estimates made by managementewaadating the overall financial
statement presentation. We believe that our apditgide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statetegrferred to above present fairly, in all matenégpects, the consolidated financial position
of QIWI plc as of December 31, 2012 and 2013, dritsdinancial performance and its cash flowsdach of the three years in the period
ended December 31, 2013, in conformity with Intéioreal Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) as esetbby the European Union, and IF
as published by the IASB.

/sl Ernst & Young LLC
Moscow, Russii
March 12, 201«
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Consolidated statement of financial position

(in thousands of Rubles, except per share data)

Assets

Non-current assets

Property and equipme

Goodwill and other intangible ass:
Long-term debt instrumen
Long-term loans

Investments in associat

Deferred tax asse

Other nor-current asset

Total non-current assets

Current assets

Trade and other receivabl
Shor-term loans

Shor-term debt instrument
Prepaid income ta

VAT and other taxes receivak
Cash and cash equivalel
Other current asse

Total current assets

Total assets

Equity and liabilities

Equity attributable to equity holders of the parent
Share capite

Additional paic-in capital

Other reserv

Retained earning

Translation reserv

Total equity attributable to equity holders of the parent

Non-controlling interes
Total equity

Non-current liabilities
Long-term borrowings
Long-term deferred revent
Deferred tax liabilities
Other nor-current liabilities

Total non-current liabilities

Current liabilities

Shor-term borrowings

Trade and other payabl

Amounts due to customers and amounts due to t
Income tax payabl

VAT and other taxes payakt

Deferred revenu

Other current liabilitiet

Total current liabilities

Total equity and liabilities

QIWI plc

As of December 31, 2013

As of As of
December 31  December 31
Notes 2012 2013

11 105,65 307,50(
12,17 1,975,93 2,405,64!
31 616,47: 1,376,86.
14 185,38 10,63;

7 100,43t —
27 101,80! 183,33¢
17 16,37 38,39
3,102,05  4,322,37.
15 3,437,67. 2,772,29
14 324,08¢ 65,43(
31 1,751,11 1,635,29.
37,83¢ 60,53}
19,51: 12,47¢

16 9,943,16/ 11,636,91
17 93,33¢ 159,26
15,606,71 16,342,21
18,708,77. 20,664,58
18 904 907
1,876,10. 1,876,10.
101,12 337,25
569,31° 573,60
70E 10,751
2,548,15. 2,798,622
(49,31)) (94,766
2,498,84.  2,703,86!
19 38,76: 109,35
43,60¢ 31,62¢
27 44,06 58,63(
— 7,62F
126,43: 207,23t
19 26,10 63t
20 14,934,19 16,768,97
21 944,54 831,22¢
9,55¢ 10,82
138,74: 95,40:
30,04¢ 46,23:
303 19:

16,083,49  17,753,48
18,708,77. 20,664,58



The accompanying notes form an integral part o$¢heonsolidated financial statements.
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QIWI plc

Consolidated statement of comprehensive income

for the year ended December 31, 2013

(in thousands of Rubles, except per share data)

Revenue

Operating costs and expens

Cost of revenue (exclusive of depreciation and &izadion)
Selling, general and administrative exper

Depreciation and amortizatic

Impairment of intangible assets and good

Profit from operations

Gain on bargain purcha

Gain/(loss) from disposal of subsidiar
Change in fair value of derivative financial ass
Other income

Other expense

Foreign exchange gain/(loss), |

Share of loss of associal

Impairment of investment in associa

Interest incom

Interest expens

Profit before tax from continuing operations

Income tax expens
Net profit from continuing operations

Discontinued operations
Loss from discontinued operatio

Net profit

Attributable to:
Equity holders of the pare
Non-controlling interest:

Other comprehensive income
Other comprehensive income to be reclassified éditpor loss in subsequent perioc
Exchange differences on translation of foreign apens

Total comprehensive income, net of tax

Attributable to:
Equity holders of the pare
Non-controlling interest:

Earnings per share:
Basic, profit attributable to ordinary equity haldef the parer
Basic, profit from continuing operations attributato ordinary equity holders of the par

Diluted, profit attributable to ordinary equity liers of the parer
Diluted, profit from continuing operations attribile to ordinary equity holders of the par

The accompanying notes form an integral part o$¢heonsolidated financial statements.
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Year ended December 3

Notes 2011 2012 2013
22 815809 891143 11,666,05
23 5572,60' 545428  6,396,49
24 1,543,68 183879  2,607,71
11,1: 140,59¢ 129,05 113,10
12, 1% — 3,63¢ 5,47¢
901,20. 148566 _ 2,543,25.
5.2 14,76¢ — —
7,024 (1,027) —
— (326) —
9,62( 16,66¢ 20,61
25  (73,18) (28,739 (20,089
(12,08) (21,126 8,021
7 (22,920 (13,239 (78,896
7 — — (21,540
22 6,14¢ 25,51( 22,20«
22 (4,06¢) (7,520) (28,68¢)
826,50. 1,455871  2,444,88:
27  (240,52) (407,729 _ (609,509
585,97¢ 1,048,14  1,835,37.
8  (156,25) (240,36 —
42972 _ 807,77¢ 183537
519,990  910,13¢  1,873,22
(90,269  (102,36() (37,85Y)
2,907 2,471 4,561
432,63:  810,25'  1,839,93
524,45.  912,09!  1,883,27:
(91,820 (101,840 (43,34
10 10.0C 17.5( 36.0(
10 11.4¢ 20.7- 36.0(
10 10.0C 17.5( 35.7(
10 11.4¢ 20.7- 35.7(



Table of Contents
QIWI plc
Consolidated cash flow statement
for the year ended December 31, 2013

(in thousands of Rubles, except per share data)

Year ended December 3

Notes 2011 2012 2013

Cash flows from operating activities
Profit before tax from continuing operatic 826,50:  1,455,87I 2,444.88
Loss before tax from discontinued operati 8 (137,569 (233,53) —
Profit before tax 688,93¢ 1,222,33! 2,444,88
Adjustments to reconcile profit before income tarét cash flows generated from opera

activities
Depreciation and amortizatic 11,12 156,58t 137,10: 113,10(
Loss/(gain) on disposal of property, plant and po&nt 5,321 (92) 12,73¢
Impairment of investment in associa 7 — — 21,54(
Impairment of intangible assets and good 12 8,22¢ 3,63¢ 5,47¢
Foreign exchange loss (gains), 32,73¢ (22,770 (8,02
Interest expense/(income), 1 22 (130,646 (243,49() (346,01
Bad debt expense/(recove 14,15 97,42t 211,03( 266,71:
Loss/(gain) on loans issued at rate different froarket 25 30,99: (8,047) —
Change in financial assets at fair value througtiifpor loss 31 — 32¢ —
Gain from disposal of subsidiaries and discontinojeeration: 8 (39,859 (45,519 —
Loss recognized in remeasurement of fair valueresftassification as assets held for ¢ 8 — 167,33 —
Share of profit for the period attributable to n@mtrolling interest and accounted for as

liability 25 16,60¢ 24,29¢ —
Loss on acquisition of ncontrolling interest classified as a liabil 25 12,25: — —
Gain on bargain purcha 5.2 (14,765 — —
Share of loss of associal 7 28,74( 13,23¢ 78,89¢
Shar+-based paymen 32 — 65,71¢ 230,93
Other 11,91( 3,58¢ 4,60¢
Operating profit before changes in working capital 904,46:  1,528,69: 2,824,86!
(Increase)/decrease in trade and other receiv (703,506 (1,028,02) 508,75:
Decrease in rent prepayme 225,70( — —
Increase in other ass¢ (45,307 (8,74)) (92,559
Increase/(decrease) in amounts due to customeraraodnts due to ban 152,30¢ (490,039 (102,75()
Increase in accounts payable and acci 1,575,981  4,041,45 1,593,76!
Loans (issued)/repaid from banking operati (39,519 (324,199 257,19:
Cash generated from operations 2,070,13.  3,719,13! 4,989,26
Interest receive: 174,40¢ 170,90: 467,20!
Interest paic (6,089 (6,609 (24,199
Income tax paic (189,65() (384,28) (706,517
Net cash flow from operating activities 2,048,80. 3,499,15. 4,725,76!
Cash flows from investing activities
Acquisitions of shares in subsidiaries, net of castuirec 5.1,5. (11,959 (1,062 (44
Payment for assignment of loa — — (90,750
Net cash inflow on disposal of subsidiar 8 1,16¢ 12,93 4,00(
Purchase of property and equipm (90,906) (35,587 (182,82)
Proceeds from sale of property and equipn 5,09z 5,34¢ 6,84¢
Purchase of intangible ass (47,94) (42,229 (192,38)
Loans issuel (23,57¢) (17,757 (24,509
Repayment of loans issu 2,98¢ 33,63¢ 29,71t
Purchase of debt instrumel (635,01) (1,649,54) (2,862,53)
Proceeds from settlement of debt instrum 1,143,75! 289,50( 2,111,90:
Purchase of investments in associi 7 (4,240 (92,859 —
Net cash (used in)/generated from investing activés 339,36! (1,497,61) (1,200,58)
Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from borrowing 48,22 52,25 34,06¢



Repayment of promissory notes issi (8,42)) (16,2979 —

Repayment of borrowing (15,916 (3,395 (2,52€)
Proceeds from/(disbursements of) from overdraftifes, net 2,132 (47,457) —

Transactions with nc-controlling interes 6 9,74¢ 10,34( —

Other financincg (22,177 — —

Dividends paid to owners of the Gro 26.1 (424,72() (865,687 (1,881,08)
Dividends paid to nc-controlling shareholdel 26.1 (60,807 (9149 (2,099
Compensation from underwrite 26.2 — — 72,83t
Distribution of underwriter commissior 26.2 — — (67,649
Net cash used in financing activities (471,93 (871,155 (1,846,44)
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and casbaéts 2,32i 2,33¢ 15,01:
Net increase in cash and cash equivalen 1,918,560 1,132,71! 1,693,75.
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of ye 16 6,891,88  8,810,44 9,943,161
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of ye 16 8,810,44  9,943,16f 11,636,91

The accompanying notes form an integral part of¢heonsolidated financial statements.
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QIWI plc
Consolidated statement of changes in equity
for the year ended December 31, 2013
(in thousands of Rubles, except per share data)

Attributable to equity holders of the parent

Share capital

Number of Non-
shares Additional Translation controlling
issued and paid-in Other Retained
Notes outstanding Amount capital reserves earnings reserve Total interests  Total equity

As of December 31, 201 18 52,000,00 904 1,876,10- 101,12 569,31 70t 2,548,15- (49,31) 2,498,84.
Profit (loss) for the yee — — — — 1,873,22 — 1,873,221 (37,852 1,835,37
Foreign currency translatic — — — — — 10,05: 10,05: (5,49)) 4,561
Total comprehensive

income — — — — 1,873,22 10,05: 1,883,27i (43,34 1,839,93
Share-based paymen 32 — — — 230,93 — — 230,93 — 230,93
Exercise of option 32 118,79« 3 — — — — 3 — 3
Reimbursement of expense

from the underwriter 26.2 — — — 72,83¢ — — 72,83¢ — 72,83¢
Non-proportional distributiol

of the reimbursement from

the underwriter: 26.2 — — — (67,649 — — (67,647 — (67,647
Dividends (35.86 per shar 26.1 — — — — (1,868,93) — (1,868,93) — (1,868,93)
Dividends to non-controlling

interest 26.1 — — — — — — — (2,117) (2,112)
As of December 31, 201 52,118,79 907 1,876,10. 337,25: 573,60 10,757 2,798,621 (94,766 2,703,86!

The accompanying notes form an integral part o$¢heonsolidated financial statements.

F-6



Table of Contents

QIWI plc

Consolidated statement of changes in equity (caath

(in thousands of Rubles, except per share data)

Attributable to equity holders of the parent

Share capital
Number of Non-
shares Additional Translation controlling
issued and paid-in Other Retained
Notes outstanding ~ Amount capital reserves earnings reserve Total interests  Total equity

As of December 31, 201 18 15,00( 89C 1,876,10. 32,811 526,07¢ 6,01F 2,441,89' (87,02() 2,354,87
Profit (loss) for the yee — — — — 910,13 — 910,13¢ (102,36() 807,77¢
Foreign currency translatic — — — — — 1,95 1,95 52C 2,47
Total comprehensive

income — — — — 910,13 1,95i 912,09! (101,84() 810,25!
Split of share 18 51,285,000 — — — — — — — —
Issue of share capit 18 700,00( 14 — — — — 14 — 14
Share-based paymen 32 — — — 65,71¢ — — 65,71¢ — 65,71¢
Disposal of subsidiarie 8 — — — — — (7,267 (7,267 132,71¢ 125,45:
Contribution from non-

controlling interest

without change in

ownershig 6 — — — 2,59t — — 2,59t 7,745 10,34(
Dividends (16.67 per shar 26.1 — — — — (866,900 — (866,900 — (866,900
Dividends to non-controllin

interest 26.1 — — — — — — — (9149 (919
As of December 31, 201 18 52,000,000 904 1,876,10. 101,12: 569,31 705 2,548,15. (49,317 2,498,84.

The accompanying notes form an integral part of¢heonsolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated statement of changes in equity (caath

(in thousands of Rubles, except per share data)

Attributable to equity holders of the parent

Share capital

Number of Non-
shares Additional Translation controlling
issued and paid-in Other Retained
Notes outstanding Amount capital reserves earnings reserve Total interests  Total equity
As of December 31, 201 18 15,00( 89C 1,876,10- 5,90¢ 422,62: 1,557 2,307,08 41,25( 2,348,333
Profit (loss) for the yee — — — — 519,99: — 519,99. (90,269 429,72
Foreign currency translatic — — — — — 4,45¢ 4,45¢ (1,55)) 2,901
Total comprehensive income — — — — 519,99: 4,45¢ 524,45. (91,82() 432,63:

Share in changes in equity of

associate 7 — — —  31,50¢ — — 31,50¢ — 31,50¢
Transactions with non-

controlling interest in

subsidiaries 6 — — — (1,555 — — (1,555 10,66¢ 9,11«
Acquisition of subsidiarie — — — — — — — (1,287 (1,287)
Other changes in equi — — — (3,05)) — — (3,05) 8,85( 5,79¢
Dividends (8.01 per shar 26.1 — — — — (416,53) — (416,53) — (416,53)
Dividends to non-controlling

interest 26.1 — — — — — — — (54,687 (54,687
As of December 31, 2011 18 15,00( 89C 1,876,110 32,81: 526,07! 6,01t 2,441,89° (87,02() 2,354,87

The accompanying notes form an integral part of¢heonsolidated financial statements.

F-8



Table of Contents

QIWI plc
Notes to consolidated financial statements
for the year ended December 31, 2013
(in thousands of Rubles, except per share data)

1. Corporate information and description of busines

QIWI plc (formerly known as QIWI limited) (the Corapy, QIWI) was registered on February 26, 2007 lawited liability Company OE
Investment in Cyprus under the Cyprus Companies, [Gap. 113. The registered office of the Compariy?2iKennedy Avenue, Kennedy
Business Centre, 2 Floor, office 203 P.C.1087, Nicosia, Cyprus. Ont8eber 13, 2010 the directors of the Company resbte change the
name of the Company from OE Investments Limite@td/I Limited. On February 25, 2013 the directordted Company resolved to change
the legal form of the Company from QIWI Limited@W!I plc. The consolidated financial statement&afi plc and its subsidiaries for the
year ended December 31, 2013 were authorizeddoeiby Board of Directors on February 28, 2(

QIWI plc and its subsidiaries (collectively the ‘@Bip”) operate electronic online payment systemsarily in Russia, Kazakhstan, Moldova,
Belarus, Romania, United States of America (USA) dnited Arab Emirates (UAE) and maintain bankieg\dty supporting processing of
payments.

The Company was founded as a holding company ast@fthe business combination transaction in WwiiAO Ob’edinennya Sistema
Momentalnykh Platezhey and ZAO e-port Groups oifiestwere brought together by way of contributiorthe Company. The transaction was
accounted for as a business combination in whic®Z#’edinennya Sistema Momentalnykh Platezhey destified as the acquirer.

During 2013 year QIWI plc completed initial pubbéfering (May 2, 2013) of 13,473,808 and secondsdfgring of 9,427,546 (October 1,
2013) of Class B Shares in the form of American @s#ary Shares (ADS).

All of the ADSs were offered by selling sharehokleé@IW!I did not receive any proceeds from the dfigs.
None of the direct or indirect shareholders hagrobover the Company. Therefore there is no ultenzarent of the Grou

Information on the Company’s principal subsidiaiiiedisclosed in Note 6.

2. Principles underlying preparation of consolidated inancial statements
2.1  Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements are prepamealhistorical cost basis, except for derivatimaricial instruments that have been measure
at fair value. The consolidated financial statera@me presented in Russian rubles (“RUB”) andalies are rounded to the nearest thousand
(RUB (000)) except when otherwise indicated.

The Group’s subsidiaries maintain and prepare s@ounting records and prepare their statutorguatting reports in accordance with
domestic accounting legislation. Standalone firargtiatements of subsidiaries are prepared in thspective functional currencies (see Note
3.3 below).
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QIWI plc

Notes to consolidated financial statements (coetifju
2. Principles underlying preparation of consolidated inancial statements (continued
2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

In accordance with European regulatio®@N06/2002 dated July 19, 2002, the 2013 consolid@tancial statements have been prepared in
accordance with the International Financial RepgrStandards (IFRSs) as endorsed by the Europeian (Available on the website
http://ec.europa.eu/internal_market/accountingiied#x_en.htm). Comparative figures are preserde@d11 and 2012 compiled using the
same basis of preparation. For the reported peribdee are no differences as applies to the Gbetyween the accounting standards and
interpretations endorsed by the European Uniortlamdtandards and interpretations published byntleenational Accounting Standards Bo
(IASB). Consequently, the Group accounts are pegpar accordance with the IFRS standards and irgtpons, as published by the IASB.
These consolidated financial statements are bas#uecunderlying accounting records appropriatdjysted and reclassified for fair
presentation in accordance with IFRS. IFRS adjustmiaclude and affect but not limited to such majeeas as consolidation, revenue
recognition, accruals, deferred taxation, fair eahdjustments, business combinations and impairment

The Group adopted IFRS as approved by the IASBEh@see above) by applying IFRS-ikst-Time Adoption of International Financial
Reporting Standardin its first IFRS financial statements for the yeaded December 31, 2008, with January 1, 200 gbtsrdate of transitic

to IFRS. At the time of adoption, IFRS 1 requirdgst-time adopter to disclose reconciliationstthave sufficient detail to enable users to
understand the material adjustments to the balsineet and requires reconciliations of equity regmbrinder previous GAAP to its equity under
IFRS. At the time of adoption of IFRS, the Compangtimary operations were in Russia and the C18.Gbmpany did not previously prepare
consolidated financial statements and concludedgtheconciliation of its IFRS consolidated finaldtatements to the Company’s parent
company separate financial statements would natdeningful. IFRS First-Time Adoption of International Financial Reting Standards
allows first-time adopters certain exemptions fritra general requirement to apply IFRS as effedbvé®ecember 2007 year-end
retrospectively. The Group has applied the follaywrxemption: cumulative currency translation diéfeces for all foreign operations were
deemed to be zero as of January 1, 2007.

IFRS 1 also prohibits retrospective applicatios@ine aspects of other IFRSs. In this respect,dtimates at the date to transition to IFRS are
consistent with those made for the same datesciordance with local GAAP by the Group’s subsidisufafter adjustments to reflect any
differences in accounting policies).

The Group applied no other exemptions either altbaterequired by IFRS 1.

2.2 Basis of consolidatior

The consolidated financial statements comprisditiamcial statements of QIWI plc and its subsidiaras of December 31 each year.

Control is achieved when the Group is exposedastrights, to variable returns from its involvemeith the investee and has the ability to
affect those returns through its power over thegtee.

Specifically, the Group controls an investee if andly if the Group has:
. Power over the investee (i.e. existing rights theg it the current ability to direct the relevativities of the investee
. Exposure, or rights, to variable returns from iitgalvement with the investee, a

. The ability to use its power over the investeefted its returns
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QIWI plc

Notes to consolidated financial statements (coetifju
2. Principles underlying preparation of consolidated inancial statements (continued
2.2 Basis of consolidation (continued

When the Group has less than a majority of thengatir similar rights of an investee, the Group @&s all relevant facts and circumstance
assessing whether it has power over an investeleding:

. The contractual arrangement with the other votedrsl of the investe:
. Rights arising from other contractual arrangeme

. The Grouy's voting rights and potential voting righ

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an invesfeets and circumstances indicate that there anegdsato one or more of the thi
elements of control. Consolidation of a subsidiaegins when the Group obtains control over theididry and ceases when the Group loses
control of the subsidiary. Assets, liabilities, @mee and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or dislpaisduring the year are included in the
statement of comprehensive income from the dat&tioep gains control until the date the Group ce&aseontrol the subsidiary.

Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the ddtaagjuisition, being the date on which the Groufaots control, and continue to be
consolidated until the date that such control ceaBke financial statements of the subsidiariegegpared for the same reporting period as th
parent company, using consistent accounting peailicie

All intra-group balances, income, expenses andalizezl gains and losses resulting from intra-grmapsactions are eliminated in full, except
for the foreign exchange gains and losses arisinigtoa-group loans.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprgiie income (OCI) are attributed to the equitydeos of the parent of the Group and to
non-controlling interests, even if this resultghie non-controlling interests having a deficit Ioele. When necessary, adjustments are made tc
the financial statements of subsidiaries to brivgjrtaccounting policies into line with the Groupscounting policies.

Acquisitions and disposals of non-controlling ietsts are accounted for as equity transactionstéfnitut options over non-controlling
interests acquired for no consideration separditeity the business combination are recognized awadial liability at acquisition date, with
offset toOther reserves The financial liability is measured at the faawe of its redemption amount. All subsequent ckarig the carrying
amount of the financial liability are recognizedtiire parent’s profit or loss. The exercise of spghoptions is accounted for as an acquisition
of non-<controlling interest: the Group derecognizes tharicial liability and recognizes an offsetting étéu equity, using the same compon
of Other reservesl|f the put option expires unexercised, the finahligability is reclassified t@ther reserves

A change in the ownership interest of a subsidiaithout a loss of control, is accounted for agquity transaction. If the Group loses control
over a subsidiary, it:

. Derecognises the assets (including goodwill) aalilities of the subsidian
. Derecognises the carrying amount of any-controlling interests

. Derecognises the cumulative translation differemeesrded in equity

. Recognises the fair value of the considerationivede

. Recognises the fair value of any investment rethi

. Recognises any surplus or deficit in profit or Ic

. Reclassifies the parent’s share of componenegqusly recognised in OCI to profit or loss otaiaed earnings, as appropriate, as would
be required if the Group had directly disposecdhefrielated assets or liabilitie
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QIWI plc

Notes to consolidated financial statements (coetifju
2. Principles underlying preparation of consolidated inancial statements (continued

2.3 Changes in accounting policie

The accounting policies adopted are consistent thitke of the previous financial years exceptlierchanges described below. The Group he
adopted the following new and amended IFRS anddHRRierpretations as of January 1, 2013:

Standard Content of changt Impact
IFRS 10 Single control model that applies to all entitiesliding special The changes did not have any
Consolidated Financial Statemer purpose entities. Changed definition of control. significant effect on the

Company’s financial position or
financial results

IFRS 11 Option to account for jointly controlled entitie¥GES) using The changes did not have any
Joint Arrangement proportionate consolidation has been removed. &dst&CEs that  significant effect on the
meet the definition of a joint venture under IFRISmust be Company’s financial position or
accounted for using the equity meth financial results
IFRS 12 Requirements for disclosures relating to an ergtilgterests in The changes did not have any
Disclosure of Interests in Oth subsidiaries, joint arrangements, associates anctsted entities in - significant effect on the
Entites accordance with the amended requirements of IA$45 28, IFRS Company’s financial position or
10, and IFRS 11 financial results
IFRS 13 Single source of guidance under IFRS for all failue The changes did not have any
Fair value managemel measurements. significant effect on the

Company’s financial position or
financial results

IAS 1 Presentation of items of Other Comprehensive Incoetpiirement The changes did not have any

Presentation of Financie to disclose separately the items that could bassified to profit or significant effect on the

Statements loss at a future point of time and the items thiéitivever be Company’s financial position or
reclassified financial results

IAS 1 Clarification of the requirement for comparativéoinmation: The changes did not have any

Clarification of the requirements  clarifying difference between voluntarily additidr@mparative significant effect on the

for comparative informatiol information and minimum required comparative infatian. Company’s financial position or

financial results

IAS 19 Option to defer the recognition of changes in redired benefit The changes did not have any

Employee Benefi liability has been eliminated. Amendments to disale significant effect on the
requirements. Company’s financial position or

financial results
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QIWI plc

Notes to consolidated financial statements (coetifju

2. Principles underlying preparation of consolidated inancial statements (continued

2.4. Standards issued by the IASB but not yet effectivand not yet adopted by EL

Standards issued but not yet effective up to the diissuance of the Company’s financial statemantl not yet endorsed in EU are listed
below. This listing of standards and interpretagi®@sued are those that the Company reasonablgtsxpehave an impact on disclosures,
financial position or performance when applied &itare date. The Company intends to adopt thesalards when they become effective.

Standard

IFRS 9
Financial Instruments
Classification and Measurement

Hedge accountin

Own credit

IAS 36

Impairment of Assets: Recovera
Amount Disclosures for N-
Financial Asset:

Content of changt Impact and effective datt

IFRS 9 as issued reflects the first phase of tieRswork on the The standard is effective for
replacement of IAS 39 and applies to classificaiod measurementannual periods beginning on or
of financial assets and financial liabilities adiled in IAS 39. In after January 1, 2015. The
subsequent phases, the IASB will address hedgeiatiog and adoption of the first phase of IFF
impairment of financial assets. 9 will have an effect on the

) ) classification and measurement of
The amendments introduced a new hedge accountidglitogether the Company’s financial assets,

with corresponding disclosures about risk managémetivity for  pyt will likely have no impact on

those applying hedge accounting. The new modeksemts a classification and measurement:
substantial overhaul of hedge accounting thatemiible entities to  financial liabilities. The Company
better reflect their risk management activitieghiir financial will quantify the effect in

statements. The most significant improvements afipthiose that  conjunction with the other phases,
hedge non-financial risk, and so these improvemamexpected to \yhen jssued, to present a
be of particular interest to non-financial instiuts. comprehensive pictur

As part of the amendments, the changes introduseceaable
entities to change the accounting for liabilitieattthey have elected
to measure at fair value, before applying any efdther
requirements in IFRS 9. This change in accountingld/mean that
gains caused by a worsening in an entity’s ownitregk on such
liabilities are no longer recognised in profit os$. These
amendments will facilitate earlier application bistlong-awaited
improvement to financial reportin

These amendments remove the unintended consequaEiE€S 13 These amendments are effective
on the disclosures required under IAS 36. In addjtthese retrospectively for annual periods
amendments require disclosure of the recoverabtaiats for the beginning on or after January 1,
assets or castenerating units (CGUSs) for which impairment loas 2014 with earlier application
been recognized or reversed during the period. permitted,
provided IFRS 13 is also applied.
The Company does not expect the
amendments to have a material
impact on its future financial
statements
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QIWI plc

Notes to consolidated financial statements (coetifju
2. Principles underlying preparation of consolidated inancial statements (continued

2.4. Standards issued by the IASB but not yet effectivand not yet adopted by EU (continued

Standard Content of changt Impact and effective dat¢
Investment EntitiegAmendments These amendments provide an exception to the ddatioh These amendments are effective
to IFRS 10, IFRS 12 and IAS 27) requirement for entities that meet the definitiémo investment for annual periods beginning on
entity under IFRS 10. The exception to consolidatequires after January 1, 2014. The
investment entities to account for subsidiariemmtvalue through  Company does not expect the
profit or loss. amendments to have a material
impact on its future financial
statements
IAS 32 These amendments clarify the meaning of “curremdly a legally =~ These amendments are effective
Offsetting Financial Assets and  enforceable right to set-off” and the criteria fmm-simultaneous  for annual periods beginning on
Financial Liabilities settlement mechanisms of clearing houses to qualifgffsetting.  after January 1, 2014. The

Company does not expect the
amendments to have a material
impact on its future financial

statements
IAS 19 These narrow scope amendments apply to contritgifrom These amendments are effective
Employee Benefits entitled Defin  employees or third parties to defined benefit pldiee objective of for annual periods beginning on
Benefit Plans: Employe the amendments is to simplify the accounting fortabutions that  after July 1, 2014. The Company
Contributions are independent of the number of years of emplsgeéce. does not expect the amendmen

have a material impact on its
future financial statement

IAS 39 These amendments provide relief from discontinliedge These amendments are effective
Novation of Derivatives an accounting when novation of a derivative designated hedging  for annual periods beginning on
Continuation of Hedge Accountil  instrument meets certain criteria. after January 1, 2014. The

Company does not expect the
amendments to have a material
impact on its future financial

statements
IFRS 14 IFRS 14 allows rate-regulated entities to contireegnising These amendments are effective
Regulatory Deferral Accoun regulatory deferral accounts in connection withirtfiest-time for annual periods beginning on
adoption of IFRS. Existing IFRS preparers are gyivdd from after January 1, 2016 with earlier

adopting this standard. Entities that adopt IFR$n1ét present the application permitted. The
regulatory deferral accounts as separate line iamthe statement Company does not expect the
financial position and present movements in theseunt balances amendments to have a material
as separate line items in the statement of profitss and other impact on its future financial
comprehensive income. The standard requires diseeon the statements.

nature of, and risks associated with, the entitgte regulation and

the effects of that rate regulation on its finahstatements
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QIWI plc

Notes to consolidated financial statements (coetifju
2. Principles underlying preparation of consolidated inancial statements (continued

2.4. Standards issued by the IASB but not yet effectivand not yet adopted by EU (continued

Standard Content of changt Impact and effective datt

IFRIC 21 IFRIC 21 clarifies that an entity recognises ailigbfor a levy IFRIC 21 is effective for annual

Levies when the activity that triggers payment, as periods beginning on or after
identified by the relevant legislation, occurs. Bdevy that is January 1, 2014. The Company
triggered upon reaching a minimum threshold, therpretation does not expect the amendments tc
clarifies that no liability should be anticipateefbre the specified have a material impact on its future
minimum threshold is reache financial statement:

Management of the Company has not completed tlsasent of the impact of Standards and Interpoetsitiot yet effective as of
December 31, 2013 on the Company’s accountingipslic

Annual Improvements to IFRSs 20:-2012 Cycle

Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2010-2012 Cycle islkection of amendments to IFRSs in response thtéggues addressed during the 2010:
2012 cycle for annual improvements to IFRSs. Iludes the following amendments:

. IFRS 2Sharebased PaymenDefinition of vesting condition

. IFRS 3Business CombinationAccounting for contingent consideration in a bussxeombinatior

. IFRS 80perating SegmentAggregation of operating segmer

. IFRS 80perating SegmentReconciliation of the total of the reportable segte’ assets to the ent’s assets

. IFRS 13Fair Value MeasuremenShor-term receivables and payabl

. IAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipme: Revaluation metho— proportionate restatement of accumulated depreaiz
. IAS 24 Related Party Disclosure: Key management personn

. IAS 38Intangible AssetsRevaluation metho- proportionate restatement of accumulated amortiae

Annual Improvements to IFRSs 20:-2013 Cycle.

Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2011-2013 Cycle islkection of amendments to IFRSs in response to iksues addressed during the 2011-
2013 cycle. It includes the following amendments:

. IFRS 1First-time Adoption of International Financial Reporti®&gandards: Meaning of effective IFRS’.
. IFRS 3Business CombinationScope exceptions for joint ventur
. IFRS 13Fair Value MeasuremenScope of paragraph 52 (portfolio exceptic

. IAS 40Investment PropertyClarifying the interrelationship between IFRS 3 #4A8 40 when classifying property as investmeniperty
or owne-occupied property

The Company does not expect the amendments toshanagerial impact on its future financial statemsent
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Notes to consolidated financial statements (coetifju

3. Summary of significant accounting policies

Set out below are the principal accounting politiesd to prepare these consolidated financialratits:

3.1 Business combinations and goodwi
Business combinations are accounted for usingdfaisition method.

Consideration transferred includes the fair vahfethe assets transferred, liabilities incurredhmsy Group to the previous owners of the
acquiree, and equity interests issued by the GrBuopsideration transferred also includes the fain& of any contingent consideration and
share-based payment awards of the acquiree theg¢@eeed mandatorily in the business combinatiee pelow).

If a business combination results in the termimatibpre-existing relationships between the Growg the acquiree, then the Group identified
any amounts that are not part of what the Grouptila@écquiree exchanged in the business combindtf@Group recognizes as part of
application the acquisition method only the consitlen transferred for the acquiree and the assfsired and liabilities assumed in the
exchange for the acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stageg,previously held equity interest is re-measuteits acquisition date fair value and any
resulting gain or loss is recognised in profitasd. It is then considered in the determinatiogaafdwill.

Any contingent consideration to be transferredheydcquirer will be recognised at fair value atabquisition date. Contingent consideration
classified as an asset or liability that is a ficiahinstrument and within the scope of IASB@ancial Instruments: Recognition and
Measuremer, is measured at fair value with changes in falu@aecognised either in either profit or loss swachange to OCI. If the
contingent consideration is not within the scop®A& 39, it is measured in accordance with the appate IFRS. Contingent consideration
is classified as equity is not re-measured andexpEnt settlement is accounted for within equity.

The Group measures any non-controlling intereis ggroportionate interest in the identifiable assets of the acquiree.

Transaction costs that the Group incurs in conagratiith a business combination, such as findeges féegal fees, due diligence fees, and othe
professional and consulting fees are expensedcasr@d (were zero for all periods presented).

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being theess of the aggregate of the consideration trenesf@and the amount recognised for non-
controlling interests, and any previous interesd haver the net identifiable assets acquired @tallities assumed. If the fair value of the net
assets acquired is in excess of the aggregatedsyation transferred, the Group re-assesses whithees correctly identified all of the assets
acquired and all of the liabilities assumed andenws the procedures used to measure the amoubésracognised at the acquisition date. If
re-assessment still results in an excess of thevddiie of net assets acquired over the aggregasideration transferred, then the gain is
recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to consolidated financial statements (coetifju
3. Summary of significant accounting policies (contined)
3.1 Business combinations and goodwill (continuec

After initial recognition, goodwill is measuredaist less any accumulated impairment losses. gouhpose of impairment testing, goodwill
acquired in a business combination is, from theuesitipn date, allocated to each of the Group’$hagsnerating units that are expected to
benefit from the synergies of the combination,spective of whether other assets or liabilitiethefacquired are assigned to those units.

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-gengrahit and part of the operation within that ugitlisposed of, the goodwill associated
with the operation disposed of is included in taerging amount of the operation when determinirggdhin or loss on disposal of the operal
Goodwill disposed in this circumstance is measi@skd on the relative values of the operation dispp@nd the portion of the cash-generatin
unit retained.

3.2 Investments in associate

The Group’s investment in its associate is accalfdeusing the equity method. An associate israityein which the Group has significant
influence.

Under the equity method, the investment in the@amis carried on the statement of financial fimsiat cost plus post acquisition changes in
the Group’s share of net assets of the associatdw@ll relating to the associate is included ia tarrying amount of the investment and is
neither amortized nor individually tested for impaént.

The statement of comprehensive income reflectStiveip’s share of the results of operations of #ewaiate. When there has been a change
recognized directly in the equity of the associtite,Group recognizes its share of any changesliantbses this, when applicable, in the
statement of changes in equity. Unrealized gaindsl@sses resulting from transactions between tloeiand the associate are eliminated t
extent of the interest in the associate.

The Group’s share of profit of an associate is showthe face of the statement of comprehensivamec This is the profit attributable to
equity holders of the associate and, therefongrafit after tax and non-controlling interests lire tsubsidiaries of the associate.

The financial statements of the associates areapeddor the same reporting period as the Grougetecessary, adjustments are made to
bring the accounting policies in line with thosetlod Group.

After application of the equity method, the Growgiedmines whether it is necessary to recognizedditianal impairment loss on its
investment in its associates. The Group deternmahesch reporting date whether there is any obetvidence that the investment in the
associate is impaired. If this is the case, theu@malculates the amount of impairment as the mdiffee between the recoverable amount of an
associate and its carrying value and recognizeartf@int in the statement of comprehensive income.

Upon loss of significant influence over the assmgithe Group measures and recognizes any retaimiegtment at its fair value. Any
difference between the carrying amount of the aatmapon loss of significant influence and the failue of the retained investment and
proceeds from disposal is recognized in profitoss|
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Notes to consolidated financial statements (coetifju
3. Summary of significant accounting policies (contined)

3.3 Foreign currency translation

The consolidated financial statements are preséntRdssian rubles (RUB), which is the Companyisctional and the Group’s presentation
currency. Each entity in the Group determinesvita éunctional currency, depending on what the ulyitey economic environment is, and
items included in the financial statements of eatity are measured using that functional curreficgnsactions in foreign currencies are
initially recorded at the functional currency ratehe date of the transaction. Monetary assetdiapitities denominated in foreign currencies
are re-measured at the functional currency raexofiange at the reporting date. All differencestaken to profit or loss. Non-monetary items
that are measured in terms of historical costfior@ign currency are translated using the exchaagps as of the dates of the initial transacti

Norn-monetary items measured at fair value in a foreigmency are translated using the exchange ratee aate when the fair value is
determined. The gain or loss arising on retrargiatif nonmonetary items is treated in line with the recagniof gain or loss on change in 1
value of the item (i.e., translation differencesitems whose fair value gain or loss is recogninesther comprehensive income or profit or
is also recognized in other comprehensive incom@dfit or loss, respectively).

The functional currency of the foreign operationgénerally the respective local currency — US@dlU.S.$), Euro (€), Kazakhstan tenge
(KZT), Belarussian ruble (BYR), Moldovan leu (MDLWatvian Lats (LVL) and New Romanian leu (RON).

As of the reporting date, the assets and liakslitiBthese subsidiaries are translated into thegptation currency of the Group (the Russian
Ruble) at the rate of exchange at the reporting datl their statements of comprehensive incom#anslated at the weighted average
exchange rates for the year or exchange ratesifingvan the date of specific transactions. Thehexwe differences arising on the translation
are recognized in other comprehensive income. §podal of a foreign entity, the deferred cumuladiweount recognized in equity relating to
that particular foreign operation is recognizedhia profit or loss.

The exchange rates of the Russian ruble to eapletige currency as of December 31, 2013 and 2Gk2 as follows:

Exchange rates at December : 2012 2013

US Dollar 30.372 32.729:
Euro 40.228t 44.969¢
Kazakhstan Tenge (10 20.210° 21.308t¢
Belarus Ruble (10,00( 35.337¢ 34.307:
Moldovan Leu (10 25.101: 25.079¢
Latvian Lats 57.698¢ 64.074:
New Romanian Leu (1( 90.824° 100.891(

The currencies listed above are not a fully corikerbutside the territories of countries of thgierations. Related official exchange rates are
determined daily by the Central Bank of the Russ&iaderation (further CB RF). Market rates may diffem the official rates but the
differences are, generally, within narrow paranmseteonitored by the respective Central Banks. Téstation of assets and liabilities
denominated in the currencies listed above into RtBhe purposes of these financial statements doeindicate that the Group could realize
or settle, in RUB, the reported values of thesetasand liabilities. Likewise, it does not indicéttat the Group could return or distribute the
reported RUB value of capital and retained earntogts shareholders.
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3.4  Property and equipment
3.4.1 Cost of property and equipme

Property and equipment are stated at cost lessragated depreciation and any accumulated impairimevilue. Expenditures for continuing
repairs and maintenance are charged to the prdfiss as incurred.

3.4.2 Depreciation and useful live

Depreciation is calculated on property and equigmera straight-line basis from the time the asastsavailable for use, over their estimated
useful lives as follows:

Bank equipmen 3-20 year:
Processing servers and engineering equipl 3-10 year:
Computers and office equipme 3-5 years
Other equipmer 2-7 years

The asset’s residual values, useful lives and dégtren methods are reviewed, and adjusted as pppte, at each financial year-end.

3.5 Intangible assets
3.5.1 Software and other intangible asse

Software and other intangible assets acquired aggaare measured on initial recognition at cbhe cost of other intangible assets acquired
in a business combination is their fair value athefdate of acquisition. Following initial recotion, intangible assets are carried at cost less
any accumulated amortization and accumulated impit losses.

Following initial recognition of the developmentp®nditure as an asset, the cost model is applapdrieg the asset to be carried at cost less
any accumulated amortization and accumulated impait losses. Amortization of the asset begins vdesrelopment is complete and the a

is available for use. It is amortized over the pemf expected future benefit, generally 3-5 yeBrging the period of development, the asset i
tested for impairment annually.

3.5.2 Software development cos

Development expenditure on an individual projeceisognized as an intangible asset when the Gramglemonstrate the technical feasibility
of completing the intangible asset so that it Wwélavailable for use or sale, its intention to ctatgand its ability to use or sell the asset, how
the asset will generate future economic benefits aivailability of resources to complete the aardtthe ability to measure reliably the
expenditure during development.

3.5.3 Useful life and amortization of intangible asse

The Group assesses whether the useful life oftangible asset is finite or indefinite and, if fiithe length of that useful life. An intangible
asset is regarded by the entity as having an inidefiiseful life when, based on an analysis obfthe relevant factors, there is no foreseeable
limit to the period over which the asset is expedtegenerate net cash inflows for the entity.
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3.5 Intangible assets (continued

Intangible assets with finite lives are amortizedaostraight-line basis over the useful economiesliand assessed for impairment whenever
there is an indication that the intangible asset b@impaired. Below is the summary of useful lieésntangible assets:

Customer base (agents collecting cash from ultimas¢éomers 4 years
Software 3-6 year:
Licenses 3-5 year:
Bank license indefinite
Trademarks and other rigt 3-5 year:

Amortization periods and methods for intangiblestssvith finite useful lives are reviewed at leaiséach financial year-end. Changes in the
expected useful life or the expected pattern osaamption of future economic benefits embodied emdkset are accounted for by changing th
amortization period or method, as appropriate,tegated as changes in accounting estimates.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives ag¢ amortized, but are tested for impairment arlgpeither individually or at the cash-
generating unit level. The assessment of indeflifigds reviewed annually to determine whetheritigefinite life continues to be supportable.
Indefinite-lived intangible assets include the dacepgibanking license with a carrying value of 18 @&s of December 31, 2013 and 2012. It is
considered indefinite-lived as the related liceissexpected to be renewed indefinitely.

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of darigible asset are measured as the difference betiie net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset and are recognizétkistatement of comprehensive income when the ssderecognized.

3.6 Impairment of non-financial assets

The Group assesses at each reporting date whhg#reris an indication that an asset, other thard@idloand intangible assets with indefinite
useful life, may be impaired. If any such indicatixists, or when annual impairment testing foasset is required, the Group estimates the
asset’s recoverable amount. An asset's recoveaaihtrint is the higher of an asset’s or cash-generatiit’s fair value less costs to sell and its
value in use and is determined for an individuakasunless the asset does not generate cashsrtfiavare largely independent of those from
other assets or groups of assets. Where the cgrayimount of an asset exceeds its recoverable aptberdsset is considered impaired and is
written down to its recoverable amount. In assegsgalue in use, the estimated future cash flowslem®ounted to their present value using a
pre-tax discount rate that reflects current magssessments of the time value of money and the sigécific to the asset. In determining fair
value less costs to sell, an appropriate valuatiodel is used.

These calculations are corroborated by valuatiohiphes, quoted share prices for publicly tradetisidiaries, if applicable, or other available
fair value indicators.

The Group bases its impairment calculation on @etdiudgets and forecast calculations, which aepamed separately for each of the Group's
CGUs, to which the individual assets are allocated.

These budgets and forecast calculations genemgra period of five years or longer, when manag@noonsiders appropriate. For longer
periods, a long-term growth rate is calculated amglied to project future cash flows after the aesir.
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3.6 Impairment of non-financial assets (continued

Impairment losses of continuing operations aregatzed in profit or loss in those expense categaransistent with the function of the
impaired asset.

For assets excluding goodwill, an assessment ieragdach reporting date as to whether there isnaligation that previously recognized
impairment losses may no longer exist or may haeseahsed. If such indication exists, the Group malkeestimate of recoverable amount. A
previously recognized impairment loss is reversalgt i there has been a change in the estimates tosgetermine the asset’s recoverable
amount since the last impairment loss was recodnit¢hat is the case, the carrying amount ofaébget is increased to its recoverable amoun

That increased amount cannot exceed the carryimgianthat would have been determined, net of dégien, had no impairment loss been
recognized for the asset in prior years. Such salés recognized in profit or loss. The followicgteria are also applied in assessing
impairment of specific assets:

Goodwill

Goodwill is tested for impairment annually and whincumstances indicate that the carrying value beympaired. Impairment is determined
for goodwill by assessing the recoverable amouth@fcash-generating units, to which the goodwitites. Where the recoverable amount of
the cash-generating units is less than their aagrgimount an impairment loss is recognized. Impamtnosses relating to goodwill cannot be
reversed in future periods. The Group performaiitsual impairment test of goodwill as of Decembier 3

Intangible asset

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives tasted for impairment annually as of December &fieeindividually or at the cash generating
unit level, as appropriate and whenever eventcandmstances indicate that an asset may be intpaire

3.7  Financial assets
3.7.1 Initial recognition and measuremer

Financial assets within the scope of IAS 39 arsgifeed as financial assets at fair value througtiiipor loss, loans and receivables, held-to-
maturity investments, or available-for-sale finaheissets, as appropriate. When financial asset®aognized initially, they are measured at
fair value, plus, in the case of investments ndaiatvalue through profit or loss, directly attuable transaction costs. The Group determines
the classification of its financial assets on alitecognition and, where allowed and appropri@&esvaluates this designation at each financial
yearend. All regular way purchases and sales of firdm@ssets are recognized on the trade date, viditie date that the Group commits to
purchase the asset. Regular way purchases orasal@sirchases or sales of financial assets thaireedelivery of assets within the period
generally established by regulation or conventiothe marketplace.
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3.7 Financial assets (continued

Financial assets at fair value through profit osk

Financial assets at fair value through profit @slinclude financial assets held for trading andrftial assets designated upon initial
recognition at fair value through profit or lossn&ncial assets are classified as held for traditigey are acquired for the purpose of selling or
repurchasing in the near term.

Financial assets at fair value through profit avgtlare carried in the statement of financial posit fair value with net changes in fair value

recognized in “change in fair value of derivatiugahcial assets”, “other gains” or “other lossesthie statement of comprehensive income.

Financial assets designated upon initial recogmigibfair value through profit or loss are desigdadt their initial recognition date and only if
the criteria under IAS 39 are satisfied.

Loans and receivable

Loans and receivables are non-derivative finarasakts with fixed or determinable payments thahat@uoted in an active market. After
initial measurement, loans and receivables ardéechat amortized cost using the effective interatt method less any allowance for
impairment. Gains and losses are recognized intgmofoss when the loans and receivables are dgrezed or impaired, as well as through
amortization process.

Debt instrument

Debt instruments and financial investments are aenivative financial assets with fixed or deterntilgapayments and fixed maturities, which
the Group has the intention and ability to holanaturity. After initial measurement, held-to-matyfinancial investments are subsequently
measured at amortized cost using the effectivedsteate (EIR), less impairment.

If the Group sold or reclassified more than angn#icant amount of debt instruments before maguather than in certain specific
circumstances), the entire category would be tdiated would have to be reclassified as availableséite. Furthermore, the Group would be
prohibited from classifying any financial asseha$d to maturity during the following two years.

Due from banks and loans and advances to custo

‘Due from banks’ and ‘Loans and advances to custsimi@clude non-derivative financial assets wittefl or determinable payments that are
not quoted in an active market, other than:

. Those that the Group intends to sell immedyatelin the near term and those that the Group upitial recognition designates at fair
value through profit or los:

. Those that the Group, upon initial recognition,igeates as available for sale;

. Those for which the Group may not recover subsaintall of its initial investment, other than besa of credit deterioratio

After initial measurement, amounts ‘Due from bardsd ‘Loans and advances to customers’ are substygueeasured at amortized cost, less
allowance for impairment.
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3.7 Financial assets (continued

Where the loan, on drawdown, is expected to bénedeby the Group, and not sold in the short teéha,commitment is recorded only when
commitment is an onerous contract and it is likelgive rise to a loss (for example, due to a cexparty credit event).

Amortized cos

Held-to-maturity investments, due from banks armhtoand advances to customers and debt issued potiewed funds and loans and
receivables are measured at amortized cost. Thmnputed using the EIR method less any allowaocafpairment. Amortized cost is
calculated taking into account any premium or disit@n acquisition and includes transaction costsfaes that are an integral part of the
effective interest rate. The EIR amortization iglimied in interest income in the statement of ca@hensive income. The losses arising from
impairment are recognized in the statement of cetmamsive income in finance costs for loans ana#t of sales or other operating expenses
for receivables.

3.7.2 Impairment and derecognition of financial asse
Impairment
The Group assesses at each reporting date whetinanaial asset or group of financial assets igaired.

Assets carried at amortized cc

For financial assets carried at amortized costsiscloans and receivables, amounts due from bhrgitss and advances to customers as w
held-to-maturity investments), the Group first individually whether objective evidence of anment exists for financial assets that are
individually significant, or collectively for finazial assets that are not individually significdfithe Group determines that no objective
evidence of impairment exists for an individualgsassed financial asset, it includes the assegioup of financial assets with similar credit
risk characteristics and collectively assesses tloeimpairment. Assets that are individually assesfor impairment and for which an
impairment loss is, or continues to be, recogne@dnot included in a collective assessment of imnt.

If there is objective evidence that an impairmesslon assets carried at amortized cost has bewmad, the amount of the loss is measured ¢
the difference between the asset’s carrying amandtthe present value of estimated future cashsfi@wcluding future expected credit losses
that have not been incurred) discounted at thenfiizh asset’s original effective interest rate.(itee effective interest rate computed at initial
recognition). The carrying amount of the assee@iced through use of an allowance account. Theiahad the loss is recognized in profit or
loss.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impeant loss decreases and the decrease can bel reéeetively to an event occurring after
impairment was recognized, the previously recoghimgairment loss is reversed, to the extent thecarrying value of the asset does not
exceed its amortized cost at the reversal date.stibgequent reversal of an impairment loss is m@zed in profit or loss.
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In relation to trade receivables, a provision fapairment is made when there is objective evidéseh as the probability of insolvency or
significant financial difficulties of the debtof)dt the Group will not be able to collect all o thmounts due under the original terms of the
invoice. The carrying amount of the receivablesiduced through use of an allowance account. Inghaiebts are derecognized when they are
assessed as uncollectible.

Derecognition
A financial asset (or, where applicable a part fihancial asset or part of a group of similar fin&l assets) is derecognized when:
. The rights to receive cash flows from the asseeleapirec

. The Group has transferred its rights to receivé ¢iasvs from the asset or has assumed an obligadigay the received cash flows in f
without material delay to a third party under asgdhrough’ arrangement; and either (a) the Gragttansferred substantially all the
risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Grosmie#ther transferred nor retained substantiallthal risks and rewards of the asset, but
has transferred control of the as:

When the Group has transferred its rights to rexeash flows from an asset or has entered intesip@ough arrangement, and has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all of tis&s and rewards of the asset nor transferred aooitthe asset, the asset is recognized to the
extent of the Group’s continuing involvement in tsset.

In that case, the Group also recognizes an aseddiability. The transferred asset and the assediBability are measured on a basis that
reflects the rights and obligations that the Grbap retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of argméee over the transferred asset is measured &mvler of the original carrying amount of
the asset and the maximum amount of considerdtatrtihe Group could be required to repay.

3.8  Financial liabilities

3.8.1 Initial recognition and measuremer

Financial liabilities within the scope of IAS 3%atlassified as financial liabilities at fair valtreough profit or loss, loans and borrowings, or
as derivatives designated as hedging instrumeras gffective hedge, as appropriate. The Groupmdies the classification of its financial
liabilities at initial recognition.

Financial liabilities are recognized initially atiff value less, in the case of loans and borrowidigsctly attributable transaction costs.

The Group’s financial liabilities include trade apither payables, bank overdraft, loans and borrgsvin

F-24



Table of Contents

QIWI plc

Notes to consolidated financial statements (coetifju
3. Summary of significant accounting policies (contined)
3.8  Financial liabilities (continued)

The measurement of financial liabilities dependshair classification as follows:

Financial liabilities at fair value through profitr loss
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit loss include financial liabilities held for tiad and financial liabilities designated upon ialiti
recognition at fair value through profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are classified as held fadmng if they are acquired for the purpose of sgllin the near term. This category includes
derivative financial instruments entered into by @roup that do not meet the hedge accountingieriés defined by IAS 39.

Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading eeeognized in profit or loss.

The Group has not designated any financial liaediat fair value through profit or loss.

Loans and borrowing
After initial recognition, interest bearing loansdaborrowings are subsequently measured at ameértizst using the effective interest rate
method.

Gains and losses are recognized in profit or Idssnathe liabilities are derecognized as well asubh the amortization process.

3.8.2 Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognized when the aation under the liability is discharged or careglor expires. Where an existing financial
liability is replaced by another from the same lemoin substantially different terms, or the terrharoexisting liability are substantially
modified, such an exchange or modification is #dads a derecognition of the original liability ahé recognition of a new liability, and the
difference in the respective carrying amounts ¢®@gmized in profit or loss.

3.8.3 Offsetting financial assets and liabilities
Financial assets and financial liabilities are efffand the net amount reported in the consolidstiément of financial position if, and only if:
. There is a currently enforceable legal right tseffthe recognized amounts; ¢

. There is an intention to settle on a net basi) oealize the assets and settle the liabilitiesuteneously

3.9 Cash and cash equivalent

Cash comprises cash at banks and in hand andtshordeposits with an original maturity of threentits or less. All these items are included
as a component of cash and cash equivalents fauitp®se of the statement of financial position stadement of cash flows.

F-25



Table of Contents

QIWI plc

Notes to consolidated financial statements (coetifju
3. Summary of significant accounting policies (contined)

3.10 Employee benefits
3.10.1 Current employment benefit

Wages and salaries paid to employees are recogai&zexpenses in the current period. The Groupaaisies expenses for future vacation
payments.

3.10.2 Social contributions

Under provisions of the Russian legislation, socdtributions are calculated by the Group by thgliaation of a regressive rate (from 34% to
0% in 2011; from 30% to 10% both in 2012 and 2G®3jhe annual gross remuneration of each employee.

3.11 Provisions

Provisions are recognized when the Group has @iprésgal or constructive obligation as a resulpast events, it is probable that an outflow
of resources will be required to settle the oblgatand a reliable estimate of the amount can &denWhere the Group expects a provision tc
be reimbursed, for example under an insurance actythe reimbursement is recognized as a sepasaét but only when the reimbursement i
virtually certain.

If the effect of discounting is material, provisgare determined by discounting the expected valfigture cash flows at a pre-tax rate that
reflects current market assessments of the timeevafl money and, where appropriate, the risks fipaoithe liability. Where discounting is
used, the increase in the provision due to thegggssf time is recognized as an interest expense.

3.12 Special contribution for defence of the Repuld of Cyprus

Companies that do not distribute 70% of their psddifter tax, as defined by the relevant tax laithiw two years after the end of the relevant
tax year, are deemed to have distributed as didgl@0% of these profits. A special contributiondefence of the Republic of Cyprus is leviec
at the 15% rate up to August 30, 2011 and 17% #fiene at 20% rate for the tax years 2012 and 20iBat the 17% rate for 2014 and
thereafter will be payable on such deemed dividelstsibution. Profits that are attributable to dtelders who are not tax resident of Cyprus
and own shares in the Company either directly aridtbrectly at the end of two years from the efdhe tax year to which the profits relate,
are exempted. The amount of deemed distributioadaced by any actual dividends paid out of thditsrof the relevant year at any time. This
special contribution for defence is payable by@oenpany for the account of the shareholders.

3.13 Income taxes
Current income tax

Current income tax assets and liabilities for theent and prior periods are measured at the ameoyo@cted to be recovered from or paid to
the taxation authorities. The tax rates and taxslaged to compute the amount are those that acteeinar substantively enacted by the
reporting date.

Current income tax relating to items recognizedthrer comprehensive income is recognized in otbeprehensive income.
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Deferred income ta

Deferred tax is recognized in respect of tempodiifigrences between the carrying amounts of assetdiabilities for financial reporting
purposes and the amounts used for taxation purpDsésrred tax is not recognized for the followbegnporary differences: the initial
recognition of assets or liabilities in a transactihat is not a business combination and thattffeeither accounting nor taxable profit or loss
and differences relating to investments in subsigsao the extent that it is probable that thely mot reverse in the foreseeable future. In
addition, deferred tax is not recognized for tagakimporary differences arising on the initial iggaiion of goodwill. Deferred tax is measured
at the tax rates that are expected to be appliezghporary differences when they reverse, basdatetaws that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the reporting date.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offseltéfé is a legally enforceable right to offset cotitax liabilities and assets, and they relate to
income taxes levied by the same tax authority erstime taxable entity, or on different tax entjtied they intend to settle current tax
liabilities and assets on a net basis or theiatsets and liabilities will be realized simultarspu

A deferred tax asset is recognized for unusedasses, tax credits and deductible temporary diffegs, to the extent that it is probable that
future taxable profits will be available againstigéhthey can be utilized. Deferred tax assetsewvewed at each reporting date and are red
to the extent that it is no longer probable thatrlated tax benefit will be realized.

3.14 Revenue and certain expenses recognitic

Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is glotibthat the economic benefits will flow to theoGp and the revenue can be reliably
measured. Revenues and related cost of revenuesioirites are recognized in the period when ses\dce rendered, regardless of when
payment is made.

Payment processing fee revenues and related tréingsamosts

The Group earns a fee for processing paymentatidiby the ultimate customers (“consumers”) totpayerchants and service providers
(“merchants”). Payment processing fees are eamoaa ¢onsumers or merchants, or both. Consumermese payments to various merchants
through kiosks or through the Group’s website gligptions using a unique user login and passwexdayments). Payment kiosks are ownec
by third parties — cash collection agents (“agént#’hen consumer payments are made, the Groupsipayment costs to acquire payments
payable to agents, mobile operators, internatipaginent systems and other parties. The paymenégsog fee revenue and related
receivable, as well as the transaction cost andetléed payable, are recognized at the point wherthants accept payments from consumers
in the gross amount, including fees payable fompayt acquisition. Payment processing fees andacsios costs are reported gross, excef
the consumer fees on payments collected througmeatykiosks, which is recorded in the net amouctik@ble from the agents-owners of
kiosks. Visa payment processing fee revenues datbdetransaction costs are reported net.
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In accordance with terms and conditions of use [W¥IQVVallet accounts, the Group charges a fee toatssumers on the balance of unused
accounts after certain period of inactivity. Suebd are recorded as revenues in the period a ébaiiged to a consumer.

The Group generates revenue from the foreign cayreanversion when payments are made in curreddi@sent from the country of the
consumer, mainly Russia. The Group recognizesdla¢ed revenues at the time of conversion in theusnnof conversion commission
representing the difference between the currensiBar relevant country Central Bank foreign caicgeexchange rate and the foreign
currency exchange rate charged by the Group’s psireg system.

Revenue from advertising and advertising commis:

Advertising revenues are fixed pursuant to consragth customers, generally advertising agencied,aae recognized monthly based on ag
amount of advertising that were displayed on eteitrpayment kiosks owned by agents in fixed byagrent period. Revenue from custon
and commissions payable to agents for the useoskkiis recognized gross.

The Group generates revenues from advertising gir@hort Message Service (SMS) through deliverydvertising messages to the Group’s
consumers together with an SMS confirmation of paytmade. The Group enters into agreements witartiging agencies and recognizes
advertising revenue based on the number of SMSatelil to end consumers at the time of delivenhefrespective SMS. The Group
concluded that it needs to report these SMSs ddieytrevenues gross of related SMS expenses. dimgusion is based on the fact that the
Group acts a principal in the transaction, bec#usealltimately responsible for the delivery of'gee, has discretion over a choice of SMS
delivery channel, determines the price and bea@ditcrisk.

Interest revenue from age’ overdrafts

The Group charges interest on overdrafts to agemdsncludes them in revenue. Related revenueseaognized using the EIR method by
applying the contractually agreed interest ratdbécactual daily amounts outstanding balance efdrafts.

Revenue and cost from rent of space for ki

Revenue from rent of space for kiosks represeneniges received from agents for sublease of sgated from retail shops for installation of
the agents’ payment kiosks. Cost of rent of spac&ibsks represents payments to retail shops.

The agreements for the lease of space for kiosks the retail shops and the agreements for theasblof space for kiosks with the agents ar
based on a fixed monthly lease fee per one kioakesprherefore both lease revenue and cost frotofepace for kiosks are recognized on a
straight-line basis over the lease term for eaokkspace. Total revenue and expense for a reggrériod is equal to the number of spaces
leased multiplied by the applicable lease revemakcast per single space.
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Interest revenu

For all financial instruments measured at amortizest, interest bearing financial assets classdi&édvailable for sale and financial instrum
designated at fair value through profit or los$giiest income or expense is recorded using the HiR carrying amount of the financial asse
financial liability is adjusted if the Group revssés estimates of payments or receipts. Onceeaberded value of a financial asset or a group ©
similar financial assets has been reduced due tmpairment loss, interest income continues todoegnized using the rate of interest used to
discount the future cash flows for the purpose e&suring the impairment loss. Interest income foamk loans and short- and long- term
investments performed as part of the Group’s tigefsunction is classified as part of revenues, iegeincome derived from loans issued to
various 39 and related parties as part of other arrangeni®ntassified as interest income.

Cash and settlement services

The Group charges a fee for managing cash and idggdosluding guarantee deposits from agents plag¢h the bank to cover consumer
payments they accept. Related revenue is recosisdraices are rendered or as transactions aregsedt.

3.15 Share-based payments

Employees of the Group receive remuneration irfdh@ of share-based payments, whereby employeeereervices as consideration for
equity instruments (equity-settled transactions).

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recagphitogether with a corresponding increase in agmsgrves in equity, over the period in which
the performance and/or service conditions arelliedfi The cumulative expense recognized for eqgsitifted transactions at each reporting datt
until the vesting date reflects the extent to wtiled vesting period has expired and the Group’s dsnate of the number of equity
instruments that will ultimately vest. The statemeincomprehensive income expense or credit fogréod represents the movement in
cumulative expense recognized as at the beginmdgad of that period and is recognized in pawxfiense.

No expense is recognized for awards that do nmhately vest, except for equ-settled transactions for which vesting is condiéibupon a
market or non-vesting condition. These are treatedesting irrespective of whether or not the maoskeon-vesting condition is satisfied,
provided that all other performance and/or seremeditions are satisfied.

When the terms of an equity-settled award are rextlithe minimum expense recognized is the expératavould have been incurred had the
terms not been modified, if the original termslof award are met. An additional expense is recedriiar any modification that increases the
total fair value of the share-based payment traisgor is otherwise beneficial to the employeeremasured at the date of modification.

When an equity-settled award is cancelled, itdatied as if it vested on the date of cancellatiod,any expense not yet recognized for the
award is recognized immediately. This includes award where non-vesting conditions within the colndf either the entity or the employee
are not met. However, if a new award is substit@idbedhe cancelled award, and designated as ac&plent award on the date that it is grantec
the cancelled and new awards are treated as ifvieeg a modification of the original award, as diéal in previous paragraph.
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The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reted as additional share dilution in the computatibdiluted earnings per share.

The option awards that are outstanding at Dece®ibe2012 and 2013 can only be settled in shareighvibwhy they are accounted for as
equity-settled transactions. If awards can beeskttl cash or shares at the election of the optadders, such awards are treated as liability
awards.

3.16 Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acdios, construction or production of an asset thetessarily takes a substantial period of time
to get ready for its intended use or sale are aliged as part of the cost of the respective asa8éitether borrowing costs are expensed in the

period they occur. Borrowing costs consist of ias¢and other costs that an entity incurs in caimreavith the borrowing of funds. The Group
does not capitalize borrowing costs due to immaligyi

3.17 Leases

The determination of whether an arrangement ispatains, a lease is based on the substance afrdmegement at inception date, whether
fulfillment of the arrangement is dependent onuke of a specific asset or assets or the arrandemeveys a right to use the asset, even i
right is not explicitly specified in an arrangement

Group as a lessee

Operating lease payments are recognized as antimgegapense in the statement of comprehensivaneaon a straight-line basis over the
lease term.

Group as a lessor

Leases in which the Group does not transfer sutisligrall the risks and benefits of ownership of@sset are classified as operating leases.
Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating an mgiang lease are added to the carrying amounteofgised asset and recognized over the lease
term on the same basis as rental income. Contirrgats are recognized as revenue in the periodhiohathey are earned.

3.18 Non-current assets held for sale and discontied operations

Non-current assets and disposal groups classifiegldstr sale are measured at the lower of thenyaay amount and fair value less costs to
sell. Non-current assets and disposal groups assified as held for sale if their carrying amoumilsbe recovered principally through a sale
transaction rather than through continuing uses €hindition is regarded as met only when the saféghly probable and the asset or disposal
group is available for immediate sale in its présemdition. Management must be committed to the, sehich should be expected to qualify
for recognition as a completed sale within one yeam the date of classification.

In the statement of comprehensive income, incondeeapenses from discontinued operations are regpegparately from income and
expenses from continuing operations, down to thellef profit after taxes, even when the Groupirsta non-controlling interest in the
subsidiary after the sale. The resulting profitoms (after taxes) is reported separately in thtestent of comprehensive income.
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3.18 Non-current assets held for sale and discontinued opetians (continued)

Property and equipment and intangible assets dassified as held for sale are not depreciatedrmraized.

4, Significant accounting judgments, estimates and assptions

The preparation of consolidated financial statem@ntonformity with IFRS requires management t&en@dgments, estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts etassd liabilities, disclosures of contingent &saead liabilities at the reporting dates and the
reported amounts of revenues and expenses duengplorting periods. However, uncertainty abousé¢heesssumptions and estimates could
result in outcomes that require a material adjustrteethe carrying amount of the asset or liab#itfected in future periods.

Significant judgments
Revenue recognitiol

The Group exercised significant judgment in reaglzirconclusion about its accounting policy for gresrsus net reporting of payment
processing fee revenues and related transactias. ¢dogarticular, there are two major sourcesayfipent processing fee revenues:

. Payment processing fees charged to consumers omepéy collected through agents, mobile operatado#mer payment methods; a

. Payment processing fees charged to merch

Either one of the two types of payment processées fabove, or in some cases, both payment progdssis apply to a single consumer
payment. Transaction costs relate to acquisitiopaginents by agents, mobile operators, internatipaanent systems and some other parties
and the applicable fees, generally determinedm@ntage of consumer payment, for each speaifimpnt channel are on terms similar to
those available to other market participants.

A merchants’ payment processing fee, when it isged, is recorded gross of related transactiorscbstause the Group (i) is the primary
obligor as it undertakes to transfer the consuragment to the merchant using its payment processistgm; (ii) it negotiates and ultimately
sets the fee receivable from a merchant, genesally percentage of payments; and (iii) it beamitcrisk in most of the cases, unless the
payment is made from a deposit made with the Group.

A consumer payment processing fee, when it is @thayp payments made by consumers through paynasitsgiis reported net of any
transaction costs payable to or retained by ag&his.is because, although the Group is the primatigor, it does not have any discretion
over the ultimate payment processing fee set bagemt as a kiosk owner to the consumer, doesawet teadily available information about
gross fee, and is only exposed to the net amouieteafeceivable from agents.
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Significant judgments (continued)

A consumer payment processing fee revenue collébtedgh mobile operators and other payment mettsodported gross of related
transaction costs. Such payments are made by camnsuihrough the Group’s website or an applicatisingia unique user login and password
and are called e-payments. In contrast with theswaer payment processing fee revenue collectedghrpayment kiosks, the Group, being a
primary obligor in e-payment transactions, alss se¢ consumer’s payment processing fee, generallypercentage of payment, although
credit risk for these transactions is limited. Thihe Group concluded that its ability to contiod tonsumer payment processing fee for e-
payments is a key differentiator from the consupemment processing fees on payments collecteddghrpayment kiosks.

The total amounts of transaction costs reportedgfor the years ended December 31, 2011, 2012@tRiare 4,446,945, 4,420,460 and
5,065,182 respectively, including the transactiosts for e-payments of 312,687, 659,704 and 1,28a:@spectively.

Starting from August 2012 the Group charges adeenfanaging special guarantee deposit accounts nadgents to cover consumer
payments they accept. Related revenues in the asofih09,980 and 462,332 for the years ended Dieeefi, 2012 and 2013 are reported
gross of transaction costs paid to the same afmmtsllection of consumer payments, because tresmues relate to a separate service hi
distinct value to agents and are provided at tthisgretion.

Functional currency

Each entity in the Group determines its own fumr@iccurrency, depending on the economic environnt@nterates in, and items included in
the financial statements of each entity are medsusang that functional currency.

Significant estimates and assumptio

Significant estimates and assumptions reflectadenCompany’s financial statements include, butnatdimited to:

. Useful lives of property and equipment and of igiate assets

. Fair values of assets and liabilities acquiredusilbess combination

. Impairment of intangible assets and goodv

. Deferred tax asset

. Impairment of loans and receivabl

. Shar+-based payment

Actual results could materially differ from thosgtienates. The key assumptions concerning the fetweats and other key sources of

estimation uncertainty at the reporting date ttaateha significant risk of a material adjustmenthi® carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year are discussed below:

Useful life of property and equipment

The Group assesses the remaining useful livegwisitof property and equipment at least at eachdinhyear-end. If expectations differ from
previous estimates, the changes are accounted fochange in an accounting estimate in accordaiticdAS 8 Accounting Policies, Changes
in Accounting Estimates and Error§hese estimates may have a material impact oarttfwaint of the carrying values of property and
equipment and on depreciation recognized in poofibss.
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Useful life of intangible assets

The Group assesses remaining useful lives of iitténgssets at each reporting date. If expectatiiffexr from previous estimates, the change:s
are accounted for as a change in an accountingastin accordance with IASAcounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimaied
Errors . These estimates may have a material impact oartteaint of the carrying values of intangible asaets on the amount of amortizati
expenses recognized in profit or loss.

Fair values of assets and liabilities acquired in lisiness combinations

The Group recognizes separately, at the acquisitide, the identifiable assets, liabilities andtoaent liabilities acquired or assumed in the
business combination at their fair values, whiclolaes estimates. Such estimates are based orntiealt@chniques, which require
considerable judgment in forecasting future castvéland developing other assumptions. When the arsai fair values are significant, the
Group hires 3d party appraisers to assist it in determining thatee fair values.

Impairment of goodwill and indefinite-lived intangible assets

In order to determine whether the goodwill and fimde-lived intangible assets are impaired, ihnecessary to estimate the value in use of the
cash-generating units to which the goodwill ancefivdte-ived intangible assets are allocated. Estimatirgvialue in use requires the Grouj
make an estimate of the expected future cash flowms the cash-generating unit and to choose atslaidiscount rate in order to calculate the
present value of those cash flows, and hence sithates are subject to uncertainty. See also Nateelow for details.

Deferred tax assets

The utilization of deferred tax assets will dependvhether it is possible to generate sufficieribde income against which the deductible
temporary differences can be utilized. Variousdextare used to assess the probability of theduitilization of deferred tax assets, including
past operating results, operational plans, expmati tax losses carried forward, and tax planmingtegies. The carrying amounts of deferred
tax assets were 183,333 as of December 31, 2012 (2001,805) net of allowance of 19,233 which vee®rded as of December 31, 2013
(2012 - 6,877) to reduce the amount of deferrecsaets to the recoverable amounts.

The allowance relates to deferred tax assets whérk not recorded because the Group does not eixpesdlize certain of its tax loss carry
forwards in the foreseeable future due to histdrpsses. Further details on deferred taxes acdagied in Note 27.

Impairment of loans and receivables

Management maintains an impairment of loans aneivables to account for estimated losses resuitorg the inability of customers to make
required payments. When evaluating the adequaay @hpairment of loans and receivables, managebssas its estimates on the aging of
accounts receivable balances and loans and hattaride-off experience, customer credit worthinaesl changes in customer payment terms.
If the financial condition of customers were toat@rate, actual write-offs might be higher thapeoted.

As of December 31, 2013, the impairment of loarts r@ceivables was recorded amounting to 612,2872(20385,111).
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Share-based payments

Management estimates the fair value of stock optairthe date of grant using the Black-Scholes-depricing model. The option pricing
models were originally developed for use in estingathe fair value of traded options, which haviéedent characteristics than the stock
options granted by the Company and its subsidiamelsassociates. The models are also sensitiveatgges in the subjective assumptions,
which can materially affect the fair value estimathese subjective assumptions include the expédittedf the options, expected volatility,
risk-free interest rates, expected dividend yithd, fair value of the underlying shares. The amadigixpense is also sensitive to the number o
awards, which are expected to vest, taking int@actestimated forfeitures. Below is the discussibaach of these estimates:

Expected life of the optic

The Company did not have any option grants in #et,mand does not have sufficient history to deiteerthe time the option holders will hold
the shares. Therefore, the Company used the expista as the average between the vesting andactmdt term of each option tranche.

Expected volatility
Due to a relatively short period of historical metrdata, QIWIS share price volatility as of December 31, 201defned based on the histori
volatility of peer group companies over a periotijch approximates the expected life of option trewx

Risk-free interest rateare based on the implied yield currently availablthe US treasury bonds with a remaining term ayipnating the
expected life of the option award being valued.

Expected dividend yie

At the time of grant in 2012 the Group had no plengay cash dividends, and the Group used an &gbédividend yield of zero in its option
pricing model for option awards granted in 2012ldwing its IPO in 2013, the Group started to payidknds and set an expected dividend
yield of 2.83% based on p-IPO dividend payments.

Fair value of the underlying shar

Prior to May 2013 the Company’s ordinary shareseweat publicly traded. Therefore, it estimatedftievalue of the underlying shares on the
basis of valuations arrived at by employing thectime approach” valuation methodology. Since May32QIWI plc is a public company and
the fair value of its shares defined by referemceldsing market price of its traded shares.

Estimated forfeiture

Low attrition rate among key personnel and manageaued lack of history resulted in an estimatedefiture rate of zero in 2012 and the use
of actual accumulated to date rate of forfeiture2013. If, in future, the actual forfeiture rasehigher, the actual amount of related expenst
become lower.
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5. Acquisitions of shares in subsidiarie:
5.1 Acquisitions in 2013
K5 Retail LLC

On December 27, 2013, the Group acquired the renta62.5% of Blestgroup Enterprize Limited previlyus a 37.5%-owned associate with
its whole-owned subsidiary K5 Retail LLC. The mautivities of K5 Retail LLC are sublease of spamediectronic payment kiosks. Prior to
the acquisition date K5 Retail LLC was an assoaméthe Group.

Cash consideration for 62.5 56
Settlement of pi-existing relationship
cash due to acquire (20,579
loans receivable from acquir 127,10¢
Fair value of the existing 37.5% ownership inte 34
Total purchase consideration transferred 116,62.

The fair value of the identifiable assets and liies as of the date of acquisition were:

Fair value
Net assets acquired:
Property and equipme 46
Intangible asset 295,38
Accounts receivabl 49,42(
Cash and cash equivalel 12
Other current asse 801
Long-term borrowings (182,27¢)
Deferred tax liability (9,075
Other liabilities (37,690
Total identifiable net assets 116,62:
Compan’s share in acquired net assets (10 116,62:
Goodwill arising on acquisition 0

As of acquisition date the Group had a liabilityl® 573 which represents the cash in QIWI Banktdwecquiree and loan receivable of
127,105. The Group recognized no gain or lossasrasult of settlement of pre-existing relationshag their fair value is approximately equal
to carrying amount as of acquisition date.

Net assets of K5 Retail LLC exclude loans payabliné Group of 127,105 at the date of the transac

The Group assigned intangible assets amountin@295¢ contract rights. The acquired intangiblesasspresents a right to become a party t
a lease contract with favorable lease rates anusteand is to be amortized over the term of 2 years

As of December 27, 2013 K5 Retail LLC had accouetgivable, gross in amount of 71,898 that wereainep by 22,478.

From the date of acquisition until December 31,2@lestgroup Enterprize Limited did not contribatgy revenue nor profit or loss to
consolidated revenue and profit or loss.
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5.2 Acquisitions in 2011

Freshpay IT solutions PVI Ltd

On February 9, 2011, Akhron Finance Ltd., the Gtegpbsidiary, acquired 100% of Freshpay IT sohgi®VI Ltd (“Freshpay”). Freshpay
operates an electronic online payment system iiaInd

Purchase consideration (cash pi 25,19%

Total purchase consideration transferred 25,19"

The fair value of the identifiable assets and liies as of the date of acquisition was:

Fair value
Net assets acquired
Property and equipme 2,27¢
Accounts receivabl 3,00¢
Cash and cash equivalel 9,257
Accounts payabl (1,889
Other current liabilitie (96)
Total identifiable net assets 12,557
Compan’s share in acquired net assets (10 12,557
Goodwill arising on acquisition 12,64(

The goodwill in the amount of 12,640 relates taifatgrowth of acquired business and potential gji@smwith existing operations.

Following the acquisition of 100% ownership in Hrgay, on June 25, 2011 the Group decided to atirbmtal partner and sold to it a 25%,
retained control over Freshpay. Further, on Decer2be2011, to attract an additional local parinethis business, the Group disposed of an
additional 25% of Freshpay, which resulted in & loscontrol over the subsidiary. The above tratisas were not contemplated on acquisi
and were not linked to one another. The transaeti@asmaccounted for as an acquisition of an assoaiad a de-consolidation of a subsidiary
and resulted in a 31,577 gain recorded on dispagath is calculated as follows:

Fair value of the investment in Freshpay (retainednterest 50%) 20,84’
Cash consideration 11,23¢
over:

Carrying value of the interest in Freshpay, incl: (508)
Derecognized carrying amount of net assets (includsoodwill) (3,933)
Derecognized carrying amount of r-controlling interest 3,425
Gain from disposal of Freshpay 31,57;

Upon loss of control in Freshpay, the Group recpeghia gain resulting from remeasurement of carryaige of interest in Freshpay to fair
value recorded as part of ‘Gain from disposal difssdiaries’ in the statement of comprehensive ineom

Gain from disposal of other subsidiaries compr&@82. Total amount of gain from disposal of sulasids for 2011 is equal to 39,859, of
which 32,835 is included in gain or loss from disthauing operations (Note 8)
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5.2 Acquisitions in 2011 (continued

Management allocated the fair value of considenafio 50% interest in Freshpay to the Group’s sloéfereshpay’s assets and liabilities as
follows:

Fair value
Intangible asset 9,27:
Fixed asset 65E
Accounts receivabl 2,91
Cash and cash equivalel 5,75(
Other current asse 2,78¢
Other current liabilitie (29,547
Other norcurrent liabilities (82
Total share in net asset (8,245
Goodwill as part of equity method investmen 29,09:

From the date of acquisition until the date contvak lost, Freshpay contributed 6,075 revenue &rfl’3 net losses to the Group for 2011. If
the combination had taken place at the beginnir@pafL, Freshpag' revenue would have been 6,161 and its net logselsl have been 29,1¢

Instant Payments LLF

On December 23, 2011 ZAO Ob’edinennya Sistema Maafeykh Platezhey, the Group’s subsidiary, acqu@@® of Instant Payments LLP
(“Instant Payments”) for a cash consideration cdr@] realized a gain on bargain purchase in theuatrad 14,765 relating to favorable terms
negotiated with a related party, a member of them@any’s key management. Instant Payments openateleetronic online payment system in
Kazakhstan, and compliments the Group’s existirgr®ss in this country through provision of sersite certain key local merchants. The
Group’s share in net assets of the acquired swrgidias not material for further disclosure. Frdma tlate of acquisition through December 31
2011 Instant Payments contributed immaterial anmoahtevenue and net losses.

Other acquisitions and disposals

During 2011 total acquisition, including other imdiually insignificant subsidiaries, are presenetbw:

Cash Net cash
consideratior Less casl acquired with
paid acquired the subsidiary
Freshpay 25,19; (9,257%) 15,94(
Other subsidiarie 1,37( (5,355 (3,985
Total 26,56’ (14,619 11,95¢

In 2011 the Group acquired 51% in QIWI Chile S.200% in TOB Finance Company OMP, 49.5% in ITBilliobC, 100% in ZAO OSMP
(Russia), and 51% in OOO lIzobilie, all for an ag@te consideration of 1,370. Share in ITBillion Lis@s increased from 1% (purchased in
2010) to 50,5%. It also sold 100% share in ZAO A\KIARD-Holding for 8 and 100% of share in OOO Eksikedrfor 20.
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6. Consolidated subsidiaries

The consolidated IFRS financial statements incthéeassets, liabilities and financial results & @ompany and its subsidiaries. The
subsidiaries are listed below:

Ownership interest

As of As of
December 31 December 31
Subsidiary Main activity 2012 2013
ZAO QIWI (renamed from Ob’edinennya Operation of electronic payme
Sistema Momentalnykh Platezhey) (Rus kiosks 10C% 10C%
ZAO QIWI-Service (former ZAO OSMP) Corporate center of the Group
(Russia) 100(% 10C%
ZAO QIWI Bank (Russia) Maintenance of electronic
payment systerr 10C% 100%
OO0O0 QIWI International Processing Services Operation of on-line payments
(renamed from QIWI Wallet) (Russi 100(% 10C%
QIWI Payment Services Provider Ltd (UAE Operation of electronic payme
kiosks 100% 10C%
QIWI International Payment System LLC Operation of electronic payme
(USA) kiosks 100% 100%
TOO OSMP (Kazakhstan) Operation of electronic payme
kiosks 10C% 10C%
SOOO OSMP BEL (Belarus) Operation of electronic payme
kiosks 51% 51%
SP OO0 OSMP-M (Moldova) Operation of electronic payme
kiosks 51% 51%
RO SRL United System of Instant Payments Operation of electronic payme
Ltd (Romania kiosks 51% 51%
IT Billion LLC (USA) Operation of electronic payme
kiosks 50.5% 50.5%
QIWI USA LLC (USA) Operation of electronic payme
kiosks 50.5% 50.5%
QIWI WALLET EUROPE SIA (Latvia) Operation of electronic payme
kiosks 100% 10C%
K5 Retail LLC (Russia) (Note 5.1) Sublease of space for electronic
payment kiosks in Russ 37.5% 10C%
Blestgroup Enterprises Ltd (Cyprus) Sublease of space for electro
(Note 5.1) payment kiosks in Russ 37.5% 10C%
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Below is a schedule that shows the effects of chaungthe Company’s ownership interest in subsisahat do not result in a loss of control
on the equity attributable to owners of the paesmd contribution from non-controlling interest witht change in ownership for the years ende
December 31, 2011 and December 31, 2012:

Carrying value of

Consideration non-controlling
received (paid) fol interest acquired Resulting increast
(sold) classified a
non-controlling (decrease) of
Name of a subsidian interest equity equity
Changes in ownership in 201. 9,11¢ 10,66¢ (1,559
Freshpay IT Solutions Private L1 9,61°¢ 3,19 6,42:
Colorstar Management Limite D (92¢) 927
QIWI Malaysia SDN. BHD (439 8,417 (8,85¢€)
SJETTA Ltd. (62) (12 (49)
Contribution from non -controlling interest without change
in ownership in 2012 10,34( 7,745 2,59¢
QIWI Argentina S.A. 6,17t 4,56¢ 1,60¢
QIWI Chile S.A. 3,801 2,81 98¢
QIWI Baltic Ltd 68€ 68€ —
IT Billion LLC (322) (322) —

There were no such changes in 2013.

7. Investment in associate:

The Group has the following associates:

Ownership interest

As of As of
December 31 December 31
Associate Main activity 2012 2013
QIWI Jordan Ltd. Co. (Hashemite Kingdom of Jordan) Operation of electronic
payment kiosks in Jord 49% 49%
QIWI BRASIL TECNOLOGIA DE CAPTURA E Operation of electronic
PROCESSAMENTO DE TRANSACOES LTDA payment kiosks in Braz
(Brazil) 29.5% 29.5"%
Blestgroup Enterprises Ltd (Cyprus) (associate imeca Sublease of space for
subsidiary, see Note 5.1) electronic payment
kiosks in Russii 37.5% —
QIWI International JLT (Dubai, UAE) (liquidated B013) Operation of electronic
payment kiosks in UAL 5C% —
Dengionline Ltd (Cyprus) Aggregation services fc
on-line electronic
payment systerr 4% —

The Group acquired and set-up certain new assedia012 and 2011. The overall effect of thesaimitipns is not material, other than as
disclosed in below.

On September 14, 2012 the Group sold 51% of Kingstoimited, which has 100% in QIWI BRASIL TECNOLOGIDE CAPTURA E
PROCESSAMENTO DE TRANSACOES LTDA (Brazil), retaigia 29.57% interest in QIWI BRASIL TECNOLOGIA DE ®AURA E
PROCESSAMENTO DE TRANSACOES LTDA (Brazil). The rieied 29.57% interest was recorded at fair valubetate of a loss control,
amounting to 6,355.
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On May 15, 2012 the Group acquired 49% of Dengianlitd and an option to acquire the remaining 5ddmfexisting shareholders of
Dengionline for U.S.$3,000,000 (equivalent of 9@)/Ihe option exercise price is 51% of eight tirB®TDA of Dengionline group for the
year ended April 1, 2017, and the option can beoised during the six months starting from May Q1 2. Based on the estimated exer
price calculated using Dengionline’s forecastedrmss plan, the option was outtbe money at the date of acquisition and as of Bes 31.
2012, and its fair value was immaterial at botteda©n December 2, 2013 the Group sold investmdnengionline Ltd. for U.S.$ 1 and
waived from the option for nominal consideration.

The main activities of Dengionline Ltd are aggrégaservices for on-line electronic payment systehie table below presents a purchase
price allocation.

The value of the identifiable assets and liab#ités of the date of acquisition, May 15, 2012, was:

Carrying amount Fair value

Net assets acquirec

Intangible asset 14,29: 95,39:
Other norcurrent asset 1,85¢ 1,85¢
Cash and cash equivalel 155,69« 155,69
Accounts receivabl 370,65: 370,65
Other current asse 4,74( 4,74C
Deferred tax liabilities — (16,785
Other norcurrent liabilities (105,23) (105,23)
Accounts payabl (654,929 (654,924
Shor-term borrowings (19,767 (19,767
Other current liabilitie (1,479 (1,479
Total identifiable net assets (234,15¢) (169,84)
Compan’s share in acquired net assets (4 (114,739 (83,227
Goodwill arising on acquisition 174,01¢

Goodwill in the amount of 174,018 relates to parstynergies with the existing operations. The ¥alue of intangible assets amounting
95,392 are assigned to billing software, clientisatbase and agreements with payment systems.

From the date of acquisition till December 31, 2ad&ngionline Ltd contributed 3,319 to the Groughsre of profit from associates.

As of June 30, 2013 the Company recognized 72,5&hare in net losses of Dengionline Ltd and theairing amount of investment of
21,540 was impaired due to deterioration of peromoe. In the second half of 2013 unallocated sihdess of Dengionline Ltd was 8,798. On
December 2, 2013 the Group sold Dengionline Ltcctorsideration U.S.$1.
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The Group’s interest in associates is accountedding the equity method in the consolidated finalratatements. The following table
illustrates summarized financial information of Beoup’s investment in its individually insignifiohassociates:

As of As of
December 31 December 31
2012 2013
Share of the associat¢ statement of financial position:
Current assel 346,22( 12,30
Non-current asset 163,01( 16,07:
Current liabilities (401,419 (9,695
Non-current liabilities (188,789 (44,977
Net assets (80,97() (26,300
Unrecognized share of losses of associ 8,521 26,30(
Impairment of investment in associa (1,139 —
Goodwill 174,01t —
Carrying amount of investment in associate 100,43t —
Share of the associat¢ revenue and loss
Revenue 193,74! 291,64
Share of net loss (including unrecognized shatessf 2013:
67,755; 2012: 0 (13,23 (168,189

The impairment of 1,133 in 2012 was caused by upéeiormance of the Group’s associate in Jordan.

The total share of the associates’ revenue foydlae 2013 includes share in revenue of Dengiortlidedisposed in 2013 in the amount of
222,482 and share in revenue of Blestgroup Ltdredfoe acquisition of control by the Group in timecaunt of 67,787.

The total share of the associatlss for the year 2013 includes share in loss afgimline Ltd. disposed in 2013 in the amount a2,902 anc
share in loss of Blestgroup Ltd before the acqoisiof control by the Group in the amount of 32,656

Movements in investments in associates in 20132 20 2011:

2011 2012 2013
Investments in associates as of January 4,101 34,65¢ 100,43t
Acquisition of shares in associa— cash consideratic 69t 90,79t —
Acquisition of shares in associa— at fair value 20,84’ 6,35¢ —
Contribution to associates without a correspondimgnge in ownershi 3,54¢ 13,44( —
Contribution to newly founded associa — 2,11¢ —
Loss recognized on the remeasurement to fair yaiioe to classification as
assets held for sa — (29,81¢) —
Share in net losses of associc (22,926 (13,236 (78,89¢)
Impairment of investment in associa — — (21,540
Foreign currency translatic (3,119 (3,879 —
Share in other changes in capital of assoc 31,50¢ — —
Investments in associates at December . 34,65¢ 100,43t —
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8. Disposals and discontinued operation

As part of the restructuring, on June 30, 2012 Gheup Board of Directors approved a single coatdid plan to dispose of its non-core
subsidiaries and associates as described below:

() Ukrainian business and non-CIS internationalyestage businesses forming two major geograplaiceds of operation of the QIWI
Distribution segment classified as discontinuedratiens;

(i) Diomachin grouf— engaged in production of transaction recording cks/for payment kiosks classified as discontinysgtations
(i)  Master Loto Ltd., OOO Loto Integrator and OQ®to Master are engaged in distribution of lot#ésrihrough electronic on-line payment
kiosks— not included in discontinued operations as insigaift.

All these companies had been disposed by Septe3th@012.

The loss from disposal was calculated as the diffegs between:

0] The fair value of the consideration receiveldispthe fair value of the retained interest in énéties disposed; and the carrying value of
net assets disposed of, as of the date of thegittion.

Cash consideration receival 10,29¢
Cash received for assignment of loans agreememt $udsidiaries and associates

classified as discontinued operatic 61,391
Investment in associates, at fair va 6,35¢
Total consideration received 78,04(
Net assets of discontinued operations derecogmizetisposa (38,767
Recycling of translation gain upon dispo 7,26
Gain on disposal of discontinued operations 46,54¢

The results of identified companies were re-clésgiés discontinued operations for the years ebagm@mber 31. These results are presented
below:

Year ended December 3

2011 2012

Revenue 342,53 155,12
Operating expenst (478,46)) (249,43)
Loss from operations (135,929 (94,309
Finance cost, ne (8,047 (8,627)
Gain from disposal of subsidiari — 46,54¢
Other income/(expenses), I 6,39¢ (9,829
Loss recognized on the remeasurement to fair \ — (167,339
Loss before tax (137,56%) (233,53)
Income tax expens (18,687 (6,82¢)
Net loss from discontinued operatior (156,25 (240,362
attributable to:

Equity holders of the pare (75,736 (167,57)
Non-controlling interest: (80,519 (72,790
Earnings per share (Note 10):

Basic, loss from discontinued operatic (1.4¢) (3.29)
Diluted, from discontinued operatio (1.4¢) (3.29
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8. Disposals and discontinued operations (continuec

All of the discontinued operations were sold by QM¢, which is a Cyprus company. According to Qygptax legislation, income from
investing activities is not subject to income thlence income tax expense on the disposal of disz@d operations equals to nil.

Loss for the period from discontinued operationssists of loss from current operations in the amofii19,576, loss recognized on the
remeasurement to fair value upon the classificatfotisposal groups as discontinued operationséramount of 167,333 and gain from
disposal equal to 46,546.

Both prior to and upon the classification of theptisal groups as discontinued operations, the Qvetiprmed an impairment test and recol
an impairment charge of 111,520 related to investmia associates, property and equipment, intdagibsets, loans and receivables and
inventories. In addition to that, the Group recarde impairment of the intra-Group loans issuethédisposal groups, classified as part of
investments into discontinued operations due tsdssccumulated by them in the amount of 55,813.

Loans receivable from the disposed subsidiariex Becember 31, 2012 include the loans issued bYIQ@Ic to Sanmere Investment Holding
Ltd and Akhron Finance Ltd for the total amountl82,093 (113,545 of which is principal and 18,588bich is accrued interest), repayable
by the end of 2013, and bearing interest of 10%.\Fdue of these loans was estimated to be rih@gsepayment is not considered probable a
this time.

Below are the assets and liabilities of all companilassified as discontinued operations as ofidie of their disposal:

Non-current assel 65,86¢
Current assetl 282,81
Liabilities (435,19)
Non-controlling interes 125,27(

38,76

Net cash inflow on disposal of discontinued operatifor the year ended December 31, 2012 are lasviol

Net cash inflow on disposal of subsidiarie- discontinued 29,90:
Cash consideration receiv 61,391
Cash and cash equivalents dispc (31,489

The net cash flows incurred by discontinued openatifor the year ended December 31 are as follows:

Year ended December 3

2011 2012
Operating (50,767 39,73%
Investing (13,74°) (34,507
Financing 24 ,41¢ (36,950)
Net cash outflow (40,096 (31,71%)
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In addition the Group disposed the other subsiel§anihich were not classified as discontinued ojmerst Their financial results and net cash
flows for the year ended December 31 are as follows

Year ended December, 3

2011 2012
Net cash inflow/(outflow) on disposal of subsidiags— continuing 1,16¢ (16,97¢)
Cash consideration receiv 12,83¢ 1
Cash and cash equivalents dispc (11,677) (16,977
Gain/(loss) from disposal of subsidiarie— continuing 39,85¢ (1,027)
Cash consideration receival 12,83¢ 4,00(
Less net assets dispos 25,45: 46,26¢
Less expense on assignment of la — (35,939
Less impairment of accounts receivable from thpatied subsidiarie — (7,90¢6)
Less disposal of ni-controlling interes 1,56¢ (7,44%)

9. Operating segments

In reviewing the operational performance of the @rand allocating resources, the chief operatimisa® maker of the Group (CODM), who
is the Croup’s CEO and, prior to the appointmerthefCEO, was the board of directors of the Groepiews selected items of each segment’:
statement of comprehensive income.

Management reporting is different from IFRS, beeaitisloes not include certain IFRS adjustments whi®@ not analyzed by the chief
operating decision maker in assessing the coreatipgrperformance of the business. Such adjustnadfest such major areas as deferred
taxation, business combinations, fair value adjesti:iand amortization thereof, impairment, as agkhonrecurring items.

The financial data is presented on a combined liaisel key subsidiaries and associates reprasgmetich segment added together forming th
segment revenue, operating expenses, net incomeGiidup measures the performance of its operagigments by monitoring: revenue,
segment net revenue, profit from operations anflitgrefore tax. Segment net revenue is a measupecditability defined as the segment
revenues less segment direct costs, which inchielsame items as the “Cost of revenue (exclusigepfeciation and amortization)” as
reported in the Group’s consolidated statemenbafgrehensive income, except for payroll costs. Glhgosts are excluded because, althougt
required to maintain the Group’s distribution netkydhey are not linked to payment volume.

The Group has identified its operating segmentedbas the types of products and services the Goéfeps. The Group has identified the
following reportable segments:

. QD segmentwhich includes revenue derived from payment systeffered though the Group’s kiosks and kioskRuissia and
internationally.

. VOW segmentwhich includes revenue derived from payments prssgshrough online electronic user accounts anll pegpayment
products, including prepaid card business, andmes® derived from QIWI Banl

. Corporate and Othewmhich includes limited activities of the Group rteld to corporate back-office operations, such aditensing of
software and trademarks to international compasmessubsidiarie:
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The statement of comprehensive income from conmtnoperations for each segment for the year endegmber 31, 2013, as presented tc
CODM is presented below:

Corporate Total
continuing
QD VQW and other Eliminations operations
Revenue 7,656,57! 7,665,33 116,88: (3,772,73) 11,666,05
External revenu 4,907,95 6,732,19 25,89¢ — 11,666,05
Intersegment revent 2,748,61! 933,13! 90,98t (3,772,73) —
Direct segment cos (4,474,16) (4,781,54) (14,487) 3,771,66. (5,498,52)
External direct segment co (3,496,51) (1,997,06) (4,947) — (5,498,52)
Intersegment direct co (977,644  (2,784,48) (9,540 3,771,66. —
Segment net revenue 3,182,41. 2,883,78 102,40: (1,07%) 6,167,52!
Depreciation and amortization (66,357) (19,769 (4,797 — (90,917
Segment profit from operations 1,155,711 1,746,72! (15,85¢) — 2,886,58!
Share of loss of associal (6,322 — (72,572 — (78,896
Interest incom 24,16¢ — 11,39¢ (13,356 22,20«
Interest expens (37,099 (102) (4,842 13,35¢ (28,68¢)
Segment profit before tax 1,134,83 1,737,82 (84,447 — 2,788,21.

The statement of comprehensive income from cominoperations for each segment for the year endegmber 31, 2012, as presented tc
CODM is presented below:

Corporate Total

continuing

QD VQW and other Eliminations operations
Revenue 6,808,62 3,927,13. 139,38: (1,963,69) 8,911,43!
External revenu 5,310,09: 3,543,211 58,12¢ — 8,911,43

Intersegment revent 1,498,52! 383,91° 81,25: (1,963,69) —
Direct segment cost (3,963,869  (2,685,97) (37,706 1,945,61! (4,741,92)
External direct segment co¢ (3,539,50) (1,177,76) (24,657) — (4,741,92)

Intersegment direct co (424,355  (1,508,21) (13,059 1,945,61! —
Segment net revenuu 2,844,75! 1,241,15 101,67! (18,079 4,169,51
Depreciation and amortization (71,207) (13,519 (1,859 — (86,58()
Segment profit from operations 1,212,42 530,60: 98 (13,760 1,729,36!
Share of loss of associal — — (13,23¢) — (13,236
Interest incom 25,28: 1,58¢ 22,89¢ (24,26() 25,51(
Interest expens (11,796 — (1,867) 6,137 (7,520
Segment profit before tax 1,177,29! 522,93¢ 32,79 (28,149 1,704,88!

Corporate and other segment’s profit before tamfomntinuing operations includes 44,560 loss rdl&deMaster Loto group, which was
disposed of in 2012.
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9. Operating segments (continued

The statement of comprehensive income from contnoperations for each segment for the year endegmber 31, 2011, as presented tc

CODM is presented below:

Corporate Total
continuing
QD VQW and other Eliminations operations
Revenue 7,092,85! 1,936,78: 219,25¢ (1,090,801 8,158,09
External revenu 6,396,48 1,649,24 112,36. — 8,158,09
Intersegment revent 696,36 287,54( 106,89t (1,090,801 —
Direct segment cos (4,599,17) (1,246,38) (85,805 1,034,60! (4,896,76)
External direct segment co (4,286,59) (546,78 (63,387) — (4,896,76)
Intersegment direct co (312,585 (699,59 (22,427) 1,034,60! —
Segment net revenue 2,493,67: 690,40: 133,45! (56,19 3,261,33!
Depreciation and amortization (71,989 (19,329 (1,299 3,407 (89,199
Segment profit from operations 925,97( 204,99 18,01¢ (58,489 1,090,49;
Share of loss of associal — — (22,92¢) — (22,926
Interest incom 7,592 — 15,66¢ (17,119 6,14¢
Interest expens (6,619 (28) (2,747) 5,32¢ (4,069
Segment profit before tax 912,14; 205,12: 4,88¢ (64,43¢) 1,057,71!

Corporate and other segment’s profit before tamfomntinuing operations includes 3,556 loss relédddaster Loto group, which was

disposed of in 2012.

Segment net revenue, as presented to the CODNhdorears ended December 31, 2011, 2012 and 2@&Kidated by subtraction cost of
revenue (exclusive of depreciation and amortizatioom revenue and adding back payroll and reltdeds as presented in table below:

Revenue under IFR

Cost of revenue (exclusive of depreciation and éizaifon)
Difference in timing of expense recogniti

Payroll and related tax:

Total segment net revenue, as presented to CODM

2011 2012 2013
8,158,090  8,911,43  11,666,05
(5,572,60)  (5,454,28)  (6,396,49)
6,89¢ — —
668,94¢ 712,36 897,97
3,261,33'  4,169,51( 6,167,521

A reconciliation of depreciation and amortizationERS depreciation and amortization, as preseiot#ne CODM, for the year ended

December 31, 2011, 2012 and 2013 is presented below

2011 2012 2013
Depreciation and amortization, as presented to CODN (89,199 (86,580) (90,91
Amortization of fair value adjustments to intangilalssets recorded on

acquisitions and related impairme (51,405 (42,47) (22,187
Depreciation and amortization under IFRS (140,599 (129,05) (113,100
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9. Operating segments (continued

A reconciliation of segment profit from operatiansFRS profit from continuing operations of theo@p, as presented to the CODM, for the
year ended December 31, 2011, 2012 and 2013 ismiszsbelow

2011 2012 2013

Total segment profit from operations, as presentetb CODM 1,090,49: 1,729,36 2,886,58!
Amortization of fair value adjustments to intangilalssets recorded on

acquisitions and related impairme (51,409 (42,477) (22,187
Corporate costs allocated to discontinued inteonatioperation (140,867 (61,27¢) —
Effect of software development cost, not capitalimesegment

presentatiot 9,87¢ 35,00( —
Offering expense — (109,23) (84,737
Shar+-based paymen — (65,719 (230,93)
Goodwill impairment — — (5,479
Difference in timing of expense recogniti (6,899 — —
Profit from operations under IFRS 901,20: 1,485,66! 2,543,25:

A reconciliation of segment profit before tax tdR& consolidated net profit from continuing openasiof the Group, as presented to the
CODM, for the year ended December 31, 2011, 2082843 is presented below:

2011 2012 2013
Total segment net profit before tax, as presentectCODM 1,057,71! 1,704,88 2,788,21.
Amortization of fair value adjustments to intangilsissets recorded on

acquisitions and related impairme (51,409 (42,477) (22,187
Corporate costs allocated to discontinued inteonatioperation (140,86) (61,274 —
Effect of software development cost, not capitalizesegment
presentatiot 9,87¢ 35,00( —
Offering expense — (109,23) (84,737
Share-based paymen — (65,719 (230,93)
Gain/(loss) on loans issued at rate different froarket (30,999 8,04: —
Difference in timing of expense recogniti (6,899 — —
Goodwill impairment — — (5,479
Other (10,930 (13,36)) —
Profit before tax from continuing operations underlFRS 826,50: 1,455,87 2,444,88.
Geographic information
Revenues from external customers are presentedbelo
2011 2012 2013
Russis 7,511,40. 7,949,321 9,817,94.
Kazakhstar 581,12¢ 737,91t 677,74
Other 65,56¢ 224,20: 1,170,36
Total revenue per consolidated income statement 8,158,09 8,911,43i 11,666,05
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The revenue information above is based on theilmtaff the customer.

Revenues from a single external customer amoutdind@% or greater of Grouprevenue from continuing operations relate to @gnsent an
are presented in the table below:

2011 2012 2013
Customer 1 1,682,22 <1C% <1C%
Customer 905,00: <1C% <1C%
Customer ¢ 739,94( <1C% <1C%

The Group does not have any single external customéQW segment amounting to 10% or greater ofupis revenue from continuing
operations in 2011, 2012 and 2013 years.

The Group allocates non-current assets by geogralpteigion based on the principal country of majeerations of a particular legal entity
within the Group:

As of As of
As of December 31 December 31
January 1,
2012 2012 2013
Russia 2,133,22. 2,066,63 2,695,77
Kazakhstan and oth 12,87¢ 14,94¢ 17,36%
Total non-current assets of continuing operation: 2,146,101 2,081,58 2,713,14!
Non-current assets from discontinued operat 50,29: — —
Non-current assets 2,196,39 2,081,58: 2,713,14!

Non-current assets for this purpose consist of prgpert equipment, goodwill and intangible assets.

10.  Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share amounts are calculateéd/lujng net profit for the year attributable todamary equity holders of the parent by the
weighted average number of ordinary shares outstgritliring the year.

Diluted earnings per share amounts are calculatetividing the net profit attributable to ordinagguity holders of the parent adjusted for
effect of potential share exercise by the weiglateetage number of ordinary shares outstanding glidini@ year plus the weighted average
number of ordinary shares that would be issuedoowersion of all the dilutive potential ordinaryasls into ordinary shares.
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The following reflects the income and share datdus basic and diluted earnings per share conipuotator the years ended December 31.:

Notes 2011 2012 2013

Net profit attributable to ordinary equity holdexfsthe parent fron

continuing operation 595,72¢ 1,077,53 1,873,22
Profit/(loss) attributable to ordinary equity holdef the parent from a

discontinued operatic (75,739 (167,39) —
Net profit attributable to ordinary equity holders of the parent for

basic earnings 519,99: 910,13¢ 1,873,22
Weighted average number of ordinary shares for basiearnings per

share 18 52,000,00 52,000,00 52,034,08
Effect of shar-based paymen 32 — 1,31¢ 434,63(
Weighted average number of ordinary shares for dilted earnings

per share 18 52,000,00 52,001,31 52,468,71
Earnings per share:
Basic, profit attributable to ordinary equity haldef the parer 10.0C 17.5C 36.0(
Basic, profit from continuing operations attributabo ordinary equity

holders of the parel 11.4¢ 20.7:2 36.0(
Diluted, profit attributable to ordinary equity la@lrs of the parer 10.0C 17.5C 35.7(
Diluted, profit from continuing operations attrilable to ordinary equit

holders of the parel 11.4¢ 20.7:2 35.7(

There have been no other transactions involvingnargl shares or potential ordinary shares betwieemeporting date and the date of
completion of these financial statements.
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11. Property and equipment

Processing
servers anc
Computers
engineering Assets
and office Bank Other under

equipment equipment equipment equipment construction Total
Cost
Balance as of December 31, 20: 254,82¢ 73,26¢ 10,16: 12,08¢ 4,82¢ 355,17:
Internal transfer. 6,99¢ 3,86¢ 1,09¢ 17¢ (12,139 —
Additions 14,20¢ 12,97¢ — 83:< 7,57(C 35,58:
Disposals (7,700 (13,769 (2,170 (1,189 — (24,82()
Disposals of subsidiarie (2,779 (682) — (20 — (2,48))
Discontinued operatior (46,697) (4,827 — (4,30]) — (55,816
Foreign currency translatic (2,239 (539 — (229 (2) (2,999
Balance as of December 31, 20: 217,62! 70,30: 9,092 7,36¢ 25¢ 304,64
Internal transfer 67,90: 431 38C 69,59¢ (138,31) —
Additions 123,32¢ 9,70¢ — 78¢ 146,45; 280,27
Disposals (28,504 (14,87%) (6,329 (5,516 (181) (55,405
Foreign currency translatic 547 2,06¢ — 26 (6) 2,63¢
Balance as of December 31, 20: 380,89¢ 67,63( 3,14: 72,26: 8,217 532,14!
Accumulated depreciation and impairment:
Balance as of December 31, 20: (140,409 (37,909 (2,476 (6,516 — (187,300
Internal transfer. — (47) — 41 — —
Depreciation charg (52,66¢) (17,297 (3,910 (1,440 — (75,310
Depreciation charge (discontinued operatic (1,409 (489) — (132 — (2,029
Disposals 4,64¢ 11,44¢ 2,06¢ 497 — 18,66(
Disposals of subsidiarie 1,51¢ 58t — 16 — 2,11
Discontinued operatior 36,34 2,94 — 3,38¢ — 42,67
Foreign currency translatic 1,762 29¢ — 12¢ — 2,19(
Balance as of December 31, 20: (150,219 (40,440 (4,319 (4,019 — (198,99)
Internal transfer. (587) 227 — 36C — —
Depreciation charg (41,857 (14,265 (2,145 (2,739 — (61,007
Disposals 17,87" 10,53( 4,187 4,257 — 36,85
Foreign currency translatic 31C (1,807%) — (7) — (1509
Balance as of December 31, 2013 (174,469 (45,755 (2,27¢6) (2,14¢6) — (224,64
Net book value
As of December 31, 201 114,42; 35,36: 7,681 5,57( 4,82¢ 167,87:
As of December 31, 201 67,40¢ 29,86: 4,774 3,34¢ 25¢ 105,65:
As of December 31, 201 206,43( 21,87t 867 70,11¢ 8,21: 307,50(

In 2013 and 2012 no significant impairment of pmtyand equipment is recognized. As of Decembe2813, the total amount of fully

depreciated assets is equal to 174,444 (2012 102p,
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12. Intangible assets

Cost

Balance as of December 31, 20:
Additions

Transfer between grou
Disposals

Disposals of subsidiarie
Discontinued operatior

Foreign currency translatic

Balance as of December 31, 20:

Additions

Additions from business combinations (Note £
Transfer between grou

Disposals

Foreign currency translatic

Balance as of December 31, 20:

Accumulated amortization and Impairment:
Balance as of December 31, 2011
Charge for the yes

Charge for the year (discontinued operatic
Transfer between grou

Impairment

Impairment (discontinued operatior
Disposals

Disposals of subsidiarie

Discontinued operatior

Foreign currency translatic

Balance as of December 31, 20:

Charge for the yee

Impairment

Disposals

Foreign currency translatic
Balance as of December 31, 2013

Net book value
As of December 31, 201

As of December 31, 201
As of December 31, 201

As of December 31, 2013, the total amount of faliyortized assets is equal to 174,789 (2012 — 48K,11

Contract
rights and
Computer Customer Trade

Goodwill Licenses Software  relationships marks others Total
1,671,99. 183,07¢ 481,93 170,31(  107,30( 10,447 2,625,06.
— — 40,48 — — 1,742 42,22¢

— — 81¢ — — (819 —
— — (3,085) — — — (3,08%)
(4,459 — (1,096) — (30) — (5,580
(30,659 — (65,57¢) — () (5) (96,239
— (177) — — 71€ 541
1,636,88" 183,07¢ 453,30: 170,31( 107,26 12,08¢ 2,562,93
— — 159,38t — — 36,09¢ 195,48t
— — — — — 295,38 295,38

— — 1,98¢ — — (1,98¢) —
— —  (206,98) — (107,170 (5,336 (319,48
— — 58C — — 9 58¢
1,636,88° 183,07¢ 408,27t 170,31( 97 336,25¢ 2,734,90i
(32,74) —  (279,83) (170,31() (107,25) (6,39) (596,53)
— — (51,676 — (19) (2,046  (53,74)
— — (6,026) — — (1) (6,027)

— — (29) — — 29 —
— — (3,636 — — — (3,636
(2,367) — (26,277 — — — (28,639
— — 3,08t — — — 3,08¢
4,45¢ — 87:Z — 6 — 5,33
30,65« — 62,76¢ — — 2 93,42:
— — (275) — 35 (23) (267)
— — (301,029 (170,310 (107,23)  (8,430) (587,000
— — (50,817 — 9 (1,279 (52,099
(5,479 — — — — — (5,479
— — 202,98: — 107,14 5,21¢ 315,34:
— — (20) — — 2 (18)
(5,479 —  (148,87) (170,31 (97) (4,497 (329,25))
1,639,241 183,07¢ 202,10:. — 46 4,05¢ 2,028,52
1,636,88" 183,07¢ 15227! — 35 3,65¢ 1,975,93
1,631,400 183,07¢ 259,39¢ — — 331,76« 2,405,64
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13. Impairment testing of goodwill and intangible asset with indefinite useful life

An analysis and movement of goodwill and licensepiaed through business combinations, by CGUnealsided in the intangible assets note
(Note 12), is as follows:

Visa QIWI
OSMP Wallet Others Total

Cost

As of December 31, 201 1,449,57I 364,91 7,84( 1,822,32,
Impairment — — (2,36)) (2,36))
As of December 31, 2012 1,449,57I 364,91. 5,47¢ 1,819,96
Impairment — — (5,479 (5,479
As of December 31, 201 1,449,57! 364,91. — 1,814,48;

The Group determined the following CGUs: OSMP whicthe major part of QD and Visa QIWI Wallet.

The carrying amount of Visa QIWI Wallet includesangible assets 183,076 with an indefinite uséfeil(Bank license is expected to be
renewed indefinitely) recorded by the Group atdhte of acquisition on September 24, 2010. Basdti®analysis of Visa QIWI Wallet
CGU'’s carrying value, including allocated goodvaitid bank license, compared to its recoverable amthenGroup did not identify
impairment of intangible assets with indefinite fuséfe as of December 31, 2013.

Prior to May 2013 the Company'’s ordinary shareseweat publicly traded, and Company measured theverable amounts of CGUs based or
value in use using internal forecasted cash fl&irsce then the Company estimated the recoverabbei@s of its CGUs based on fair value
less costs to sell on the basis of Group earningsptes derived from market quotes as of Decen3ier2013.

The calculation of recoverable amounts of these €&Unost sensitive to:
. Market price and volume of traded shal
. The Grouy's transaction volume and net revenue yie

. Net profit margins of each CGl
The values assigned to each of these parameterstnefarket views on business.

With regard to the assessment of recoverable amafitash-generating units, management believésitheeasonably possible change in any
of the above key assumptions would cause the caymalue of the units to materially exceed its verable amount.

As a result of deterioration of performance of oh&roup business units in 2013 and 2012, an impait charge of 5,479 (20122;:361; 201
— 8,225) was recorded in “Others” CGUs.

The principal factors leading to recognition by up the impairment losses of other CGU’s gooldwi2013 and 2012 were reductions in
the projected future cash flows of the recentlyusregl or established international businesses.ofigh the Group continued to project future
long-term growth in cash flows, such growth wasdothan that estimated at the time the businesses acquired.
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As of December 31, 2013, long-term and short-teram$ consisted of the following:

Long-term loans
Loans to individual:
Loans to legal entitie

Total long-term loans

Short-term loans

Loans to individual

Loans to legal entitie

Due from financial institution

Total short-term loans

Provision for
impairment of

Total as of
December 31

Net as of
December 31

As of December 31, 2012, long-term and short-teram$ consisted of the following:

Long-term loans
Loans to individual:
Loans to legal entitie

Total long-term loans

Short-term loans

Loans to individual

Loans to legal entitie

Due from financial institution

Total short-term loans

As of December 31, 2013, the provision for impaintn& loans movement was the following:

Loans due from credit institutior

Short term loans and due from to individu
Short term loans and due from legal enti

Total short-term receivables

2013 loans 2013
10,63} — 10,63}
31,94« (31,949 =
42 58: (31,944 10,63:
10,19¢ — 10,19¢
136,84t (85,36 51,48¢
7,19¢ (3,44%) 3,74¢
154,24( (88,810 65,43(
Provision
Total as of for Net as of
December 31 impairment December 31
2012 of loans 2012
18,48( — 18,48(
166,90: — 166,90
185,38:¢ — 185,38:-
14,43¢ (106) 14,33(
367,63: (60,000 307,63:
5,57: (3,449 2,12¢
387,64( (63,554 324,08t
Provision for Provision for
impairment impairment
of loans as o of loans as o
December 31 Charge for December 31
2012 the period Write offs 2013
(3,449 — — (3,44%)
(106) — 10€ —
(60,000 (57,306 — (117,301
(63,55¢) (57,306 10€ (120,759
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14. Long-term and short-term loans (continued)

As of December 31, 2012, the provision for impaintn&f loans movement was the following:

Provision for

impairment
of loans as o
December 31

Recovery/

(Charge) for the

Provision for

impairment
of loans as o
December 31

2011 period 2012
Loans due from credit institutior (3,44%) — (3,449
Short term loans and due from to individu (579 467 (10€)
Short term loans and due from legal enti (10,000 (50,000 (60,000
Total Bank’s shori-term receivables (14,02) (49,537 (63,559

As of December 31, 2011, the provision for impaintn&f loans movement was the following:

Provision for

impairment
of loans as o
December 31

2010
Loans due from credit institutior (3,36))
Short term loans and due from to individu (7
Short term loans and due from legal enti (10,000
Total Bank’s shori-term receivables (13,369

As of December 31, 2011, 2012 and 2013, the Gragpnio overdue but not impaired loans.

Charge for the

Provision for

impairment
of loans as o
December 31

period 2011
(87) (3,449
(56€) (579
— (10,000
(657) (14,029

The following table demonstrates due dates of ttmus loans issued including interests accrueof &ecember 31, 2012 and 2013:

Total long-
On demanc term and
and < 1-6 6-12 short-term
1 month months months >1 year loans
Loans receivable as of December 31, 2012 14,857 72,62( 236,60¢ 185,38: 509,47(
Loans receivable as of December 31, 2 5,39t 55,34¢ 4,69( 10,63’ 76,06°
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15. Trade and other receivables

As of December 31, 2013, trade and other receigatiasisted of the following:

Cash receivable from aget

Deposits issued to merchal

Payment processing fees receivable from merct
Receivables for advertisir

Advances issued to vendc

Rent receivable

Other receivables and advan

Total trade and other receivables

As of December 31, 2012, trade and other receigatiasisted of the following:

Cash receivable from aget

Deposits issued to merchal

Payment processing fees receivable from merct
Receivables for advertisir

Advances issued to vendc

Rent receivable

Other receivables and advan

Total trade and other receivables

Total as of
December 31

Provision for
impairment of

Net as of
December 31

2013 receivables 2013
932,54: (448,04:) 484,49¢
1,945,37! (6,229 1,939,14
150,56: (2,080 149,48:
74,73( (24,087 50,64’
42,76: (1,726 41,03’
71,27 (5,459 65,81
46,59: (4,920) 41,67
3,263,83I (491,53) 2,772,29
Total as of Provision for Net as of

December 31

impairment of

December 31

2012 receivables 2012
1,418,24: (288,01) 1,130,23,
1,996,32. (5,296) 1,991,02:

171,61 (1,352 170,25t

67,77¢ (16,36)) 51,41t
43,12: (3,026 40,09t
17,42¢ (3,709 13,72¢
44,72¢ (3,809 40,92(
3,759,22! (321,55) 3,437,67.

Trade receivables aged but not impaired as of DbeeRil, 2013 are presented below:

Ageing of receivables (days

As of December 31, 201 Total <30 3C-60 60-90  9C-180  18(-36(
Cash receivable from aget 484,49¢ 447,64( 16,47¢ 2,14C 13,33( 4,72
Payment processing fees receivable from merct 149,48: 120,52° 28,41¢ 307 227 —
Receivables for advertisir 50,647 18,29 19,71« 8,95¢ 3,68 —
Rent receivable 65,81: 25,59¢ 22,38 6,417 11,38( 32
Total trade and other receivables 750,43¢ 612,06. 86,99( 17,82( 28,61¢ 4,75¢
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15. Trade and other receivables (continued

Trade receivables aged but not impaired as of DbeeRil, 2012 are presented below:

Ageing of receivables (days

As of December 31, 201 Total <30 3C-60 6C-90 90-180  18C-36C _>360
Cash receivable from aget 1,130,23. 1,059,43. 22,66( 34,92! 8,58/ 1,06z 3,56¢
Payment processing fees receivable from merct 170,25¢ 156,16« 8,70¢  3,44:  1,79¢ 11€ 31
Receivables for advertisir 51,41¢ 37,95, 10,15¢ 2,21: 1,08 11 —
Rent receivable 13,72« 8,137 4,33t 98¢ 27C — —
Total trade and other receivables 1,365,620 1,261,68 45,857 41,56« 11,737 1,18¢ 3,60(
For the year ended December 31, 2013, the provisioimpairment of receivables movement was thifahg:
Provision for Provision for
impairment of impairment of
receivables as receivables as
of December 31 Charge for of December 31
2012 the year Write offs 2013
Cash receivable from aget (288,01 (194,45¢) 34,43: (448,04
Deposits issued to merchal (5,296 (1,550 623 (6,229
Payment processing fees receivable from merct (1,357) (70 342 (1,080
Receivables for advertisir (16,367 (7,7272) — (24,08)
Advances issued to vendc (3,02¢) (42 1,342 (1,72¢)
Rent receivable (3,707 (1,439 (329 (5,459
Other receivables and advan (3,809 (4,130 3,01« (4,920
Total trade and other receivables (321,55) (209,409 39,42¢ (491,53

Receivables are non-interest bearing and creditsgienerally do not exceed 30 days. There is nginegent for collateral to receive credit.

Interest of 0%-36% per annum is accrued on ovelsigehinted to some agents.
For the year ended December 31, 2012, the provisioimpairment of receivables movement was thifahg:

Provision for
impairment of
receivables as

Provision for
impairment of
receivables as

of December 31 Charge for of December 31
2011 the year Write offs 2012
Cash receivable from aget (163,465 (136,979 12,42: (288,01)
Deposits issued to merchal (5,209 (93 1 (5,296
Payment processing fees receivable from merct (1,087 (802) 537 (1,357)
Receivables for advertisir (13,167 (3,216 17 (16,36
Advances issued to vendc (1,89¢) (2,636 1,50¢ (3,02¢)
Rent receivable (3,149 (558 — (3,709
Other receivables and advan (1,23)) (8,079 5,49¢ (3,809
Total trade and other receivables (189,189 (152,35) 19,98: (321,55)
Discontinued operatior (54,459 (9,146 63,60¢ —
Trade and other receivables, including receivablesom
discontinued operations (243,64) (161,49) 83,58 (321,55)
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15. Trade and other receivables (continued

For the year ended December 31, 2011, the provisioimpairment of receivables movement was thiofahg:

Provision for
impairment of
receivables as

Provision for
impairment of
receivables as

of December 31 Charge for of December 31
2010 the year Write offs 2011
Cash receivable from aget (158,65() (33,72) 28,90¢ (163,46))
Deposits issued to merchal (642) (4,660 98 (5,204
Payment processing fees receivable from merct (1,362) 217 58 (1,08%)
Receivables for advertisir (439) (12,989 26¢€ (13,167)
Advances issued to vendc (2,652) 69¢ 57 (1,89¢)
Rent receivable — (3,149 — (3,149
Other receivable (1,229 (139 132 (1,23))
Total trade and other receivables (164,969 (53,736 29,517 (189,189
Discontinued operatior (7,87%) (43,037 (3,549 (54,459
Trade and other receivables, including receivablesom
discontinued operations (172,84) (96,777) 25,97 (243,64)

16.  Cash and cash equivalents
As of December 31, 2013 and 2012, cash and castadepis consisted of the following:

As of As of
December 31 December 31

2012 2013
Correspondent accounts with CB 1,098,38! 656,48
Correspondent accounts with other ba 1,681,65! 6,606,56.
Shor-term CB RF deposil 5,560,001 1,500,00!
Other shorterm bank deposit 929,62t 2,389,61!
RUB denominated cash with banks and on F 239,96¢ 267,85!
Foreign currency denominated cash with banks artthod 433,52( 216,39(
Total cash and cash equivalent 9,943,16! 11,636,91

Cash and short-term investments are placed indiahimstitutions or financial instruments, whicteaonsidered at the time of deposit to have
minimal risk of default.

17.  Other assets
As of December 31, 2013 and 2012, other non-cuassgts consisted of the following:

As of As of
December 31 December 31
2012 2013
Long term right to lease premis 16,32t —
Lease depos — 28,74¢
Other 52 9,64¢
Total other non-current assets 16,37" 38,39«
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17.  Other assets (continued

As of December 31, 2013 and 2012, other curremtss®nsisted of the following:

As of As of
December 31 December 31

2012 2013
Reserves at CB RF 54,68: 108,69!
Inventories 22,76 19,00¢
Other 15,89( 31,56¢
Total other current assets 93,33¢ 159,26

* Banks are currently required to post mandatosgrees with the CB RF to be held in non-interestibpg accounts. Starting from March 1,
2013, such mandatory reserves established by ttecoBstitute 4.25% for all liabilities. The amouismexcluded from cash and cash
equivalents for the purposes of cash flow staterapdtdoes not have a repayment c

18.  Share capital, additional paid-in capital and ther reserves

The charter capital of the Company consisted ddd® prdinary shares with par value of €1,71 eathaized, issued and outstanding as of
December 31, 2011 (2010 — 15,000). All issued shamre fully paid. In case of liquidation, the Camp’s assets remaining after settlement
with creditors, payment of dividends and redemptibthe par value of shares is distributed amoegotidinary shareholders proportionately to
the number of shares owned.

On August 22, 2012, the shareholders of the Grgypowved a split of the shares and the conversighem€ompany’s existing share capital
comprising €25,650 (equivalent to 890) divided ih000 ordinary shares of the par value of €1g&tispare each fully paid into a larger
number by splitting each share into 3,420 sharddmga total of 51,300,000 shares of par value @0per share and an increase in the
authorized share capital of the Company from €2b(@fuivalent to 890) to €76,950.

On December 11, 2012, the Company increased ite shgital by a way of issuance of 700,000 ordirstagres with a par value 0d€005 pe
share proportionally to all of its shareholders@minal value, so as to increase its share capitalunts to €26,000 (equivalent to 904), after
issuance divided into 52,000,000 ordinary sharéis avpar value of €0.0005 per share. After stodik apd issuance described above,
52,000,000 shares are assumed outstanding foeradids presented for the purpose of EPS computation

On December 31, 2012, the Company converted it908300 authorized ordinary shares into 101,9@Ddéss A shares and 52,000,000
class B shares. After the conversion the authosiede capital of €76,950 was divided into 101,900 class A shares of €0.0005 and
52,000,000 class B shares of €0.0005 and the ishare capital €26,000 (equivalent to 904) wagddiinto 52,000,000 class B shares of
€0.0005.

Further, on December 31, 2012, the Company incteigsauthorized share capital from €76,950 divioktd 101,900,000 class A shares of
€0.0005 and 52,000,000 class B shares of €0.008516,425 divided into 117,500,000 class A shareB0d#005 and 113,350,000 class B
shares of €0.0005.

On May 2, 2013, by way of a special resolution od@ shareholders, the then-existing authorizedestapital was converted from €115,425
divided into 117,500,000 class A shares of €0.08¢h and 113,350,000 class B shares of €0.0005e#&di.5,425 divided into 157,000,000
class A shares of €0.0005 each and 73,850,000 Blakares of €0.0005 each and the issued sharaloaps converted from €26,000 divided
into 52,000,000 class B shares of €0.0005 eacB&g80 divided into 39,500,000 class A shares000@05 each and 12,500,000 class B st
of €0.0005 each.
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18.  Share capital, additional paic-in capital and other reserves (continued

On May 23, 2013, the Company took the followingpmyate actions in connection with the exercisénefright of conversion of class A shares
into class B shares: (i) conversion of the autleatighare capital from €115,425 divided into 157,000 class A shares of €0.0005 each and
73,850,000 class B shares of €0.0005 each to €23 %iided into 156,026,192 class A shares of €0608ach and 74,823,808 class B shares
of €0.0005 each, and (ii) conversion of the issstegte capital from €26,000 divided into 39,500,0@28s A shares of €0.0005 each and
12,500,000 class B shares of €0.0005 each to €26l@@led into 38,526,192 class A shares of €0.088&h and 13,473,808 class B shares of
€0.0005 each.

On September 10, 2013 the Company increased itsdsshare capital by issuance of 97,500 class & sl €0.0005 per share as a result of
the exercise of options by current and former eyg®s which resulted in the issued share capitaghiecreased to €26,048.75 (equivalent to
906) divided into 38,526,192 class A shares of @80each and 13,571,308 class B shares of €0.GQ0b e

On October 3, 2013, the Company took the followgogporate actions in connection with the exercisth@e right of conversion of class A
shares into class B shares: (i) conversion of thieagized share capital from €115,425 divided ith6,026,192 class A shares of €0.0005 eac
and 74,823,808 class B shares of €0.0005 eachlf® 475 divided into 146,598,646 class A share0dd@5 each and 84,251,354 class B
shares of €0.0005 each, and (ii) conversion ofgeged share capital from €26,048 divided into 38,592 class A shares of €0.0005 each an
13,571,308 class B shares of €0.0005 each to €2G94livided into 29,098,646 class A shares of @B0each and 22,998,854 class B share:
of €0.0005 each.

On October 16, 2013, the Company increased iteisshare capital by issuance of 21,294 class Bsldr€0.0005 per share as a result of the
exercise of options by current and former employeleieh resulted in the issued share capital baiegeiased to €26,059.40 (equivalent to 907
divided into 29,098,646 class A shares of €0.0Ghend 23,020,148 class B shares of €0.0005 each.

Each class A share has the right to ten votesraeting of shareholders; and each class B sharhdaight to one vote at a meeting of
shareholders. The class A shares and the clasarBsshave the right to an equal share in any didde other distribution the Group pays.

The additional paid-in capital of the Company incamt of 1,876,104 arose as a result of the aceuisit 2007 of ZAO e-port, ZAO QIWI
Wallet and certain other subsidiaries in exchawogaéwly issued shares representing 35% of the @agip share capital following issuance.
The difference between the fair value of the shessged and their nominal value was recorded asiawial paid-in capital.

The other reserves of the Group’s equity repregentinancial effects from changes in equity ofoasstes, acquisitions and disposals, as well
as other operations with non-controlling interastthe subsidiaries without loss of control andeefffrom option agreements over non-
controlling interest and share-based payment triose.

19. Borrowings
As of December 31, 2013, outstanding borrowingsisted of the following:

Effective As of
interest rate, December 31

Short-term borrowings % Maturity 2013
Bank overdrafts 0% On deman 63t
Total short-term borrowings 63E
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19. Borrowings (continued)

Effective As of
interest rate, December 31
Long-term borrowings % Maturity 2013
Due to non-controlling shareholders of subsidiaries August 2015 -
(U.S.$2,253,796 ar€214,257) 10.C¢-10.5% December 201 100,55(
Other Borrowings (U.S.$ 269,450) November-
10.(% December 201 8,801
Total long-term borrowings 109,35:

Repayments of long-term and short-term borrowirgginming on January 1, 2014, including interestaaréollows:

2014 9,94
2015 56,90¢
2016 64,17(
Total borrowings 131,01¢
Less interes (21,039
Total borrowings 109,98t
As of December 31, 2012, outstanding borrowingsisted of the following:
Effective As of
interest rate, December 31
Short-term borrowings % Maturity 2012
Due to non-controlling shareholders of subsidiafi®¢R
75,000,000, U.S.$245,532 a€119,197) 1C% July, 2013 15,75¢
Other Borrowings (U.S.$269,450) July, 2013 —

0-10.5% December, 201 10,35!
Total short-term borrowings 26,10¢
Effective As of
interest rate, December 31
Long-term borrowings % Maturity 2012
Due to non-controlling shareholders of subsidiaries February, 2014
(U.S.$1,030,500 and €95,060)
1C-10.5% August, 201t 38,76:
Total long-term borrowings 38,76:

On September 27, 2013 ZAO QIWI entered into a stesrh overdraft facility agreements with bank V1@ &in overdraft up to 85,000 with a
commitment fee payable on the total amount of #udify of 0.45% per annum, and interest payablemounts drawn and outstanding at
10.3%. The credit facility is available for 335 daand to be settled within 365 days. Interest erpthitstanding credit facility can be increased
by 1% if a monthly turnover of overdraft does net@ed the average outstanding loan plus 800,008 oVardraft facilities contain covenants,
mainly related to maintaining certain level of reue, profitability, debt, as well as contractudatienships with the three largest Russian
mobile operators as service providers, and maimigilnquidity at QIWI Bank. The overdraft facilitiy guaranteed by the CEO of the Group.
There are no amounts drawn and outstanding unieovkrdraft facility at any reporting dates presenn these financial statements.
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19. Borrowings (continued)

On December 31, 2013 ZAO QIWI entered into a skemria overdraft facility agreements with bank VTB &n overdraft up to 315,000 with a
commitment fee payable on the total amount of #udify of 0.45% per annum, and interest payablemounts drawn and outstanding at
10.3%. The credit facility is available for 335 dagnd to be settled within 365 days. Interest erothitstanding credit facility can be increased
by 1% if a monthly turnover of overdraft does neteed the average outstanding loan plus 950,008 ovardraft facilities contain covenants,
mainly related to maintaining certain level of reue, profitability, debt, as well as contractudatienships with the three largest Russian
mobile operators as service providers, and maimigilnquidity at QIWI Bank. The overdraft facilitiy guaranteed by the CEO of the Group.
There are no amounts drawn and outstanding unideovkrdraft facility at any reporting dates prdeerin these financial statements.

20. Trade and other payables
As of December 31, 2013 and 2012, the Group’s ausquayable and other payables consisted of theafinlg:

As of As of
December 31 December 31

2012 2013
Payables to merchar 4,262,52! 3,305,53
Deposits received from aget 7,599,40 9,203,94
Deposits received from individual custom 2,256,92 3,147,67
Payment processing fees payable to ac 483,38 545,04:
Accrued expense 192,58( 170,54.
Payables to vendo 92,01« 351,10:
Payables for rer 16,03 22,57%
Payables to employe: 2,22t 18,741
Other advances receiv: 29,091 3,80¢
Total trade and other payables 14,934,19 16,768,97

21.  Amounts due to customers and amounts due to bies
As of December 31, 2013 and 2012, amounts duestoers and amounts due to banks consisted oblioaving:

As of As of
December 31 December 31

2012 2013
Due to bank: 31,87: 95,97
Due to customers: individua 379,99¢ 285,44(
Due to customers: legal entiti 532,68:. 449,80¢
Total amounts due to customers and amounts due tahks 944,54 831,22t

Amounts due to customers and amounts due to bankstdear interest.
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22. Revenue

Revenue for the years ended December 31 was awoll

2011 2012 2013
Payment processing fe 7,121,44 7,623,82! 9,934,12i
Revenue from advertisir 262,13( 454,05t 507,04:
Interest revenue from ag’s overdrafts 184,89( 205,40( 195,31¢
Interest revenue and gain from currency sw 136,60° 234,12: 384,97
Revenue from rent of space for kio 268,88: 88,54¢ 91,63¢
Cash and settlement servic 55,12( 216,02 485,57(
Other revenu 129,02( 89,46¢ 67,37¢
Total revenue 8,158,09 8,911 ,43 11,666,05

For the purposes of consolidated cash flow statgrfieerest expense/(income), net” consists offtiilwing:

2011 2012 2013

Interest income and gain from currency swaps diadisas part of revenue (136,60°)  (234,12)  (384,97)
Gain from currency swaps classified as part of mee — — 32,48:
Interest income from non-banking loans classifieplasately in the

consolidated statement of comprehensive inc (6,14¢€) (25,510 (22,209
Interest expens 4,06 7,52( 28,68¢
Interest expense (income), net from discontinueatatons 8,04: 8,621 —
Interest expense (income), net, for the purposesigolidated cash flow

statemen (130,646 (243,49() (346,017

23.  Cost of revenue (exclusive of depreciation and amiization)
Cost of revenue (exclusive of depreciation and déimadion) for the years ended December 31 was lbsve:

2011 2012 2013
Transaction cost 4,446,94! 4,420,46! 5,065,18:
Payroll and related taxt 668,94¢ 712,36( 897,97!
Advertising commission 13,63: 68,84 92,04
Cost of rent of space for kios 237,93¢ 95,21 85,02¢
Other expense 205,14¢ 157,41: 256,27t
Total cost of revenue (exclusive of depreciation @namortization) 5,572,60! 5,454,28! 6,396,49'

Other expenses for the year ended December 31,i86lL@le loss due to security breach of 88,717.
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Selling, general and administrative expense

Selling, general and administrative expenses fetars ended December 31 were as follows:

2011 2012 2013
Payroll, related taxes and other personal expenses 888,66t 1,029,60! 1,342,76.
Rent of premises and related utility exper 156,36¢ 135,67: 214,91¢
Bad debt expens 54,38¢ 201,88 266,71:
Office maintenance expens 93,35: 118,46 185,52:
Telecommunication and internet expen 49,35¢ 47,22¢ 40,99(
Travelling and representation expen 48,81t 43,77 68,01"
Advertising and related expens 147,07¢ 39,92« 171,91
Professional fee 40,87¢ 20,821 44,38
Other tax expense 36,99¢ 53,83 117,01:
Bank service: 2,61( 6,757 8,671
Offering expense — 109,23 84,73.
Other operating expens 25,18« 31,58¢ 62,08:
Total selling, general and administrative expense 1,543,68: 1,838,79 2,607,71i
25.  Other expenses
Other expenses for the years ended December 3lasdodiows:
2011 2012 2013
Tax penaltie: — — 7,044
Share of loss for the period attributable to nontaaling interest and accounted for
as a liability 16,60¢ 24,29¢ —
Loss on loans issued at rate different from ma 30,99: — —
Loss on acquisition of ncontrolling interest classified as a liabil 12,25: — —
Other 13,32¢ 4,44( 13,04
Total other expense: 73,18: 28,73¢ 20,08¢
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26.1. Dividends paid and proposec
Dividends paid and proposed by the Group are pteddyelow:

2011 2012 2013

Proposed, declared and approved during the year:
Final dividend for 2012: 296,000 or 5.68 per sharesrim dividend for 2013:
U.S.$ 48,398,014 or 0.93 per she
(2012: Final dividend for 2010: 6,475 or 0.12 peare; final dividend for 2011
U.S.$ 1,342,316 or U.S.$ 0.03 per share; interviddnd for 2012: 820,039 c
15.73 per share
2011: Final dividend for 2010: U.S.$ 7,913,055 081/$0.15 per share; interim
dividends for 2011: U.S.$6,411,623 or U.S.$0.12gbere;) 416,53° 866,90( 1,868,93!
Paid during the period:
Final dividend for 2012: 296,000 or 5.68 per sharesrim dividend for 2013:
U.S.$ 48,398,014 or 0.93 per she
(2012: Final dividend for 2010: 6,475 or 0.12 peare; final dividend for 2011
U.S.$ 1,342,316 or U.S.$ 0.03 per share; interviddnd for 2012: 820,039 c
15.73 per share
2011: Final dividend for 2011: U.S.$ 7,913,055 081$ 0.15 per share; interim
dividends for 2011: U.S.$ 6,411,623 or U.S.$ 0.&Rghare) 424,72( 865,687 1,881,08
Proposed for approval (not recognized as a liabilit as of December 31):
Final dividend for 2013: U.S.$ 16,700,349 or U.S3R0per share
(2011: Final dividends for 2011: U.S.$ 1,342,316&J08.$ 0.03 per share and
interim dividends for 2012: 75,215 or 1.44 per sh 115,60: — 546,58¢
Dividends payable as of December 31 — — —

During the year ended December 31, 2013 SP OO0 GENIHoldova) paid dividends to non-controlling skholders in the amount of 2,098
and QIWI Bank proposed, declared and approved elindd to non-controlling shareholders in the amofii#. Dividends payable as of
December 31, 2013 relates to dividends payablellyl @ank to non-controlling shareholders in amoah21 (other current liabilities).

During the year ended December 31, 2012 SP OO0 GENMoldova) paid dividends to non-controlling skholders in the amount of 908
and QIWI Bank proposed, declared and approved eindd to non-controlling shareholders in the amo@iét Dividends payable as of
December 31, 2012 relates to dividends payablellyi Bank to non-controlling shareholders in amoaf6 (other current liabilities).

During the year ended December 31, 2011, Diomalctuinpaid dividends to non-controlling shareholdi@rthe amount of 54,682 and TOO
OSMP paid dividends to non-controlling shareholderthe amount of 22,902 (dividends in amount o788 were offset with loans issued by
the Group to non-controlling shareholders). Nodiwvids were payable as of December 31, 2011 to owtnedling shareholders.

Prior to 2012, the Company distributed dividenddJi8.$, but starting from 2012 it began to paydiwvids mostly in Russian rubles. The
Company itself is a holding company, and majoritjtoconsolidated earnings are earnings of iteitpr subsidiaries. Earnings of its foreign
subsidiaries are not easily distributable to thenBany due to currency control restrictions, taxatb dividends and other restrictions.
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26.2 IPO expense:

In May 2013 in the initial public offering (IPO) diie Company 13,473,808 shares in the form of AtaerDepositary Shares (ADSs) were :
by existing shareholders of the Company at theepfdJ.S.$ 17 per ADS. The Company received nogeds from the IPO.

The underwriters agreed to reimburse the Compang fmrtion of the shareholders expenses in coimameatith the IPO in the amount of
72,836. The Company distributed a portion of teisnbursement to the selling shareholders in the fofra non-proportional distribution of
dividends during the year ended December 31, 20183e amount of 67,643. Both the expense reimbuwaeby the underwriters and the non-
proportional distribution of dividends to the seflishareholders were recorded through “other reséiu the statement of shareholderguity.

27. Income tax

The Company is incorporated in Cyprus under ther@yg@ompanies Law, but the business activity ofGheup and its associates is subject tc
taxation in multiple jurisdictions, the most sigo#nt of which include:

Cyprus

Starting from January 1, 2013, the Company is stilbpea 12.5% corporate income tax applied to isla@wide income (prior to that it was
10%). Gains from the sale of securities/titles|(iding shares of companies) either in Cyprus coathiare exempt from corporate income te
Cyprus. Capital Gains Tax is levied at a rate &62fh net profits from disposal of immovable propeituated in Cyprus or of shares in
companies which own immovable property situate@yprus (unless the shares are listed on a recatjsipek exchange). Dividend income is
unconditionally exempt from Income Tax. In certasrses dividends received from abroad may be sulojetdfence contribution at the rate of
20% for the year 2012 and 2013 and 17% for 2014laextafter.

Under certain conditions interest income may bgesutbo defence contribution at the rate of 3099410 August 30, 2011, 15% to April 29,
2013). In such cases this interest will be exemgrhfcorporation tax.

The Russian Federation

The Company’s subsidiaries and associates incagzbia the Russian Federation are subject to catpancome tax at the standard rate of
20% applied to their taxable income. Withholding ¢ 15% is applied to any dividends paid out o6Big, reduced to as low as 5% for some
countries (including Cyprus), with which Russia kasible-taxation treaties.

Kazakhstar

The Company'’s subsidiary incorporated in Kazakh&aubject to corporate income tax at the standeslof 20% applied to their taxable
income.
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27. Income tax (continued)

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities as afdb@ber 31, 2013 and 2012, relate to the following:

As of As of
December 31 December 31
2012 2013

Property and equipme 1,83¢ (2,600
Intangible asset (48,33Y) (64,765
Inventories 2,25:% 3,20z
Other norcurrent asset (3,265 4
Trade and other payabl 38,86: 58,41t
Allowance for doubtful accoun 76,531 112,05¢
Tax loss carry forward 13,64 36,43¢
Loans issuel 3,88¢ 15,46¢
Debt instrument (3,800 (45)
Deferred revenu 3,10¢ 4,69:
Taxes on unremitted earnin (20,107 (21,599
Other — 2,67¢
Total 64,61" 143,93¢
Not recognized deferred tax ass (6,877 (19,237
Net deferred income tax asse 57,74( 124,70:
including:
Deferred tax ass 101,80! 183,33:
Deferred tax liability (44,065 (58,630)

Deferred tax asset arising from tax loss carry fonlg relates to loss making subsidiaries opergtimgipally in Romania, USA and Latvia.
Term of expiration of the related tax loss carmfards is 7 years in Romania, 8 years in Latviawaitldout limits in other jurisdictions.

Deferred tax assets relating to tax loss carry éods amounting to 19,233 were not recognized &eoémber 31, 2013 (20126;:877) becaus
the Group does not believe that the realizatiorelasfted deferred tax assets is probable.

The Company does not intend to distribute a pomibits accumulated undistributed foreign earningtsDecember 31, 2013 the amount of tax
that it would pay to distribute them would be 2852012 — 20,101).

The Company intends to repatriate all 2013 earnirage its Russian subsidiaries, which resultedderaal of respective taxes on unremitted
earnings.

2011 2012 2013
Deferred income tax asset, net as of January 24,51: 44,03t 57,74(
Effect of acquisitions of subsidiari — — (9,075
Deferred tax benef 19,52: 13,70¢ 76,03¢
Deferred income tax asset, net as of December 31 44,03t 57,74( 124,70:
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27. Income tax (continued)

For the year ended December 31, income tax expedseled:

2011 2012 2013
Total tax expense from continuing operations (240,529 (407,729 (609,509
including:
Current income tax expen (270,109 (426,88 (685,54
Deferred tax benef 29,58¢ 19,15¢ 76,03¢
Total tax expenses from discontinued operation (18,687 (6,82¢) —
including:
Current income tax expen (8,629 (1,37 —
Deferred tax expens (10,067) (5,457%) —
Income tax expense for the yea (259,21() (414,55 (609,509

Theoretical and actual income tax expense for nairtg operations is reconciled as follows:

2011 2012 2013
Profit before tax from continuing operations 826,50 1,455,87! 2,444,88:
Theoretical income tax expense at the Company’sat@xof 12.5%
(Cyprus) (10% in 2012 and 201 (82,65() (145,58 (305,610
Increase resulting from the tax effect of.

Non-deductible expense (34,519 (52,809 (110,199
Tax on dividend: (34,87¢) (53,189 (200,029
Effect of income of subsidiaries taxed at differeates (85,559 (141,139 (81,327
Unrecognized tax asse (829) (15,006€) (12,35¢)

Other (2,10 — —
Total income tax expense (240,52 (407,729 (609,509

Theoretical and actual income tax expense for discoed operations is reconciled as follows:

2011 2012

Profit before tax from discontinued operations (137,569 (233,53)
Theoretical income tax expense at the Com’s tax rate of 10% (Cypru 13,75 23,35¢
Increase resulting from the tax effect of:

Nonr-deductible expense and r1-taxable incom 3,551 16¢
Difference due to change in tax legislat (8,69¢) —
Tax on dividend: 42¢ 23
Effect of loss of subsidiaries taxed at differeates 26,25¢ 20,40¢
Unrecognized tax asse (53,98) (41,499
Non-taxable gain from disposal of subsidiar — 4,65¢
Tax effect of no-deductible loss on -measurement to fair valt — (13,940
Total income tax expenst (18,687 (6,82¢)
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28. Commitments, contingencies and operating risk
Operating environment

Russia continues economic reforms and developnfet#t legal, tax and regulatory frameworks as reggiby a market economy. The future
stability of the Russian economy is largely dependgon these reforms and developments and thetiefaess of economic, financial and
monetary measures undertaken by the government.

The Russian economy is vulnerable to market dowstand economic slowdowns elsewhere in the woté. global financial crisis has
resulted in uncertainty regarding further econognmwth, availability of financing and cost of cagjtwhich could negatively affect the
Group'’s future financial position, results of op@as and business prospects.

Management believes it is taking appropriate messtr support the sustainability of the Group'sitiesss in the current circumstances.

Taxation

Russian and the CIS’s tax, currency and custonislédign is subject to varying interpretations, am@dnges, which can occur frequently.
Management’s interpretation of such legislatiompglied to the transactions and activity of the @rmay be challenged by the relevant
regional and federal authorities. Recent eventsiwRussia and the CIS suggest that the tax atitegare taking a more assertive position in
its interpretation of the legislation and assesdmand as a result, it is possible that transastéom activities that have not been challenged in
the past may be challenged.

Due to its international structure, the Group isjeat to permanent establishment and transfermridsks in various jurisdictions it operates
The Group manages the related risks by lookingsahanagement functions and risks in various c@as#nd level of profits allocated to each
subsidiary. If additional taxes are assessed wipect to these matters, they may be materialn&heRussian transfer pricing legislation,
which came into force on January 1, 2012, allovesRlussian tax authority to apply transfer pricidgiatments and impose additional profits
tax liabilities in respect of all “controlled” traactions if the transaction price differs from tharket level of prices. The list of “controlled”
transactions includes transactions performed veilldted parties and certain types of cross-bordestictions. The Group will determine its tax
liabilities arising from “controlled” transactionsing actual transaction prices. Due to the uncgytand absence of current practice of
application of the current Russian transfer pridegjslation the Russian tax authorities may cingléethe level of prices applied by the Group
under the “controlled” transactions and accrue témithl tax liabilities unless the Group is abledemonstrate the use of market prices with
respect to the “controlled” transactions, and thate has been proper reporting to the Russiaauthorities, supported by appropriate
available transfer pricing documentation.

The Group’s operations and financial position wdhtinue to be affected by Russia and the ClSipalitdevelopments, including the
application and interpretation of existing and fetlegislation and tax regulations. Such possibioences and their effect on the Group
could have a severe impact on the Group’s opemtioiits financial position in Russia and the CIS.

While management believes, it is taking appropnagasures to support the sustainability of the @sohusiness in the current circumstances
unexpected further deterioration in the areas destrabove could negatively affect the Group’s itlssand financial position in a manner not
currently determinable.
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28. Commitments, contingencies and operating risks (cdimued)

Government regulation of the electronic payment syems

In certain jurisdictions where the Group operaties,legislation on e-payments is not yet matureigamigveloping, and no assurance can be
made that if such legislation is changed or the legislation adopted it will be beneficial to thed@p’s business. From time to time, the G
may also be subject to in the area of anti-monegdaring by the regulatory authorities, includingtidMonopoly authorities. The subject of
investigation varies and may include alleged viols of the Russian law on advertising, in paracuélated to consents from Group consul
for sending them SMS advertising messages. Histilyiche penalties imposed on us as a result cfi swestigations were insignificant. In
addition, we generally dispute them in due couase, expect to be able to resolve such disputesangavor. In addition, there is a lot of
uncertainty regarding future legislation on taxatiad e-payments, including in respect of the plaicexation. Subsequent legislation and
regulation and interpretations thereof, litigatioourt rulings, or other events could expose theu@ito increased costs, liability and
reputational damage that could have a materialradveffect on the Group’s business, financial ciordiand results of operations.

Starting from November 2013, certain mobile netwayplerators introduced measures to limit the nurob&MS delivered to their customers.
These measures may substantially increase thédedslivering SMS to the Group’s consumers, ad a&limit the amount of such SMS
delivered. As a consequence, the Group’s managesmpptts that SMS advertising revenues may be rabyanegatively affected going
forward.

Anti-Trust Investigation in Kazakhstan

In March 2012, a Group subsidiary in Kazakhstarabez subject to the anti-trust investigation conedidty the Competition Protection
Agency of the Republic of Kazakhstan, or the Agemoncerning alleged abuse of its dominant elearpayment market position in this
country. The maximum liability to which the Grougrcbe exposed is a penalty equal to 10% of thentevearned as a result of market abuse
plus confiscation of the full amount of such reventihe maximum liability is determined in referemsaot more than one year of such
revenues. No fine has been levied as a resulteoftrestigation, but the Agency has issued an dalezctify violations of the anti-trust
legislation. The Group has complied with the orderd has taken actions to remedy applicable falurbe Group expects similar
investigations by the Agency in future to recurt tannot reliably estimate at this time the amowfitdaims that can be brought against the
Group in the future in connection with them.

Risk of cybersecurity breach

The Company stores and/or transmits sensitive datd as credit or debit card numbers and mobibm@mumbers, and the Company has
ultimate liability to its consumers for the failui@ protect this data. The Company has experiebhoeaches of its security by hackers in the
past, and breaches could occur in the future. ¢h sircumstances, the encryption of data and gif@ective measures have not prevented
unauthorized access and may not be sufficientdegmt future unauthorized access. However, anyduiteach of the system, including
through employee fraud, may subject the Compamyaterial losses or liability, payables to othermpant systems, fines and claims for
unauthorized purchases with misappropriated cordiebit card information, identity theft, impersdion or other similar fraud claims. In
addition, misuse of such sensitive data or a cywersty breach could result in claims, regulatasusiny and other negative consequences.
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Insurance policies

The Group holds no insurance policies in relatmitd assets, operations, or in respect of pulahility or other insurable risks. There are no
significant physical assets to insure. Managemastdonsidered possibility of insurance of busifmegsruption in Russia, but the cost of it
outweighs the benefits in management’s view.

Legal proceeding

The Group has been and continues to be the sudfjezgal proceedings and adjudications from timérte, none of which has had,
individually or in the aggregate, a material aded@mspact on the Group. Management believes thatetbelution of all business matters will |
have a material impact on the Group’s financialifgms or operating results.

Cyprus issue

The Cyprus economy has been adversely affectedtfierarisis in the Cyprus banking system in coniiomcwith the inability of the Republic
of Cyprus to borrow from international markets. dgesult, the Republic of Cyprus entered into niagjohs with the European Commission,
the European Central Bank and the Internationaléfmy Fund (the “Troika”), for financial supporthigh resulted into an agreement and the
Eurogroup decision of March 25, 2013. The decigiatuded the restructuring of the two largest baink8yprus Laiki Bank and Bank of
Cyprus. During 2013 the Cyprus economy contraatetthér with a decrease in the Gross Domestic Ptoduc

Following the positive outcome of the first, secamdl third quarterly reviews of Cyprus’s economiecgramme by the European Commission,
the European Central Bank and the Internationalétny Fund during 2013, the Eurogroup endorsedigi®irsement of the scheduled
tranches of financial assistance to Cyprus.

The Groups assets domiciled in Cyprus are not significamt, @ this basis the directors and management danticipate any material impe
on the future recovery of the Group’s assets frieenrésolution of this issue.

Operating lease commitments

The Group has commercial lease agreements of dffiddings and kiosk places. The leases have aragedife of between one (for kiosk
places) and seven (for office buildings) yearsaltdase expense for the year ended December 33,i2@or rent of office places 190,752
(2012 - 119,432; 2011 — 117,515) and for kiosk gdaent 85,025 (2012 — 95,214; 2011 — 237,936).

Future minimum lease rentals under non-cancellapdzating lease commitments for office premisesfd¥ecember 31, 2013 are as follows:

Within one yeal 140,70°
After one year but not more than five ye 445,73t
More than five year 163,96:

Pledge of assets

As of December 31, 2013 the Group pledged debtimstnts with the carrying amount of 400,000 (20112174,700) as collateral for
merchants, 1,083,574 (2012 — 0) as collateral fbBWank guarantee issued to VISA and 462,732 (20@Ras coverage for supporting its
short-term overnight credit facility at CB RF.
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Balances and transactions with related partie

related parties as of the end of the relevant years

Amounts Amounts owec Cash due to
owed by relatec related party
to related
Category of related party parties parties customers
As of December 31, 201
Associates 5,25¢ — —
Key management personnel of the entity or its garedal.:
Shor-term benefit — (14,016) —
Other operation: 1,581 — (229,58%)
Other related parties (( 30,18t (533,63) (3,829
As of December 31, 201
Associates (A 157,14! (53,96¢) (11,039
Key management personnel of the entity or its gareal.:
Shor-term benefit: — (16,700 —
Other operation: — — (232,68.)
Other related partie 7,56¢ (198,42) (14,47Y
Revenue Cost of
from revenue to Operating Interest
related related income and paid/
Category of related party parties parties expenses received
The year ended December 31, 20:
Associates 85,37¢ (2,467 — 16,80«
Key management personnel of the entity or its gareal.:
Shor-term benefit(D) — — (123,269) —
Share-based paymen — — (61,609) —
Other operation: 74 2) (1,212) —
Other related parties (B) (¢ 346,12¢ (121,78() (22,029 (7,00%)
The year ended December 31, 2012
Associates 231,00¢ (4) — 23,88¢
Key management personnel of the entity or its garedl.:
Shor-term benefit(D) — — (124,164) —
Sharebased paymen — — (20,576) —
Other operation: — — — 210
Other related parties (t 127,212 (9,545 (7,586¢) (3,809
The year ended December 31, 20:
Associates 154,48t — (27,439 794
Key management personnel of the entity or its gared.:
Shor-term benefit(D) — — (130,963 —
Other related parties (E 70,69¢ (193,63() (4,446 (1,859

Before December 27, 2013 one of the assocattsd as an agent in the project of renting sparckidsks. The total amount owed by a
related party as of December 31, 2012 is 152,06%ists of a current receivable of 249 and a loan81 made by the Group. This
represents the amount due for assignment of legsesit paid by the Group to the lessor. The lo@ardmterest at a rate of 8% per
annum. Its carrying amount was adjusted to reflattarket interest rate of 14!

(A)
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(B) Other related parties include a group of conmoontrolled by one of the shareholders thadagherchants. Revenue accrued by the
Group from these related parties for the year emdzbember 31, 2013 in the amount of 113,066 (20123;321, 2011 — 68,059)
represents payment processing fees. Cost of revrauged from these entities by the Group forybar ended December 31, 2013 in
amount 4,508 (2012 — 2,653, 2011 - 164) repregearisaction costs. The terms of this commissioangement were entered into on
arm’s length terms and do not deviate in any mataspect from the terms that the Group would nsgnilar contracts with non-related
parties.

(C) Since June 7, 2013 other related parties irchudroup of companies under common control with @fithe Group’s shareholders
described in the previous paragraph above, whithsboth merchants and agents for the Group ahali@ a mobile network operator,
which is one of the Group’s top three customerseRae accrued to the Group by these related pdirtissJune 7 to December 31, 2013
amounts to 224,254 and represents payment progeess. Cost of revenue, incurred to these entityethe Group in the amount
117,272 represents transaction costs. The tertidsofommission arrangement were entered into mrsdength terms and do not
deviate in any material aspect from the termsTha&t Group would use in similar contracts with -related parties

(D) Short-term benefits of key management commésh remuneration of the members of the Board fdbirs and key management. Cast
remuneration of the members of the Board of Dinec{each a “Director” and collectively, “Directojgif the Company amounted to
35,174 the year ended December 31, 2013 (2012 @ht+ nil).

The above stated balances and transactions hamesh&sred into on terms as described above ortagbr the parties, are not secured, nor
bear interest except that disclosed above and ta Ne.

30. Risk management

The main risks that could adversely affect the @isdinancial assets, liabilities or future cash ffoave interest rate risk, foreign exchange
liquidity and capital management’s risks and credk. Management reviews and agrees policies famaging each of the risks which are
summarized below.

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk arises from the possibility tbla&nges in interest rates will affect future céi@vs or the fair values of financial instruments.
The Group’s income and operating cash flows arstamitially independent of changes in market intaiaes, because it has no significant
interestbearing assets or liabilities except for borrowingth a fixed interest rate (Note 19). The Groupdifixed rate instruments in 2013 ¢
2012.

Foreign exchange risk

Foreign exchange risk is the risk that fluctuationexchange rates will adversely affect itemshie Group’s statement of comprehensive
income, statement of financial position and/or déshs. Foreign currency denominated assets ahdlitias give rise to foreign exchange
exposure.

As of December 31, 2013 and 2012, the Group’s s&#ta in foreign currencies were not significaakimg into account the structure of its net
assets and the exchange rates fluctuations in @d 2012, the Group evaluated foreign exchangeagshot significant.
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Liquidity risk and capital management

The Group uses cash from shareholders’ contribsitibas sufficient cash and does not have any gignifoutstanding debt other than
interbank debt with short maturities (classifieddas from banks). Deposits received from agentala@due on demand, but are usually offse
against future payments processed through ageimesGroup expects that agentleposits will continue to be offset against fatpayments ar
not be called by the agents. Amounts due to custoarad amounts due to banks and trade and othablesyare due on demand.

According to CB RF requirements, a bank’s capitdtalated based on Russian accounting standardddshe not less than 10% of its risk-
adjusted assets. As of December 31, 2013, ZAO “(@AAK’s” capital comprised 11% (2012 — 14%) therekgeeding the required level.
ZAO0 “QIWI Bank” monitors the fulfillment of requimaents on a daily basis and sends the report to EBrRa monthly basis. During the year
2013 and 2012 ZAO “QIWI Bank” met the capital adagurequirements (CB RF).

As of December 31, 2013, the risk-adjusted capitigiquacy coefficient calculated in accordance 4988 Basel Capital Accord consisted of
31% (2012 — 26%) that exceeded minimal level (894,2— 8%).

The Group manages its capital structure and makjestaents to it, in light of changes in econonoaditions. Capital includes share capital,
additional paid-in capital, other reserves anddiaion reserve. To maintain or adjust the capitaicture, the Group may make dividend
payments to shareholders, return capital to sh&defmor issue new shares. Currently, the Groupiresj capital to finance its growth, but it
generates sufficient cash from its operations. t@bée below summarizes the maturity profile of @@mpany’s financial liabilities based on
contractual undiscounted payments.

Due:
More than a
Total On demand Within a year year
Long-term and sho-term borrowings 109,98 — 63% 109,35:
Trade and other payabl 16,768,97 16,768,97 — —
Amounts due to customers and amounts due to k 831,22t 831,22t — —
Total as of December 31, 201 17,710,18 17,600,19 63E 109,35:
Due:
More than a
Total On demand Within a year year
Long-term and sho-term borrowings 64,86 — 26,10t 38,76:
Trade and other payabl 14,934,19 14,934,19 — —
Amounts due to customers and amounts due to t 944,54 944,54 — —
Total as of December 31, 201 15,943,61 15,878,74 26,10¢ 38,76:
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30. Risk management (continued

Credit risk

Financial assets, which potentially subject theuprand its subsidiaries and associates to credlit consist principally of trade receivables,
loans receivable issued, cash and short-term imeagt. The Group sells services on a prepaymerist basnsures that its receivables are fron
customers with an appropriate credit history —dargerchants and agents with sufficient and appatspdredit history. The Group’s receivables
from merchants and others, except for agents, emerglly non-interedtearing and do not require collateral. Receivablabloans from agen
are interest-bearing and are primarily secureddbteral, which includes pledge of agerdssets and guarantees. The above collateral dt
meet criteria for separate recognition under IFR&aay be insufficient to cover the receivables,ibtiaken into account when assessing the
impairment of related receivables and loans. Thmu@@holds cash primarily with reputable Russianiatefnational banks, including CB RF,
which management considers having minimal riskesadlt, although credit ratings of Russian and khzaanks are generally lower than th

of the banks in more developed markets. Short-tewestments include fixed-rate debt instrumentsadsby the top Russian banks.

The carrying amount of accounts receivable, naflofvance for impairment of receivables, represémsmaximum amount exposed to credit
risk for this type of receivables (Note 15). Thel¢éabelow demonstrates the largest counterpatt@sinces and revenues, as a percentage of
respective totals:

Trade and other receivables Revenue
As of As of
December 31 December 31

2012 2013 2012 201:

Concentration of credit risks by main counterparties, %
from total amount

Top 5 60% 33% 24% 16%
Others 40% 67% 76% 84%

Collection of receivables could be influenced bgreamic factors; management believes that there sgnificant risk of loss to the Group
beyond the allowance already recorded.

31. Financial instruments

The Group’s principal financial instruments cornsisof loans receivable, trade and other receivabiede and other payables, cash and cash
equivalents, long and short-term debt instrumentstarrowings. The Group has various other findrasaets and liabilities which arise
directly from its operations. During the year, Beoup did not undertake trading in financial instents.
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The fair value of the Group’s financial instrumeassof December 31, 2013 and 2012, is presentégplyof the financial instrument in the
table below:

As of December 31, 201 As of December 31, 201

Carrying Carrying

amount Fair value amount Fair value
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalel LAR 9,943,161  9,943,16/ 11,636,91 11,636,91
Trade and other receivabl LAR 3,437,67. 3,437,67. 2,717,60: 2,717,60:
Debt instrument HTM 2,367,59; 2,369,43! 3,012,15: 3,013,97!
Shor-term loans LAR 324,08t 324,08t 65,43( 65,43(
Long-term loans LAR 185,38« 185,38« 10,63: 10,63:
Total financial assets 16,257,89 16,259,73 17,442,73 17,444,55
Financial liabilities
Long-term borrowings FLAC 38,76: 38,76: 109,35: 109,35:
Shor-term borrowings FLAC 26,10¢ 26,10¢ 63E 63E
Trade and other payabl FLAC 14,934,19 14,934,19 16,768,97 16,768,97
Due to bank: FLAC 31,87: 31,87: 95,97 95,97
Bank's custome’s account: FLAC 912,67¢ 912,67¢ 735,24 735,24
Total financial liabilities 15,943,61 15,943,61 17,710,218 17,710,18

Financial instruments used by the Group are indudene of the following categories:
. LAR - loans and receivable
. FLAC —financial liabilities at amortized cos

. HTM - helc-to-maturity financial asse’

The fair value of the financial assets and lialeiitincluded at the amount the instrument couldXmanged in a current transaction between
willing parties, other than in a forced or liquitat sale.

The following methods and assumptions were usedtimate fair values:

. Cash and cash equivalents, short-term invedsrard accounts receivable and payable, otherrduassets and liabilities approximate
their carrying amount largely due to si-term maturities of these instrumer

. Non-current financial liabilities is estimated by dismting future cash flows using rates currentlyilatde for debt of similar terms and
remaining maturities

Long-term fixed-rate assets are evaluated by tloeiGbased on parameters such as interest ratesficspeuntry risk factors and individual
creditworthiness of the customer. Based on thituatian, impairment is taken into account for thkpected losses of these assets. As of
December 31, 2013 and 2012 the carrying amourgacif receivables, net of allowances, are not nadliedifferent from their calculated fair
values.

Short and long-term debt instruments include debtisties carried at amortized cost. The Group katerl that no impairment needed to be
recorded at December 31, 2013 and 2012 becauskffdrence between the amortized cost and the sufair value is immaterial.
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31. Financial instruments (continued)

The Group uses the following IFRS hierarchy foredetining and disclosing the fair value of finandratruments by valuation technique:
. Level 1: Quoted (unadjusted) prices in active m@rker identical assets or liabilitie

. Level 2: Other techniques for which all inpthat have a significant effect on the recordedvalue are observable, either directly or
indirectly;

. Level 3: Techniques that use inputs that have rifgignt effect on the recorded fair value that mo¢ based on observable market d

32.  Share-based payments

In October, 2012 the board of directors and shddeins approved an Employee Stock Ownership PlaBQE") for management of the Group,
under which up to 2,565,000 shares of the Companybe granted to management during the ten yedhe giflan term. Later in January 2013,
the Company’s ESOP was amended and restated easethe maximum amount of shares reserved farisswnder the Plan to 3,640,000
class B shares, or 7% of the Company entire isanddutstanding share capital. Vesting is indivilguegreed for each grant. The contractual
term of the options granted is 10 years from thte dagrant. The board of directors shall deterntireeexercise price applicable to the options
granted under the ESOP. Following an initial pubfiering of the Group, the exercise price shatllm®less than the average closing price of
the shares on the principal exchange on which shahes are then traded for the ten business dayediately preceding the grant date. The
options can be exercised on a gross or net share lpon exercise, the shares cannot be solcherwise transferred until after the Group
achieve a net income target per the Group’s manageatcounts (prepared on a basis consistent dtbdsis of preparation of segment data
of U.S.$170,000,000 for the last four consecutisedl quarters.

The following table illustrates the movements iarghoptions during the year ended December 31,:2013

As of Exercised Granted As of

December 31 Forfeited during the during the December 31
during the

Tranche vesting date 2012 period period period 2013

Tranche 1 December 21, 20: 347,23: — (99,92¢) — 247,30¢
Tranche 2.1 upon IPO

(May 2013) 347,23. — (99,924 — 247,30¢
Tranche 2.: January 1, 201 429,31! (99,71) — 246,00( 575,60
Tranche : January 1, 201 720,11° (230,61) — 246,00( 735,50!
Tranche ¢ January 1, 201 372,88: (115,309 — 246,00( 503,57¢

Based on the above, as of December 31, 2013 th@&uonhas a total of 2,309,304 options outstandifigthich 494,616 is vested and
1,814,688 are unvested.

The amount of expense arising from equity-settletesbased payment transactions for the year endeember 31, 2013 was 230,937
(December 31, 2012 — 65,718).

The weighted average remaining contractual lifetfiershare options outstanding as of December@®I3 #/as 9 years.
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32. Share-based payments (continued

The following table presents the summary of inmitthe Black-Scholes Merton option pricing modetdigor the ESOP for the determination
of the fair value of the granted options which wakulated separately for each tranche:

Granted on
December 21 November 15 November 16 December 4
2012 2013 2013 2013

Exercise price (U.S.{ 13.645: 41.238( 41.399( 46.57:
Dividend yield (%) — 2.8¢ 2.8¢ 2.8¢
Expected volatility (% 28-30 30-32 30-32 28-32
Risk free interest rate (% 0.75-1.0¢ 0.34-0.65 0.34-0.65 0.3¢-0.61
Expected life of options (year 5.C-6.5 2.C-3.0 2.C-3.C 2.C-3.C
Share price (U.S.4 15.8¢ 43.32 43.3: 45.3i
Gran-date fair value of the options, (U.S 5.34-5.73 7.0¢-8.32 7.02-8.27 5.8€-7.57

The expected volatility was determined by refereicine historical volatility of peer companies.eT$hare price for options granted on
December 21, 2012 was determined using the disedw#sh flows projections based on financial buglgpproved by the Group’s senior
management covering an eight-year period (20132@20eight-year period was used for projectiorsstree Group considers this time frame
to be reasonably forecasted. The share price fiwrepgranted after IPO was determined by referémotosing market prices of the Group’s
traded shares. Due to lack of historical datagttyected life of the options was estimated as apuidt average between the vesting and the
expected term of each option vesting tranche.

33. Events after the reporting date

In January 2014, the Russian State Duma introdadgti on amendments to the law on “National paytssistem?”, restricting volume and
balances of anonymous means of payments, incluedewronic on-line wallets. If passed, this law ns&ynificantly negatively affect the
Group’s business. The Group is evaluating the imphthis potential law amendment on its operations

In January, 2014 the Group additionally investe#l,223 in long term promissory notes.

On February 11, 2014, the exchange rate of the KaZange to the US Dollar and other major currenias devalued by approximately 2(

During January-March, 2014, the exchange rateeRihssian Ruble to the US Dollar and to the Eure devalued by approximately 20% and
25% respectively.

On February 28, 2014, the board of directors ofGbepany approved a dividend of U.S.$ 16,700,348italent of 546,589).
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33. Events after the reporting date (continued’

Grant of options

On February 6, 2014 the Group granted the optiors 441,000 shares of the Company to its employedsr ESOP, which are expected to
vest as follows:

Tranche vesting dat Quantity

Tranche 1 February 6, 201  147,00(
Tranche 2 January 1,201  147,00(
Tranche : January 1, 201  147,00(

The weighted average exercise price of the opi®hsS.$ 36.091 per share.

On February 14, 2014 the Group granted the optiees 60,000 shares of the Company to its employadsr ESOP, which are expected to
vest as follows:

Tranche vesting date  Quantity

Tranche 1 February 14, 201  20,00(
Tranche January 1, 201 20,00(
Tranche : January 1, 201 20,00(

The weighted average exercise price of the opi®hsS.$ 37.427 per share.
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QIWI PLC

By: /s/ Sergey Solonin
Name: Sergey Solonil

Title: Chief Executive Office
Date: March 12, 201«
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Exhibit 12.1
Certification of the Chief Executive Officer

I, Sergey Solonin, certify that:
1. I have reviewed this annual report on Form 2&-BIWI plc;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notador@ny untrue statement of a material fact or dméttate a material fact necessary to mak
the statements made, in light of the circumstanoger which such statements were made, not misigadith respect to the period covered by

this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statemeamis,other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all material respects
the financial condition, results of operations aadh flows of the company as of, and for, the pisrigresented in this report;

4. The company other certifying officer(s) and | are responsifoleestablishing and maintaining disclosure cdstemd procedures (as defit
in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e))iatednal control over financial reporting (as definin Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and
15d-15(f)) for the company and have:

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and procsdorecaused such disclosure controls and procedaotee designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatheg to the company, including its consolidatetisidiaries, is made known to us
by others within those entities, particularly dgrihe period in which this report is being prepa

(b) Designed such internal control over financ&darting, or caused such internal control overrfaial reporting to be designed under
our supervision, to provide reasonable assuramgading the reliability of financial reporting atite preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordancegeitierally accepted accounting princip

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the companyssldsure controls and procedures and presentédsinepport our conclusions about
the effectiveness of the disclosure controls andguiures, as of the end of the period coveredibyaport based on such

evaluation; an

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in the canys internal control over financial reporting thatomed during the period cover
by the annual report that has materially affecteds reasonably likely to materially affect, thengpany’s internal control over
financial reporting; an



5. The company'’s other certifying officer(s) antblve disclosed, based on our most recent evaluatiorernal control over financial
reporting, to the company’s auditors and the acmlitmittee of the company’s board of directors (@nspns performing the equivalent
functions):

(@ All significant deficiencies and material weakses in the design or operation of internal cooirer financial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the comy’s ability to record, process, summarize and refpahcial information; an

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that invedvmanagement or other employees who have a simifiole in the company’s
internal control over financial reportin

Date: March 12, 201«

By: /sl Sergey Solonin
Name: Sergey Solonil
Title: Chief Executive Office




Exhibit 12.2
Certification of the Chief Financial Officer

I, Alexander Karavaev, certify that:
1. I have reviewed this annual report on Form 2&-BIWI plc;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notador@ny untrue statement of a material fact or dméttate a material fact necessary to mak
the statements made, in light of the circumstanoger which such statements were made, not misigadith respect to the period covered by

this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statemeamis,other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all material respects
the financial condition, results of operations aadh flows of the company as of, and for, the pisrigresented in this report;

4. The company other certifying officer(s) and | are responsifoleestablishing and maintaining disclosure cdstemd procedures (as defit
in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e))iatednal control over financial reporting (as definin Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and
15d-15(f)) for the company and have:

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and procsdorecaused such disclosure controls and procedaotee designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatheg to the company, including its consolidatetisidiaries, is made known to us
by others within those entities, particularly dgrihe period in which this report is being prepa

(b) Designed such internal control over financ&darting, or caused such internal control overrfaial reporting to be designed under
our supervision, to provide reasonable assuramgading the reliability of financial reporting atite preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordancegeitierally accepted accounting princip

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the companyssldsure controls and procedures and presentédsinepport our conclusions about
the effectiveness of the disclosure controls andguiures, as of the end of the period coveredibyaport based on such

evaluation; an

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in the canys internal control over financial reporting thatomed during the period cover
by the annual report that has materially affecteds reasonably likely to materially affect, thengpany’s internal control over
financial reporting; an



5. The company'’s other certifying officer(s) antblve disclosed, based on our most recent evaluatiorernal control over financial
reporting, to the company’s auditors and the acmlitmittee of the company’s board of directors (@nspns performing the equivalent
functions):

(@ All significant deficiencies and material weakses in the design or operation of internal cooirer financial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the comy’s ability to record, process, summarize and refpahcial information; an

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that invedvmanagement or other employees who have a simifiole in the company’s
internal control over financial reportin

Date: March 12, 201«

By: /s/ Alexander Karavaev
Name: Alexander Karavae
Title: Chief Financial Office




Exhibit 13.1
Certification of CEO and CFO Pursuant to 18 U.S.CSection 1350, as Adopted Pursuant to Section 906tbhe Sarbanes-Oxley Act of
2002

In connection with the Annual Report on Form 20He(‘Report”) of QIWI plc (the “Company”) for théstal year ended December 31, 2013
as filed with the U.S. Securities and Exchange C@sion on the date hereof, Sergey Solonin, as Ghietutive Officer of the Company, and
Alexander Karavaev, as Chief Financial Officerttd Company, each hereby certifies, pursuant to.830J Section 1350, as adopted pursuarn
to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002t,tto the best of his knowledge:

(1) The Report fully complies with the requiremeotsSection 13(a) or 15(d) of the Exchange Act; and

(2) The information contained in the Report faphgsents, in all material respects, the finan@aldition and results of operations of the iss

/sl Sergey Solonin

Name: Sergey Solonil

Title:  Chief Executive Office
Date: March 12, 201«

/s/ Alexander Karavaev
Name: Alexander Karavae
Title: Chief Financial Office
Date: March 12, 201«

A signed original of this written statement reqdit®y Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2882 been provided to the Company and
will be retained by the Company and furnished e $fEC or its staff upon request.

This certification accompanies the Report purstasection 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 @rall not, except to the extent required
by the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, be deemed Eiethe Company for purposes of section 18 of theufSies Exchange Act of 1934.



Exhibit 15.1

Consent of Independent Registered Public Accountingirm

We consent to the incorporation by reference inRbgistration Statement (Form S-8 No. 333-190918Fourities to be offered to employees
in employee benefit plans of Qiwi plc of our repdated March 12, 2014, relating to the financiatesnents of QIWI plc, included in this
Annual Report on Form 20-F for the year ended Déxar31, 2013.

/sl Ernst & Young LLC
Moscow, Russia
March 12, 201«



